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MINUTES

OF SCHEDULED
COUNCIL MEETING
HELD ON
MONDAY 4 OCTOBER 2021
AT 6.30PM



MEETING HELD REMOTELY 
VIA ZOOM 
1. 
2. 





3. 
4. 
5. 


ADMINISTRATORS

LYDIA WILSON	CHAIR OF COUNCIL
PEITA DUNCAN	ADMINISTRATOR
CHRIS EDDY	ADMINISTRATOROn 19 June 2020 the Acting Minister for Local Government appointed the Panel of Administrators for the City of Whittlesea and appointed Lydia Wilson as Chair of the Panel.  The Panel of Administrators comprises of Ms Lydia Wilson, the Honourable Bruce Billson and Ms Peita Duncan.  On 3 March 2021, the Hon. Bruce Billson resigned from his position as Administrator with the City of Whittlesea.  Effective from 12 May 2021, the Minister for Local Government appointed Mr Chris Eddy as the third Panel Member.  Ms Lydia Wilson, Ms Peita Duncan and Mr Chris Eddy will undertake the duties of the Council of the City of Whittlesea until the October 2024 Local Government Election.
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SENIOR OFFICERS


CRAIG LLOYD	CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
FRANK JOYCE	EXECUTIVE MANAGER GOVERNANCE & STRATEGY
KATE MCCAUGHEY	DIRECTOR COMMUNITY WELLBEING
AMY MONTALTI	DIRECTOR CORPORATE SERVICES 
JANINE MORGAN	EXECUTIVE MANAGER PUBLIC AFFAIRS
JUSTIN O’MEARA	DIRECTOR PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
DEBBIE WOOD	DIRECTOR INFRASTRUCTURE & ENVIRONMENT
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ORDER OF BUSINESS

The Chief Executive Officer submitted the following business:
[bookmark: PDFMinutesTOC]
1.	Opening	9
1.1	MEETING OPENING & INTRODUCTIONS	9
1.2	PRAYER BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	9
1.3	ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF TRADITIONAL OWNERS STATEMENT	9
1.4	Present	9
1.5	PANDEMIC UPDATE	10
1.6	Whittlesea team participates in Victorian Youth Parliament	11
1.7	International Day of Older Persons	11
2.	Apologies	12
3.	Declarations of Interest	12
4.	Confirmation of Minutes of Previous Meeting	12
5.	Questions, Petitions and Joint Letters	13
5.1	public Question Time	13
5.2	Petitions	13
5.2.1	Petition – Removal of Eucalyptus Trees in Woodstock Drive and Shetland Way Doreen	13
5.3	Joint Letters	13
6.	Officers’ Reports	15
6.1	Connected Communities	15
6.1.1	Annual Report 2020-2021	15
6.1.2	Update on Council's Disability Action Plan 2017-21:Outstanding actions	195
6.1.3	Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation for Planning Enforcement Officer	203
6.2	Liveable Neighbourhoods	209
6.2.1	Reconstruction of Arthurs Creek Road from Plenty Road to Recreation Road, Contract 2021-42 Tender Evaluation Report	209
6.2.2	PROPOSED PLANNING SCHEME AMENDMENT: 2000 DONNYBROOK RD, YAN YEAN ROAD	215
6.2.3	PLANNING SCHEME AMENDMENT C226 – SIGNS LOCAL POLICY - EXHIBITION OUTCOMES AND ADOPTION	231
6.3	Strong Local Economy	247
6.3.1	Business Advisory Panel membership	247
6.4	Sustainable Environment	253
6.4.1	Joint Letter - Gum Tree Removal Request - Flaxen Hills Road, Doreen	253
6.5	High Performing Organisation	259
6.5.1	17-19 Johnsons Road, Mernda - Sale of Council Land	259
6.5.2	Administrator Action Plan - 6 month update	297
6.5.3	Audit & Risk Committee Matters	337
6.5.4	2021/22 Growing Suburbs Fund - Project Applications	351
6.5.5	Contract 2019-71 Extension - Temporary Agency Staff Management	369
7.	Notices of Motion	375
Nil Reports	375
8.	Questions to Officers	375
9.	Urgent Business	375
10.	Reports from Council representatives and ceo update	377
10.1	Administrator Peita Duncan Report	377
10.2	Administrator Chris Eddy Report	377
10.3	Chair of Council Lydia Wilson Report	377
10.4	CEO Update - 4 October 2021	378
11.	Confidential Business	381
11.1	Connected Communities	381
Nil Reports	381
11.2	Liveable Neighbourhoods	381
11.2.1	Compulsory Land Acquisition	381
11.3	Strong Local Economy	381
Nil Reports	381
11.4	Sustainable Environment	381
Nil Reports	381
11.5	High Performing Organisation	381
Nil Reports	381
11.6	Notices of Motion	381
Nil Reports	381
12.	Closure	382
 

Note:
In these Minutes, Resolutions adopted by Council are indicated in bold text.
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[bookmark: PDF1_Opening][bookmark: _Toc84341852]1.	Opening 
[bookmark: _Toc387656795][bookmark: _Toc84341853]1.1	MEETING OPENING & INTRODUCTIONS
The Chair of Council, Lydia Wilson opened the meeting at 6:30PM.
“Welcome to this Council Meeting of 4 October 2021 which is being livestreamed.
I am Lydia Wilson, Chair of the Panel of Administrators and I would also like to introduce my Panel colleagues, Administrators Ms Peita Duncan and Mr Chris Eddy.
I would also like to introduce our Chief Executive Officer, Mr Craig Lloyd and ask that he in turn introduce the members of the Executive Leadership Team in attendance today.”
“Good evening everyone, we also have with us:
Executive Manager Governance, Mr Frank Joyce;
Director Community Wellbeing, Ms Kate McCaughey;
Director Corporate Services, Ms Amy Montalti;
Director Planning & Development, Mr Justin O’Meara; 
Executive Manager Public Affairs, Ms Janine Morgan; and
Director Infrastructure & Environment, Ms Debbie Wood.
These members of the Executive Leadership Team will join us during the meeting.”
[bookmark: _Toc387656796][bookmark: _Toc84341854]1.2	PRAYER BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Following the Introductions, the Chief Executive Officer read the following prayer:
Almighty God, we ask for your blessing upon this council to make informed and good decisions to benefit the people of the City of Whittlesea.  
Our father who art in heaven, hallowed be thy name, Thy kingdom come, Thy will be done on earth as it is in heaven. Give us this day our daily bread and forgive us our trespasses as we forgive them that trespass against us; and lead us not into temptation but deliver us from evil, For thine is the kingdom, the power and the glory, for ever and ever.
Amen
[bookmark: _Toc84341855]1.3	ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF TRADITIONAL OWNERS STATEMENT
[bookmark: _Toc387656797]The Chair of Council, Lydia Wilson read the following statement:
“On behalf of the City of Whittlesea I recognise the rich Aboriginal heritage of this country and acknowledge the Wurundjeri Willum Clan as the Traditional Owners of this place.
I would also like to personally acknowledge Elders past, present and emerging.”
[bookmark: _Toc84341856]1.4	Present 
Members:
Ms Lydia Wilson	Chair of Council
Ms Peita Duncan	Administrator
Mr Chris Eddy	Administrator
Officers:
Mr Craig Lloyd 	Chief Executive Officer
Mr Frank Joyce	Executive Manager Governance & Strategy
Ms Kate McCaughey	Director Community Wellbeing
Ms Amy Montalti	Director Corporate Services
Ms Janine Morgan	Executive Manager Public Affairs
Mr Justin O’Meara	Director Planning & Development
Ms Debbie Wood	Director Infrastructure & Environment
Ms Samantha Boyle 	Unit Manager Governance & Risk
Ms Jane Maynard	Strategic Planner
Mr Nick Robinson	Strategic Planner
Ms Sarah Rowe	Manager Economic Development
Mr Nick Mazzarella	Manager Capital Delivery
Ms Caroline Lintott	Manager Maintenance and Operations

[bookmark: _Toc84341857]1.5	PANDEMIC UPDATE 
The Chair of Council, Lydia Wilson provided an update on the current pandemic before the commencement of formal business.
“If I could perhaps start off by just making a few comments in relation to the pandemic and particularly of relevance to the City of Whittlesea. As everyone would be only too well aware, COVID numbers in our local community continue to rise, but thankfully so to do the vaccination rates. We are really pleased about that. 
As we move towards the Victorian government's roadmap to reopening, it has never been more important than ever to ensure that we are all vaccinated.  Too many people in our community are in hospital and sadly a number of them have died and that includes a number of residents of the City of Whittlesea. So we want to urge you to make sure that you get your booking for your vaccination if you are eligible and have not done so through the Victorian Government State Vaccine Hub, which is that Plenty Ranges Arts and Convention Centre at the rear of the council officers. Or it is through your GP or through local pharmacies. Obviously there are details available on our own website and at Coronavirus.vic.gov.au. 
Council is partnering with the Government, local health providers and community agencies to help our residents to find and book vaccine appointments, and we recently launched several booking booths to further support our community to ensure that they get vaccinated. And look out for those booths, which are at some of our local shopping precincts. We will be able to help you to book your vaccine, provide you with information and also transport support, if that is required. Our booths will also have multilingual staff on hand to help those who may need information and support in their own language. I would also like to thank all those in our community who have already received the vaccine and to be hundreds of people who have been in isolation and are staying home to play their part in supporting the local community. Each one of us as a really important job to play right now. 
Finally I just wanted to send out a particular acknowledgement and recognition of Northern Health, and DPV health. To the many health professionals that operate across those organisations and are at the front line, whether it is doctors, nurses, allied health staff, paramedics and other support personnel, we have got a really huge debt of gratitude for those staff for helping us to keep safe and their huge amount of endeavour during the vaccination period. It is interesting to note that since the role out began in March Northern Health has provided over 200,000 vaccinations to our community, which is a really major milestone that we should all be so proud of. And the clinic is currently vaccinating approximately 1500 people per day. Again, just concluding on this, we must all do our bit and stay safe and healthy and look out for one another. Thank you.”
[bookmark: _Toc84341858]1.6	Whittlesea team participates in Victorian Youth Parliament
Administrator Peita Duncan acknowledged five participates from Whittlesea who participated the in Victorian Youth Parliament.
“I would like to acknowledge five of our young people from the City of Whittlesea that recently participated in the Victorian Youth Parliament. This happened during the recent school holidays, where our Youth Services team at council supported a group of local young people to participate in the annual Youth Parliament Program. The Youth Parliament is run by Victoria YMCA and it is an opportunity for young people aged 16 to 25 to have their voices heard at the highest levels of Government and in the State Government. These sorts of initiatives are part of Council’s broader support for community leadership and we were extremely proud of last week's youth participants who included and I think it is absolutely necessary that we name them: Monika Boceska, Jasmine Bullock, Victoria Warda, Anna Scott and Nina Fitzsimmons. 
This team participated on behalf of the Council and sponsored the Improved Accessibility and Public Transport Bill which was overwhelmingly supported by the Youth Parliament in the Legislative Assembly and passed following the same procedures that the Victorian Government use to adopt Bills in Victoria. Improved Accessibility and Public Transport Bill is an act to improve access to trains, stations and services with particular attention to the barriers faced by people with disability. It is critically important, the work they have done here. The Bill also ensures regular maintenance of all train stations to facilitate safe and easy transport use across metro and rural train stations. Another really critical issue is to be safe when you are travelling around the state, whether it’s our own municipality or broader than that across Metropolitan Melbourne. Once again on behalf of the Administrators, congratulations to all of you for representing our community so well.”
[bookmark: _Toc84341859]1.7	International Day of Older Persons
The Chair of Council, Lydia Wilson made an acknowledgement regarding the International Day of Older Persons.
“Thank you Ms Duncan, and I would echo your congratulations to our Whittlesea team. Well done. 
And just a further acknowledgement if I could and that is to recognise that Friday 1 October 2021 was the international Day of Older Persons. And obviously it is a day to celebrate older people and their contributions to the community and also to raise awareness of issues around ageing in today's world. And this year's theme is very topical. It is digital equity for all ages, and is obviously a focus on access and participation in the digital world by older persons. And obviously now, with the key theme during the pandemic, when so many of our services and social interactions are online. Just to reflect for a minute on our statistics, in 2021 and estimated 29,300 people aged 65 and over called the City of Whittlesea home, and that is 12% of our population. And by 2041 this is forecast to almost double to be 54,660 people. And that will be making up 14% of the population. 
In Victoria the month of October is celebrated as the Victorian Seniors Festival and Council has organised an unbelievable suite of online programs, including a virtual high tea, which will be held on October 13. And we are really proud that in excess of 200 residents have already booked in for this event and further information is available via the council website. Ms Duncan and I will also be participating. And I note that it is not too late to book. You can book before October 6. And you would be receiving a high tea package that have been catered by local businesses. And they will be delivered to your door. So it is a wonderful initiative of our Whittlesea Positive Ageing team and congratulations to our staff and Peita and I really look forward to sharing and celebrating along some of our older residents.”
[bookmark: PDF1_Apologies][bookmark: _Toc84341860]2.	Apologies
	NIL
[bookmark: PDF1_Declarations][bookmark: _Toc84341861]3.	Declarations of Interest 
	NIL
[bookmark: _Toc305674829][bookmark: _Toc387656800][bookmark: PDF1_Confirmation][bookmark: _Toc84341862]4.	Confirmation of Minutes of Previous Meeting
	[bookmark: PDF2_ReportName_N_1][bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_N_1]COUNCIL RESOLUTION
[bookmark: MoverSeconder_N_1]MOVED:	Administrator Eddy
SECONDED:	Administrator Duncan 

THAT the following Minutes of the preceding meeting as circulated, be confirmed: 
[bookmark: Carried_N_1]Scheduled Meeting of Council held 6 September 2021.
CARRIED


 

[bookmark: PDF1_Consideration][bookmark: _Toc84341863][bookmark: _Toc387656801]5.	Questions, Petitions and Joint Letters
[bookmark: PDF1_QuestionsToCouncillors][bookmark: _Toc84341864]5.1	public Question Time
NIL  

[bookmark: PDF1_Petitions][bookmark: _Toc84341865]5.2	Petitions
	[bookmark: _Toc84341866][bookmark: PDF2_NewItem_N_3]	5.2.1	PETITION – REMOVAL OF EUCALYPTUS TREES IN WOODSTOCK DRIVE AND SHETLAND WAY DOREEN
Chairperson Wilson tabled a petition from 12 residents requesting:
“We the residents of Woodstock Drive and Shetland Way, Doreen, wish to raise with the City of Whittlesea our serious concerns about the state of the trees lining both streets. We refer to Woodstock Drive east of Brookwood Avenue.
These now fully grown Ghost gum trees have been planted close together, with at least 2 or 3 outside each residence. The roots of these trees have caused significant damage and previous requests for Council action have proved fruitless. Over the past 12 months all Ghost gum trees in Woodstock Drive west of Brookwood have been removed by the Council. The only trees remaining (about 10% in total) in Woodstock Drive are east of Brookwood Avenue.
We respectfully request that the remaining trees in Woodstock Drive and Shetland Way be removed as a matter of urgency to prevent further damage to our homes. It is evident that residents in both streets take pride in their homes and they are a well maintained.
It would be appreciated if our concerns are considered as a matter of urgency to prevent further damage and costs to residents.”


	COUNCIL RESOLUTION
[bookmark: MoverSeconder_N_3]MOVED:	Chairperson Wilson
SECONDED:	Administrator Duncan 

[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_N_3][bookmark: PDF2_NewItemText_N_3]THAT Council note the petition and that a final report will be presented to Council at its meeting of the 8 November 2021.
[bookmark: Carried_N_3]
CARRIED


 
[bookmark: PDF1_JointLetters][bookmark: _Toc84341867]5.3	Joint Letters
NIL
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[bookmark: PDFOfficersReports][bookmark: PDF1_OfficersReports][bookmark: _Toc84341868]6.	Officers’ Reports 
[bookmark: PDF1_ExecutiveServices][bookmark: _Toc84341869]6.1	Connected Communities
[bookmark: _Toc84341870]	ITEM 6.1.1	ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021  
[bookmark: PDF2_Attachments][bookmark: PDF2_Attachments_37017][bookmark: PDFA_Attachment_1][bookmark: PDFA_37017_1]Attachments:	1	Annual Report 2020-21    
Responsible Officer:	Chair of Council  
Author:	Executive Manager Public Affairs    

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
That Council resolve to receive and note the 2020-2021 Annual Report in accordance with section 100(1) of the of the Local Government Act 2020. 
BRIEF OVERVIEW
The 2020-21 Annual Report has been developed to provide an overview of Council’s performance in the 2020-21 financial year including the implementation of the Council Plan.
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The 2020-21 Annual Report has been developed to meet legislative requirement of the Local Government Act 2020. 
IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Council’s acceptance of the 2020-21 Annual Report will ensure we meet our legislative reporting requirements under the Local Government Act 2020.
WHAT MEASURES WILL BE PUT IN PLACE TO MANAGE IMPACTS
Finalisation of the report in accordance with legislative requirements ensures no measures are required as Council will be compliant.

REPORT
INTRODUCTION
The 2020-21 Annual Report has been developed to provide an overview of Council’s performance for the 2020-2021 financial year.
BACKGROUND
Council’s performance for the 2020-2021 Annual Report has been reported against each Council goal to demonstrate how Council is performing in achieving the 2017-2021 Council Plan. Performance has been measured as follows:
	results achieved in relation to the strategic indicators in the Council Plan
	progress in relation to the major initiatives identified in the 2020-2021 Annual Budget
	services funded in the Budget and the persons or sections of the community who provided those services
	results against the prescribed service performance indicators and measures.
Highlights include:
•	our organisation’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic which included support and relief for our community, staff redeployment and the transition to working from home for the majority of our workforce
•	$54 million on our New Works Program, which included more than 133 projects to build and upgrade community centres, sporting fields, tennis courts, playgrounds, roads, bike paths and footpaths across our municipality
•	completion of the $25 million redevelopment of Mill Park Leisure, which includes a state-of-the-art gym, four pools, a spa and sauna, accessible change facilities and a new café 
•	introduction of an opt-in food and garden organics waste recycling service, resulting in a 16 per cent increase in the diversion of food and garden waste from landfill
•	implemented a new online planning portal, allowing people to manage their planning applications from start to finish in the one location, as well as receive real-time application status updates, making it a quicker and easier process.
PROPOSAL
It is recommended that Council receive and note the 2020-2021 Annual Report.
CONSULTATION
The 2020-21 Annual Report will be available on Council’s website and hard copies will be made available at Council Offices and at the Yarra Plenty Regional Library branches of Lalor, Thomastown, Mill Park and Whittlesea once these facilities are open to the public. 
CRITICAL DATES
The Chair of Administrators must report on the implementation of the Council Plan by presenting the Annual Report to a Council Meeting open to the public within four months of the end of the financial year (S18d and S100 of the Local Government Act 2020). On 14 September 2021 the Acting Minister for Local Government provided a two-month extension to submit the Annual Report, however it has been determined that this extension is not required.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The Annual Report was produced within approved budget allocations.  
POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION
Council is required to prepare the Annual Report including the Audited Performance Statement and Financial Statements in accordance with Section 98 of the Local Government Act 2020. A copy of the Annual Report will be forwarded to the Minister for Local Government in accordance with the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.
LINK TO STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic Risk Governance - Ineffective governance of Council’s operations and activities resulting in either a legislative or policy breach
The Annual Report is required under the Local Government Act 2020 and provides transparency and reporting to community on Council’s performance over 2020-21 including implementation of the Council Plan.
LINKS TO WHITTLESEA 2040 AND THE COUNCIL PLAN
Goal	High-performing organisation
Key Direction	Driving better community outcomes through improved service access, satisfaction and advocacy

The 2020-21 Annual Report has been developed to provide an overview of Council’s performance for the 2020-2021 financial year.
DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules 2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.
The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
The City of Whittlesea 2020-2021 Annual Report is an integral part of Council’s commitment to open and accountable governance. It provides the community with an overview of Council’s performance and achievements during the 2020-2021 financial year in delivering against Council’s priorities set out in the 2017-2021 Council Plan and 2020-2021 Annual Budget. It also provides detailed financial statements relating to Council’s financial position.

	[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations]RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council resolve to receive and note the 2020-21 Annual Report in accordance with Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 2020. 

	[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_37017]COUNCIL RESOLUTION
[bookmark: MoverSeconder_37017]MOVED:	Chairperson Wilson
SECONDED:	Administrator Eddy 

[bookmark: Carried_37017]THAT Council resolve to adopt the Recommendation.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
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Item 6.1.1	Attachment 1	Page 194
[bookmark: _Toc84341871]	ITEM 6.1.2	UPDATE ON COUNCIL'S DISABILITY ACTION PLAN 2017-21:OUTSTANDING ACTIONS    
Responsible Officer:	Director Community Wellbeing 
Author:	Team Leader Access    

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
THAT Council note the five (5) outstanding actions of the Disability Action Plan 2017-21 have been integrated into actions in the draft Community Plan 2021-25.
BRIEF OVERVIEW
	The Final Progress Report on Council’s Disability Action Plan 2017-2021 (the DAP) was presented to Council on 5 July 2021. 
	The DAP consisted of 105 actions over four years and 100 actions of those were completed.
	Five actions remain outstanding due to external factors (resource shortfall; COVID19).
	Council sought a further report on the five outstanding actions.
	The five outstanding actions have now been integrated into the Community Plan 2021-2025 as outlined in this report.
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Integrating future Disability Plan actions into the Community Plan and W2040 Strategies will  ensure a whole of organisation approach and ability to generate greater community outcomes. This will maximise health outcomes for residents with disabilities and carers while also meeting Council’s requirements under the Disability Act Victoria 2006.
IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Benefits
	A whole of Council and community approach to disability inclusion leading to improved outcomes for meeting the human rights of inclusion for people with disabilities in our community.
	Stronger reporting structures with links to the Community Plan 2021-25 and W2040 Strategies. 
	Developing a holistic and proactive approach that will champion inclusion of people with disabilities across a larger number of initiatives throughout the organisation, which will have broader reach for all in our community
	Integrating the DAP with the Community Plan and the Municipal Public Health & Wellbeing Plan, gives Council the opportunity to achieve a strong health and wellbeing outcomes for the whole community. 
Potential negative impact
	A possible negative impact is that the integration of Disability Plan actions may result in diminished visibility of those actions leading to stakeholders, including community members, feeling that Council has less of a commitment to disability inclusion.
WHAT MEASURES WILL BE PUT IN PLACE TO MANAGE IMPACTS
Council briefed the Whittlesea Disability Network (WDN) on the new process that is being undertaken and improved outcomes expected by integrating DAP actions into the Community Plan 2021-25 at the September meeting.
For the life of the two previous DAPs, project managers have provided quarterly progress reports using Council reporting systems. This process will now be enhanced with monthly reporting for all actions in the Community Plan and quarterly reporting for all actions in the W2040 Strategies. An annual progress report, specifically on the DAP actions will be provided to Council and to the Whittlesea Disability Network. 


REPORT
BACKGROUND
In 2017, Council endorsed the DAP 2017-21 as a stand-alone cross-Council plan with actions under four key commitment areas: 
	Inclusive communities;
	Good health, housing and wellbeing for people with disabilities;
	Respect, equity and safety for all; and
	Contributory community living as a right for all regardless of ability.
The 2017-21 DAP consisted of 105 actions over four years, with 100 of these achieved and five actions not achieved due to external factors (resource shortfall; COVID19; avoidance of duplication).
The significant outcomes achieved in the 2017 – 2021 DAP include:
	Development of the All-Abilities Playground at Mill Park.
	Increasing access for residents with disabilities as a part of the Mill Park Leisure redevelopment.
	Delivery of the Marveloo portable change facility for events.
	Increase (from three to eight) in Changing Places facilities within the municipality, enhancing community participation for people with disability.
	Working with the Victorian Government on Accessible Parking Scheme reform.
	Undertaking the NDIS Gap Research Project that will support the service delivery market in the local area. This is a first for local government and will help strengthen service delivery in the local area to meet the needs of NDIS participants. 
	Participation in the Australian Network on Disabilities Access and Inclusion Index Assessment which analyses Council’s confidence and capacity to employ and support people with disabilities. Council’s ranking increased from 29% to 51%, which puts Council in the top 20% of organisations that undertake the assessment. 
	Provision of regular information to residents with disabilities and carers via direct newsletter and regular updates to the Whittlesea Disability Network (WDN). The WDN’s membership has evolved over the past four years and further work is required to ensure the forum continues to meet residents’ needs.
	Support for residents with disabilities and carers during COVID lockdowns who are self-isolating and/or practicing physical distancing requirements.
	Council’s Street Activities Policy and Guidelines were reviewed in 2019 and aim to balance activating vibrant business precincts with ensuring footpaths provide clear and unobstructed access for pedestrians of all abilities. Council will continue to monitor outside trading with the use of permits, ensuring spaces are accessible for all.
The five actions that were not achieved in the previous plan are:
	Develop a Business Support Program that works with local business owners to encourage the inclusion of customers with disabilities (2018-19).
	Establish Disability Work Experience/Employment Pilot Program with Council Departments for people with disabilities (including people with disabilities from Aboriginal, CALD backgrounds and women with disabilities) (2018-19).
	Develop a Community Disability survey to get baseline data on community attitudes around inclusion in our community (2017-18).
	Establish the Access and Inclusion Coordinating Group which oversees the work to increase the employment opportunities for people with disabilities at Council (2019-20).
	Develop a training program for staff that have community communication responsibility on the Accessible Communication Policy and Inclusive Communication Protocol (including Communication toolkit).
The Final Progress Report on Council’s Disability Action 2017-21 went to Council on 5 July 2021. Council resolved to:
Seek a further report by October 21 in relation to those action not achieved within the current Disability Action Plan, namely the Business Support Program; Disability Work Experience Employment Pilot; Establishment of ac Access and Inclusion Co-ordinating Group; and a training program for staff. 
PROPOSAL
Integration of the new Disability Action Plan 2021-2025 into the draft Community Plan 2021-25 has been designed to ensure services and programs are inclusive for people with disabilities, and that we adopt a whole of organisation approach to this issue (rather than it sitting within a small number of teams or officers).
In the spirit of this approach, the five actions of the DAP 2017-2021 that were not achieved (listed above) have been integrated into relevant actions in the draft Community Plan 2021-2025 as presented in Table 1. 
	DAP 2017-21 Action
	Outcome
	Progress
	The relevant draft Community Plan 2021-25 action/s

	Develop a Business Support Program that works with local business owners to encourage the inclusion of customers with disabilities (2018-19)
	Increase opportunity for residents with disability to access local businesses
	Council submitted two applications under the NDIS Information Linkages and Capacity Building (ILC) program in two funding rounds and was unsuccessful in each round. Information on how businesses can support the needs of customers with disabilities has been included in Economic Development’s “Business Resources Guide”. 
	Goal 3- Strong local economy
As part of COVID recovery, deliver a “support local” campaign and incentive program to support the community and local businesses.
Implement the Investment Attractions Plan to attract investment, strengthen the local economy and increase the number and diversity of local jobs.

	Establish Disability Work Experience/ Employment Pilot Program with Council Departments for people with disabilities (including people with disabilities from Aboriginal, CALD backgrounds and women with disabilities) (2018-19).
	Increase employment opportunities for residents with disability.
	This action was also included in the ILC   applications mentioned above that were unsuccessful. There has been a huge amount of work in the last 4 years looking at employment of people with disabilities across the organisation. This has including the development of the Workplace adjustment policy and the establish of Staff Disability Advisory Group. 
	Goal 3- Strong Local economy
As part of COVID recovery, deliver a “support local” campaign and incentive program to support the community and local businesses.
Work with partners to increase opportunities for local work, training, apprenticeships and programs with a focus on young people and groups who experience significant barriers to employment.
Goal 5- High-performing organisation
Continue to be an employer of choice through developing and implementing a new Workforce Plan to attract and retain the high quality and skilled staff to support our community.

	Develop a Community Disability survey to get baseline data on community attitudes around inclusion in our community. (2017-18)
	Increase the engagement of   residents with a disability to influence the design of programs and decision-making.
	In 2017 it was decided to take a more systemic approach to our engagement of people with disabilities. This was supported by consultation with 171 residents with a disability who provided feedback that they preferred the disability ‘lens’ to be incorporated across Council’s engagement program rather than having a standalone ‘disability’ survey. (Community Engagement Report, 2021).
	Goal 1- Connected Community 
Strengthen engagement with community through supporting or developing advisory groups and networks across our diverse community including young people, business, sustainability, people with a disability and Aboriginal people
Goal 5- High-performing organisation
Continue to strengthen local community engagement in line with Council’s Community Engagement Policy to inform Council programs and decision-making.

	Establish the Access and Inclusion Coordinating Group which oversees the work to increase the employment opportunities for people with disabilities at Council (2019-20).
	Increase employment opportunities for residents with disability.
	This action was put on hold last year due to COVID19 and organisational changes. The first meeting of this group has been planned for later this year.
	Goal 5- High-performing organisation
Continue to be an employer of choice thorough developing and implementing a new Workforce Plan to attract and retain the high quality and skilled staff to support our community.

	Develop training program for staff that have community communication responsibility on the Accessible Communication Policy and Inclusive Communication Protocol (including Communication toolkit).
	Increase the capacity of all staff across the organisation to provide accessible communication materials for all in our community.
	The development of the Accessible Communication Policy and Inclusive Communication Protocols is underway and will be incorporated into the diverse mix of communication and engagement with community. Staff training on these Protocols will be developed.
	Goal 5- High-performing organisation
Improve customer service through investing in technology, systems and Council staff and make it easier for our community to interact with Council.
Maintain strong communications with our community to promote access to services, including multilingual, accessible for all and mobile friendly communications and website.


Table 1: Integrating outstanding DAP actions into draft Community Plan 2021-2025CONSULTATION
Council has resolved to take a whole of Council and community approach to disability inclusion leading to improved outcomes for meeting the human rights for people with disabilities in our community, by integrating the new Disability Action Plan 2021-2025 with the draft Community Plan 2021-25. This holistic and proactive approach championed the inclusion of people with disabilities across a larger number of initiatives throughout the organisation This will have broader reach for all in our community.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Actions from the DAP that appear in the draft Community Plan 2021-25 will be funded via Council’s recurrent department budgets or as draft Community Plan 2021-25 initiatives. 
POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION
The alignment to the National Disability Strategy (NDS) (updated version expected late 2021), Victorian Disability Act 2006, and the current State Disability Plan (2017-20) (new plan expected in late 2021) is outlined in Table 2 below.

	W2040 Goal area
	Disability Act 2006 Requirements
	NDS Proposed Outcome areas
	State Disability Plan Pillar (2017/20)

	Connected Communities
	Reducing barriers to persons with a disability accessing goods, services and facilities
Achieving tangible changes in attitudes and practices which discriminate against persons with a disability
	Health and wellbeing
Rights, protection, justice and legislation
Personal and community support
	Health, housing and wellbeing


	Liveable Neighbourhoods
	Promoting inclusion and participation in the community

	Inclusive and accessible communities

	Inclusive communities
Health, housing and wellbeing


	Strong Local economy
	Reducing barriers to obtaining employment
	Economic security
Learning and skills
	Contributing lives


Table 2: alignment to key frameworks
Note: The DAP will also include actions around W2040 Goal area Sustainable Environment but there is less of a link around this goal area with the Disability Act, NDS and the State Disability Plan.
LINK TO STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic Risk Governance - Ineffective governance of Council’s operations and activities resulting in either a legislative or policy breach
The new DAP has links to all Goal areas of the Whittlesea 2040. It has strong links to Goal areas 1) Connected communities, 2) Liveable neighbourhoods, 3) Strong Local Economy and 5) High Performing Organisation. It also links to 4) Sustainable Environment but not as strongly.
LINKS TO WHITTLESEA 2040 AND THE COUNCIL PLAN
Goal	Connected community
Key Direction	A participating community

The new DAP has links to all Goal areas of the Whittlesea 2040. It has strong links to Goal areas 1) Connected communities, 2) Liveable neighbourhoods, 3) Strong Local Economy and 5) High Performing Organisation. It also links to 4) Sustainable Environment but not as strongly.


DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules 2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.
The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
The integration of these actions into the draft Community Plan 2021-2025 ensures Council continues to work towards reducing barriers to persons with a disability accessing goods, services, facilities and employment opportunities; as well as promoting inclusion and participation in the community.

	RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council note the Disability Action Plan’s (2017-2021) five outstanding actions have been integrated into the draft Community Plan 2021-2025.
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SECONDED:	Chairperson Wilson 

[bookmark: Carried_37032]THAT Council resolve to adopt the Recommendation.
CARRIED
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[bookmark: _Toc84341872]	6.1.3	INSTRUMENT OF APPOINTMENT AND AUTHORISATION FOR PLANNING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER
[bookmark: PDF2_Attachments_37049][bookmark: PDFA_37049_1]Attachments:	1	Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation - Planning Enforcement Officer    
Responsible Officer:	Executive Manager Governance & Strategy 
Author:	Governance Officer    

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
THAT Council resolve to appoint and authorise the member of Council’s planning enforcement staff referred to in the attached Instrument as an authorised officer pursuant to the powers conferred on Council by s 224 of the Local Government Act 1989, s 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and other legislation referred to the Instrument. 
BRIEF OVERVIEW
Revised Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation has been prepared for Council’s planning enforcement officer particularly in relation to the administration of Planning and Environment Act 1987.  
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Under the Planning and Environment Act 1987, authorised officers can only be appointed by Council resolution.  This Planning and Environment Act 1987 makes no provision for Council to delegate this power to the CEO.
IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
The Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation authorises the relevant member of staff to exercise the powers conferred under the specified legislation and under Council’s local laws.  Authorised officers require this authorisation to properly exercise their role and to institute legal proceeding on behalf of Council.
WHAT MEASURES WILL BE PUT IN PLACE TO MANAGE IMPACTS
A register of Authorised Officers must be kept and is publicly available. 

REPORT
PROPOSAL
The Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation has been updated based on advice from Council’s solicitors and is submitted to Council for approval. 
Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation allows the authorised officer to exercise the powers granted to them by legislation or under a Council local law.
The revised Instrument makes specific reference to s 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 to allow the authorised officer to institute proceedings for offences against the Planning and Environment Act 1987. 
CONSULTATION
Council’s Team Leader Planning Enforcement has been consulted on the revised Instrument.
CRITICAL DATES
It is important that Instruments of Appointment and Authorisation are executed as soon as possible to ensure Planning Enforcement Officers have the proper authorisation to continue carrying out their duties.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial costs in preparing the Instrument. 
POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION
Section 224 of the Local Government Act 1989 provides for the appointment of authorised officers for the purposes of the administration and enforcement of any Act, Regulation or local laws which relate to the functions and powers of Council.
LINK TO STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic Risk
Governance - Ineffective governance of Council’s operations and activities resulting in either a legislative or policy breach
The officer will be unable to fulfil their duties as an authorised officer if the updated Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation is not put in place.

LINKS TO WHITTLESEA 2040 AND THE COUNCIL PLAN
Goal	High-performing organisation
Key Direction	Driving better community outcomes through improved service access, satisfaction and advocacy



DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules 2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.
The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
It is recommended that the member of Council staff referred to in the attached Instrument be appointed as an authorised officer to allow them to effectively perform their duties. 

	RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council resolve to:
1.	Appoint and authorise the member of Council staff referred to in the attached Instrument as an authorised officer pursuant to powers conferred on Council by s224 of the Local Government Act 1989, s147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the other legislation referred to in the Instrument; and
2.	Have the Instrument come into effect when it is executed and remain in force until Council decides to vary or revoke them.
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[bookmark: MoverSeconder_37049]MOVED:	Chairperson Wilson
SECONDED:	Administrator Eddy 

[bookmark: Carried_37049]THAT Council resolve to adopt the Recommendation.
CARRIED
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[bookmark: PDF1_PartnerPlanEng][bookmark: _Toc84341873]6.2	Liveable Neighbourhoods
[bookmark: _Toc84341874]	ITEM 6.2.1	RECONSTRUCTION OF ARTHURS CREEK ROAD FROM PLENTY ROAD TO RECREATION ROAD, CONTRACT 2021-42 TENDER EVALUATION REPORT  
[bookmark: PDF2_Attachments_34808]Attachments:	1	Detailed Tender Evaluation - Confidential
[bookmark: PDFA_Attachment_1_CLOSED][bookmark: PDFA_34808_1_CLOSED]This attachment has been designated as confidential by the Director Infrastructure & Environment, under delegation from the Chief Executive Officer, in accordance with Rule 53 of the Governance Rules 2021 and sections 66(5) and 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2020 on the grounds that it contains private commercial information, being information provided by a business, commercial or financial undertaking that—  (i) relates to trade secrets; or (ii) if released, would unreasonably expose the business, commercial or financial undertaking to disadvantage and confidential meeting information, being the records of meetings closed to the public under section 66(2)(a). In particular the attachment contains information regarding the detailed tender evaluation.    
Responsible Officer:	Director Infrastructure & Environment 
Author:	Project Manager    

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
It is recommended that contract number 2021-42 for Reconstruction of Arthurs Creek Road from Plenty Road to Recreation Road:
	is awarded to BILD Infrastructure Pty Ltd
	for the lump sum price of $ 2,110,481.39 (excl. GST)
BRIEF OVERVIEW
The tender evaluation panel advises that:
	Nine tenders were received
The recommended tender was the highest ranked and is considered best value because it has demonstrated that it has the highest ability to deliver this project in accordance with Council’s specified requirements.
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The recommended tenderer demonstrated the highest capability and capacity to deliver this project, and with minimal impact on Council and the community.  
IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Award of the contract to BILD Infrastructure Pty Ltd will enable delivery of the works within Council’s timelines.  There are no negative impacts foreseen with the recommendation, other than some minor impact to the local traffic during the course of the works.


WHAT MEASURES WILL BE PUT IN PLACE TO MANAGE IMPACTS
During the construction process, the management of works including quality control, methodology and site management will be closely monitored with efficiencies maximised where possible to ensure the project is completed within the time allocated. In addition, a traffic management plan will be prepared and implemented to reduce the impact to the local traffic during the works.
 


REPORT
BACKGROUND
Arthurs Creek Road is a ‘local’ road connecting Plenty Road with Yan Yean Road.  It provides for local access however this road will have a more strategic transport role in the future as a result of the unprecedented development occurring in the Donnybrook and surrounding areas.  This road is also strategically linked to the Plenty Valley growth corridor, encompassing the South Morang and Mernda/Doreen growth centres as well as the Whittlesea Township.
The road pavement is in poor condition with sections of road continuously failing during the wet season as the road is in a flood basin.
The purpose of this contract is to reconstruct 1,270 lineal metres of Arthurs Creek Road from Plenty Road to Recreation Road, to reinforce the road pavement and upgrade the open drain along the road.
Tenders for the contract closed on 26 May 2021.  The tendered prices and a summary of the evaluation are detailed in the confidential attachment. 
CONSULTATION
Consultation with the local community regarding this road occurred in September 2020 with feedback supportive for the upgrade of this section of Arthurs Creek Road. 
As part of the traffic management plan for the works, variable message sign (VMS) trailers will be installed a week prior to the works to inform road users of the impending works.  In addition, updates will be provided through Council’s social media channels and Council’s Customer Service team will be provided with a brief project update. 
EVALUATION
No member of the Tender Evaluation Panel declared any conflict of interest in relation to this tender evaluation.
A Tender Probity & Evaluation Plan was designed specifically for this tender process and it was authorised prior to this tender being advertised.  All tenders received were evaluated in accordance with that plan.  The evaluation involved scoring of conforming and competitive tenders according to these pre-determined criteria and weightings:
	Criteria
	Weighting

	Price
	60%

	Capability
	15%

	Capacity
	12.5%

	Impact
	12.5%


The weightings reflect the relative importance of each element to this particular contract.  They were determined as being most appropriate after considering numerous factors including (but not restricted to) the time, quality, risk and contract management requirements which were likely to have the most impact on the achievement of best value.
Only tenders that were conforming and competitive were fully scored.  Tender submissions that were evaluated as non-conforming or not sufficiently competitive were set aside from further evaluation.  In cases where this occurred the reasons for that outcome are detailed in the confidential attachment.
The evaluation outcome was as follows: 
	TENDERER
	CONFORMING
	COMPETITIVE
	SCORE
	RANK

	
Tenderer A: BILD Infrastructure Pty Ltd
	Yes
	Yes
	86
	1

	Tenderer B
	Yes
	Yes 
	73
	2

	Tenderer C
	No
	Yes
	NA
	NA

	Tenderer D
	No
	Yes
	NA
	NA

	Tenderer E
	Yes
	No
	NA
	NA

	Tenderer F
	Yes
	No
	NA
	NA

	Tenderer G
	No
	No
	NA
	NA

	Tenderer H
	No
	No
	NA
	NA

	Tenderer I
	No
	No
	NA
	NA


Refer to the confidential attachment for further details of the evaluation of all tenders.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
This contract will be funded through Council’s New Works Program and a grant from the Local Road and Community Infrastructure Funding Program as part of the Federal Government Economic Stimulus Program.
LINK TO STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic Risk Service Delivery - Inability to plan for and provide critical community services and infrastructure impacting on community wellbeing
It is Council’s responsibility to provide and maintain critical infrastructure for the community to enable it to travel on safe and effective road networks within the municipality.  Arthurs Creek Road also services the local agricultural community and upgrading this road will enable the community to conduct business with enhanced efficiency and safety, as well as enhancing any tourism opportunities.  
LINKS TO WHITTLESEA 2040 AND THE COUNCIL PLAN
Goal	Liveable neighbourhoods
Key Direction	Smart, connected transport network
The road upgrade will enhance Council’s ability to provide a safe and effective road network meeting community expectations.


DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules 2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.
The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
The tender from BILD Infrastructure Pty Ltd was determined to be best value and it is considered that this company can perform the contract to the required standards.  

	RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council resolve to:
1.	Accept the tender submitted by BILD Infrastructure Pty Ltd for the sum of $2,110,481.39 (excluding GST) for the following contract:
Number:	2021-42
Title:	Reconstruction of Arthurs Creek Road from Plenty Road to Recreation Road
subject to the following conditions:
a)	Tenderer to provide proof of currency of insurance cover as required in the tender documents.
b)	Price variations to be in accordance with the provisions as set out in the tender documents.
c)	Tenderer to provide contract security as required in the tender documents.
2.	Approve the funding arrangements detailed in the confidential attachment.


	[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_34808]COUNCIL RESOLUTION
[bookmark: MoverSeconder_34808]MOVED:	Administrator Duncan
SECONDED:	Administrator Eddy 

[bookmark: Carried_34808]THAT Council resolve to adopt the Recommendation.
CARRIED
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[bookmark: _Toc84341875]	ITEM 6.2.2	PROPOSED PLANNING SCHEME AMENDMENT: 2000 DONNYBROOK RD, YAN YEAN ROAD  
[bookmark: PDF2_Attachments_37027][bookmark: PDFA_37027_1]Attachments:	1	Site map  
[bookmark: PDFA_Attachment_2][bookmark: PDFA_37027_2]2	Existing Zoning map  
[bookmark: PDFA_Attachment_3][bookmark: PDFA_37027_3]3	Existing Environmental Significance Overlay  
[bookmark: PDFA_Attachment_4][bookmark: PDFA_37027_4]4	Existing Significant Landscape Overlay    
Responsible Officer:	Director Planning & Development 
Author:	Strategic Planner    

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
[bookmark: _Hlk71197065]That Council resolve to write to the Minister for Planning expressing support for the rezoning of land at 2000 Donnybrook Rd, Yan Yean under s20(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 from part Green Wedge Zone (GWZ) and part Rural Conservation Zone 1 (RCZ1) to Public Use Zone 5 (PUZ5) to facilitate the use and development of the subject site for a cemetery.
BRIEF OVERVIEW
The Greater Melbourne Cemeteries Trust (GMCT) is seeking consent from the Minister Planning to undertake a rezoning amendment under s20(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 to rezone the site at 2000 Donnybrook Road, Yan Yean from part GWZ and part RCZ1 to PUZ5. The proposed rezoning will allow the land to be used for the purpose of cemetery / crematorium. This is consistent with the longstanding reservation of the land for the purposes of a cemetery.
As this is Amendment is proposed to be processed under s20(4), the Minister for Planning will be the Planning Authority. The proponent has requested that Council provide its views on the proposed Planning Scheme Amendment prior to it being submitted to the Minister for Planning. It is recommended that Council write to the Minister for Planning to note its support for the proposed Amendment and expedited planning process.
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The land has a permanent reservation under the Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978 for cemetery and crematoria purposes, dating back to 1931 when it was reserved as the Plenty Valley Cemetery.   
The s20(4) process is an appropriate Amendment process to expedite the rezone the site due to the largely administrative nature of the amendment, and will ensure that the Crown land, which has long been reserved for cemetery purposes, is located within the appropriate zone in the Whittlesea Planning Scheme. 
IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
The recommendation provides support for an important State significant asset that will benefit to the residents of the City of Whittlesea and surrounding areas.
The PUZ5 explicitly identifies ‘cemetery / crematorium’ as the primary use of the land. It will allow the site to be used for these purposes without the requirement for a planning permit which will reduce the administrative burden for the GMCT. It is noted that some development (such as buildings, tree removal) in areas of environmental significance may still trigger a planning permit.
WHAT MEASURES WILL BE PUT IN PLACE TO MANAGE IMPACTS
The significant environmental values of the site will continue to be protected from any inappropriate land use by the presence of the Environmental Significance Overlay (ESO1) and Significant Landscape Overlay (SLO1) which may trigger planning permit requirements for some buildings and works. 
The Planning Scheme Amendment documents will also be reviewed by officers at the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning to ensure it satisfies relevant policy and Ministerial Directions.

REPORT
INTRODUCTION
The Greater Melbourne Cemeteries Trust (GMCT) is requesting that the Minister Planning undertake a Planning Scheme Amendment under s20(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 to rezone the site at 2000 Donnybrook Rd, Yan Yean from part GWZ and part RCZ1 to PUZ5. The rezoning will to facilitate the use of the land for the purpose of cemetery / crematorium consistent with its longstanding reservation as a future cemetery.
As the land is publicly owned, the Department of Environment Land Water and Planning (DELWP) have confirmed that the amendment is eligible to be processed through the Government Land Planning Service (GLPS). 
This would see the amendment processed under s20(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 (the Act) with the Minister acting as the Planning Authority and no public exhibition. This is due to the highly administrative nature of the amendment. Prior to the lodgement of the Amendment with the Minister for Planning, the GMCT have sought the views of Council on the proposal.
SUBJECT SITE
The site at 2000 Donnybrook Rd, Yan Yean is approximately 83.2 hectares in size and is Crown land. The site is immediately adjacent to the Growling Grass Frog Golf Course which is located to its west.
The site is undeveloped and is currently being used for grazing. It is mostly cleared of vegetation, except for a number of patches of vegetation, most significantly within the southwest and the north east corners, as shown in Attachment 1.
The site is zoned Green Wedge Zone (GWZ), with the exception of a small area within the south west corner where Barbers Creek runs through the site that is zoned Rural Conservation (RCZ1), as shown in Attachment 2.  The south west corner has also been identified as an area of Aboriginal cultural heritage sensitivity.
This area is also affected by the Environmental Significance Overlay (ESO) Schedules 1 (River Red-Gum grassy woodland native habitat area), and Schedule 2 (River Red-Gum and Grassy Woodlands), as shown in Attachment 3. The eastern portion of the site is affected by the Significant Landscape Overlay Schedule 1 (Whittlesea Hills), as shown in Attachment 4. This reflects the topography of the site which rises from the flatter western part of the site to the steeper eastern part forming part of the “Whittlesea Hills”.
The site abuts Donnybrook Road along the northern boundary which is a main road (zoned Category 1 Road - RDZ1). The She Oak Hill Cutting on Donnybrook Road is of heritage significance and affected by Heritage Overlay HO176. Another heritage property ‘Burnside Dairies Manager’s House’ (HO45) is also located in proximity to the site.
PROPOSAL
The GMCT is seeking consent from the Minister for Planning to undertake an Amendment under s20(4) of the Act to rezone the land from Green Wedge Zone / Rural Conservation Zone (GWZ/RCZ) to Public Use Zone 5 (PUZ5). 
The Amendment process under s20(4) Act is an expedited process where the Minister for Planning is the planning authority. Under this process the Minister for Planning prepares (as opposed to Council) and approves the Amendment without the need for a statutory exhibition process. Prior to preparing the Amendment, the Minister may seek the views of relevant stakeholders such as the Council. The GMCT are therefore seeking these views in advance of lodging the Amendment request with the Minister. 
The proposal will rezone the land to PUZ5. No further changes are proposed to the planning controls. The PUZ5 enables land to be used for the purpose of a cemetery / crematorium without the need for a planning permit, so long as it is carried out by or on behalf of the public land manager. A permit is generally required for other uses.
As such, no changes are proposed to the current ESO1 and SLO1 overlays which apply to the site. Therefore, any buildings and works or vegetation removal within these overlay areas will still require a planning permit from Council. A permit will also be triggered for access given the site adjoins a Category 1 Road.
DISCUSSION
The GMCT are a community-focused organisation operating 19 cemeteries and memorial parks in Melbourne’s metropolitan region. In addition to the 19 existing cemeteries two new greenfield cemeteries have been identified for establishment in the GMCT’s Strategic Plan. One of these is Plenty Valley which is to be established on the subject site and will cater to Melbourne’s northern region.
The proposed rezoning of the site will facilitate the use of the land for a cemetery / crematorium by the GMCT consistent with its longstanding reservation. The application of the PUZ5 will provide greater certainty in respect to its land use designation and reduce the administrative burden for the GMCT in establishing and using the site for its intended purpose. 
The design of the proposed cemetery has not yet been finalised but will be informed through a detailed master planning process. This will also investigate whether a crematorium is needed on the site to supplement the Fawkner facility. The GMCT have indicated that community engagement on the master plans for the site will commence between 2024 – 2025, with construction and operations commencing between 2028 and 2030. 
The subject site is located Whittlesea’s Green Wedge area. Cemeteries are a permissible use in the current GWZ subject to a permit. It is noted that as the rezoning will result in the removal of the minimum lot size requirement of the GWZ, the rezoning will likely require ratification by Parliament under Section 46AF of the Act. The Public Use Zone does not contain minimum lot controls. However, given the proposed use of the land will be for a cemetery this change will not have a detrimental impact on the green wedge through land fragmentation.
The proposed amendment will retain the environmental overlays which currently apply to part of the subject site, namely the ESO1 and SLO1. A planning permit will be triggered if buildings and works are proposed in these areas. This will ensure that any buildings or works on the part of the site which contain landscape or environmental values will need to be sensitively designed and not detrimentally impact these values.
It is noted that there are two heritage places (HO45 and HO176) in proximity to the site.  The She Oak Hill Cutting (HO176) is on Donnybrook Road immediately adjoining the northern boundary road of the site. Across Donnybrook Road to the north west of the site is ‘Burnside Dairies Manager’s House’ (HO45). The heritage controls include the house, stable and outbuilding. The application of the PUZ5 and use of the subject site as a cemetery is not expected to impact on the significance of these places. The access to the cemetery should avoid the area covered by HO176.
Given, the sites locational context it will be important to provide for the retention of existing trees where possible and that revegetation is to be carried out around the edges to the surrounding land, noting that consideration be given to ensuring appropriate fire breaks. This feedback has been provided to the proponent.
CONSULTATION
Prior to lodgement of the Amendment with the Minister for Planning, the proponent has requested Council to outline its support or otherwise for the proposed Amendment. This is normal practice for Amendments which are submitted to the Minister for Planning under the expedited process. Council officers have been provided with details of the proposed Amendment and supporting background reports. These have been reviewed internally by Council officers from relevant teams.
In addition to consulting with Council, the GMCT are consulting with relevant agencies including the Department of Transport and surrounding landowners. 
Consultation with the surrounding landowners is taking place in the form of letter drops containing information about the proposed rezoning, an online questionnaire, and opportunity to discuss the amendment with the project team. 
The feedback received will be presented as part of the submission of the proposed Amendment to the Minister. 
There are further consultations proposed in respect to this Amendment. As noted above under s20(4) of the Planning and Environment Act, 1987 the Minister for Planning is exempt from undertaking statutory exhibition of the Amendment. 
The GMCT have indicated that community engagement on the master plans for the site will commence between 2024 – 2025.
NEXT STEPS
Following the completion of this consultation, the Amendment documents will be lodged with the DELWP and submitted to the Minister for Planning for their review and consideration.
As the land is Crown land, the Department of Environment Land Water and Planning (DELWP) have confirmed that the amendment is eligible to be processed through the Government Land Planning Service (GLPS). 
The Government Land Planning Service (GLPS) is established to process Amendments related to government land. Its main purpose is to ensure that appropriate planning provisions are in place on government land.
This process will make the Minister for Planning the Planning Authority for the amendment and a decision made under Section 20(4) of the Planning and Environment Act (1987). If required, the Amendment will need to be ratified by the Parliament under Section 46AF of the Act.
The design of the proposed cemetery will be informed by a future master planning process with construction and operations commencing between 2028 and 2030.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications for Council as a result of this proposed Amendment. The planning authority for the Amendment will be the Minister for Planning.
POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION
Planning Policy
	The proposed Amendment is consistent with the document A Practitioner's Guide to Victorian Planning Schemes, January 2020 and is appropriate use of the Victorian Planning provisions include the Public Use Zone.
	The proposed Amendment implements State Planning Policy 19.02-4S to Identify and protect land for cemeteries and crematoria
Green Wedge Management Plan
The proposed Amendment and use of the land for a cemetery/crematorium is consistent with Councils Green Wedge Management Plan and compatible with the Whittlesea Green Wedge noting the longstanding reservation.
It is noted that since the proposed rezoning will remove the Green Wedge Zone minimum lot controls it is likely that the Amendment will require the ratification of Parliament under Section 46AF of the Act. Given the proposed use of the land will be for a cemetery the removal of the subdivision controls will not have a detrimental impact on green wedge values through additional land fragmentation.
Crown Land (Reserves Act) 1978
The site has been reserved as the Plenty Valley Cemetery since 1931. It is formally identified as Crown Allotment 11A Parish of Yan Yean.
The Crown land has a permanent reservation under the Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978 for cemetery and crematoria purposes, under the administration of the Secretary to the Department of Health and Human Services and managed by the GMCT.
It is administered by the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) and managed by the GMCT, as the committee of management. 
In accordance with the Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978 and Cemeteries and Crematoria Act 2003, the site is restricted for use and development for cemetery and crematoria purposes. 
LINK TO STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic Risk Not linked to the risks within the Strategic Risk Register.
There are no strategic risk implications for Council as a result of this Amendment. The Amendment documents are being prepared by a consultant on behalf of the GMCT. The planning authority for the Amendment will be the Minister for Planning.
LINKS TO WHITTLESEA 2040 AND THE COUNCIL PLAN
Goal	Liveable neighbourhoods
Key Direction	Well-designed neighbourhoods and vibrant town centres

Cemeteries and crematoria are vital community infrastructure. The use of this land for a cemetery / crematoria is appropriate and will not impede on the delivery of the goals under Whittlesea 2040.
DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules 2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.
The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
The Greater Melbourne Cemeteries Trust (GMCT) is proposing to request that the Minister for Planning prepare a Planning Scheme Amendment to rezone the land at 2000 Donnybrook Road, Yan Yeah from GWZ and RCZ1 to PUZ5. The rezoning will facilitate the use of the land for the purpose of a cemetery / crematorium.   
In this circumstance, the Minister for Planning will be the Planning Authority for the amendment and a decision will be made under s20(4) of the Act. This process will expedite the Amendment and result in it being exempt from statutory public exhibition. Prior to lodgement of the Amendment with the Minister for Planning, key stakeholders including Council and landowners have been consulted and invited to outline its support or otherwise for the proposed Amendment. 
It is considered that the proposed Amendment is appropriate and therefore it is recommended that Council write to the Minister for Planning expressing support for the proposed Amendment.

	RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council resolve to write to the Minister for Planning expressing support for a Planning Scheme Amendment under s20(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 to rezone land at 2000 Donnybrook Rd Yan Yean from Green Wedge Zone / Rural Conservation Zone (GWZ/RCZ1) to Public Use Zone 5 (PUZ5) to facilitate the use and development of the subject site for the purpose of a cemetery.   
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[bookmark: Carried_37027]THAT Council resolve to adopt the Recommendation.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
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Responsible Officer:	Director Planning & Development 
Author:	Strategic Planner    

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
That Council resolve to:  
1.	Adopt Amendment C226wsea to the Whittlesea Planning Scheme as detailed in Attachments 1-3 of this report, comprising the post exhibition version of Clause 15.01-1L and the exhibited version of Clauses 02.03-5 and 18.02-3L; 
2.	Submit Amendment C226wsea as detailed in Recommendation 1. above to the Minister for Planning for approval; and 
3.	Advise the submitter of the resolutions above. 
BRIEF OVERVIEW
· Amendment C226 seeks to implement a municipality wide local planning policy on signage which will bring the City of Whittlesea into line with other municipalities. It amends existing Clauses 02.03-5 and 18.02-3L and introduces a new Clause 15.01-1L to the Whittlesea Planning Scheme. 
· Council resolved on 7 August 2018 to seek Authorisation of Amendment C216 (now C226) to update and introduce a new signs local policy. 
· The Minister of Planning granted Conditional Authorisation on 21 March 2019, which essentially required exhibition of the Amendment to wait until the policy neutral translation of the Whittlesea Planning Scheme into the new Planning Policy Framework was complete via Amendment C250. Amendment C250 was Gazetted on 18 December 2020 which allowed Council Officers to complete the policy neutral translation of the signs policy into the new format, in consultation with the Department of Environment Land Water & Planning, to satisfy the condition of Authorisation.
· The policy responds to contemporary sign designs, technologies and practices. A variety of sign typologies are included in the policy along with performance objectives that seek to increase legibility, reduce clutter, and ensure that advertising signs do not unreasonably impact the visual amenity of the municipality.
· Amendment C226 was placed on exhibition between 23 March 2021 and 30 April 2021. One submission was received. 
· Discussions with the submitter have resulted in minor changes being proposed to Clause 15.01-1L of the exhibited local policy to resolve the submission. The proposed changes are generally consistent with the intent of the exhibited policy. The submitter has subsequently agreed to withdraw their submission, avoiding the need for a Planning Hearing. It is recommended that these changes be adopted by Council and subsequently submitted to the Minister for Planning for approval. 
RATIONAL FOR RECOMMENDATION
	The Amendment implements a municipality wide local planning policy on signage. It responds to contemporary sign designs, technologies and practices to reduce clutter and ensure that signs do not unreasonably impact the visual amenity of the municipality. It targets areas that consistently cause problems or delay processing of planning applications. It also provides transparency to businesses and the community about how Council will apply its discretion under the Whittlesea Planning Scheme, when considering planning applications for signs. 
	Council resolved on 7 August 2018 to seek Authorisation of Amendment C216 (now C226) to update and introduce a new signs local policy. 
	The Minister of Planning granted Conditional Authorisation on 21 March 2019, which essentially required exhibition of the Amendment to wait until the policy neutral translation of the Whittlesea Planning Scheme into the new Planning Policy Framework was complete via Amendment C250. Amendment C250 was Gazetted on 18 December 2020 which allowed Council Officers to complete the policy neutral translation of the signs policy into the new format, in consultation with the Department of Environment Land Water & Planning, to satisfy the condition of Authorisation.
	The policy responds to contemporary sign designs, technologies and practices. A variety of sign typologies are included in the policy along with performance objectives that seek to increase legibility, reduce clutter, and ensure that advertising signs enhance the visual amenity of the municipality.
	Amendment C226 was placed on exhibition between 23 March 2021 and 30 April 2021. One submission was received. 
	Discussions with the submitter have resulted in minor changes being proposed to Clause 15.01-1L of the exhibited local policy to resolve the submission. The proposed changes are generally consistent with the intent of the exhibited policy. The submitter has subsequently agreed to withdraw their submission, avoiding the need for a Planning Hearing. It is recommended that these changes be adopted by Council and subsequently submitted to the Minister for Planning for approval. 
IMPACTS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
Should the recommendations be adopted, the Amendment will be submitted to the Minister for Planning for approval.  The decision of whether or not to approve and gazette the Amendment, will be at the discretion of the Minister.
Once adopted and approved by the Minister, the policy can be considered by Council’s statutory planners and given weight in relevant planning permit applications. The weight given will be determined on a case-by-case basis and will be at Council’s discretion. 
WHAT MEASURES WILL BE PUT IN PLACE TO MANAGE IMPACTS? 
If the Amendment is approved by the Minister for Planning, it must be considered for all relevant planning permit applications for signs.  No transitional arrangements are proposed. The policy will guide the discretion currently exercised by Council officers. The policy does not change what does and does not trigger a planning permit application. 
The implementation of the policy will be overseen by Council’s statutory planning team. No additional resources are required for the implementation of this local planning policy. 


REPORT
INTRODUCTION
[bookmark: _Hlk80613169]This report seeks to inform Council of the outcome of the statutory exhibition of Amendment C226 and recommends adoption of the Amendment subject to the changes discussed in this report. The Amendment itself proposes to introduce a new municipality wide local planning policy on signage. 
One submission was received which sought specific policy changes to the exhibited documents in relation to signs within greenfield residential estates. Whilst significant changes were initially sought, many of these could not be accommodated. Following discussions between Council officers and the submitter, agreement has been reached on more modest changes. The submitter has withdrawn their submission based on the proposed post exhibition changes to Clause 15.01-1L, which will avoid the need for a Planning Panel.  These proposed changes are highlighted in Attachment 1. It is recommended that the Amendment be adopted by Council subject to the changes noted above and forwarded to the Minister for Planning for approval.
BACKGROUND
	The Amendment obtained conditional Authorisation from the Minister for Planning on 21 March 2019. Compliance with these conditions required Council to delay exhibition of the Amendment until the Whittlesea Planning Scheme, and the proposed new signs policy were updated to reflect the new Planning Policy Framework (PPF) introduced by State Government.  
	Consequently, Amendment C226 was placed on hold pending the completion of Amendment C250wsea which was implementing the new PPF format. Amendment C250 was Gazetted on 18 December 2020.  
	Following Gazettal of Amendment C250, Amendment C226 was able to be translated into the new PPF format. This translation was policy neutral and involved a process of reorganisation and rationalisation to meet the new PPF rules in consultation with DELWP.
	Amendment C226 was subsequently placed on statutory exhibition between the 23 March 2021 and the 30 April 2021. One submission was received.
	Council received an extension from DELWP on processing timeframes to allow technical discussions to occur between Council, DELWP and the submitter to resolve the submission and avoid a Panel Hearing.
AMENDMENT
[bookmark: _Hlk80613235]The City of Whittlesea does not have a municipality-wide policy that provides guidance on signs when a planning permit is triggered. The existing signs policy in the Whittlesea Planning Scheme only relates to signs abutting the metropolitan ring road and is therefore very limited in its application. The new policy will provide for that municipal wide coverage and enable Council to more effectively address the following consistent concerns that arise with signs:
	Encourage the use of clear, well designed signs that complement the development upon which they are displayed; 
	Discourage visual clutter by taking existing signs into account when assessing new proposals, and encouraging business identification signs to be located on properties rather than promotion signs that relate to businesses or events elsewhere;
	Encourage a precinct-based approach to signs in residential, commercial and industrial estates;
	Encourage a design-led approach to the temporary construction hoardings and scaffolding mesh screen signs that are used to shroud construction works;
	Restrict the use of bunting, banners, trailers, balloons and streamers as permanent signs, to motor vehicle sales premises only;
	Ensure portable signs are well secured and limited in number and size to avoid visual clutter; 
	Ensure that sponsorship signs proposed for community open space are compatible with the natural and built environment; and, 
	Provide additional guidance to manage the changes and advances in signs technology. 
To support development of the new policy, officers undertook a gap analysis and policy case studies from other local governments in metropolitan Melbourne. Relevant internal departments were also consulted to identify the issues and inform the development of the policy. The new policy will provide updated and clear guidance with respect to a range of sign typologies while also addressing emerging changes in technology and advertising practices.
As urbanisation continues to increase across City of Whittlesea, a clear, all-encompassing signs policy is required to provide guidance to members of the community, business owners and Council staff.
The policy provides guidance on general signs, business identification signs, promotion and major promotion signs, precinct and estate signs, signs in residential areas, signs attached to shop fronts and signs adjacent to freeways. It will ensure that wayfinding signs are appropriately sited and displayed, and that signs are secured and do not present a safety risk.  
It should be noted that policy does not change what does or does not require a planning permit. The policy only applies in instances where a planning permit is triggered. Further, existing lawfully displayed signs will not be impacted. 
The policy exempts the commercial precincts within Epping Central (identified as 4A, 6 and 7) as defined in the Epping Central Framework Plan, to avoid duplication with existing Development Plans that regulate the development of signs in those areas. 
Specifically, the Amendment seeks to: 
[bookmark: _Hlk62031617]	Introduce a new Clause 15.01-1L (Signs) with a new local planning policy that provides a municipal wide application and responds to contemporary sign designs, technologies and practices (Refer to Attachment 1 – post exhibition version). This clause has been edited after exhibition as a result of discussions to resolve the submission received. This will be discussed in the next section of this report;
	Make minor amendments to existing Clause 02.03-5 (Built Environment and Heritage) of the Municipal Planning Strategy (MPS) to include a new strategy on signs (Refer to Attachment 2); and, 
	Amend existing Clause 18.02-3L – (Signs adjacent the Metropolitan Ring Road) broadening its scope to include freeways and reflecting other policy updates such as moving some content into the new Clause 15.01-1L (Refer to Attachment 3). 

STATUTORY EXHIBTION
[bookmark: _Hlk80613271]The Amendment was exhibited between 23 March 2021 and the 30 April 2021, in accordance with Section 19 of Planning and Environment Act 1987 as follows: 
	Written notices to Prescribed Ministers; 
	Written notice to Department of Transport; 
	An advertisement in the Age Newspaper;
	A notice in the Government Gazette; and,
	The Amendment documentation was placed on the City of Whittlesea website. 
In addition to the above statutory requirements, an article was placed in Council’s monthly Economic Development Business News and promoted on Council’s Facebook page. Local sporting clubs registered with the City of Whittlesea were also contacted via email. 
One submission was received during the exhibition period. This submission raised concerns that the drafting of the Amendment was ambiguous and sought the inclusion of specific, prescriptive outcomes. The submission provided examples from the City of Melton and City of Wyndham signs policies, which contained specific performance measures for new residential estates, display home centres and land sales office signs regarding the number of signs per width of road frontage, size requirements and setbacks. 
The submission suggests the policy should be redrafted for the following reasons: 
	The policy comprises “open ended” statements that are subjective in nature;
	The policy is difficult to interpret and needs clearer performance standards, in comparison to City of Melton and City of Wyndham signs policies;
	Concern that the policy does not provide clarity or certainty for applicants which could lead to differing interpretations and potential for matters to go to Victorian and Civil Administrative Tribunal (VCAT); and, 
	Preference for a “tick-box” approach to reduce conflict between decision makers and applicants.  
The submission sought greater certainty for new residential estates, particularly in relation to the following strategies in Clause 15.01-1L:  
	Avoid visual saturation of display village and land sales office signs within an estate.
	Encourage promotion signs that are visually distinct from business identification signs.
	Support promotion signs in Council reserves only where the size, height, and design are compatible with the natural and built environment of the reserve and surrounding area.
	Ensure major promotion signs that advertise real estate:
o	Avoid a proliferation of competing signs. 
These matters are discussed in the section below. 
DISCUSSION
The submission received to Amendment C226 has raised concerns that the drafting of the Amendment is ambiguous and that clearer outcomes and more prescriptive measures should be considered. Specifically, the submission identified four strategies (identified above) from the exhibited Clause 15.01-1L that they felt required performance measures for new residential estates, display home centres and land sales office signs. The issues raised in the submission are discussed here: 


Reflecting the example policies
The submission provided examples from the City of Melton and the City of Wyndham of a policy model for Whittlesea to follow. Specifically, performance standards within the City of Wyndham providing detailed information on number of signs per frontage, setbacks, size of signs and location of signs were advocated as a more user friendly and “frictionless” approach to regulating signage. 
However, the State Governments introduction of the new PPF format mean this approach cannot be applied. In July 2018, Amendment VC 148 introduced a new PPF framework into all Victorian planning schemes as part of the State Government’s Smart Planning Reforms. VC148 requires all Councils to translate their local planning framework into the new PPF structure. This process is called a PPF Translation. To date, neither the Melton Planning Scheme nor Wyndham Planning Scheme have undergone a PPF translation of their schemes, so these policies are not consistent with the new PPF requirements.  
The new PPF format has essentially relocated where local policy content sits in the Planning Scheme.  Clause 02 now contains the Municipal Planning Strategy (MPS) which contains Council’s high-level context and directions for land use and development in the municipality.  Clauses 11 – 19 of the PPF used to contain just state & regional policy, but now local policy has been integrated into these clauses under the various themes (ie. Settlement, Built Environment) to better align and integrate state and local planning policy.  A local policy cannot include prescriptive detail, it should provide guidance on how Council will apply its discretion in making a planning decision.  
It is also noted that, an advanced draft of Whittlesea’s proposed policy had initially reflected some of the Wyndham and Melton approach. However, this draft version was not supported by DELWP officers due to the inclusion of the prescriptive requirements. The drafting and prescriptive nature of the draft policy did not meet the proposed new PPF format which was about to be released by the State Government. 
Further to this, the extent of the changes being sought would be considered ‘transformative’ to the Amendment, given the exhibited version of the Amendment included mostly broad statements and no specific prescription.  On this basis, following discussion with DELWP, officers were not able to recommend their inclusion. 
Some of the requirements identified in the Melton and Wyndham policies are already included as permit exemptions in Clause 37.07 – Urban Growth Zone, Schedule 1 – 6 - Clause 7.0 Signs, under the existing Precinct Structure Plans. This clause provides generous exemptions for promotion signs associated with land and home sales signs, associated with greenfield housing estates. The PPF translation rules do not allow a local policy to duplicate another part of the scheme, so some of these requirements cannot be included in the policy.
For these reasons, the approach advocated by the submission could not be applied. Notwithstanding, some more modest modifications to Clause 15.01-1L have been identified and agreed with the submitter to seek to resolve the submission and avoid a Panel Hearing.  These are discussed later in the report below. 
Changes sought to specific strategies
The submission sought changes to Clause 15.01-1L, to provide greater certainty for new residential estates, particularly in relation to the following strategies:  
	Avoid visual saturation of display village and land sales office signs within an estate.
	Encourage promotion signs that are visually distinct from business identification signs.
	Support promotion signs in Council reserves only where the size, height, and design are compatible with the natural and built environment of the reserve and surrounding area.
	Ensure major promotion signs that advertise real estate:
o	Avoid a proliferation of competing signs. 
In relation to dot points 1 and 4 (above), the submitter specifically identified these strategies as examples of open-ended drafting and sought more performance-based standards. As discussed above, such changes did not meet the new PPF format and would be transformative to the Amendment. On this basis Council officers were unable to support the extent of changes being sought, and the submitter subsequently agreed that no changes would be made to these two strategies. 
The strategy at dot point 2 was identified by the submitter as being somewhat confusing. Minor changes have been proposed by Council officers, using more direct language to convey the strategy’s intention in a clearer manner in order to improve its meaning and avoid confusion. The submitter has subsequently agreed to the proposed minor changes. 
In relation to dot point 3, the submission supported the inclusion of the strategy but described this as a ‘change of policy’ relating to promotion signs being encouraged on Council reserves and sought further clarification regarding the size, setbacks and design of such signs. However, the intent of this strategy was not to allow more promotion signs in Council reserves, but to more effectively manage sponsorship related promotion signs often associated with community-based sporting clubs on Council land. The submission has highlighted that this strategy is misleading, and needs to be amended to make it clearer, by explicitly discouraging promotion signs in Council reserves unless they are in association with community-based sporting clubs.  It is recommended that this strategy be amended to clarify the intent of the policy, to avoid confusion. The submitter supports the proposed changes which make the intention of the strategy clear.
In addition to the above, negotiations with the submitter identified an opportunity to include two new strategies which would provide further guidance for signs at display home centres to address some of the submitters concerns. These strategies provide support for:
	Signs at key entry points to display home centres that assist in creating a sense of place.
	Fixed pole signs with banner flags for display home centres.
The inclusion of these two strategies is considered reasonable and consistent with the intent of the exhibited amendment.
Further, to ensure consistency with the land use terms in Clause 73.03 of the Whittlesea Planning Scheme, all references to ‘display villages’ in the exhibited Amendment have been amended to ‘display home centre’.
The above changes recommended to the exhibited version of Clause 15.01-1L are shown as tracked changes in a post exhibition version of the clause (Refer to Attachment 1). No changes are proposed to the exhibited versions of Clauses 02.03-5 and 18.02-3L (Attachments 2 and 3).  The changes are modest and clarify the intent of the policy in keeping with the exhibited Amendment. The submitter has agreed to withdraw their submission on the basis of these changes which will avoid the need for a Planning Panel.
CONSULTATION
In addition to the statutory exhibition, internal consultation on the initial drafting of the Amendment was undertaken with a range of internal departments including: Planning & Building, Economic Development, Compliance and Environment, Arts Culture & Events, Parks & City Forest.

No further consultation on the Amendment is planned at this time, except to advise the submitter of the outcome of the Council meeting.
CRITICAL DATES
	Action
	Date 

	Authorisation of C216 (now C226) obtained from Council
	7 August 2018

	Authorisation granted from the Minister of Planning
	21 March 2019

	Approval of Amendment C250 (PPF Translation)
	18 December 2020

	Exhibition of Amendment C226 commenced
	23 March 2021

	Exhibition of Amendment concluded 
	30 April 2021

	Council Meeting
	4 October 2021


In accordance with Ministerial Direction No. 15: The Planning Scheme Amendment Process, Council must decide within 60 days of the closing date of submissions, being 26 July 2021. A request for an extension of time was sought and granted from DELWP to enable Council to seek to resolve the submission before reporting the matter to Council. 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
A fee will be payable to DELWP if the Amendment is submitted to the Minister of Planning for approval. 
The policy will be implemented by Council’s statutory planning teams. 
No unusual fees are required to implement this Amendment. 
POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION
[bookmark: _Hlk72134745]Victorian Planning Framework
A new PPF framework was introduced into all Victorian planning schemes as part of the State Government’s Smart Planning Reforms.  A PPF translation of the Whittlesea Planning Scheme was undertaken via Amendment C250, which was Gazetted on 18 December 2020. This Gazettal allowed the progression of Amendment C226wsea. 
Furthermore, the Amendment has been processed in accordance with the requirements of the Planning and Environment Act, 1987. Two Ministerial Direction 15: The Planning Scheme Amendment Process have been granted by DELWP. These extensions enabled council officers to negotiate an outcome acceptable to the submitter. 
Whittlesea Planning Scheme 
The following sections of the Whittlesea Planning Scheme are relevant to this Amendment: 
Clause 02.03-5 - Built Environment and Heritage: 
	Council aims to: Upgrade the image and appearance of Whittlesea including its:
	Major gateways and transport corridors (including signs)
Clause 18.02-3L - Signs adjacent the Metropolitan Ring Road: 
	provides guidance for pole mounted signs, sky signs and panel signs on building facades exposed to the alignment of the Metropolitan Ring Road. The policy also addresses associated issues such as visual clutter, intrusiveness to nearby residential areas as well as the degradation of the existing built form. 
Clause 37.07 Urban Growth Zone: Schedules 1 – 6 Clause 7.0 Signs:
	sets out various permit exemptions to Clause 52.05 of the Planning Scheme for land and home sales signs.
Clause 52.05 Particular Provisions - Signs:
o	sets out state-wide application requirements, advertising categories, referral, expiry, decision guidelines, exempted signs, existing signs and specific provisions affecting major promotion signs. 
Clause 73: Sign Terms:
o	lists terms which may be used in the Planning Scheme in relation to outdoor advertising and their definitions. 
LINK TO STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic Risk Service Delivery - Inability to plan for and provide critical community services and infrastructure impacting on community wellbeing
The implementation of this policy will provide additional guidance to the discretion currently exercised by Council officers. 
LINKS TO WHITTLESEA 2040 AND THE COUNCIL PLAN
Goal	Liveable neighbourhoods
Key Direction	Well-designed neighbourhoods and vibrant town centres

The Amendment will result in a clearer approach to decisions on signs applications. The implementation of the policy will provide additional certainty to applicants as well as the Responsible Authority. 
Additionally, the current ‘gaps’ in policy have the capacity to negatively impact applications of this type.  
DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules 2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.
The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
Amendment C226wsea seeks to implement a municipality wide local planning policy on signs, which will bring the City of Whittlesea into line with other municipalities. It amends existing Clause 02.03-5 and 18.02-3L and introduces a new Clause 15.01-1L. Development of the policy has undergone an extensive process of consultation with internal stakeholders, Council, the sole submitter to the Amendment and the State Government. The policy has also been on statutory exhibition in accordance with the requirements of the Planning and Environment Act 1987.  
The Amendment was exhibited, and one submission was received. The submission sought the inclusion of specific performance measures for new residential estates, display home centres and land sales office signs. As noted above the prescriptive performance measures approach is no longer available to Councils, due to new Planning Scheme framework and drafting requirements. 
Discussions with the submitter have resulted in minor changes to the exhibited Clause 15.01-1L as outlined in Attachment 1, to resolve the submission. The changes are consistent with the intent of the exhibited policy. The submission has been withdrawn which has avoided the need for a Planning Panel. 
It is therefore recommended that Council adopt the Amendment as outlined in this report and be submit to the Minister for Planning for approval.  

	RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council: 
1.	Adopt Amendment C226wsea to the Whittlesea Planning Scheme as detailed in Attachments 1-3 of this report, comprising the post exhibition version of Clause 15.01-1L and the exhibited version of Clauses 02.03-5 and 18.02-3L. 
2.	Submit Amendment C226wsea detailed in Recommendation 1. above to the Minister for Planning for approval; and 
3.	Advise the submitter of the resolutions above.

	[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_37029]COUNCIL RESOLUTION
[bookmark: MoverSeconder_37029]MOVED:	Administrator Duncan
SECONDED:	Administrator Eddy 

[bookmark: Carried_37029]THAT Council resolve to adopt the Recommendation.
CARRIED
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[bookmark: PDF1_CommunityServices][bookmark: _Toc84341877]6.3	Strong Local Economy
[bookmark: _Toc84341878]	ITEM 6.3.1	BUSINESS ADVISORY PANEL MEMBERSHIP
Responsible Officer:	Director Planning & Development  
Also in attendance:	Manager Economic Development      

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
That Council resolve to:
1.	Appoint the following people listed below, as members of Council’s Business Advisory Panel:
	Peter Vu/Jose Cambon, Costa Group (noting Jose Cambon as proxy)
	Daniel Wilson, Quest Apartments Epping 
	David Power, Melbourne Market Authority 
	Kerryn Lester-Smith, Melbourne Polytechnic 
	Catherine Cervasio, Aromababy 
	Joshua Robinson, Lotus Energy 
	Aristos Karavias, Repurpose It 
	Giorgio Linguanti, That’s Amore 
	Michelle Andrews-Sims, Wine in a Glass 
	Paul Hearne, Limelight
2.	Appoint the position of Chair to David Power, Melbourne Market Authority;
3.	Committee members be notified in writing that their nominations have been approved by Council; 
4.	Council to write to unsuccessful submitters;
5.	The list of Committee members be published on Council’s website; and
6.	Amend the Terms of Reference to increase the number of local business representatives from 10 to 11 to enable a representative of the small and micro business cohort to be invited to join the Panel in the future.
KEY FACTS AND / OR ISSUES
	The Business Advisory Panel Terms of Reference and Expression of Interest process was endorsed at 1 June Council Meeting.
	The Business Advisory Panel will work together with Council in delivering the key objectives and advocate for a Strong Local Economy.
	The membership of the Panel will include Administrator / Councillor, Council Officers and up to 10 local business representatives. 

REPORT
INTRODUCTION
The purpose of the Business Advisory Panel (Panel) will enable business leaders’ work with Council in delivering key objectives and advocacy for a Strong Local Economy. Following endorsement at the 1 June 2021 Council meeting, an Expression of Interest process was open, inviting the business community to submit an application for consideration.
BACKGROUND
The Business Advisory Panel has clear linkages with Whittlesea 2040 Goal: Strong Local Economy and the Economic Development Strategy key direction 5 Collaborate with community, business and government to deliver resources and opportunities. The Panel aims to further enhance the partnerships between Council and the business community. 
Following the endorsement of the Terms of Reference and Expression of Interest (EOI) at 1 June Council Meeting, the EOI process was made available to the business community. 
PROPOSAL
Thirteen business community members submitted an Expression of Interest to join the Business Advisory Group. It is proposed that nine of the submission be accepted and invited to join the Business Advisory Panel. 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED BUSINESS ADVISORY PANEL MEMBERS
The proposed Panel members will join Chair of Administrators Lydia Wilson, Administrator Chris Eddy and nominated Council members. 
The proposed membership represents the diversity of the local Whittlesea Business Community in relation to industry sector, broad coverage of additional affiliations, cultural background and location within the municipality.  They have all been engaged with Council in other matters through program and/or event support, partnership opportunities or strong engaged relationships with Council. 
Additionally, submissions were considered based on the responses to the following factors:
	Knowledge level of local business and its contribution to the Panel
	Applicants current role within the business 
	Overview of current role responsibility and how the role would benefit the Panel
	Additional affiliations and memberships held within their respected industry
The proposed committee members are listed below with reference to the affiliated industry sector: 
Peter Vu/Jose Cambon  	Costa Group (Agriculture). It is intended that Peter Vu be the primary contact, with Jose Cambon to step in as proxy if required.
Daniel Wilson  	Quest Apartments Epping (Visitor Economy)
David Power  	Melbourne Market Authority (Government Administration and Wholesale Trade – Food and Flowers)
Kerryn Lester-Smith  	Melbourne Polytechnic (Education)
Catherine Cervasio 	Aromababy (Wholesale Trade – Mother and Baby products)
Joshua Robinson 	Lotus Energy (Resource Recovery)
Aristos Karavias  	Repurpose It (Resource Recovery)
Giorgio Linguanti 	That’s Amore (Food manufacturing and Wholesale)
Michelle Andrews-Sims  	Wine in a Glass (Beverage manufacturing)
Paul Hearne	Limelight (Advanced Manufacturing)
ADDITIONAL MEMBERSHIP PROPOSAL
The Terms of Reference currently states membership of the Panel will include Administrator / Councillor, Council Officers and up to 10 local business representatives. However an opportunity presents itself for the Panel to include a representative of the small and micro business cohort. It is proposed that in early 2022, Council establish a chamber of commerce-style group representing the small and micro business cohort. Once the Group has been established, a representative from the Group would be invited to join the Panel.
It would be proposed to amend the current Terms of Reference to allow an additional panel member to increase to 11 local business representatives to ensure the Panel has a full representation of the business community.
POSITION OF CHAIR
Submitters were invited to nominate themselves for the position of Chair as part of the Expression of Interest. As per the Terms of Reference, the position of Chair is selected by Council and will reviewed on an annual basis. 
Three submitters self-nominated for the position of Chair. Upon consideration it is recommended that David Power, Commercial and Business Development Manager, Melbourne Market Authority be Chair. David holds experience in previous committee membership and currently holds the position of Chair of the National Retailer Program Marketing Committee.
CONSULTATION
The EOI was officially launched on 30 June 2021. Various methods of communication were carried out to promote and encourage businesses to submit an EOI. Activities included a media release which resulted in stories being published in local newspaper publications, online posts on Council’s Linked In, Council’s website and Council’s Business eNewsletter. 
A total of 13 EOI’s were received for consideration. 
CRITICAL DATES
The first meeting of the Business Advisory Panel is scheduled to take place on Thursday 28 October 2021.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
No financial commitment is required. The establishment of the Panel and its activities will be delivered within existing resources and budget.
POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION
The Business Advisory Panel has clear linkages with Whittlesea 2040 Goal: Strong Local Economy and the Economic Development Strategy key direction 5 Collaborate with community, business and government to deliver resources and opportunities. The Panel aims to further enhance the partnerships between Council and the business community.
LINK TO STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic Risk Not linked to the risks within the Strategic Risk Register.
LINKS TO WHITTLESEA 2040 AND THE COUNCIL PLAN
Goal	Strong local economy
Key Direction	Successful, innovative local businesses

The Panel will enhance the collaboration between Council and the business community. Through collaboration, the Panel will support successful, innovative local businesses who offer employment and education opportunities for our community.
DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules 2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.
The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
The proposed Panel members represent the diversity of the local Whittlesea Business Community in relation to industry sector, broad coverage of additional affiliations, cultural background, and location within the municipality.  They have all been engaged with Council in other matters through program and event support, partnership opportunities or strong engaged relationships with Council. 
The Panel will enhance the collaboration between Council and the business community. 

	RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council resolve to: 
1.	Appoint the following people listed below, as members of Council’s Business Advisory Panel:
	Peter Vu/Jose Cambon, Costa Group (noting Jose Cambon as proxy)
	Daniel Wilson, Quest Apartments Epping 
	David Power, Melbourne Market Authority 
	Kerryn Lester-Smith, Melbourne Polytechnic 
	Catherine Cervasio, Aromababy 
	Joshua Robinson, Lotus Energy 
	Aristos Karavias, Repurpose It 
	Giorgio Linguanti, That’s Amore 
	Michelle Andrews-Sims, Wine in a Glass 
	Paul Hearne, Limelight
2.	Appoint the position of Chair to David Power, Melbourne Market Authority;
3.	Notify successful applicants in writing that their nominations have been approved by Council; 
4.	Write to unsuccessful applicants;
5.	  Publish the list of Committee members on Council’s website; and
6.	  Amend the Terms of Reference to increase the number of local business representatives from 10 to 11 to enable a representative of the small and micro business cohort to be invited to join the Panel in the future.

	[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_36970]COUNCIL RESOLUTION
[bookmark: MoverSeconder_36970]MOVED:	Administrator Eddy
SECONDED:	Chairperson Wilson 

[bookmark: Carried_36970]THAT Council resolve to adopt the Recommendation.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
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[bookmark: PDF1_CityTransport][bookmark: _Toc84341879]6.4	Sustainable Environment
[bookmark: _Toc84341880]	ITEM 6.4.1	JOINT LETTER - GUM TREE REMOVAL REQUEST - FLAXEN HILLS ROAD, DOREEN
Responsible Officer:	Director Infrastructure & Environment  
Also in attendance:	Team Leader Parks & City Forest Business Improvement      

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
That Council: 
1.	Note the report and actions taken to resolve the written request for work on the street trees located along Flaxen Hills Road, Doreen.
2.	Implement the recommendations of the independent arborist assessment
3.	Advise the head petitioner of the proposed works.
KEY FACTS AND / OR ISSUES
	Council received a petition containing approximately 60 names requesting the removal of street trees in Flaxen Hills Road, Doreen. The petition was not signed and did not have any addresses, although contact phone numbers were provided. An examination of Council records shows that names listed on the petition originate from 22 households on Flaxen Hills Road and 2 households on Overland Drive. A further six names were not located during the record search.
	A letter has been sent to the head petitioners, Mr and Mrs Urquhart advising of the Council meeting date for the presentation of this report.
	Council commissioned an independent arboricultural assessment for the entire street, from Hazel Glen Drive to Yan Yean Road, totalling 337 trees. The report recommends one removal and routine work for 18 trees.
	Two trees have since been poisoned in the street and have died. These trees will be removed whilst undertaking the recommended works.
	An examination of Council’s CRM record shows 35 tree related requests since 2011, which have all been responded to and resolved. This is considered an acceptable rate of requests for the number of trees under consideration.
	Following the detailed consideration of the independent assessments and CRM record for Flaxen Hills Road, Doreen, it is recommended that the above recommendations be added to the Zone Maintenance Program under contract with Citywide for 2021/2022.


REPORT
INTRODUCTION
On 21 July 2020, Council received a petition from residents requesting the removal and replacement of the existing street trees from Flaxen Hills Road, Doreen. The petition was in the form of a list of 60 names with phone numbers. An examination of Council records shows that names listed on the petition originate from 22 households on Flaxen Hills Road and 2 households on Overland Drive. A further six names were not located during the record search.
Issues raised in the petition were concerned mainly with the size of the trees and the mess created from excessive leaf shed.
Council places a significant value on established street trees for the multitude of environmental, social and economic benefits that they bring to the local Community. This philosophy was recently reinforced by Council through the adoption of the Greening Whittlesea – City Forest Strategy which aims to increase tree canopy cover across the municipality by 20 per cent by the year 2040. For these reasons, Council only removes established trees in the most extreme circumstances.  
As a result of the petition, an investigation was undertaken looking at the core issues, and by examining past CRM records of tree requests in Flaxen Hills Road, Doreen.  In addition, an independent arborist was commissioned to undertake an assessment of the 337 trees to evaluate the status of current tree assets. 
BACKGROUND
Flaxen Hills Road, Doreen is a streetscape dominated by a combination of mature Gum Tree species including Corymbia citriodora (Lemon Scented Gum) and Corymbia maculata (Spotted Gum). Corymbia trees are an evergreen tree listed on Council’s approved street tree species list and classified as a medium to large tree. 

The two main species planted in Flaxen Hills Road, C. citriodora and C. maculata, are in the top 10 most common street trees in the City of Whittlesea. Together they combine for a total 6.2 per cent of our street trees.

These trees are all currently managed and maintained proactively by Council on a bi-annual program.

A petition was received on 21 July 2020 listing 60 names requesting that Council remove the existing nature strip trees and replant with new trees as part of the Street Tree Renewal Program. An examination of Council records shows that names listed on the petition originate from 22 households on Flaxen Hills Road and 2 households on Overland Drive. A further six names were not located during the record search.

The grounds on which the signatories believe that the current trees are unsuitable include:
	Trees dropping debris including leaves
	Leaf shedding become unsafe for foot traffic
	Canopy spread and size
	Branches cracking under wind and weather

Council’s CRM records were examined to determine the number of complaints received over a ten-year period.  This showed that 35 tree related requests were received since 2011, which have all been responded to and resolved. This is considered an acceptable rate of requests for the number of trees under consideration.
Furthermore, there were four claims against Council for tree related damage in Flaxen Hills Road, Doreen. Three claims resulted in the removal of the tree based on the findings of an independent engineering report.
Council officers have also investigated the Flaxen Hills Road trees to assess property clearances in line with the guidelines set out in the Street Tree Management Plan (STMP). The STMP defines the levels of service provided for Council’s street trees and the criteria by which Council does (and does not) remove trees.
An independent arborist was commissioned to assess the current health status of the trees. The investigation included the further assessment of 337 trees along Flaxen Hills Road. The average ULE (Useful Life Expectancy) of the trees is 50 years. The average value of the trees, using the modified Burnley method, is $56,561.19. The overall condition of the trees is of good form and vigour. Based on this assessment, the arborist has recommended that most of the trees are retained, with the removal of one tree and routine maintenance work for a further 18 trees.  Since the report was completed, two trees have been poisoned in the street and have died.
The two trees that have been poisoned were noticed to be in a state of rapid decline by Council’s arborist whilst on a routine inspection in May 2021. Upon investigation, some small drill holes were noted in one tree. In addition, a green crust like residue was also observed in the soil adjacent to both trees, which indicates the use of pool chemicals. However, without testing, this cannot be confirmed. At the time, signage was installed to publicise the poisoning of the trees, however this was removed within two weeks by persons unknown. 
Parks and City Forest will review the poisoned tree process particularly to formalise guidelines for the use of surveillance measures to act as a preventative measure and the size and location of signage should poisoning occur in the future. 
The poisoned trees will be removed whilst undertaking the recommended works. 
PROPOSAL
[bookmark: _Hlk80022337]Council officers have reviewed the recommendations made within the independent arboricultural report. Most trees were compliant with the Street Tree Management Plan Guidelines. One tree was recommended for removal and 18 have recommendations for routine maintenance. Two trees have since been poisoned in the street and have died. These trees will be removed whilst undertaking the recommended works. The remaining trees are to be retained and will be assessed as part of the bi-annual zone maintenance program. A separate request to assess the footpaths for compliance has been made to the maintenance and operations department.
CONSULTATION
Council officers have notified the head petitioner of the Council meeting on 4 October 2021 for the presentation of this report and have provided communications and updates to enquiries from individuals. Most of this communication has been through the management of complaints relating to structural damage to houses. 
A mail out will be arranged to advise of the proposed works to the 22 households on Flaxen Hills Road and 2 households on Overland Drive. A further six names were not located during the record search. Any response to the mail out will be managed individually.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
To resolve the items raised in the petition for Flaxen Hills Road, Doreen the costs are as follows:
	Removal of three trees as recommended by arboricultural investigation estimated $6,000
	Routine maintenance as recommended by arboricultural investigation – costs included in Citywide contract
All works can be funded within existing programs as part of the operational budget or under the Citywide contract. No new funding is required for the proposed works.
POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION
Review of the Flaxen Hills Road, Doreen petition request has been completed in accordance with the following Council policies:
	Whittlesea 2040 – A Place for All Community Plan (2018)
	Greening Whittlesea City Forest Strategy 2020
	Greening Our Streets Street Tree Management Plan (2019).
LINK TO STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic Risk Community and Stakeholder Engagement - Ineffective stakeholder engagement resulting in compromised community outcomes and/or non-achievement of Council's strategic direction
The City of Whittlesea Street Tree Management Plan (2019) outlines how Council will respond to requests for tree removal from the community and communicates the evaluation criteria whereby Council will support tree removals.

LINKS TO WHITTLESEA 2040 AND THE COUNCIL PLAN
Goal	High-performing organisation
Key Direction	Driving better community outcomes through improved service access, satisfaction and advocacy

Goal Sustainable environment
Key Direction Valued natural landscapes and biodiversity

The proposal acknowledges the value of streetscapes in our local community and the contribution of these trees to local amenity, biodiversity and urban shading/cooling.
DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules 2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.
The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
The petition listing 60 names requesting the removal and replacement of the existing street trees has been reviewed and the arborist recommendation for minor works is being presented. 
The investigation involved an examination of 337 trees along Flaxen Hills Road. The average ULE (Useful Life Expectancy) of the trees is 50 years. The average value of the trees, using the modified Burnley method, is $56,561.19. The overall condition of the trees is of good form and vigour. Based on this assessment, the arborist recommendations conclude to retain most of the trees, with the removal of one tree and routine maintenance work for a further 18 trees. The two trees subsequently poisoned will also be removed as part of the recommended works. A request has been made to inspect the footpaths by the Operations and Maintenance department to assess for compliance.
Communication via mail out to the identified households will be factored into the timing of works and routine zone maintenance under the Citywide contract.

	RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council resolve to:
1.	Note the report and actions taken to resolve the written request for work on the street trees located along Flaxen Hills Road, Doreen.
2.	Implement the recommendations of the independent arborist assessment
3.	Advise the head petitioner of the proposed works.


	[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_35969_1]COUNCIL RESOLUTION
[bookmark: MoverSeconder_35969_1]MOVED:	Administrator Duncan
SECONDED:	Administrator Eddy 

THAT Council resolve to:
1.	Note the report and actions taken to resolve the written request for work on the street trees located along Flaxen Hills Road, Doreen.
2.	Implement the recommendations of the independent arborist assessment namely removal of one tree; routine maintenance of 18 trees; removal of 2 trees that have died; and retention of remaining trees with their assessment as part of the bi-annual zone maintenance program.
3.	Advise the head petitioner of the proposed works.
[bookmark: Carried_35969_1]CARRIED
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[bookmark: PDF1_CorporateServices][bookmark: _Toc84341881]6.5	High Performing Organisation
[bookmark: _Toc84341882]	ITEM 6.5.1	17-19 JOHNSONS ROAD, MERNDA - SALE OF COUNCIL LAND  
[bookmark: PDF2_Attachments_36985]Attachments:	1	Confidential Attachment - Confidential
[bookmark: PDFA_36985_1_CLOSED]This attachment has been designated as confidential by the Director Corporate Services, under delegation from the Chief Executive Officer, in accordance with Rule 53 of the Governance Rules 2021 and sections 66(5) and 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2020 on the grounds that it contains Council business information, being information that would prejudice the Council's position in commercial negotiations if prematurely released. In particular the attachment contains sensitive financial information which would diminish Council's position in these negotiations.  
[bookmark: PDFA_36985_2]2	Location Plan  
[bookmark: PDFA_36985_3]3	Aerial Photo  
[bookmark: PDFA_36985_4]4	Council Report 2 August 2021    
Responsible Officer:	Director Corporate Services 
Author:	Consultant    

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
That Council resolve to:
1.	Acting under section 114 of the Local Government Act 2020 and all other powers enabling Council, to undertake a community engagement process in accordance with Council’s ‘Community Engagement Policy’ in relation to the intention of Council to sell (by either public sale, public auction or via an expressions of interest process) the Council-owned property known as 17-19 Johnsons Road, Mernda (subject property) under and subject to the following terms and conditions (proposed sale) – 
a)	To develop, construct, subdivide and sell the subject property in accordance with the approved 35 lot plan of subdivision;
b)	To confine the proposed sale to the sale on the open market (by public sale, public auction or via an expression of interest process) of 32 of the 35 lots that will be developed; 
c)	To reserve the remaining 3 of the 35 for sale and/or lease to a suitable housing provider as determined by Council and otherwise in accordance with Council’s Social Affordable Housing Policy (affordable housing allocation); and
d)	To establish such other terms and conditions in relation to the proposed sale as may be required by Council. 
2.	To receive a further report on the proposed sale following the close of the community engagement process.
BRIEF OVERVIEW
The property located at 17-19 Johnsons Road, Mernda, was purchased by Council from the State Government for $1.8 million. The purchase was made with the strategic intent of selling the property at a future point in time for a return to be reinvested back into community infrastructure. 
It is proposed that Council develop and subdivide the site into 35 lots, with 32 of these to be sold on the open market and the remaining 3 lots to be reserved for sale and/or lease, via an expression of interest, to a registered housing organisation to undertake an Affordable Housing development in accordance with Council’s Social Affordable Housing (SAH) Policy. 
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Council is presented with two options for consideration (outlined in Attachment 1).
Option one is to on-sell the property undeveloped on the open market to a purchaser/developer who will be required to develop the site in accordance with the approved plan of subdivision.  
Option two is for Council to develop the site in accordance with the approved plan of subdivision and sell-off each individual lot on the open market. This is the recommended option as it presents the best return on investment for Council. 
IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
The recommendation ensures Council will meet the requirements of Section 114 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Council’s community engagement policy. Further, the recommendation of the disposal method outlined in Option 2 (outlined in Attachment 1) represents the best return on investment for Council.   
WHAT MEASURES WILL BE PUT IN PLACE TO MANAGE IMPACTS
A further report will be presented to Council outlining community feedback from the consultation process, and any impacts on the final recommendation to Council on the preferred disposal method of the site, including the reservation of lots for affordable housing.

REPORT
INTRODUCTION
The report seeks Council’s endorsement for the proposed development and sale of Council owned property at 17-19 Johnsons Road, Mernda. Following the purchase of the property in 2014 for the purpose of future resale, Council is presented with two options for the disposal of the site. The first option is to sell the property to a developer on the open market with the approved plan of subdivision. The second option is for Council to develop the land and sell off each lot individually on the open market.  
BACKGROUND
The property located at 17-19 Johnsons Road, Mernda, is located on the southern side of Johnsons Road some 140m to the east of Schotters Road. The site was previously used for the Mernda Primary School, with the school relocating to a larger site (25 Everton Drive, Mernda) in 2011. The site was purchased from the State Government in 2014 for $1.8 million, with the intention of future resale profits to be reinvested into community infrastructure.  
The land is rectangular in shape with a frontage of 120.3m to Johnsons Road and measures approximately 2.02 hectares and is largely flat.  The site does not contain any buildings and features significant numbers of mature trees, particularly along the boundaries, and in the southern quarter of the site, with others located in the centre of the site, refer Attachment 2 -  Location Plan and Attachment 3 - Aerial Photograph.
The land was valued and purchased by Council on the basis of the land being rezoned and developed for residential purposes with the sole intent being to provide a future financial return to council. The land was zoned as ‘Public Use’ at the time of the purchase and was intended to be rezoned (by Whittlesea Planning Scheme Amendment C175) for future residential subdivision purposes in accordance with the proposed Mernda Township Strategy Plan.  Amendment C175 was gazetted and came into operation on 4 May 2017 rezoning this site and the area to the south and west, most of which is on the eastern side of Plenty Road to General Residential Zone and introduced Development Pan Overlay Schedule 34.  
Following the re-zoning of the land to “General Residential”, Council engaged the consultancy firm “Urbis” to undertake an independent and autonomous application to subdivide the site.  This application went through normal scrutiny by Council Planning Officers and public consultation processes and was approved by Council (with various conditions) at its meeting on 2 August 2021, refer to Attachment 4 - Council Report.
Officers have taken the opportunity to assess the development and its ability to support the outcomes of Council’s SAH policy. An allocation of three lots is proposed to be reserved for affordable housing. An expression of interest process is proposed to be undertaken to offer the three lots for sale and/or lease to a suitable housing provider as determined by Council. 
CONSULTATION
A four-week consultation period is proposed to occur between October and November 2021 and be promoted through Council’s communication channels, local media and direct correspondence with surrounding residents and property owners. 
Consultation will be undertaken in accordance with Council’s Community Engagement Policy to comply with the requirements of Section 114 of the Local Government Act 2020. All details on the preferred sale option will be advertised on Council’s website (Hive) via an engagement page.  The engagement page will include contact details for a Council Officer who can respond to community enquiries on this project. 
CRITICAL DATES
No critical dates exist in relation to this proposal or project, other than ensuring a financial gain be returned to Council for proposed reinvestment back into community infrastructure, and to support the objectives of Council’s SAH Policy.
POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION
Under Section 114 of the Local Government Act 2020, Council must undertake a community engagement process in accordance with its community engagement policy prior to the selling or exchanging of land.
The recommendations in the report also take into account Council’s adopted SAH Policy and Whittlesea Planning Scheme.
LINK TO STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic Risk Financial Sustainability - Inability to meet current and future expenditure
Strategic property purchases and development are an alternative source of cashflow that Council has identified to meet the financial constraints associated with rate capping. Council’s return on investment from this project is intended to be reinvested back into community infrastructure.
LINKS TO WHITTLESEA 2040 AND THE COUNCIL PLAN
Goal	High-performing organisation
Key Direction	More cost-effective investment through better return on investment, efficiency and an engaged workforce
This project will result in additional funding available to Council, outside the usual revenue sources, to assist in funding priority programs and projects that will benefit the community.
DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules 2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.
The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
The property located at 17-19 Johnsons Road Mernda was purchased by Council from the State Government for the purpose of generating a future return on investment to be reinvested into community infrastructure. Following the consideration of various sales options, the preferred option is for Council to develop, construct and subdivide the site in accordance with the approved 35 lot plan of subdivision (Option 2 from Attachment 1).  Further, it is proposed that Council will sell 32 of the 35 lots that will be developed on the open market and reserve three lots for “Affordable Housing” in accordance with Council’s SAH Policy. 
	RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council resolve to:
[bookmark: _Hlk69187530]1.	Acting under section 114 of the Local Government Act 2020 and all other powers enabling Council, to undertake a community engagement process in accordance with Council’s ‘Community Engagement Policy’ in relation to the intention of Council to sell (by either public sale, public auction or via an expressions of interest process) the Council-owned property known as No 17-19 Johnsons Road, Mernda (subject property) under and subject to the following terms and conditions (proposed sale) – 
a)	To develop, construct, subdivide and sell the subject property in accordance with the approved 35 lot plan of subdivision;
b)	To confine the proposed sale to the sale on the open market (by public sale, public auction or via an expression of interest process) of 32 of the 35 lots that will be developed; 
c)	To reserve the remaining 3 of the 35 lots for sale and/or lease to a suitable housing provider as determined by Council and otherwise in accordance with Council’s Social Affordable Housing Policy (affordable housing allocation); and
d)	To establish such other terms and conditions in relation to the proposed sale as may be required by Council. 
2.	To receive a further report on the proposed sale following the close of the community engagement process.


	[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_36985_1]COUNCIL RESOLUTION
[bookmark: MoverSeconder_36985_1]MOVED:	Administrator Duncan
SECONDED:	Administrator Eddy 

THAT Council resolve to:
1.	Acting under section 114 of the Local Government Act 2020 and all other powers enabling Council, to undertake a community engagement process in accordance with Council’s ‘Community Engagement Policy’ in relation to the intention of Council to sell (by either public sale, public auction or via an expressions of interest process) the Council-owned property known as No 17-19 Johnsons Road, Mernda (subject property) under and subject to the following terms and conditions (proposed sale) – 
a)	To develop, construct, subdivide and sell the subject property in accordance with the approved 35 lot plan of subdivision;
b)	To confine the proposed sale to the sale on the open market (by public sale, public auction or via an expression of interest process) of 32 of the 35 lots that will be developed; 
c)	To reserve the remaining 3 of the 35 lots for sale and/or lease to a suitable housing provider as determined by Council and otherwise in accordance with Council’s Social Affordable Housing Policy (affordable housing allocation); and
d)	To establish such other terms and conditions in relation to the proposed sale as may be required by Council. 
2.	To receive a further report on the proposed sale following the close of the community engagement process in December 2021.
[bookmark: Carried_36985_1]
CARRIED
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[bookmark: _Toc84341883]	ITEM 6.5.2	ADMINISTRATOR ACTION PLAN - 6 MONTH UPDATE  
[bookmark: PDF2_Attachments_36996][bookmark: PDFA_36996_1]Attachments:	1	Administrator Action Plan 2020-2021 - September 2021 Update  
[bookmark: PDFA_36996_2]2	Activities of Administrators    
Responsible Officer:	Chair of Council  
Author:	Executive Manager Governance & Strategy    

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
THAT Council resolve to note the report and Action Plan and provide a copy of it to the Minister for Local Government, Local Government Victoria and to all local Members of Parliament.
BRIEF OVERVIEW
Council developed and endorsed the Administrator Action Plan 2020-2024 (the Action Plan) on 6 April 2021 to confirm actions and commitments to ensure continued good governance during Council’s four-year term.  The Action Plan outlines priorities in line with the Community Vision, Whittlesea 2040: A place for all, and considers the Local Government Act and needs of the community in responding and recovering from the COVID 19 pandemic.
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Transparency via regular reporting to the community plays a critical role in demonstrating good governance. This report is also in line with recommendations made in the Municipal Monitor’s report tabled in Parliament on 17 March 2020.
This six-monthly update (Attachment 1) is in line with Council’s commitment to publicly report on the Action Plan twice annually and provide transparency on key strategic decisions and work undertaken by Council over the past six months to ensure good governance in the best interest of the community.
IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
The Action Plan will evolve and adapt according to community feedback, including reflecting priorities as outlined in the Community Plan 2021-2025 once it is finalised.
WHAT MEASURES WILL BE PUT IN PLACE TO MANAGE IMPACTS
Monitoring and reviewing the Administrator Action Plan will occur every six months.  

REPORT
BACKGROUND
Ms Lydia Wilson was appointed by the Minister for Local Government to the role of Interim Administrator on 21 March 2020.
On 19 June 2020, the Panel of Administrators was appointed, with Ms Wilson appointed Chair being joined by the Hon Bruce Billson and Ms Peita Duncan.  Mr Chris Eddy was appointed Administrator effective 12 May 2021 following the resignation of the Hon Bruce Billson on 5 March 2021. Ms Lydia Wilson, Ms Peita Duncan and Mr Chris Eddy will undertake the duties of the Council of the City of Whittlesea until the October 2024 Local Government Election.
An initial six-month report on the governance arrangements under Administrators was tabled at the Council Meeting held on 6 October 2020.  On 6 April 2021 a 12-month report was tabled which included the Administrator Action Plan. (Attachment 1). 
A key emphasis throughout this period has been embedding good governance at the City of Whittlesea as recommended in the Municipal Monitor’s report tabled in Parliament on 17 March 2020 which recommended: “Administrators develop, implement and publicly report on an action plan to embed good governance at the Council taking into account the reform opportunities in the Local Government Bill 2019.” 
The focus on good governance has included progressive implementation of the provisions of the Local Government Act 2020 and restoring stability to the organisation following a significant period of turmoil and disruption.
In addition to re-established good governance and effective decision-making, the Council has been diligent in re-building the reputation of the City of Whittlesea through community engagement, developing clear strategic directions including the draft Community Plan 2021-2025, responding to challenges associated with COVID-19 and developing and implementing the Administrator action plan, which serves as a roadmap for a successful future.
[bookmark: _Hlk51573050]ADMINISTRATOR ACTION PLAN 
The Administrator Action Plan outlines the strategies and actions that have been identified to ensure good governance at the City of Whittlesea through to October 2024. 
The actions are outlined under the five priority areas of the Council Plan and Community Vision, Whittlesea2040: A place for all together with the additional priorities of Good Governance/Effective Implementation of the Local Government Act 2020 and Covid Response and Recovery as outlined below:
1.	Good Governance/Effective implementation of LG Act 2020  
2.	COVID19 Response and Recovery 
3.	Connected Communities 
4.	Liveable Neighbourhoods 
5.	Strong Local Economy 
6.	Sustainable Environment. 
7.	High Performing Organisation 
[bookmark: _Hlk81834209]The Plan provides a status update of the key actions over the past six months including a few highlights as outlined below:
-	Development of the Draft Whittlesea Community Plan 2021-2025 (integrating the Public Health and Wellbeing Plan, Disability Action Plan and Pandemic Recovery Plan) for Community consultation.
-	Adoption of the 2021/22 budget and a new best practice Financial Hardship policy.
-	Adoption of revised Governance Rules 2021 enabling increased community participation at Council meetings.
-	Community Council meetings quarterly preceded by Community Forum (pending Government restrictions).
-	Supported the establishment of a purpose-built Aboriginal Gathering Place at Quarry Hills Park
-	A range of initiatives to improve customer service and responsiveness including a new Customer First Program.
-	Endorsement of a co-designed $2 million Pandemic Recovery Fund to support our community to respond and recover from COVID-19.
-	Significant funding and support to assist businesses in response to COVID-19.
-	Inaugural Community Awards Committee endorsed and nominations opened.
-	Inaugural Business Advisory Panel endorsed.
-	Online and in person citizenship ceremonies held resulting in approximately  450 conferees in total new citizens. 
-	Key strategies and plans adopted including: Whittlesea township strategy, Road Management Plan, Investment Attraction Plan, Greening Whittlesea Strategy, draft Domestic Animal Management Plan and the Rethinking Waste Plan. 
-	Significant community engagement activities as captured in Attachment 2.
-	Participation in the Audit and Risk Committee with oversight of major internal and external audits, policy review and annual financial and performance statements.
-	Completion of multiple major infrastructure projects including Mill Park All Abilities Play Space, upgrading of Mill Park Leisure Centre, Spring Street Kindergarten, signalisation of Findon Road/Ferres Boulevard.  Design completed and construction commenced for Wollert East Community Centre.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Administrators, appointed as the Council, are responsible for the financial health and wellbeing of the Council and the adoption of the annual budget. The 2021/22 Annual Budget was adopted at the 1 June 2021 Council Meeting. Highlights included $76.4 million for capital works programs, $1.5 million for Community Plan initiatives (to be determined following Community Consultation on the Community Plan) in addition to the $2 million COVID-19 Community Recovery Fund. 
CONSULTATION
Administrators have undertaken significant consultation over the past six months, through face to face and virtual means.  Attachment 2: Activities of Administrators details the significant engagement with Community. The Administrators consulted together and with Council’s Executive Leadership Team to prepare this report and update the Action Plan.
POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION
The Panel of Administrators were appointed under the provisions of the Local Government (Whittlesea City Council) Act 2020 by the Minister for Local Government.
The Chair of the Panel of Administrators takes on the role functions and duties of the Mayor and the Administrators take on the roles, duties and functions of a Councillor. Together the Panel of Administrators form the Council of the City of Whittlesea.
The laws regulations, policies and procedures that apply to the Council and to Councillors also apply to Administrators.
LINK TO STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic Risk Governance - Ineffective governance of Council’s operations and activities resulting in either a legislative or policy breach
The Panel of Administrators have been put in place to ensure good governance a the City of Whittlesea as Council under the Local Government Act.
LINKS TO WHITTLESEA 2040 AND THE COUNCIL PLAN
Goal	High-performing organisation
Key Direction	More informed Council decisions based on strong advice and community consultation and engagement
DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules 2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.
The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
The past 18 months has been an exceptionally busy period for the Panel of Administrators, working as Council, with considerable demonstrated achievements. In addition to the re-establishment of good governance and effective decision-making, considerable efforts have been made to re-build the reputation of the City of Whittlesea, to engage with the community and to improve staff morale. A clear action plan and priorities for the future has been developed and is being progressively implemented in partnership with the CEO and Executive Leadership Team. Progress against this plan will continue to be publicly reported on a six-monthly basis.
Administrators will continue to be vigilant in relation to the current COVID-19 challenges and supporting COVID-19 recovery whilst enhancing their visibility in the community. 

	RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council resolve to note the report, and to provide a copy of the report, to the Minister for Local Government The Hon. Shaun Leane, Local Government Victoria and all local Members of Parliament as a formal record of the activities of the Panel of Administrators over the past 6 months and its Action Plan going forward.


	[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_36996]COUNCIL RESOLUTION
[bookmark: MoverSeconder_36996]MOVED:	Chairperson Wilson
SECONDED:	Administrator Duncan 

[bookmark: Carried_36996]THAT Council resolve to adopt the Recommendation.
CARRIED
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[bookmark: _Toc84341884]	ITEM 6.5.3	AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE MATTERS  
[bookmark: PDF2_Attachments_37021][bookmark: PDFA_37021_1]Attachments:	1	Audit & Risk Committee Charter  
2	Review of Fees Paid to Independent Members of Council Audit & Risk Committees - Confidential
[bookmark: PDFA_Attachment_2_CLOSED][bookmark: PDFA_37021_2_CLOSED]This attachment has been designated as confidential by the Executive Manager Governance & Strategy, in accordance with Rule 53 of the Governance Rules 2021 and sections 66(5) and 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2020 on the grounds that it contains private commercial information, being information provided by a business, commercial or financial undertaking that—  (i) relates to trade secrets; or (ii) if released, would unreasonably expose the business, commercial or financial undertaking to disadvantage. In particular the attachment contains information regarding fees paid by other Councils to Audit & Risk Committee members that was provided in confidence.    
Responsible Officer:	Executive Manager Governance & Strategy 
Author:	Internal Assurance Coordinator    

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
THAT Council: 
1.	Adopt the updated City of Whittlesea Audit & Risk Committee Charter, with key changes including:
a)	Increasing the membership of the Committee from five members to six, which includes four independent members.
b)	Adjusting the quorum requirements from two to three independent members.
c)	Introducing a clause that requires a formal review of an independent member’s performance and independence be undertaken before they are eligible for extension or re-appointment. 
d)	Amending independent member term limits to allow independent members to serve a maximum of six years on the Committee.
e)	Adjusting remuneration fees for independent members from a per meeting to an annual amount. 
f)	Increasing the expected number of meetings per year from four to five.
[bookmark: _Hlk81387115]2.	Appoint Ms Jen Johanson as independent member to the City of Whittlesea’s Audit & Risk Committee commencing 4 October 2021 for a three-year term ending 30 September 2024, in accordance with the terms of reference contained in the Audit & Risk Committee Charter. 
[bookmark: _Hlk81399127][bookmark: _Hlk81385936]3.	Appoint Mr Bruce Potgieter as independent member to the City of Whittlesea’s Audit & Risk Committee commencing 4 October 2021 for a three-year term ending 30 September 2024, in accordance with the terms of reference contained in the Audit & Risk Committee Charter. 
4.	Effective from 4 October 2021, set the fee for the Audit & Risk Committee Chair to $10,000 per annum, paid quarterly.
5.	Effective from 4 October 2021, set the fee for Audit & Risk Committee independent members to $8,000 per annum, paid quarterly.
BRIEF OVERVIEW
Following the Audit & Risk Committee meeting held on 19 August 2021, the term of the Committee’s longest serving member Mr Michael Ulbrick concluded, creating a vacancy on the Committee. In accordance with the City of Whittlesea Audit & Risk Committee Charter (Charter), Council is required to fill this vacancy.
In looking to fill the vacancy, an opportunity also exists to review the current Charter and the remuneration paid to independent members of the Committee. 
This report seeks Council’s approval of proposed amendments to the Audit & Risk Committee Charter, appointment of two new independent members to the Audit & Risk Committee and consideration of an increase in fees paid to independent members of the Committee.
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
[bookmark: _Hlk56607756]Council is required to comply with the requirements of the Audit & Risk Committee Charter and the Local Government Act 2020.
Any amendments to the Audit & Risk Committee Charter, appointment of independent Committee members and changes to Committee member remuneration require the approval of Council. 
IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
[bookmark: _Hlk56607775]Council will comply with its Audit & Risk Committee Charter and meet its legislative requirements.
WHAT MEASURES WILL BE PUT IN PLACE TO MANAGE IMPACTS
Appointment of independent members to the Audit & Risk Committee and an up to date Charter ensures Council maintains best practice governance processes and structure and is well placed to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and the expectations of the community. 

REPORT
BACKGROUND
[bookmark: _Hlk81406088]Following the Audit & Risk Committee meeting held on 19 August 2021, the term of the Committee’s longest serving member Mr Michael Ulbrick concluded, creating a vacancy on the Committee. In accordance with the City of Whittlesea Audit & Risk Committee Charter, Council is required to fill this vacancy.
In looking to fill the vacancy, an opportunity also exists to review the current Charter and the remuneration paid to independent members of the Committee. 
This report seeks Council’s approval of proposed amendments to the Audit & Risk Committee Charter, appointment of two new independent members to the Audit & Risk Committee and consideration of an increase in fees paid to independent members of the Committee.
PROPOSAL
Amendments to the Audit & Risk Committee Charter
Council is required to review the Audit & Risk Committee Charter on a regular basis, and it is timely to do so now as there is a vacancy on the Committee which must be filled. The Committee and its activities should reflect the needs of a contemporary Council such as the City of Whittlesea. The workload of the Committee, its succession plan and the membership’s independence should meet the expectations of a modern Audit & Risk Committee and be addressed by its Charter. 
To ensure that the City of Whittlesea and its Audit & Risk Committee remain at the forefront of Local Government, the following key changes are recommended to the Audit & Risk Committee Charter:
	Increase the membership of the Committee from five members to six, which includes four independent members;
[bookmark: _Hlk83190710]	Adjust the quorum requirements from two to three independent members;
	Introduce a clause that requires a formal review of an independent member’s performance and independence be undertaken before they are eligible for extension or re-appointment. This review process is to be determined by the Chief Executive Officer or their delegate;
[bookmark: _Hlk83190815]	Amend independent member term limits to allow independent members to serve a maximum of six years on the Committee;
	Adjust remuneration fees for independent members from a per meeting to an annual amount, payable quarterly;
	Increase the expected number of meetings per year from four to five, with the intent of the fifth meeting to focus on annual financial and performance reporting requirements; and
	Add a clause to invite the Chair of the Committee to attend Council meetings to present the Committee’s biannual report.
A copy of the updated Charter is attached to this report (all changes are included as tracked changes).


Appointment of Independent Committee Representatives
With the term of independent Audit & Risk Committee member, Mr Michael Ulbrick concluding following the 19 August 2021 Committee meeting, a vacancy has become available on Council’s Audit & Risk Committee. To fill this vacancy; and in accordance with the amendments proposed to the Audit & Risk Committee Charter outlined above, it is recommended that Council appoint two new independent members to the Committee.
An advertising process was undertaken, including placing advertisements on Seek, LinkedIn and Council’s careers webpage from 19 July 2021 to 1 August 2021, inviting expressions of interest for independent members to join the Audit & Risk Committee. Twenty-six applicants submitted written applications.
A selection panel comprising the Chair of Council, CEO and Chairman of the Audit & Risk Committee reviewed the 26 applications received for shortlisting. Five applicants were shortlisted, and all attended for an interview with the selection panel.
All candidates interviewed had strong financial, business, compliance and risk management experience, along with a sound knowledge of local government issues and extensive experience with Audit & Risk Committees.  
[bookmark: _Hlk82511056][bookmark: _Hlk82511169][bookmark: _Hlk82511073]At the completion of the interview process the panel determined that Ms Jen Johanson and Mr Bruce Potgieter best met the requirements of the role and could be recommended to Council for appointment to the Audit & Risk Committee. Reference checks of the two shortlisted candidates confirmed the value they add to Audit and Risk Committees and the skills and experience they would bring to the role.
Ms Johanson has extensive experience in finance, governance, risk management and information technology in both the private and public sectors. Ms Johanson currently holds the role of Senior Advisor, Risk and Advisory Services, Cyber Security & Privacy with RSM Australia. She also holds current appointments with local government Audit & Risk Committees at Bayside City Council, Hume City Council and South Gippsland Shire Council. Ms Johanson is also a member of the Audit & Risk Committee at the University of Melbourne and the 
Independent Broad-based Anti-Corruption Commission.
Mr Potgieter has extensive experience in audit and risk management in the public sector, particularly within local government through his many years of experience as an audit partner with various organisations. Mr Potgieter has extensive experience with local government Audit & Risk Committees and is currently the Audit & Risk Committee Chair at Mitchell Shire Council and Mansfield Shire Council, as well as a member of the Audit & Risk Committees at Kingston City Council and Maroondah City Council. Mr Potgieter was previously Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee at Monee Valley City Council and Stonnington City Council.
It is recommended that both Ms Johanson and Mr Potgieter be appointed to the Committee from 4 October 2021 for a three-year term ending 30 September 2024, in accordance with the terms of reference contained in the revised Audit & Risk Committee Charter.


Proposed Fee Increase for Independent Committee Representatives
The current Audit & Risk Committee Charter states that the remuneration paid to independent Committee members for attendance fees is to be reviewed by Council periodically (previously annually). Council’s current fee of $2,000 per meeting ($8,000 annual fee) for the Chair and $1,400 per meeting ($5,600 annual fee) for the other independent members was last reviewed by Council at the 1 October 2019 Council meeting.  
[bookmark: _Hlk46907950]The above fees were set based on the outcomes of a benchmarking review undertaken in 2019 of fees paid to independent members of the Audit & Risk Committees of other councils. Prior to undertaking this benchmarking exercise, previous fee increases were linked to the annual increase in the Mayoral and Councillor allowance as outlined in the Victorian Government Gazette. A review of fees was not undertaken in 2020 due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.
Given that fees have not been reviewed for two years and with the ever-changing external environment, a further benchmarking exercise has been undertaken of fees paid to independent members of other councils’ Audit & Risk Committees to assess how the current fees paid by the City of Whittlesea compared. Fees paid by fourteen other Councils were considered. This information was gathered via requests and through information publicly available. The results indicated that the councils generally pay annual fees to independent members of between $5,200 and $8,190, with the Chair generally receiving between $5,400 and $11,875. The average annual fees for the Chair were $9,157, with independent members generally receiving an average of $7,056 per annum. Councils reviewed held an average of four meetings per year. The councils reviewed, and fees paid, are included as a confidential attachment.
Results of this review indicate that the City of Whittlesea’s independent members’ fees are below the average paid by the other councils reviewed. 
Recommend Increase 
[bookmark: _Hlk47515156]The role and responsibilities of Audit & Risk Committee members are ever growing. In addition to the increased responsibilities placed on Audit & Risk Committees by the introduction of the Local Government Act 2020, there is greater focus and scrutiny over matters of compliance, audit, risk management and prudent financial management. Council currently has in place a Committee that includes highly qualified and respected independent members. As a guide, independent Committee members perform the following tasks:
	Regular Tasks
	Time Estimate
(Hours)
	Chair
	Member

	Review of draft meeting agendas, including comparison to the Committee’s annual work plan
	1.0
	x
	

	Review of papers prior to meeting (including preparation of meeting plan and discussion with Council officers as required)
	3.5
	x
	

	Review of papers prior to meeting
	3.0
	
	x

	Attendance at meeting (travel time excluded)
	2.5
	x
	x

	Review of draft minutes prior to circulation
	0.5
	x
	

	Review of minutes
	0.5
	
	x



In addition to the tasks outlined in the above table, Committee members may also be required to perform tasks between meetings, such as the review of internal audit scopes and other documents and reports. The Committee Chairperson also performs additional tasks, including regular contact with Officers, discussions with auditors, and involvement on the panel to review internal audit tenders. 
From 4 October 2021, it is proposed to increase remuneration to independent members to $8,000 per annum and the Chair to $10,000 per annum. This increase will better align the remuneration structure with payments made to independent members of other councils’ Audit & Risk Committees and recognise the time, commitment, responsibilities and level of knowledge and skill required by Council’s Audit & Risk Committee members. It is also noted that a change to a per annum fee is in line with changes recommended to be made to the Audit & Risk Committee Charter referenced earlier in this report.
CONSULTATION
Fees paid to independent members of Audit & Risk Committees of fourteen other councils were reviewed.
Recruitment of independent members was undertaken by a panel in accordance with Council’s Recruitment Policy.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Fees paid to independent members of the Audit & Risk Committee are included in Council’s budget.
POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION
The Audit & Risk Committee is established in accordance with Division 8, Sections 53 and 54 of the Local Government Act 2020. 
The Committee’s responsibilities and requirements are outlined in the Audit & Risk Committee Charter.

LINK TO STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic Risk Governance - Ineffective governance of Council’s operations and activities resulting in either a legislative or policy breach
The Audit & Risk Committee assists Council in monitoring its governance requirements and provides advice to Council to assist with fulfilling its oversight responsibilities.

LINKS TO WHITTLESEA 2040 AND THE COUNCIL PLAN
Goal	High-performing organisation
Key Direction	More informed Council decisions based on strong advice and community consultation and engagement

The establishment of the Audit & Risk Committee and the reports it receives are reflective of Council’s commitment to the implementation of good governance principles. The Committee provides advice to Council to assist with fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for the financial and non-financial reporting process; internal controls; the audit process; risk management; and Council’s process for monitoring compliance with legislation, regulations and the Code of Conduct.
DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules 2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.
The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
The amendments proposed to the Audit & Risk Committee Charter will ensure the Committee’s membership and workload reflects best practice. The revised Charter will facilitate the appointment of an independent member, in addition to filling the vacancy that exists. 
In accordance with Council’s Audit & Risk Committee Charter, two independent positions on the Audit & Risk Committee have been advertised, with interviews conducted of shortlisted candidates. The selected applicants Ms Jen Johanson and Mr Bruce Potgieter have extensive experience and appropriate skills to offer Council’s Audit & Risk Committee and are worthy of appointment.
Additionally, the proposed fee increase is reflective of the independent Committee members’ responsibilities and duties and is also enabled by the amendment of the Charter. 

	RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council:
1.	Adopt the updated City of Whittlesea Audit & Risk Committee Charter, with key changes including:
a)	Increasing the membership of the Committee from five members to six, which includes four independent members.
b)	Adjusting the quorum requirements from two to three independent members.
c)	Introducing a clause that requires a formal review of an independent member’s performance and independence be undertaken before they are eligible for extension or re-appointment. 
d)	Amending independent member term limits to allow independent members to serve a maximum of six years on the Committee.
e)	Adjusting remuneration fees for independent members from a per meeting to an annual amount. 
f)	Increasing the expected number of meetings per year from four to five.
2.	Appoint Ms Jen Johanson as independent member to the City of Whittlesea’s Audit & Risk Committee commencing 4 October 2021 for a three-year term ending 30 September 2024, in accordance with the terms of reference contained in the Audit & Risk Committee Charter. 
3.	Appoint Mr Bruce Potgieter as independent member to the City of Whittlesea’s Audit & Risk Committee commencing 4 October 2021 for a three-year term ending 30 September 2024, in accordance with the terms of reference contained in the Audit & Risk Committee Charter. 
4.	Effective from 4 October 2021, set the fee for the Audit & Risk Committee Chair to $10,000 per annum, paid quarterly.
5.	Effective from 4 October 2021, set the fee for the Audit & Risk Committee independent members to $8,000 per annum, paid quarterly.


	[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_37021]COUNCIL RESOLUTION
[bookmark: MoverSeconder_37021]MOVED:	Administrator Eddy
SECONDED:	Chairperson Wilson 

[bookmark: Carried_37021]THAT Council resolve to adopt the Recommendation.
CARRIED
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[bookmark: _Toc84341885]	ITEM 6.5.4	2021/22 GROWING SUBURBS FUND - PROJECT APPLICATIONS  
[bookmark: PDF2_Attachments_37023][bookmark: PDFA_37023_1]Attachments:	1	GSF Priority Projects    
Responsible Officer:	Director Corporate Services 
Author:	Team Leader Business Support    

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
That Council resolve to approve the submission of the following seven projects listed in priority order to the 2021/22 round of the Growing Suburbs Fund:
1.	Aboriginal Gathering Place, Mernda for $4,000,000
2.	Patterson Drive Community Activity Centre, Donnybrook for $2,000,000
3.	Streetscape Improvements on Gorge Road, South Morang for $425,000
4.	Community Energy Efficiency Program for $250,000.
5.	Huskisson Reserve Pedestrian and Cycling Access, Lalor for $325,000
6.	Worchester Park Bushfire Regeneration, Bundoora for $275,000
7.	Plenty Ranges Arts and Convention Centre Infrastructure Improvements for $225,000
BRIEF OVERVIEW
Applications for the 2021/22 round of the Growing Suburbs Fund (GSF) opened on 1 September 2021.  It is proposed that Council submit applications for seven projects, totalling $7,500,000 which will need to be matched by Council funding.  This report seeks Council’s approval to proceed with the GSF applications and a priority order for the funding submissions.  The GSF guidelines require that a council resolution be made to support the project applications in priority order.
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
A working group containing a cross section of Council officers identified seven priority projects from the 4 Year New Works Program that best aligned with the GSF Guidelines.  Other projects were identified and presented to the officers from the Department of Jobs Precincts and Regions (DJPR), however they were not supported and didn’t meet the necessary criteria in the guidelines.
All project proposals have been discussed with the funding agency as required in the grant guidelines.  Applications for projects that have not been discussed with DJPR will not be considered by them.
The guidelines place a strong emphasis on projects that are ready to commence work within 18 months of the funding announcement (expected in December 2021) and for construction to be completed within 24 months of commencement of works.
IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
The proposed seven projects listed above amount to a total application amount of $7,500,000 and Council must contribute a matching funding amount to that of the Growing Suburbs Fund application.  All projects must commence no later than within 18 months of the funding announcement (expected in December 2021) and for construction to be completed within 24 months of commencement of works. 
The nominated projects are currently listed with forecast budgets in the 4 Year New Works Program. If the grant applications are successful, this will result in offsets to Council’s future New Works Program budget of up to $7,500,000 to bring forward future infrastructure requirements.  
WHAT MEASURES WILL BE PUT IN PLACE TO MANAGE IMPACTS
All project proposals have been discussed with the funding agency as required in the grant guidelines.  Applications for projects that have not been discussed with DJPR will not be considered by them.
It is a condition of the funding criteria that a council resolution providing support for each application in priority order of projects is mandatory to support the applications. The next available Council meeting is 4 October 2021 which is prior to the applications closing date of 13 October 2021.  Confirmation of the recommended project applications in priority order from the Council minutes will be submitted with the respective applications after the Council meeting.

REPORT
INTRODUCTION
Applications for the 2021/22 round of the Growing Suburbs Fund (GSF) opened on 1 September 2021.  It is proposed that Council submit an application for seven projects, totalling $7,500,000.  This report seeks ELT’s approval to proceed with the GSF application based on the proposed priority and seek Council approval at its meeting on 4 October 2021.  The listed order of priority is a requirement for DJPR to understand Council’s relative priority of the projects.
BACKGROUND
The GSF program is aimed towards funding critical local infrastructure needs to promptly respond to the pressures experienced by interface communities by bringing forward local infrastructure projects.  It will support interface councils to better meet the needs of their diverse communities and improve amenity, liveability and resilience of these communities.
The GSF is open to six peri-urban and ten interface councils including the City of Whittlesea and will fund a mix of projects that have a direct benefit to communities across the following broad infrastructure categories:
	Community health and well-being
	Early education, learning and training
	Sport, recreation and leisure facilities that have dedicated community space and
	support multi use purposes
	Environmental and climate change resilience
	Place-making, civic amenity and community connecting.
The maximum allocation to any of the 16 eligible councils is 15% of the $50 million fund (i.e. $7.5 million).  The City of Whittlesea has been very successful in past GSF Rounds and on average has successfully received $5-$6 million per round from this funding program. 
It is important to note that the funding agency, the Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions (DJPR), will award the entire $50 million fund from December 2021.  Eligible councils must be prepared to enter into funding agreements with DJPR by February 2022 and all successful projects must commence construction within 18 months of the funding announcement.  The emphasis is on projects ready to proceed and construction must be completed within 24 months of commencement of works.
The key difference from previous rounds of this funding program is the requirement to discuss all eligible project applications with DJPR before submission of the applications.  The proposed list of projects has been discussed with DJPR and seven have been supported for application to the GSF.
The GSF will generally not fund:
	Projects that have already commenced construction
	Land acquisition
	Projects that are sporting pavilions without a dedicated community use space
	Infrastructure that is fully scoped and funded through a developer contributions plan
	Maintenance works
	Recurrent operating costs
	Drainage, waste, roads and associated footpaths, as well as public transport 	infrastructure
	Infrastructure that does not have direct community benefit or address an identified 	community need
	Service connections
	Bundling of small projects into a larger project for submission.
Applications for infrastructure funding will be assessed against the following five criteria:
Criterion 1 - Why is the project required? – (25% weighting) 
	Extent to which the project addresses an identified need in the community.
Criterion 2 - Who will benefit and how? – (25% weighting) 
	Extent to which the project will deliver benefits to the locality.
Criterion 3 - What will be delivered? – (20% weighting) 
	Relationship between what the project will deliver, the need for the project, and the
	expected benefits.
Criterion 4 - How will the project be delivered? – (20% weighting) 
	Realistic timeframes for delivery and demonstration that projects are financially viable
	and value for money.
Criterion 5 - Extent of council and community support for the project – (10% weighting) 
	Recognised council priority and supported by the community.
Each project must be supported by the evidence of a council resolution providing support for each application and priority order of projects, site/floor plans for the project, confirmation of other funding sources and a project plan.  These are currently being prepared for the proposed projects.  Applications close on 13 October 2021.
A cross-organisation working group was established to identify opportunities in the 4 Year New Works Program and shortlist projects that best met Grant guidelines.
Council officers then met with the funding agency, the DJPR to discuss the shortlisted projects as identified by the working group (refer to Attachment 1 for summary of project opportunities).  DJPR provided feedback on the likely strength of the shortlisted projects against the Grant fund objectives and criteria, which further helped prioritise the list of proposed projects.


PROPOSAL
The projects listed below were identified as best meeting the Grant funding objectives and criteria and are listed in priority order (as Per Attachment 1).
	[bookmark: _Hlk43831772]Project
	PID
	Proposed Funding

	
	
	Growing Suburbs Fund
$
	Proposed Council Matching Funds/Year
$

	Aboriginal Gathering Place
	Implementation of the Whittlesea Aboriginal Gathering Place to create a welcoming, inclusive and culturally safe space where the local Aboriginal community can access a comprehensive range of community supported program and activities that are responsive to their needs.
	CW-10471
	4,000,000
	4,000,000    (2022/23+)

	Patterson Drive Community Activity Centre, Donnybrook
	Design and construction of 4 x consult suites housing MCH and other services, separate program/waiting rooms, community hall, 3 room kindergarten, multi-purpose program spaces for services such as youth and social support
	CW-10343
	2,000,000
	2,000,000    (2022/23+)

	Streetscape Improvements on Gorge Road, South Morang
	The Gorge Road shopping precinct in South Morang has been identified in Councils Town Centre Improvement Plan as a high priority for renewal due to strong transport connectivity and opportunity to drive economic benefit to the local area.   
	CW-10458
	425,000
	425,000      (2022/23)

	Community Energy Efficiency Program
	Ongoing program to ensure community facilities continue to minimise energy consumption, reduce our corporate greenhouse gas emissions and our impact on the environment
	CW-10137
	250,000
	250,000      (2022/23)

	[bookmark: _Hlk43810895]Huskisson Reserve Pedestrian and Cycling Access
	Pedestrian access into Huskisson Reserve from Edgars Road is restricted due to the Edgars Creek being a physical barrier – this has an impact on the usability, accessibility and connectivity of Huskisson Reserve for the Lalor community.  The Council endorsed Huskisson Reserve Master Plan recommends the construction of a pedestrian bridge over Edgars Creek and upgrade to the park on Edgars Road
	CW-TBA
	325,000
	325,000      (2022/23+)

	Worchester Park Bushfire Regeneration
	Upgrade to the infrastructure at Worchester Park in Bundoora following a bushfire that destroyed the infrastructure, conservation and habitat.
	CW-TBA
	275,000
	275,000      (2022/23)

	Plenty Ranges Arts and Convention Centre Infrastructure Improvements
	Upgrade to infrastructure to support disability access, HVAC and acoustic improvements to assist users and participants of PRACC
	
CW-10775
	
225,000
	
225,000      (2022/23+)

	Total
	$7,500,000
	$7,500,000


In summary, the proposed seven project applications listed above best meet the GSF grant criteria for a total application of $7,500,000.  An equivalent funding contribution is required from Council, which is included in the draft 2022/23 New Works Program and beyond.  
CONSULTATION
A series of meetings were undertaken with DJPR to discuss potential project applications and feedback was received regarding their suitability.
Community consultation will be undertaken on a project by project basis.
CRITICAL DATES
All project proposals must be discussed with DJPR prior to applications being made.  This has occurred.
	Applications close on 13 October 2021.
	Funding announcements are expected from December 2021.
	Funding Agreements are to be executed in February 2021.
	Successful projects must commence within 18 months of the funding announcement.
	Projects must be completed within 24 months of commencement.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The proposed seven projects listed above amount to a total application amount of $7,500,000 and Council must contribute a matching funding amount to that of the Growing Suburbs Fund application.  All projects must commence within 18 months of the funding announcement (expected in December 2021) and construction must be completed within 24 months of commencement of works. 
The nominated projects are currently listed with forecast budgets in the 4 Year New Works Program. If the grant applications are successful, this will result in offsets to Council’s future New Works Program budget of $7,500,000.  
POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION
Council has benefited from previous rounds of the Growing Suburbs Fund to deliver significant community infrastructure identified in the Council Plan.  The projects identified in this current round have been selected based on their strength of meeting the grant guidelines and their strategic importance to Council as identified in the 4 Year New Works Program.
LINK TO STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic Risk Financial Sustainability - Inability to meet current and future expenditure
LINKS TO WHITTLESEA 2040 AND THE COUNCIL PLAN
Goal	High-performing organisation
Key Direction	More cost-effective investment through better return on investment, efficiency and an engaged workforce
DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules 2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.
The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of staff, reports that one disclosable interest has been raised in relation to this report. The relevant officer has provided written notice to the Chief Executive Officer disclosing the nature of the conflict of interest and how it will be managed and resolved in the public interest.
CONCLUSION
Applications to 2021/22 round of the Growing Suburbs Fund will close on 13 October 2021.  After extensive consideration of the projects currently listed in Council’s 4 Year New Works Program.  Seven projects were found to best meet the criteria and are recommended for Council approval in priority order for submission to the Grant program.

	RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council resolve to approve the submission of the following seven projects listed in priority order to the 2021/22 round of the Growing Suburbs Fund:
1.	Aboriginal Gathering Place, Mernda for $4,000,000
2.	Patterson Drive Community Activity Centre, Donnybrook for $2,000,000
3.	Streetscape Improvements on Gorge Road, South Morang for $425,000
4.	Community Energy Efficiency Program for $250,000
5.	Huskisson Reserve Pedestrian and Cycling Access, Lalor for $325,000
6.	Worchester Park Bushfire Regeneration, Bundoora for $275,000
7.	Plenty Ranges Arts and Convention Centre Infrastructure Improvements for $225,000.

	[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_37023]COUNCIL RESOLUTION
[bookmark: MoverSeconder_37023]MOVED:	Chairperson Wilson
SECONDED:	Administrator Duncan 

[bookmark: Carried_37023]THAT Council resolve to adopt the Recommendation.
CARRIED
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[bookmark: _Toc84341886]	ITEM 6.5.5	CONTRACT 2019-71 EXTENSION - TEMPORARY AGENCY STAFF MANAGEMENT  
[bookmark: PDF2_Attachments_37024]Attachments:	1	Details of Variation - Confidential
[bookmark: PDFA_37024_1_CLOSED]This attachment has been designated as confidential by the Director Corporate Services, under delegation from the Chief Executive Officer, in accordance with Rule 53 of the Governance Rules 2021 and sections 66(5) and 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2020 on the grounds that it contains private commercial information, being information provided by a business, commercial or financial undertaking that—  (i) relates to trade secrets; or (ii) if released, would unreasonably expose the business, commercial or financial undertaking to disadvantage. In particular the attachment contains information regarding commercial or financial undertaking that relates to trade secrets or, if released, would unreasonably expose the business, commercial or financial undertaking to disadvantage.  
The attachment contains variation amounts submitted by the Contractor and provided to Council in confidence. The release of this information could reasonably be expected to prejudice the commercial position of the persons who supplied the information or to confer a commercial advantage on a third party.    
Responsible Officer:	Director Corporate Services 
Author:	Unit Manager Human Resources    

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY
That Council resolve, in relation to Contract No. 2019-71, for Temporary Agency Staff Management to:
1.	Approve a variation of $2,381,595 (excluding GST) to contract number 2019-71 for Temporary Agency Staff Management, making a new contract sum of $5,131,595 (excluding GST) and to extend the contract to 31 October 2022. 
2.	Note the funding arrangements detailed in the confidential attachment. 
3.	Delegate authority to the CEO to approve a further extension of contract number 2019-71 for Temporary Agency Staff Management for the period 1 November 2022 to 31 October 2023, following a review of expenditure by the CEO.
BRIEF OVERVIEW
The contract manager advises that:
	This was a collaborative contract with the Northern Region Councils which include Hume City Council, Moreland City Council, City of Whittlesea, Nillumbik Shire Council and Darebin City Council.
[bookmark: _Hlk81821472]	This contract was awarded to Comensura Pty Ltd.
	The contract has been performed satisfactorily and extension options are available to 31 October 2023.
	Variation and extension of this contract is required for the hire of temporary agency staff throughout key areas of the organisation to assist in the delivery of key services to the community.
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The contractor’s prices were benchmarked against the current market rates for these services. Additionally, economies of scale were achieved through the initial collaborative process, and therefore the prices are considered competitive.
IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
This contract enables Council to continue the timely delivery of a range of key services to the community.
WHAT MEASURES WILL BE PUT IN PLACE TO MANAGE IMPACTS
Council will continue its regular consultation and engagement with the relevant stakeholders throughout the extension period of the contract. Any change in the delivery of services will be communicated to affected parties in a timely manner to manage any impact to services.


REPORT
BACKGROUND
This contract was awarded to Comensura Pty Ltd. A summary of the financial performance of the contract is provided in the confidential attachment.
The contract commenced on 1 November 2019 and the current approved end date is 31 October 2021.  Options exist to extend the contract up to 31 October 2023. 
Agency staff are used predominantly to cover unplanned staff absence or to meet short term needs, often for critical service delivery areas. Agency staff may be engaged: 
 	For ad hoc requirements (eg. catering, functions, events) 
 	To address unexpected absences (eg. sick leave) for critical service areas such as Ageing Well Services, City Safety and Litter Collection 
 	For short term requirements (eg. backfilling a key position whilst recruitment action is undertaken) 
 	To assist with short term project work.
Council has recently been reviewing its resourcing requirements and as such a number of vacancies have been filled by short term contract staff to ensure the continuation of service delivery to the community while this review is undertaken. The increase in agency staffing costs have been fully offset by salary savings. The use of agency staff will be reduced in the new calendar year and this has been factored into the contract variation cost estimates. Future expenditure will be subject to enhanced internal scrutiny by the Executive. 
Exercising of the optional extension period will enable Council to continue to source temporary labour hire services via a single online sourcing portal which reduces repetitive administrative processes, tracks the approval process and ensures achieving competitive industry rates.
It should be noted that the use of agency staff is not the preferred option for the engagement of staff, with the focus on Council employing staff directly, however short term assignments are occasionally required.
VARIATION AND EXTENSION 
The contract has been performed satisfactorily and a variation of $2,381,595 is now being requested. This variation is made up of $1,653,300 for a 12 month contract extension and $728,295 for increased agency staff costs for the current term of the contract to 31 October 2021. Further details of the requested variation are provided in the confidential attachment.
The contractor’s prices have been checked and are considered competitive and it is therefore proposed to extend the contract term to 31 October 2022. 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Sufficient funding for this contract is available within the recurrent budgets for each Council department, with underspend of the approved salary budget being used to offset the costs of short term labour hire.
LINK TO STRATEGIC RISKS
Strategic Risk Service Delivery - Inability to plan for and provide critical community services and infrastructure impacting on community wellbeing
The provision of temporary staff is vital to ensuring Council can continue to deliver key services to the community.
LINKS TO WHITTLESEA 2040 AND THE COUNCIL PLAN
Goal	High-performing organisation
Key Direction	More cost-effective investment through better return on investment, efficiency and an engaged workforce
The provision of temporary staff is vital to ensuring Council can continue as a high performing organisation by delivering key services to the community during periods of unplanned absence, short term project work and/or particular ad hoc requirements. 
DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules 2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.
The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
Variation and extension of the contract is sought in accordance with the contract’s terms and conditions and Council’s applicable policy and procedures.

	RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council resolve, in relation to Contract No. 2019-71, for Temporary Agency Staff Management to:
1.	Approve a variation of $2,381,595 (excluding GST) to contract number 2019-71 for Temporary Agency Staff Management, making a new contract sum of $5,131,595 (excluding GST) and to extend the contract to 31 October 2022. 
2.	Note the funding arrangements detailed in the confidential attachment. 
3.	Delegate authority to the CEO to approve a further extension of contract number 2019-71 for Temporary Agency Staff Management for the period 1 November 2022 to 31 October 2023, following a review of expenditure by the CEO.





	[bookmark: PDF2_Recommendations_37024_1]COUNCIL RESOLUTION
[bookmark: MoverSeconder_37024_1]MOVED:	Administrator Eddy
SECONDED:	Chairperson Wilson 

THAT Council resolve, in relation to Contract No. 2019-71, for Temporary Agency Staff Management to:
1.	Approve a variation of $2,381,595 (excluding GST) to contract number 2019-71 for Temporary Agency Staff Management, making a new contract sum of $5,131,595 (excluding GST) and to extend the contract to 31 October 2022. 
2.	Note the funding arrangements detailed in the confidential attachment. 
[bookmark: Carried_37024_1]3.	Any further extension of contract no 2019-71 for temporary agency staff management beyond 31 October 2022 to be the subject of a further review and report to Council.
CARRIED
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[bookmark: _Toc84341888]Nil Reports  
[bookmark: PDF1_QuestionsToOfficers][bookmark: _Toc84341889]8.	Questions to Officers
NIL  
[bookmark: PDF1_UrgentBusiness][bookmark: _Toc84341890]9.	Urgent Business
NIL  
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[bookmark: PDF1_ReportsFromDelegates][bookmark: _Toc84341891]10.	Reports from Council representatives and ceo update
[bookmark: PDF2_Administration_1][bookmark: _Toc84341892]10.1	Administrator Peita Duncan Report
Administrator Duncan’s report was provided verbally at the 4 October 2021 Council meeting, the report is as follows:
“I attended with yourself Chair, and Administrator Eddy, many, many citizenship ceremonies held online. Again, congratulations to all of those people. It was fantastic to be able to hold those ceremonies online with everybody and otherwise they would be waiting for quite some time I think to be doing it in person. I hope they enjoyed their time. 
I had the Whittlesea Reconciliation Group Meeting as well, which was very good and we are progressing well with moving one of their major festivals to be an online festival this year, that will be later in the year because of the restrictions of the crowd numbers and the pandemic at the moment. There is uncertainty as to whether that will land. 
I also attended a Vax Chat and Q&A session that was held by one of the senior doctors at Northern Health about vaccination and it was a great opportunity for the community to be online and actually to hear from this vaccine specialist about the myth busting I think and it broke a few myths for myself but also for the community to be able to ask whatever questions they had. There was some excellent questions that were answered. Hopefully that has helped allay any fears with anybody in the community about vaccination. 
And then I have just done a Plenty Valley FM radio interview probably two weeks ago just promoting some of the activities that we had on the kids during school holidays and other matters. That is it from me. Thank you Chair.”

[bookmark: PDF2_Administration_2][bookmark: _Toc84341893]10.2	Administrator Chris Eddy Report
Administrator Eddy’s report was provided verbally at the 4 October 2021 Council meeting, the report is as follows:
“Obviously the entire period since the last meeting we have all been under some form of lockdown and restrictions but the business of council has gone on in virtual environment so we have had multiple briefings on issues that are very important including today having received the Greater Metropolitan Cemeteries Trust Senior team, which was enlightening. 
On your behalf Madam Chair, it was my pleasure to step in as the presiding officer for five citizens are ceremonies last week and welcome 121, formerly welcome, 121 new citizens to the City of Whittlesea. They are such joyous, happy occasions. I wish every community meeting could be as happy and joyous as they are. We are making the best of less than ideal circumstances by having those in an online environment. 
Other than that, I think it was since the last meeting in the online session with a number of very interested community members in relation to the Community Plan and the Financial Plan, the CEO fielding questions on a broad range of topics that evening and that was very well done if I may say, Mr CEO. There has been a bit happening despite the fact I have not moved very far from the chair I'm sitting on in my study.”

[bookmark: PDF2_Chair][bookmark: _Toc84341894]10.3	Chair of Council Lydia Wilson Report
Chairperson Wilson’s report was provided verbally at the 4 October 2021 Council meeting, the report is as follows:
“If I could also make a few brief comments, with my colleagues, obviously, there was a session already discussed on the proposed Community Plan and Financial Plan and Mr Eddy reflected on the comments and questions that came in and alongside Ms Duncan, the online session which was a vaccine chat with the Q&A. I had actually reflected on the night that I thought I was really quite well-informed, but it went to show in a way how much more learning I got out of that session. 
I attended the Annual General Meeting of the Lalor Living and Learning Centre last week. I had a full day of Audit Committee interviews and we have already talked about the appointment of our new independent members of the Audit Committee. 
I had a meeting with the Executive Director of Local Government Victoria, Julie Reid, two weeks ago and then, importantly, alongside Mr Lloyd, we had a whole series of individual quarterly meetings with Local Members of Parliament and that included Mr Rob Mitchell, Ms Bronwyn Halfpenny, Mr Andrew Giles, Mr Colin Brooks, Mr Craig Ondarchie, Ms Samantha Ratnam and Minister Lily D’Ambrosio which is really important in relation to local issues and also the pandemic as well.”

[bookmark: PDF2_CEO][bookmark: _Toc84341895]10.4	CEO Update - 4 October 2021  
The CEO Update was provided verbally by the Chief Executive Officer at the 4 October 2021 Council meeting, the report is as follows:
The past few months have seen us dealing with a new COVID outbreak which has had significant impacts on our local community including a number of local community members sadly dying from the effects of the virus.
Since early September the COVID situation in the north has continued to increase to a critical point where we are seeing up to half of all Victoria’s cases in the City of Whittlesea and Hume Council areas. The Hume outbreak is shifting across into Whittlesea and we are now seeing over 100 COVID positive cases a day.
In response to the increasing number of local community cases of COVID and the modelling predictions of what’s to come for our community, Council has formally activated our Emergency Management Team.
I have also joined a high-level daily COVID working group with the North Eastern Public Health Unit and Department of Health to ensure a consistent flow of information and data, and to advocate for the City of Whittlesea and our community’s needs during the pandemic. We also continue to work closely with our colleagues in other Councils, particularly Hume, Darebin and Moreland.
Our advocacy has directly led to a number of additional vaccine pop-up sites being established, which I will speak more about shortly.
This Emergency Management Team is coordinating our COVID response including providing material support to those isolating. During September Council received referrals from 136 households. 
Council is also supporting other community agencies, including Whittlesea Community Connections, who are providing support to families who are struggling with hardship due to the current COVID situation or who are COVID positive and need material aid.
While vaccination numbers started slowly, they have grown significantly in the past few weeks with significant growth in first doses. I was informed today that we have reached as of yesterday 78.4% first dose of those 16 and over (a 6.7% increase in the past week), and 42.3% second dose (a  4.4% increase in the past week). While the increase is encouraging, the numbers are still lagging behind the Victorian averages, and the State first dose number of 82.3%. We have however moved from having the 5th lowest vaccination rate, to the ninth lowest in the course of the past week which is fantastic progress – and thank you to everyone that has been vaccinated in the past few weeks.
Council has been working with the Victorian Government and other providers to ensure enough vaccine supply and opportunities are provided in our local community.
We have been able to secure two Victorian Government school pop ups, one at Hazel Glen College during September and another at Epping Secondary College just last weekend where some 300-400 people a day have received their first dose vaccine.
This coming weekend there will be a pop-up vaccine clinic at our French St Hall in Lalor from Thursday 7 October to Sunday 10 October from 9.30am until 5pm and we hope to see more of our Lalor community turning out for vaccination. Lalor, Epping, Wollert and Thomastown have lower vaccination rates compared to the rest of the Municipality, and some of the lowest rates in the State, whilst at the same time having a significant number of active cases. Of the 1,224 actives cases in our Municipality, approximately 56% are in those suburbs.
Plenty Ranges Arts and Convention Centre continues to operate as a successful vaccine hub run by Northern Health with some 1,500 doses delivered each day.
And more stock of Moderna, Pfizer and AstraZeneca are being diverted into pharmacies, to GPs and state hubs in the City of Whittlesea to respond to need.
As a Council we have been working to prioritise the sharing of COVID and vaccination information but more importantly a drive towards vaccination which we know is the way forward in this pandemic that will see our community and our businesses reopen.
In September we hosted an online vaccination information session with Northern Health’s Dr Aboltins, Head of Infectious Disease which was well attended and has had close to 500 views on YouTube.
We are also working with our multi-cultural community to provide information sessions in languages other than English with an Arabic session planned for later this week.
A business information session has also been organised for 7 October to help connect local businesses with supports available as well as address any questions about their COVIDSafe obligations.
Council is working on various projects to support vaccination, including creating mobile booking booths which will be located at various shopping strips and key locations to assist our community to book their first and second vaccinations. These are due to swing into action later this week and with the support of Whittlesea Community Connections, we will have bi-cultural health navigators supporting the community in their own languages, as required.
Council will continue to prioritise vaccination opportunities and amplify state government messaging around the importance of double-dose vaccination as we move forward in the roadmap to reopening.
We will continue to use our resourcing to support our community and local businesses with material support, advice and information as required and we look forward to reopening in the next few months.
Please, if you have not yet received a vaccine, and are able to do so, please book in as soon as possible and play your part in keeping yourself, your family and your community safe.
Finally, I would like to thank all of our staff that have been working so hard for our community, whether that be from home, or on our frontline. Thank you to each and every one of you for everything you are doing.”
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SECONDED:	Administrator Eddy 

THAT Council resolve that the meeting be closed to the public for the purpose of considering details relating to the following confidential matters in accordance with Section 66(2)(a) of the Local Government Act 2020 on the grounds that the report contains as follows:
11.2.1	COMPULSORY LAND ACQUISITION
This report is presented to Council as a confidential document on the grounds that it contains:

●	Council business information, being information that would prejudice the Council's position in commercial negotiations if prematurely released.
In particular the report contains information that prematurely discloses Council's intentions and diminishes the strength of Council's position in these negotiations. 
[bookmark: Carried_N_2_1]CARRIED
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DELETE THE CLOSURE TEXT NOT REQUIRED
ACCORDINGLY, THE MEETING WAS CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC AT 8.27PM.
CONFIRMED THIS 8th DAY OF NOVEMBER 2021.



___________________________
LYDIA WILSON
CHAIR OF COUNCIL
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Liveable

Goal 2: Liveable neighbourhoods

Our City is well-planned and beautiful, and our neighbourhoods and town centres are convenient
and vibrant places to live, work and play.

neighbourhoods

===
Ty

Strategic indicators

The following statement reviews the performance of Council against the Council Plan including results achieved in relation
to the strategic indicators included in the Council Plan

Commuter travel time  Per cent of workers who spent at least 90 minutes getting to and from work  15.5%

each day
Ease of walkingand  Household rating for ease of local walking and cycling 5.67/10
cyeling
Access to services and  Level of household satisfaction with access to local services and facilities  7.43/10
facilities
Housing affordability  Per cent of housing affordable to very low and low-income households Purchase: 8.8%

Rent: 70.20%

Major initiatives
The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the 2020-21 Budget for
the year.

Major initiatives

Key direction 2.1 Smart, connected transport network

Findon Road extension — Findon Road extension is Significant changes to the initial scope of the
Improving traffic flow in South completed @ project have resulted in a revised completion
Morang along Findon Road, date of between September and December
Williamsons Road and Danaher 2021

Drive to Plenty Road The project now includes the installation of

traffic signals at the proposed intersection
of Findon Road and Williamsons Road

to accommodate safer bus movements.
Additional protection measures around
Melbourne Water’s assets have also
contributed to the delay.
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Advocate for better public Advocacy Action Plan for Public  Our Advacacy Action Plan for Public Transport

transport - Influencing other Transport is completed @ has been completed with the following

levels of government to deliver highlights:

favourable community outcomes « Council staff continued to foster

regarding the Wollert rail corridor, relationships with the Department of

the route 86 tram extension and Transport and Minister Jacinta Allan and

bus services in the growth corridor share information with them to help
progress Wollert rail and bus service
improvements.

« The Department of Transport has
agreed to progress plans for bus service
improvements and advocate with the
government for funding.

« State Government announced that the
new bus route from Mernda Station to
Craigieburn Station has been brought
forward from mid-2022 to late 2021.

Advocate for better state roads  Completion of the Advocacy Action  Our Advocacy Action Plan for Arterial Roads
~ Influencing other levels of Plan for Arterial Roads and the E6  has been completed with the following
government to deliver favourable @ highlights:

community outcomes regarding « Council staff continued to foster

arterial roads and the Epping- relationships with the Department of
Wollert-Donnybrook transport Transport and Minister Jacinta Allan and
corridor share information with them to help

progress key upgrades such as Epping
Road/Bridge Inn Road intersection and
others in the Epping to Donnybrook
corridor.

« The Department of Transport has agreed
to jointly advocate with Council for Epping
Road/Bridge Inn Road improvements
within the government.

* State Government announced in the May
Budget that funding Craigieburn Road has
been allocated to develop & business case
for its upgrade.

Epping Donnybrook transport  Completion of the Epping to The Epping to Donnybrook Corridor Study
study - Investigating the economic Donnybrook Corridor Transport  has been completed and it shows substantial
and social impacts of key transport Priorities @ social and economic benefits of the Wollert
infrastructure such as the £6 and rail project to the community and need for
Wollert rail investment by State Government by 2030.

It also highlights the need for investment in
arterial road upgrades by State Government.
The findings and recommendations within the
report will support Council’s advocacy to State
Government for the Wollert rail project and
road upgrades in the corridor, leading into the
2022 state election.
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Streets for people - Engaging
with residents and businesses
to upgrade the streetscape and
public spaces in the designated
priority area
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Annual measure Progress

Consult and engage with
community to develop a draft
Streets for People, Local Area
Traffic Management Streetscape
Improvement Program (LATMSIP)
Plan for the designated priority

area @

A Local Traffic Management and Streets for
People Plan has been prepared to address traffic
safety concerns in areas within the suburbs of
Mill Park and Epping. The plan also includes
improvements for pedestrians by constructing
footpaths leading to key points of interest,
improved street lighting and wayfinding signage.

Cycling and walking - Continuing
to improve the local shared path
network and advocate for further
external funding

Complete the annual assigned
Bicycle plan actions @

In 2020-21, the following Shared User Path
projects have been constructed to improve
our cycling network and make cycling safer:
« Bush Boulevard (Plenty Road to
McDonalds Road)
« Park Street (High Street to Darebin Creek Trail)
« Henderson's Creek Trail Stage 2
(Plowman Court to McDonalds Road).

In June 2021, a people counter was installed
in Norris Bank Parklands, along the Darebin
Creek Trail, to monitor the number of walkers
and cyclists using the trail.

Council was successful in receiving $2.18 million

in funding from the State Government for the

following projects in 2021-22:

« Yan Yean Pipe Track (Darebin Creek to
Childs Road)

« Henderson’s Creek Trail (McDonalds Road
to Findon Road)

« Edgars Creek Trail (Main Street to
German Lane).

Key direction 2.2 Well-designed neighbourhoods and vibrant town centres

Mernda Town Centre -
Developing the business case and
feasibility study for the Mernda
Town Centre precinct including
services hub and partnership
opportunities

Completion of Mernda Town
Centre Business Case and
Feasibility Study @

Business case documentation and feasibility
complete for the Learning and Wellbeing Hub
option. Investment attraction, phasing and
integration considerations with Mernda Sports
and Aquatic facility feasibility are ongoing and
beyond the scope of this project.

Partnering with the Aboriginal
community to improve
identification and protection of
tangible and intangible Aboriginal
cultural heritage (phase 1)

Scope finalised with project
partners @

The draft scope for stage 1 is complete however
meetings to sign off the scope have been
delayed due to in-person meeting restrictions
and rescheduled for July 2021. The scope will
be finalised in August 2021. This delay will not
have significant timing impacts as the study will
commence as planned by 30 September 2021.

Key direction 2.3 Housing for diverse needs

Housing for diverse needs —
Advocating for affordable,
accessible and appropriate
housing in partnership with Hume
City and Mitchell Shire councils

A Regional Affordable Housing
Action Plan is developed in
collaboration with Hume City
Council znd Mitchell Shire Council

The Regional Affordable Housing Action
Plan has been developed. The Plan provides
the steps for Council staff in the three local
government areas of Whittlesea, Hume and
Mitchell to develop a more coordinated
response to affordable housing needs.

@ completed €9 not completed

@ progressing/ongoing
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Services

The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the 2020-21 Budget and the persons or
sections of the community who are provided the service.

Description Net cost
Actual
Budget
Variance
$000
Roads, public Provision and maintenance of accessible, functional, safe and well-connected transport 11,806
transport and infrastructure. This is achieved by using best practice in planning, design and delivery. 13,046
footpaths 1,150
Traffic Traffic management includes a range of services delivered to ensure a safe and efficient 4,366
management road network for motorists, pedestrians and cyclists. Programs include staffing school 2,078
crossings at flagged and un-flagged crossings and running community education (6,444)
programs about safe traffic behaviour around schools.
Parks and open  Management and maintenance of Council’s parks and open space assets except 16,730
space conservation and bushland areas, such as parks, playgrounds, street trees, sports fields 17,565
and lawns. The service also includes the planning for future parks and open space 835
projects
Planning and The service encompasses the administration and enforcement of building and planning 2,768
building legislation, and how land is being used and developed from a strategic and statutory 3,567
perspective. This includes policy and master plan preparation and implementation, and 799

approval of infrastructure and public spaces associated with urban development.

Service performance indicators

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and measures including
explanation of material variations.

Roads

Satisfaction of use 1989 2008 2770 2731 Council’s result remains consistent with the
Sealed local road requests previous year and of high standards when
(Number of sesled loce! rosd com‘pared to the Interface Councils’ average
requests / Kilometres of result.

sealed local roads) x100

Condition 97.84% 97.82% 92.32% 91.41% Council continues its road maintenance

Sealed local roads maintained activities in an effort to increase the number

to condition standard of rozds beyond intervention.

[Number of kilometres of Council completed a condition audit of its
sealed local roads below the road network in the 2018-20 financial year
that identified additional roads beyond
intervention and Council has a proactive
program to address this.

renewal intervention level
set by Council / Kilometres of
sealed local roads] x100
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Service cost $98.41 $106.47 $91.68  $89.92 This result is around 2 per cent lower than

Cost of sealed local road last year’s result, indicating costs for local

reconstruction street reconstruction remain consistent.

[Direct cost of sealed local

road reconstruction / Square

metres of sealed local roads

reconstructed)]

Cost of sealed local road $47.96  $29.48 $30.47 $51.42 Theincrease in unit rate this year was due

resealing to CPlincrease as well as more night works

[Direct cost of sealed local on collector rozds and additional cost to

road resealing / Square seal these roads due to the requirement of a

metres of sealed local roads deeper asphalt layer compared to residential

resealed] streets. Additional asphalt plant opening
fees, delivery fees, labour costs, traffic
management costs, machine costs, etc, were
also incurred due to night works. This also
ceptures costs to replace speed humps and
line marking.

satisfaction 62 64 61 60 The community has experienced extensive

Satisfaction with sealed local road works throughout the municipality in

roads the 2020-21 year.

[Community satisfaction These have included major works by

rating out of 100 with how State Government that heavily impact our

Council has performed on community, such as the Plenty Road upgrade

the condition of sealed local and O'Herns Road Interchange to the Hume

roads] Highway. Council have also undertaken an
increased amount of road renewals this
year. Council's annual expenditure on local
road renewal increased from $10.2 million
in 2020-21 and will increase to $14.9 million
in 2021-22 and will continue to increase in
future years.

Statutory Planning

Timeliness 69.16% 77.07% 81.08% 76.33% Work continues on process and systems

Time taken to decide planning
applications

[The median number of days
between receipt of a planning
application and 2 decision on
the application]

improvements to ensure our planning
application process is efficient and effective.
We have seen a significant reduction over
the past few years in the median days to
decision and a minor increase for the current
financial year which has been affected by
the pandemic as well as a reduction in the
number of fast track applications.

* Information yet to be verified by PPARS
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Service standard

Planning applications decided
within required time frames

[(Number of regular planning
application decisions made
within 60 days) + (Number of
VicSmart planning application
decisions made within 10
days) / Number of planning
application decisions made]
X100

Report of operations

69.16% 77.07% 81.08% 76.33%

A minor reduction in the percentage of
decisions made within statutory timeframes
was experienced for the 2020-21 year
when compared with the last financial

year, however the results remain strong in
comparison to previous years. This minor
reduction can be attributed to impacts
associated with the pandemic as well as

a reduction in the number of fast track
applications received by Council.

* Information yet to be verified by PPARS

Service cost

Cost of statutory planning
service

[Direct cost of statutory
planning service / Number
of planning applications
received]

$2,101.86 $2,106.39 $2,818.05 $3,008.58

Construction activity reduced considerably
throughout the pandemic where less
applications were received when compared
with pre-pandemic levels. This has resulted
in costs marginally higher than previous
years given rising costs, which has also been
pushed up with costs associated with a
number of larger VCAT appeals within the
growth areas. It is anticipated that further
efficiency gains, such as the release of  new
online planning portal, wil result in 2 longer-
term decrease to the service cost.

* Information yet to be verified by PPARS

Decision making

Council planning decisions
upheld at VCAT

[Number of VCAT decisions
that did not set aside Council's
decision in relation to a
planning pplication / Number
of VCAT decisions in relation
to planning applications] x100

55.00% 43.75% 52.38%  45.83%

This result is relatively consistent with
previous years given the low number of
matters going before VCAT. There were a
large number of extension of time request
refusals (five, or 20 per cent of all VCAT
matters) that were set aside by VCAT where
COVID-12 was cited as 2 reason for allowing
the extension. The overall result would have
been 55 per cent if these were removed.
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Strong Goal 3: Strong local economy

local ecanomy.

Our City is the smart choice for innovation, business growth and industry investment.

Strategic indicators

The following statement reviews the performance of Council against the Council Plan including results achieved in relation
to the strategic indicators included in the Council Plan.

Local jobs Ratio of local jobs to residents in the workforce 062to1
Access to education Level of household satisfaction with access to suitable local education 6.57/10
Gross regional product  Value of City of Whittlesea’s local economy $9.09 billion

Major initiatives

The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the 2020-21 Budget for
the year.

Key direction 3.1 Increased local employment

Refresh Epping Central - Completion of draft Epping Central A draft Structure Plan has been completed.
Developing a Structure Planto  Structure Plan (updated) @ This draft will now be used as a basis for
enable Epping Central Activity discussions on key elements of the Structure
Centre to realise its vision and full Plan with internal and external stakeholders.
potential for the community

Empowering small business - Implementation, with the Council has implemented the Business
Piloting easier permit approvals ~ opportunity to review, of a Concierge Service to support small businesses
for Whittlesea's diverse small streamlined application process for ~through the permit application process
businesses small business by 30 June 2021 @ This service aims to enhance the customer

experience and enable a streamlined
application process for new and existing
businesses. Following a review, it is evident
that the service is positive, with Council
departments working collaboratively and
seeing a reduction in the amount of time
taken to issue a permit.
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Key direction 3.2: Education opportunities for all

3-year-old kinder reform — A Council three-year-old The Kindergarten Infrastructure and Services
Designing the State-funded kindergarten reform plan in place  Plan was noted by Council in May 2021. Council
3-year-old kindergarten service Q is currently reviewing options for how it will
together with the early childhood support the Victorian Government's roll-out
sector to support young families in of 3-year-old kindergarten between now and
Whittlesea 2029, Updates will be provided to Council.

Key direction 3.3: Successful, innovative local businesses

Town Centres Improvement Draft Urban Design Framework The Thomastown and Lalor Urban Design
Program - Continue upgrading prepared for Thomastown/Lalor Framework: Challenges and Opportunities report
Thomastown and Lalor through @ has been completed and is currently available for
appealing streetscapes, consistent community feedback. The draft Thomastown and
urban design and transformation Lalor Urban Design Framework is prepared
at Rochdale Square Shopping and will be further informed by consultation
Centre on the Challenges and Opportunities report.
Delivery of Rochdale Square Additional works to benefit the community
Shopping Centre streetscapes were identified early in the project and
upgrade @ Council was successful in obtaining funding

from the State Government for this work.
These additional works and the contractor working.
in small sections to minimise impact to traders
has extended the timeline for project delivery.
The project will be completed in August 2021.

@ completed € not completed @ progressing/ongoing

Services

The following statements provide information in relation to the services funded in the 2020-21 Budget and the persons or
sections of the community who are provided the service.

Description Net cost
Actual
Budget
Variance
$000
Investment Encourage new and support reinvestment within the City of Whittlesea through 2,137
Attraction networking, relationship management with stakeholders and promotion of the 2,633
opportunities and initiatives available. 496
Libraries The City of Whittlesea offers library services through Yarra Plenty Regional Library (YPRL) in 5172
partnership with Banyule and Nillumbik councils. The library service supports Council in building 5,160
a skiled community that has a sense of wellbeing, inclusion and belonging through free access (12)

to relevent collections, public programs and welcoming, accessible spaces for learning.
Local business  Support to businesses including guidance, assistance through other Council 1,149
support departments, promotion of funding and employment opportunities, networking with 833
complementary businesses, promotion of business initiatives to increase customer (316)

base, coordination of special rate schemes, support to trader associations and case
management of issues and planning applications.

60  City of Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21




image62.png
Service performance indicators

Report of operations  Our performance

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and measures including

explanation of material variations.

Libraries

Utilisation 675 676 502 355 Yarra Plenty Regional Library (YPRL) has a

Physical library collection Collection Framework in place to ensure our

usage collection remains relevant to the community.

INumber of physical library It includes languages other than English

collection item loans / Number Loan figures continue to be impacted by

of library physical collection lockdowns and community members are

items] still nervous about coming back into shared
public spaces. A Return Yourself to the Library
campaign will be undertaken in 2021-22.
Note: These loan figures only pertain to the
physical collection and not our eCollection
which has seen a significant uptake of loans
over the pandemic.

Resource standard 87.44% 86.05% 82.78% 80.44% Collection purchases were reactivated in

Recently purchased library 2020-21 with YPRL actively managing the

collection collection to ensure it is current and relevant.

[Number of library collection

items purchased in the last

five years / Number of library

collection items] x100

Participation 12.81% 1351% 12.41% 10.85% The active borrower figure has continued

Active library borrowers in to be impacted by significant closures due

municipality to lockdowns and the closure of Mill Park

(Number of active library Library due to building works in the past three

borrowers in the last three financial years.

years / The sum of the Note: This figure does not include borrowers

population for the last three who use our eCollections

years] x100

Service cost $18.70 $1806 $17.91 19.34 Theincrease in the additional overall cost of

Cost of library service per
population

[Direct cost of the library
service / Population]

the library service is due to budgeted increase
in open hours for branch libraries, in particular
weekends

Note: Corrected figure for 2019 for this
indicator is $18.73
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Sustainable Goal 4: Sustainable environment

environment.

Our City's superb landscapes and natural environment are an enduring source of pride.

Strategic indicators

The following statement reviews the performance of Council against the Council Plan including results achieved in relation
to the strategic indicators included in the Council Plan

Use of open space Per cent of households that visit local open spaces at least monthly 30.8%
Tree canopy Per cent of tree shade across the City of Whittlesea 30.5%
Energy use Output from solar panels installed on local dwellings 41,079%kw
Water use Amount of drinking water used each year per household 164kl
Waste minimisation  Amount of waste produced each year per household s1lkg
Gross regional product  Value of City of Whittlesea's local economy $9.09 billion

Major initiatives
The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the 2020-21 Budget for
the year.

Key direction 4.1 Valued natural landscapes and biodiversity

Biodiversity asset mapping — Biodiversity mapping and ecologist Ground truthing surveys commenced in June
Updating our data on local flora  report completed @ 2021 and will be completed in Spring 2021.
and fauna to enable strong An interim ecologist report has been completed
biodiversity decisions in a and was presented to Council in June 2021.
changing ecological environment Biodiversity asset mapping will:

(vear 1) « provide up-to-date biodiversity data that

Council can use to prioritise investment in
biodiversity projects

o identify existing knowledge gaps and areas
for future research

« identify biodiversity assets that require
more protection or where Council can
offer incentives to landowners to improve
or enhance biodiversity on private land.
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Key direction 4.2 Climate ready

Report of operations

Annual measure Progress

Green Wedge Management Plan

review - Developing the roadmap
for managing our green wedge
over the next decade

Completion of draft Green Wedge
Management Plan 2021-2031 for
community consultation @

An additional round of consultation has been
added to the project timeline to give the
community an opportunity to provide further
comments on the Green Wedge Management
Plan Discussion Paper prior to development
of a draft plan for community engagement.
Revised project timelines are being developed
for 2021-22

City Climate Change action

plan - Planning with residents,
businesses and industry to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions

City Climate Change Action Plan
Options Paper is developed @

Community consultation has commenced and
a Science Based Carbon Reduction Target has
been developed. The City Climate Change
Action Plan Options Paper will be delivered by
December 2021,

Greening Whittlesea Strategy —
Planting more trees for a cooler
city ready to deal with higher

Preparation of a City Landscape
Plen and prioritised 10-year street
tree planting program @

Development of the City Landscape Plan and
Ten Year Prioritised Tree Planting Program has
commenced and will be finalise by August 2021.

average temperatures

Street Tree Renewal Program

— 950 new street trees planted
in residential streets as part of
the whole Street Tree Renewal

program @

This year's planting program has seen 1,116
new street trees planted and maintained and
312 trees removed throughout established
suburbs. The newly planted trees are now
being looked after by our tree establishment
program for the next 12 months.

Infill Street Tree Planting Program
— 2,700 street trees planted
across the City, filling gaps and
responding to resident requests
for new trees, as part of the Infill
Street Tree Planting Program @

Council has planted 2700 street trees through
our annual Street Tree Renewal Program,
filling gaps and replacing aged trees, to deliver
on the Greening Whittlesea Strategy vision of
a diverse, colourful and healthy city forest that
connects people to people, people to nature
and people to place. These new street trees
contribute to a cooler city and our Greening
Whittlesea Goal of an enhanced city forest
which grows and thrives year on year.

Key direction 4.3 Leaders in clean, sustainable living

Waste and resource recovery
strategy - Setting Whittlesea's
waste and resource recovery goals
for the next decade to reduce
waste and increase

The Waste and Resource Recovery
Strategy 2021-2030 is adopted by

Council @

The Rethinking Waste Plan 2021-2030 was
adopted by Council in June 2021. The plan
outlines 34 actions to be implemented over the
next 10 years, based around three key themes:
Avoid: To avoid waste generation in the first
place.

Recover: To recover and recycle as much waste
as possible, value waste as a resource and
encourage repair, reuse and recycle principles.
Protect: To protect the health and safety of
our community and the environment from the
impacts of waste by adopting best practice
waste management principles.

@ completed € not completed
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The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the 2020-21 Budget and the persons or
sections of the community who are provided the service.

Description Net cost
Actual
Budget
Variance
$000
Conservation The natural environment is an important asset to the City of Whittlesea and this service 2,195
and land ensures that it is looked after in our public open spaces and on private property. 2,503
management It includes proactive actions to enhance our landscape and connect people with their 398
environment as well as regulatory activities to protect the environmental assets from
damage and degradation.
Climate change  Council is committed to reducing its impact on climate change and helping the 3,852
action community to prepare for the unavoidable impacts of our changing climate. This will 4,419
be actioned by reducing our reliance on non-renewable energy sources as well as 567
quantifying and acting to mitigate the increased risk of extreme weather events on
our community.
Waste and Council is committed to providing sustainable solutions for the collection, disposal 16,091
recycling and recovery of waste materials generated within the community and through its own 15,571
operations. This is achievable through the successful delivery of waste management (520)
strategic policy development, education programs and operational maintenance
activities. The service keeps our city clean, healthy and safe.
Water Our open waterways, built water supply and drainage systems are important parts of 927
management our urban environment. They require careful management to ensure that they meet 1,124
our needs and are environmentally sustainable. This service ensures that these assets 197

are planned, delivered, and maintained effectively, and that water is used efficiently
throughout our City.
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Service performance indicators

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and measures including

explanation of material variations

Waste Collection

satisfaction 303.28 9344 13645 83.07 Proactive communication with the contractor

Kerbside bin collection requests has resulted in a higher level of service

[Number of kerbside garbage

and recycling bin collection

requests / Number of kerbside

bin collection households]

x1,000

Service standard 1210 377 207 1169 Refinements in reporting by the contractor

Kerbside collection bins missed has provided more accurate results than

[Number of kerbside garbage the previous year. Changes in the reporting
has given us the opportunity to monitor the

nd recycling collection bins RO

missed / Number of scheduled contract at a higher level.

kerbside garbage and recycling

collection bin ifts] x10,000

Service cost $50.09 $43.49 $46.25 $74.25 Further refining of reporting has seen an

Cost of kerbside garbage bin increase in the cost of kerbside collection.

collection service COVID-19 lockdowns has also resulted in a

[Direct cost of the kerbside significant increase in waste collected.

garbage bin collection service

/ Number of kerbside garbage

collection bins]

Cost of kerbside recyclables $25.72 $2427 $47.39 $49.86 Changesin the recycling industry and

collection service approved recycling materials has increased

[Direct cost of the kerbside the percentage of materials classed as

recyclables bin collection contamination.

service / Number of kerbside COVID-19 lockdowns also saw an increase in

recyclables collection bins] contamination in household bins.

Waste diversion 39.51% 36.94% 42.94% 46.05% Expansion of the opt-in food organics/garden

Kerbside collection waste
diverted from landill
[Weight of recyclables and
green organics collected

from kerbside bins / Weight
of garbage, recyclables and
green organics collected from
kerbside bins] x100

organics service has seen approximately
19,000 tonnes diverted from landfill.
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Goal 5: High-performing organisation

Council delivers a range of internal functions and activities enabling the delivery of efficient and
effective services and initiatives. Council's goal is to be a high-performing organisation which
delivers best value to the community.

The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the 2020-21 Budget for

the year.

Implement the relevant sections of  All relevant sections are implemented in line

Implement the Local Government
Act 2020

Transition to the new Finance
System, Dynamics

the Local Government Act 2020in
line with transition timelines. @

Transition from Magiq to the new
finance system Dynamics @

with transition timelines including Community
Engagement Policy, Transparency Policy,
Governance Rules and Annual Budget. Some
items were not able to be implemented as a
result of the City of Whittlesea being under
Administration, such as election-related

components.

City of Whittlesea successfully implemented
the new finance system Dynamics which
provides increased accessibility and ability
to raise, approve, receipt and pay purchase
orders and invoices with a click of a button.

Implement the new Project
Management System

Implement the new Project
Management System CAMMS @

Capital report modules and a strategic module
have been implemented, and training is
offered on monthly basis to upskill users.
Integration with Dynamics is currently being
finalised,

Develop the Policy and Strategy
Framework

@ completed € not completed

Support a whole-of-organisation
approach to policy and strategy
development and implementation,
that aligns our work to Whittlesea
2040and enables efficiency and
clarity across the organisation @

@ progressing/ongoing

The City of Whittlesea is developing six
strategies to help deliver Council’s Whittlesea
2040 vision. This will be done via a new plan
and action setting under the new Integrated
Planning Framework.
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Services
The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the 2020-21 Budget and the persons or

sections of the community who are provided the service

Description Net cost
Actual

Budget
Variance

$000

Oursystems and  This service ensures users can rely on an effective working environment in terms 10,621

knowledge of technology, applications, information management, research and analytics. 11,900
The service provides the key platforms enabling service and infrastructure delivery 1,279
across the organisation.

Our finance and  This service ensures Council is managed in a financially sustainable way where (277,153)
assets resources are allocated effectively to support the delivery of the desired community 268,762
outcomes. This includes rate setting and revenue generation, prudent financial planning 8,391

2nd management, procurement of goods and services and effective asset management.

Our people This service exists to ensure the City of Whittlesea has adequate labour capacity 3,459
(numbers) and capability (skills and knowledge) to provide services to the community 4,123
now and into the future in an efficient, effective and sustainable manner. 664
Our governance  This service ensures Council has adequate structures and processes in place to manage 14,335
the business of local government in an effective and compliant manner. This includes 7327
key strategic planning, communications, advocacy, decision-making and monitoring/ (7,008)

reporting activities to achieve Council's purpose of achieving the best outcomes for the
local community.

Service performance indicators

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and measures including
explanation of material variations.

Service/ indicator/ m

Governance

Transparency 21.75%  851%  13.04%  435%  Witha focus on increased transparency,
Council decisions made at Council has had a significant reduction
meetings closed to the public in decisions made at meetings closed to

[Number of Council the public.

resolutions made at ordinary
or special meetings of
Council, or at meetings of a
special committee consisting
only of Councillors, closed
to the public / Number of
Council resolutions made at
ordinary or special meetings
of Council or at meetings of &
special committee consisting
only of Councillors] x100
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Consultation and 56.00 56.00 55.00 5400  Council endorsed the Community
engagement Engagement Policy on 1 March 2021
Satisfaction with community and has now implemented more
consultation and engagement targeted engagement. COVID-19

restrictions have also impacted the
capacity to consult and engage in
person with community.

[Community satisfaction
rating out of 100 with how
Council has performed on
community consultation and

engagement]

Attendance 8538%  77.73%  80.97%  100.00% Administrators have been appointed
Councillor attendance at to carry out the role, responsibilities
council meetings and functions of Councillors. All

Administrators have attended all
Council meetings resulting in a

100 per cent attendance rate, which is
220 per cent improvement from the
previous year.

[The sum of the number of
Councillors who attended
each ordinary and special
council meeting / (Number
of ordinary and special
council meetings) x (Number
of Councillors elected at

the last Council general
election)] x100

Service cost $54,481.18 $56,637.73 $84,833.65 $252,544.67 The 2019-20 financial year was the
Cost of elected last financial year with 11 Councillors
representation and had a total cost of elected

representation of $721,086. This
financial year the total cost was
$757,634 which is an increase of 5.06
per cent. The reason for the apparent
boost in the result this year is that the
cost is divided by three Administrators
rather than 11 Councillors.

[Direct cost of the
governance service /
Number of Councillors
elected at the last Council
general election]

Satisfaction 56.00 55.00 54.00 57.00  The satisfaction rate has improved by
Satisfaction with Council three points.
decisions

[Community satisfaction
rating out of 100 with how
Council has performed in
making decisions in the
interest of the community]
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Council Governance

The City of Whittlesea is constituted
under the Local Government Act 2020
to provide leadership for the good
governance of the municipality and
the local community. Council's core
role includes:

« taking into account the diverse
needs of the local community in
decision-making

« providing leadership by
establishing strategic objectives
and monitoring achievements

* ensuring that resources are
managed in a responsible and
accountable manner

« advocating the interests of
the local community to other
communities and governments

« fostering community cohesion and
encouraging active participation in
civic life.

Council is committed to making
decisions that support the
achievement of the community’s
vision Whittlesea 2040: a place for
all. Our community is encouraged to
provide feedback and have input into
Council's decision-making process by:

« taking part in community
consultation,

+ making submissions to Council,
« responding to surveys, or

* submitting petitions, joint letters or
public guestions to Council.

Council's formal decision-meking
processes are conducted through Council
meetings. There are certain items that
must be adopted or endorsed by Council
at a formal Council meeting such as
the adoption of the Council Budget,
endorsement of the Council Plan and
the adoption of Council policies.

Aitis noted that this additional Council meeting was adjourned from
its original date of 25 June 2021 as that date was only a few days after

the Panel of Administrators was appointed.

0On 19 June 2020 the Acting Minister
for Local Government appointed a
panel of three Administrators for the
City of Whittlesea. The Administrators
now fulfil the role of the Council until
October 2024.

Council meetings

Scheduled Council meetings are
generally held once a month on a
Monday at the Council offices at

25 Ferres Boulevard in South Morang.
Additional Council meetings are
occasionally held to consider urgent
matters.

At the scheduled Council meeting
on 7 December 2020, the Council
amended the start time for Council
meetings from 3.00pm to 6.30pm

Council meeting dates are published
on Council’s website. The agenda is
available on Council's website three
days prior to the Council meeting
2nd the minutes are available on the
Monday following the meeting.

For the period 1 July 2020 to 30 June
2021, 11 scheduled Council meetings,
two additional Council meetings and
42 Council briefing sessions were
held. Council
briefing sessions
are informal
meetings where
Administrators are
briefed on current
and proposed
programs,
projects and
services.

y
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Administrator briefing sessions are not
open to the public.

Additional Council meetings were held
on:

* 7 July 2020 to adopt the Council Plan
2017-21 and the 2020-21 Budget®

* 7 September 2020 to consider the
Chief Executive Officer Contract of
Employment

0On 19 June 2020 the Acting Minister
for Local Government appointed the
Panel of Administrators for the City

of Whittlesea and appointed Lydia
Wilson as Chair of the panel. The
Panel of Administrators comprised

of Ms Lydia Wilson, the Honorable
Bruce Billson and Ms Peita Duncan.
0n 3 March 2021, the Hon Bruce
gillson resigned from his position

s Administrator with the City

of Whittlesea. Effective from 12

May 2021, the Minister for Local
Government appointed Mr Chris Eddy
25 the third panel member. Ms Lydia
Wilson, Ms Peita Duncan and Mr Chris
Eddy will undertake the duties of the
Council of the City of Whittlesea until
the October 2024 local government
election.
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Summary of Panel of Administrator attendance for period 1 July 2020 to

30 June 2021

ADMINISTRATOR

Lydia Wilson
The Hon Bruce Billson *
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy**

Administrator
Administrator
Administrator

Administrator

Number of
scheduled Council
meetings attended

(total number of
meetings held: 11)

1

Number of
additional Council
meetings attended
(total number of
meetings held: 2)

2
2
o

Number of
Administrator
briefings attended
(total number of
briefings held: 42)

41
27
41
6

*Itis noted that on 3 March 2021, the Hon Bruce Bilson resigned from his position as Administrator with the City of Whittlesea,
** Itis noted that effective from 12 May 2021, the Minister for Local Government appointed Mr Chris Eddy as the third panel member,

Special committees

The City of Whittlesea does not have
any special committees established.

Council is required to pay the
remuneration and reimburse out-of-
pocket expenses for Administrators
in accordance with Council’s
Expenses, reimbursement and

Administrator support policy — Administrators and

. members of delegated committees
remuneration and policy which was adopted by Council
expenses on 4 August 2020,

The appointment of Administrators
by the Minister for Local Government
included mandatory remuneration
ata fixed rate for the Chair of
Administrators and for Administrators.
ADMINISTRATORS REMUN-
ERATION
INCLUDING
SUPERAN-
NUATION
$

*For the period
1/7/2020 to

TRAVEL

The table below contains a
summary of the Administrators
remuneration, allowances and
expenses for 2020-21

CAR
MILEAGE

INFORMA-
TION AND
comMMu-
NICATION

CONFERE-
NCES AND
TRAINING

$ $

MISCELL-
ANEOUS

$

Lydia Wilson $308,023.56 $0.00  $1,00800 $0.00 $1,448.86 $0.00 $125.00 $310,605.42
The Hon Bruce Billson*  $114,650.31 $224.13 $2,397.60 $0.00 $727.18  $0.00 $0.00  $117,999.22
Peita Duncan $161,968.77 $0.00  $0.00 $0.00  $546.13 $0.00 $99.00  $162,613.90
Chris Eddy** $17,375.97 $0.00  $401.76 $0.00 $213.28  $0.00 $0.00  $17,991.01

TOTAL $602,018.61 $224.13 $3,807.36 $0.00 $2,935.45  $0.00 $224.00  $609,209.55

*0n 3 March 2021, the Hon Bruce Billson resigned from his position as Administrator with the City of Whittlesea.

**Effective from 12 May 2021, the Minister for Local Government appointed Mr Chris Eddy as the third panel member.
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Governance And Management Information

AUDIT & RISK
COMMITTEE

Role of the Audit & Risk Committee

The Audit & Risk Committee

(the Committee) is an independent
committee of Council. Its purpose s to
support and advise Council in fulfilling
its responsibilities related to external
financial and performance reporting,
maintenance of strong and effective
governance and control frameworks,
management of key risks and Council’s
compliance with legislation and
regulation. The Committee has a
prime responsibility in overseeing

2nd monitoring Council’s various
audit processes.

The Committee’s role is to report

to Council on the outcomes of its
work program and to provide advice
2nd recommendations on matters
relevant to its Charter. The Committee
may also endorse key reports for
consideration by Council.

Independence

Anindependent Audit & Risk Committee
is a fundemental component of a
strong corporate governance culture.
Council's Committee is independent
of management and is not involved in
any operational decisions. Committee
members do not have any executive
powers, management functions or
delegated financial responsibilities.

Reporting period of this report

This report covers Committee activity
over the past year and up to the
date of this report. This means that
the report covers the Committee’s
work for the meetings held on 12
November 2020, 25 February, 27
May and 19 August 2021 and aligns
with the Committee’s Annual Work
Plan in terms of the cyclical nature
of its work.

Purpose of this report
This report has two purposes as follows:

1. It meets the reporting requirements
to Council as mandated by section
54(5) of the Local Government Act
2020(LGA), whereby the Committee
is required to biannually report to
Council on its activities, findings and
recommendations. The Committee
did also provide 2 mid-year activity
report to Council in May 2021; and

2. It meets Council's governance
requirements whereby Council
requires its various committees to
report on their activities at least
annually.

Committee Charter

The Committee’s Charter is set by
Council and was last reviewed and
approved by Council on 7 July 2020
following changes necessitated by the
new LGA. The revised Charter became
effective on 1 September 2020.

Committee membership

Committee membership is comprised
of five people appointed by Council,
with two members being Councillors/
Administrators and three members
being independent of Council. The
independent members are required
to have appropriate skill sets and
experience as mandated in section
53 of the LGA. The LGA also requires
that there must be a majority of
independent members and that

an independent member must be
chairperson of the Committee.

All members have full voting rights.

Councillors/Administrators not
appointed to the Committee are
welcome to attend meetings but do
not have any voting rights. Council
was subject to official administration
for the entire reporting period.

The Committee has enjoyed stability
of membership in the reporting
period, which has enhanced the ability
of the Committee to provide a value-
2dding experience to Council, and
members have been fully engaged in
2ll meetings held during the reporting
period and have made valuzble
contributions to the work of the
Committee.

Meeting attendance

Details of membership and meeting
attendance for the reporting period
are summarised in the table below:

“_ 2iNcvi2020] RzsIcebi202 1y [[27Mavi202 Y 19/ us 202

Geoff Harry

Theresa Glab

Michael Ulbrick

Lydia Wilson

The Hon Bruce Billson
Chris Eddy

Chair and Independent Member
Independent Member
Independent Member
Chair of Administrators

Administrator Member

Administrator Member

Attended Attended Attended Attended
Attended Attended Attended Attended
Attended Attended Attended Attended
Attended Attended Attended Attended
Attended Attended

Attended
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Administrator Christopher Eddy
attended the Committee on 27 May
2021 as an observer, having been
appointed as an Administrator just
before that meeting, and was formally
appointed to the Committee by
Council shortly afterwards.

Mr Michael Ulbrick's term as
2n independent member of the
Committee ceased following the

19 August 2021 meeting. The
Committee wishes to acknowledge
2nd thank Mr Ulbrick for his valued
contribution to both the Committee
and City of Whittlesea over his many
vears of service.

Senior management team

The Committee has been strongly
supported by Council’s senior
management team who have
attended all meetings during the year.

External service providers

In addition, both the internal audit
team (Crowe) and the agent of

the Victorian Auditor General’s
Office (VAGO) have attended as
required, and in fact have attended
most meetings during the reporting
period,

The Committee enjoys strong and
professional working relationships
with the entire support team, which
is a critical element in ensuring the
Committee delivers positive and
insightful support and advice to
Council

Committee business

The agendas for the four meetings in
the reporting period have been driven
by the Committee’s Annual Work

Plan (AWP) and all meetings have
been fulsome. As with other such
committees in the local government
sector in Victoria, the new LGA has
2dded to the Committee’s workload
2nd in the broader governance sense,
expectations of stakeholders about
the work of audit committees have
never been higher.

Annual Work Plan

The Committee's activities are
closely aligned with its Annual Work
Plan (AWP) which reflect its key
responsibilities as set out in the
Committee Charter. Annually, the
Committee confirms it has discharged
its responsibilities in accordance with
the Charter and develops its AWP

for the following year. The AWP is
reviewed at every meeting to ensure
that it remains reflective of Council's
business activities and ever-changing
contextual environment.

The continued pressure on the
Committee’s business has resulted

in the Committee deciding to
convene an extra meeting in the next
reporting period.

The work of the Committee is
summarised below in each of the
key areas

Financial and performance reporting

The Committee has two areas of focus
here as follows:

1. The quality of the content and
commentary in the periodic
financial and performance reports

Report of operations  Governance

provided to Council in terms of
how Council is tracking against the
approved Budget and Council Plan;
and

2. The quality and content of the
annual financial and performance
reports that are included
in Council's annuzl report.

These reports have extensive

and complex compliance
considerations which the
Committee considers in detail.
This requires the Committee

to engage with the external
auditor when these reports are
submitted to the Committee in
August each year for endorsement
to Council.

The Committee has been satisfied
with these reports, assessing

them as being of high quality, and
noting that the matters that are

raised by the external auditors at

the conclusion of their work are
generally not substantive in nature.
The Committee endorsed both the
annual financial report and the annual
performance statement for the year
ended 30 June 2021 to Council for
approvel.

L-R: Audit and Risk Committee members Theres Glab, Geoff Harry and Michael Ulbrick.
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External audit

The Victorian Auditor General’s
Office (VAGO) has appointed
Richmond Sinnott & Delshunty (RSD)
as its agent to undertake the annual
audit of Council's annual financial
report and annual performance
statement. RSD was first appointed
by VAGO to conduct the audit for
the year ended 30 June 2015.

The Committee considered the
external audit plan for 2020/21 at

the February 2021 meeting. At the
August 2021 meeting the Committee
considered RSD's closing report on the
audits of the annual financial report
and the annual performance statement
for 2020/21, noting that there were
no significant issues raised by RSD.

In conclusion the Committee resolved
that the external audit process had
been thorough and was pleased

with the outcomes of the audit
which indicated that the systems and
controls related to the preparation of
the annual financial report and the
annual performance statement were
efficient and effective.

Risk management

The Committee considered various
risk management matters at all
meetings with an ongoing focus on
the assessment of strategic risks
and related treatment plans. The
Committee was pleased to see that
an Executive Management Risk
Committee (EMRC) was established
during the year to provide added
support to Council’s risk management
activities at an officer level.

Afurther development later in the
reporting period resulted in the
Executive Leadership Team taking
direct responsibility for these matters
2nd obviating the need for the

EMRC. This change was supported by
the Committee.

Business continuity planning was &
key consideration throughout the
reporting period due to the ongoing
impact of the COVID-18 pandemic.
The Committee noted the actions
taken to address both the immediate
and longer-term impacts of the
pandemic and felt that the response at
2ll levels was appropriate and effective
and supports the continued focus on
the ongoing impacts.

Key matters on which the Committee
was briefed included the following:

1. IT systems

2. Cyber security, including the
results of penetration testing
Fraud and corruption

4. Assessment and mitigation of key
operational risks
Risk management maturity

Insurance program renewal and
management of insurance claims

At & whole-of-Council level, the
Committee observed the positive
impact achieved through the
permanent appointment of

2 new Chief Executive Officer

2nd management team. These
2ppointments have enabled Council
to refocus on its stakeholders, its
business as usual challenges and on
delivery of services to the community.

From a risk management perspective,
the Committee believes this has
been a key risk mitigation action.
Appropriate governance practices
have been re-established and these
are also having a positive impact.

Internal audit

A key responsibility of the Committee
is to monitor Council’s internal audit
program. The progrem is outsourced
to an appropriately skilled service
provider whose work is monitored

by the Committee. A rolling three-
year strategic internal audit plan is
developed by the service provider to
ensure that systems and controls in
the areas of higher risk are regularly
reviewed. The Committee reviews the
plan annually and monitors delivery of
the plan at every Committee meeting.

Council's current internal auditor

is Crowe, who was appointed for

a three-year period commencing

1 July 2018. Crowe’s contract was
extended for 2 further one year until
30 June 2022.

The internal audit reports provided at
the conclusion of each review contain
audit findings and recommendations
for control improvements, together
with management responses, and

are presented to the Committee

for review at each meeting. The
Committee monitors implementation
of the recommendations by the
agreed due dates.

The table below shows the reviews
completed by the internal audit service
provider in the reporting period and
the overall rating of each review:

Reviews Overall control assessment

IT — security and access controls and cyber security, including assessment against the

Australian Signals Directorate “Essential 8”

Management of Council’s Community Grants Program

Asset maintenance essential safety measures

Statutory planning

Financial controls for purchasing cards and accounts payable

Completion of actions arising from internal audit reviews in prior years

Needs strengthening

Needs strengthening
Inadequate

Needs strengthening
Needs strengthening

Needs strengthening
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The table below provides a summary of Council's performance in closing out internal audit recommendations during the

reporting period.

Open internal audit actions at start of reporting period

Add new actions reported in the period

Less actions closed in the period

Open internal audit actions at end of reporting period

T
9 42 10

61
10 69 1 90
10 60 10 80
9 51 1 71

As outlined above, there has been a
significant amount of internal audit
activity for the reporting period.

The Committee regularly monitors
management performance in the
closing out of recommendations

for improvement and is particularly
zlert to high-rated actions that are
not closed by the target dates. The
table on page 70 shows that at the
end of the reporting period there are
many actions yet to be closed but the
Committee is satisfied that there is
appropriate management focus on the
actions, bearing in mind that some
recommendations require system
changes or enhancements that can
have long lead times. The Committee
acknowledges that many actions have
been closed in what has been a period
of significant challenge for Council,
both in terms of the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic and also the
installation of a new Chief Executive
Officer and management team.

Additional assurance activities

During the reporting period, the
Committee considered the outcomes
of additional assurance review
activities undertaken as follows:

1. Working for Victoria - Grant
Program Review

Reports were provided to the
Committee on the outcomes from
these reviews. The Committee

was satisfied with management
responses in relation to the findings
2nd recommendations arising from
the reviews.

Internal compliance reviews

Council has established an active
officer resourced internal compliance
review process that undertakes and
reports on outcomes of reviews

over compliance with selected
processes, policies, procedures and
legislation. Reports are provided to
the Committee on the outcomes of
the reviews. In the reporting period
compliance reviews were completed
in the following areas

1. Occupational health and safety
incident reporting — this review
was undertaken to consider
OH&S incidents reported through
the Risk Management Safety
System (RMSS), to determine if
appropriate action is taken, and
improvements are identified
and implemented in response
to reported OH&S incidents.

2. Implementation of findings
from Council service reviews —
this review was undertaken to
consider the processes applied
to implement and assess
recommendations and outcomes
derived from service reviews.

3. Extent of compliance training
across Council - the purpose of
this review was to consider the
completion rate, and processes
established to monitor the
completion of mandatory
compliance-related training by
staff across Council. Consideration
was 2lso given to training required
to be completed during the
induction process.

Actions arising and target dates

for completion arising from these
reviews are agreed with management
and progress of actions closure is
monitored by the Committee.

Internal control environment

The Committee considered several
reports on the review of policies,
systems and controls during the
reporting period. The key matters
subject to review included the following:

1. Impact of the new LGA on the
Committee’s responsibilities

2. Controls over significant supplier
contracts

3. Procurement policy and panel
contracts

4. Corporate card policy

5. Staff reimbursement policy
Plan for review of key policies on
three-year rolling plan
Delegation controls
Hardship policy
Update on the implementation of
the asset management strategy

10.Update on the implementation

of the developer contributions
program

Investigations by state integrity
agencies (VAGO, IBAC,
Ombudsman Victoria)

The Committee monitors reports
released by State-based integrity
agencies and recelves officer
briefings on any reports that
may be relevant to Council.
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The Committee focusses on whether
there are any learnings for Council
arising from these reports and
monitors implementation of such
improvements.

The VAGO report on 2 survey it
undertook on sexual harassment

in the Victorian local government
sector was of particular interest to
the Committee. The significance of
the survey is that there were almost
10,000 respondents over 75 {of

79) councils in Victoria. The survey
indicated that 28 per cent of people
working in the sector experience
sexual harassment, S0 per cent of
which occurs in day-to-day work
Officers indicated that Council has
taken a proactive role in addressing
the key findings from the survey.

The Committee continued to
monitor Council’s progress with

the implementation of actions arising
throughout the reporting period.

The Committee annually assesses
its performance based on a survey
completed by Committee members
2nd officers who interact regularly
with the Committee. This assessment
was last considered by the Committee
in November 2020 and there were

no significant areas of concern
Nevertheless, the Committee uses
these assessments as an opportunity to
consider ways in which it can improve
performance. The outcomes of the
assessment were reported to Council.

After each Committee meeting
minutes are forwarded to the next
ordinary meeting of Council, including
any reports that may help to explain
outcomes or actions of Committee
meetings. In addition, half year and
full year (this report) activity reports
on Committee activities, findings and
recommendations are provided to
Council.

The Committee is able to fulfil

its responsibilities outlined in

the Committee Charter through
discharge of the AWP. The success
of its work requires significant
commitment from many senior
officers in developing meeting
agendas, assembling reports and
other information, preparing minutes
of meetings and disseminating
information to Committee members
between meetings. The Committee
acknowledges these efforts and the
strong support it receives from the
officers involved,

The Committee is satisfied that it has
fully discharged its responsibilities as
set out in the Charter. The Committee
believes that Council has 2 strong
control environment that continues
to mature and has prudent financial
management practices in place

| would like to take this opportunity,
on behalf of all Committee members,
to thank the Administrators for their
commitment and contributions to the
work of the Committee. | also wish to
acknowledge the excellent work of
Council's senior officers in supporting
the work of the Committee and their
engagement in ensuring that the
Committee remains effective.

Geoff Harry

On behalf of the Audit & Risk
Committee

19 August 2021
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GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT CHECKLIST

The following are the results in the prescribed form of Council’s assessment against the prescribed
governance and management checklist.

1

10

Community engagement policy

policy outlining council’s commitment to engaging with the community

on matters of public interest

Community engagement guidelines
guidelines to assist staff to determine when and how to engage with
the community

Financial Plan
plan under section 91 of the Act outlining the financial and non-
financial resources required for at least the next 10 financial years

Asset management plans
plan that sets out the asset maintenance and renewal needs for key
infrastructure asset classes for at least the next 10 years

Revenue and Rating strategy
plan setting out the rating structure of Council to levy rates and
charges

Annual Budget
plan setting out the services to be provided and initiatives to be
undertaken over the next 12 months and the funding and other
resources required

Risk policy

policy outlining council’s commitment and approach to minimising
risks of fraud

Fraud policy
policy outlining council's commitment and approach to minimising the
risk of fraud

Municipal emergency management plan
plan under section 20 of the Emergency Management Act 1986 for
emergency prevention, response and recovery

Procurement policy
policy outlining the principles, processes and procedures that will
apply to all purchases of goods and services by the Council

1/03/2021

1/03/2021

7/07/2020

Council adopted the Strategic Resource
Plan on 7/07/2020 and will adopt a
Financial Plan accordance of section 91
of the Act will be developed within the
legislated timeline (31/10/2021).

18/01/2019

Council does have current Asset
Management Strategy and Asset
Management Plans for key asset
categories

Transport: 23/03/2018

Buildings: 11/06/2018

Parks and Open Space: 18/01/2019
Asset Plan in accordance with section
92 of the Act will be developed within
the legislated timeline (30/06/2022)

1/06/2021

1/06/2021

24/02/2020

20/07/2020

8/09/2020

4/05/2021
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Governance and management items Assessment

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

80

Business continuity plan
plan setting out the actions that will be undertaken to ensure that key
services continue to operate in the event of a disaster

Disaster recovery plan
plan setting out the actions that will be undertaken to recover and
restore business capability in the event of a disaster

Risk management framework
framework outlining council’s approach to managing risks to the
council’s operations

Audit Committee
advisory committee of Council under section 53 and 54 of the Act

Internal audit

independent accounting professionals engaged by the council to
provide analyses and recommendations aimed at improving council's
governance, risk and management controls

Performance reporting framework
a set of indicators measuring financial and non-financial performance,
including the performance indicators referred to in section 131 of

the Act

Council Plan reporting

report reviewing the performance of the council against the Council
Plan, including the results in relation to the strategic indicators, for the
first six months of the financial year

Financial reporting

quarterly statements to council under section 138(1) of the Act
comparing budgeted revenue and expenditure with actual revenue
and expenditure

Risk reporting

six-monthly reports of strategic risks to council’s operations, their
likelihood and consequences of occurring and risk minimisation
strategies)

Performance reporting

six-monthly reports of indicators measuring the results against
financial and non-financial performance, including performance
indicators referred to in section 131 of the 1989 Act

Annual report

annual report under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act to the
community containing a report of operations and audited financial and
performance statements

Councillor Code of Conduct
code setting out the conduct standards of conduct to be followed by
councillors and other matters

City of Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21

12/02/2020

25/06/2020

12/02/2020

1/08/2020

Council adopted the Committee
Charter on 7/07/2020 and then
amended the charter on 6/04/2021.
During this year, Committee meetings
were held on 20/08/2020, 12/11/2020,
25/02/2021, 27/05/2021

1/07/2018

7/07/2020

4/05/2021

4/05/2021

26/05/2021

10/02/2021

7/12/2020

2/02/2021
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Governance and management items Assessment

23 Delegations 4/08/ 9
documents setting out the powers, duties and functions of Council
and the Chief Executive Officer that have been delegated to members

of staff
24 Meeting procedures 1/06/2021 9
Gover Rules governing the conduct of meetings of

delegated committees

I certify that this information presents fairly the status of Council's governance and management arrangements.

LJJ“, Wilso— JAB L L;\U/ c )/g{j

o
Lydia Wilson Peita Duncan Chris Eddy Craig Lloyd
ator Administrator Administrator Chief Executive Officer
ember 2021 Dated: 21 Septe r 2021 Dated: 21 September 202 Dated: 21 September 2021
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Report of operations  Statutory information

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION

Council is required to make certain - standards and guidelines with sections 57 and 58 of the Local
types of documents available tothe 4 Council meeting agendas and Government Act 2020 and Council’s
public. These include, but are not minutes (excluding meetings Public Transparency Policy.

limited to: closed to members of the public). Documents available for inspection

* plans, strategies and reports

adopted Council

= council policies (other than those
relating to internal operational

matters)

LEGISLATIVE
PROVISION

Local Government
Act 2020

Section 41
Section 60
Section 75

Section 76C
Section 90

Section 91(4)

Section 92(4)

Section 93
Section 94
Section 98
Section 108

Section
133,134,135 and
136

Section 251

Section 307(2)

DOCUMENT

Council Expenses Policy

Governance Rules 2021

General Municipal Law (No. 1 of 2014)
Common Seal and Conduct at
Meetings Local Law (No. 1 of 2020)
Administrator Code of Conduct

Council Plan (Community Plan)

Financial Plan

Asset Plan

Revenue and Rating Plan
Budget

Annual Report
Procurement Policy

Lodging of initial and biannual
personal interests returns

Inspection of certified Voters’ Roll

Election campaign donations returns
lodged by candidates at the previous
election

The table below contains the
prescribed documents that are
available to the public and details
the type of access that applies to
each document type in accordance

can be viewed by appointment at
Council’s Civic Centre, located at 25
Ferres Boulevard, South Morang.
Reasonzble accommodations will be
made where travel to the Civic Centre
is not practicable.

HOW TO ACCESS THE DOCUMENT

Available on Council’s website.

Available on Council's website.

Current local laws are published on Council’s website or for
inspection at Council offices. A hard copy is available for
purchase at a cost of $10.

Available on Council's website.

Available on Council’s website and for inspection at Council
offices. Council’s Community Plan 2021-25 will be adopted
by 31 October 2021 and will be available on the website.

Council’s Financial Plan is required to be adopted by 31
October 2021 and will be made available on Council’s website.

Council’s Asset Plan is required to be adopted by 30 June
2022. The existing Asset Plan is available on Council's website.

Available on Council’s website.
Available on Council’s website.
Available on Council’s website.
Available on Council’s website.
Summary of returns are available on Council’s website

The CEO must maintain the confidentiality of personal
interests returns with the exception of information that must
be published in the summary of returns to Council’s website
Available for inspection for a short period from before an election
until one month after the election day. During that period the
Voters’ Roll is available for inspection at Council offices.

There was no election in 2020 due to appointment of
Administrators. This is not currently required.
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IN ACCORDANCE
WITH
the Local

DOCUMENT

Government

(General)

Regulations 2015

Details of overseas or interstate travel
undertaken in an official capacity

by Administrators and members

of Council staff in the previous 12
months.

Regulation 12(a)

Regulation 12(b)  Agendas and minutes of Council
meetings held during the previous

12 months.

Regulation 12(c)  Minutes of meetings of special
committees held during previous 12

months.

Regulation 12(d)  Register of Delegations to special
committees and to members of
Council staff - including date of last

review.

Regulation 12(e) A document containing all leases
involving land which were entered
into by the Council as lessor, including
the lessee and the terms and value of

the lease.

Regulation 12(f)  Register of Authorised Officers
appointed under section 224(1A) of

the Local Government Act 1989.

Regulation 12(g) A list of donations and grants made
by Council in the previous 12 months,
including the names of persons

or bodies which have received a
donation or grant and the amount of

each donation or grant.

HOW TO ACCESS THE DOCUMENT

Available for inspection at Council offices.

A summary of any travel undertaken from 1 September 2020
will be made available on Council’s website.

Agendas for Council meetings are published on Council's
website the Friday before each Council meeting.

Minutes of Council meetings held during the previous 12
months are published on Council's website.

Archived agendas and minutes for meetings held prior to the
previous 12 months can also be inspected at Council offices
or by calling 9217 2294.

Council does nat have any special Committees.

Available on Council’s website.

Available for inspection at Council offices.

Available for inspection at Council offices.

Available for inspection at Council offices.
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BEST VALUE

The City of Whittlesea implements
the six best value principles under the
Local Government Act 1989 (service
performance principles under the
Local Government Act 2020), and

we are committed to report on its
achievements each year through the
Annual Report. Council embeds the
principles through regular planning and
performance monitoring processes and
through a commitment to continuous
improvement and innovation

Report of operations

Remote maternal and child health
appointments, workshops, exercise
classes or library groups are just
some of the examples how our
community could continue to
access valued services.

Council officers worked proactively
with our diverse and multilingual
business community to make it
easier for everyone to navigate
the continuously changing health
requirements.

Accessibility

Quality and cost standards .

« Strategic procurement and contract
management savings of $2.8 million
for 2020-21 and $13.3 million in
longer term savings. .

« Council scored a rating of 71
for customer service in the
local government Community
Satisfaction Survey. The City of
Whittlesea’s customer service
rating compares favourably to other
Victorian Interface Councils (68) .
and Victorian councils overall (70).

« Council introduced an online
portal for planning applications to
improve service access, customer .
experience and response times.

Responsiveness

* Our customer service officers
answered 182,823 phone calls from
our community, which equates to
approximately 728 calls per day.

« Council provided emergency grants
to businesses and community
groups in response to the pandemic
and advocated for better support
to affected groups, such as via
the Don’t forget us campaign to
increase awareness of the impact
of the pandemic on people with &
disability.

« Council modified service offerings
to the more restricted pandemic
environment, while ensuring
that core service outcomes were
achieved as best as possible.

The new state-of-the art All Abilities
Play Space in Mill Park sets 2 new
regional benchmark in design for
people of all ages and abilities.
Established a best practice
standard on accessibility for
people with disabilities at the
newly renovated Mill Park

Leisure, including pool hoists,
ramps, all abilities equipment and
customised support.

Continued to ensure that shared
paths and road crossings constructed
meet Disability Discrimination Act
1992 requirements.

Provided regular information via
Our News newsletter on COVID-19
restrictions, changes in the NDIS,
changes in local services, social
distancing, testing, resources that
residents with disabilities can
access and other topics that relate
to residents with disabilities in our
local area.

Undertook the Whittlesea National
Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS)
Gap Research project to inform
changes required to improve
service access for NDIS participants
at a local level.

Supported isolated residents with
disabilities and carers who are
self-isolating and/or practicing
social distancing by providing loan
digital devices to residents, and
converting Whittlesea Disability
Network monthly mestings to
web-based online.

Statutory information

Continuous improvement

« The food organics/garden organics
(FOGO) service is gradually being
introduced across the municipality,
enabling residents who opt in to
dispose of both food and garden
waste into the green waste bin
to reduce the amount going into
landfill

« Council is continuing to make it
easier for residents to engage with
Council, with Council meetings
now held in different locations
across the municipality once a
quarter, alongside enhanced
live-streaming via the City of
Whittlesea’s YouTube channel.

Community consultation

« Council adopted the Community
Engagement Policy in March 2021
to reshape the way our community
engages with Council.

« Community members provided more
than 5,500 comments to inform the
Community Plan 2021-25 during
an extensive engagement period in
February and March 2021.

26 community members
representative of the City of
Whittlesea’s broader community
participated in the inaugural
participatory budget process,
providing recommendations on
the allocation of the $2 million
pandemic recovery fund as part of
the 2021-2022 Budget process.

*  Our community extensively
participated in key climate
change action and sustainability
engagements which are shaping
the City of Whittlesea’s work going
forward, such as the Rethinking
Waste Strategy, the Greening
Whittlesea Strategy, the Green
Wedge Management Plan and the
Climate Change Action Plan.

«  Our community can now engage
more easily with Council via the
new engagement platform
engage.whittlesea vic.govau
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Reporting

« Progress against Council’'s major
initiatives is reported quarterly to
Council as an easy-to-read traffic
light report.

« Council’s service performance
results are reported via the Know
Your Council website and perform
well against other Interface
Councils

« Council's decision-making has
become more transparent, with
more than 95 per cent of matters
considered in open session reports
to Council meetings

CARERS RECOGNITION
ACT

Council is required to report annually
on its compliance with the Victorian
Carers Recognition Act 2012. In the
2020-21 financial year, Council has
undertaken a2 number of activities
consistent with its responsibilities

Report of operations

under the Carers Recognition Act,
while supporting carers to respond to
the added pressure of the COVID-19
pandemic, including:

« Development of a remote carer
counselling service which enzbled
services to continue during
the long lockdown periods.

This innovative and low-cost
service reduced the waiting time
to access support and enabled
Council to acknowledge and
recognise the extraordinary effort
and work carers do, particularly
during the pandemic.

« Online carer support workshops
were offered by Council and
various other carer agencies
to support the community and
address the increased need for
support during the pandemic.

* Provision of additional in-home
one-on-one respite to carers/,
consumers who had social
support postponed or cancelled
due to lockdown and where
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carers were considered at high
risk of social isolation, financial
hardship and impacted wellbeing.

« Continue to strengthen the
policies and procedures that
cover the Support for Carers
initiatives, Whittlesea Regional
Assessment Services and
Council-funded Positive Ageing
LEAP programs.

« Through its Support for Carers
program supported more than 98
clients during the financial year.

DISABILITY ACTION
PLAN

In accordance with Section 38 of the
Victorian Disability Act 2006, Council
adopted the City of Whittlesea
Disability Action Plan 2017-2021 that
identifies action areas for Council in
the following areas:

« inclusive communities

« good health, housing and wellbeing
for people with disabilities

« respect, equity and safety

« contributory lives.

Our Disability Action Plan aims to
ensure that our community and all
of Council's activities are inclusive.

During 2020-21, the following actions
were achieved

« Council continued to support
residents with disabilities and
carers under the challenges of the
COVID-19 pandemic by:

« providing regular information
via Our News newsletter on
COVID-18 restrictions, changes
in the NDIS, changes in local
services, physical distancing,
testing, vaccination programs,
resources that residents with
disabilities can access and
other relevant information

« providing loan digital devices to
local residents with disabilities
and carers who were isolated in
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Jockdown so they could continue
to stay connected with social
activities, medical needs and/or
the Whittlesea Disability Network
monthly meetings (which
moved to online meetings)

« advocating on the needs of
residents with disabilities and
carers around support that is
being provided, services and
other issues

« establishing the Don't forget us
campaign to raise awareness
on how the pandemic
disproportionally affected the
disability community.

Facilitated a series of Carers
Week training workshops to
celebrate Carers Week — Life in
the autism spectrum session,
Empowering young women with
a disability leadership course
and Preventing and responding
to violence against women with
disability workshop.

Construction and opening of the
state-of-the-art All Abilities Play
Space in Mill Perk which is the first
regional accessible playground

in the City of Whittlesea. The

play space includes & Changing
Places facility and play equipment
specially designed to meet the
developmental needs of people of
all ages and abilities.

Increasing access for residents
with disabilities as part of the

Mill Park Leisure redevelopment.
This includes two Changing Places
Facilities (with one that has full
access using  hoists into main

and warm water pool), pool pod,
ramps into the main pool and
specially designed accessible
fitness equipment in a dry area
which is accessible to all.
Installation of Changing Places
facilities at Whittlesea Swim
Centre. Further facilities at Mernda
Villages CAC and Whittlesea Public
Gardens are in the planning and
design stages.

Report of operations

New accessible public toilet .
amenities at Fortress Park and

Prism Park have been completed

with further new accessible toilet
amenities at Mernda Adventure

Park in the planning and design

stages.

Undertaking the Whittlesea .
National Disability Insurance
Scheme (NDIS) Gap Research
Project to understand the issues
the local community face around
accessing services using their NDIS
package funds. This research will
direct work to support the service
delivery market in the local area.
This is a first for local government
and will help strengthen service
delivery in the local area to meet
the needs of NDIS participants
Making the existing Disability
Awareness Training for Council
staff on direct and indirect
discrimination more accessible to
all staff in the organisation.

Statutory information

Establishing the City of Whittlesea

Staff Disability Advisory Group

to provide advice to the

organisation on how to increase

the employment opportunities for
people with disabilities at the City
of Whittlesea.

Continuing to ensure that

all shared paths and road

crossing constructed meet DDA

requirements including:

« Hendersons Creek Trail stage 2,
included crossings on
McDonalds Road, Plowman
Court and Plowman Court
pedestrian bridge

« Upgrades along McKimmies
Road at Betulz Avenue

« Accessible path link between
Chamonix Parade and the
Mernde Rail Trail

« Bush Boulevard shared path
between Plenty Road and
McDonalds Road.
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DDA compliant-safe pedestrian

crossings at:

« Mernd Villages Drive and
Everton Drive for Mernda
Primary School and St Joseph's
Primary School

« Bulimba Drive and Painted
Hills Road for Laurimar Primary
School

« Spring Street for Thomastown
Primary and on Manor House
Drive to improve pedestrian
safety at a busy collector road

« Thomastown and Lelor
shopping centre streetscape
projects and have been
constructed on Station Street,
David Street, Central Avenue,
Highlands Road and Pleasant
Road

* Pedestrian operated traffic
signals have been constructed
on High Street as part of the
Thomastown streetscape

+ Morang Drive to complement
the Mill Park Leisure
redevelopment.

Worked with local sporting
clubs by providing Coaching and
supporting people with a disability
to play sport workshops

Report of operations

Engaging residents with disabilities
and carers in the Let’s talk community
engagement process for the

Whittlesea Community Plan 2021-24.

Review of Governance Rules for
Council meetings to be more
accessible for residents with
disabilities.

Live-streaming of Council meetings
that includes closed captioning.
Review of existing accessibility audit
report of Council facilities ~ buildings
inspected and an evaluation of
priority facilities undertaken

to develop an action plan of
accessibility improvements

Presented at the Universal Design
Conference on Local government
and the specialist disability housing
sector.

Developing Access Keys for
Meadowglen Athletic Stadium, All
Abilities Play Space and Mill Park
Leisure.

Conducted a review of the Accessible
Event Guide for Council events,
consultations and meetings and
created a process for community
members to obtain a reasonable
adjustment when attending Council
face-to-face and online events,
consultations and meetings.

City of Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21

« Implementation of the universal
design principles when building
accessible hubs throughout our
municipality, such as Wollert East,
guarantees that our community
centres are accessible for all
community.

« Reviewing the Community Grants
process to be more inclusive of all.

FOOD ACT
MINISTERIAL
DIRECTIONS

In accordance with section 7E of the
Food Act 1984, Council is required to
publish a summary of any ministerial
directions received during the
financial year in its annual report.

No ministerial directions were
received by Council during the
2020-21 financiel year.

CONTRACTS

In 2020-21, Council did not enter into
any contracts valued at $150,000 or
more for services, or $200,000 or
more for works, without first engaging
in @ competitive process.

DOMESTIC ANIMAL
MANAGEMENT PLAN

Council’s animal management service
features a range of programs to
ensure that people and their pets
can live together harmoniously and
safely in our community. The service
includes:

« reuniting lost pets with their
owners
« pet adoptions

« operating the Epping Animal
Welfare Facility

« undertaking animal registration
checks

« animal-related investigations,
including nuisance complaints and
dog attacks
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«  putting measures in place to mitigate
the risks posed by dangerous and
restricted breed dogs, including
annual inspections

« attending to wandering livestock

« anafter-hours emergency service
for dog attacks, wandering
livestock and injured animals

« auditing animal-related businesses to
ensure welfare standards are upheld.

Council keeps & register of cats and dogs
that live in the City of Whittlesea and
promotes responsible pet ownership
through a series of communication
campaigns and events each year and
patrolling of off-leash dog parks.

These activities are guided by legislation
and Council's Domestic Animal
Management Plan 2017-2021.

In accordance with the section 68A of the
Domestic Animals Act 1994, the plan sets
out the arrangements Council has in
place to manage domestic animals.

The plan provides for a broad range of
activities to ensure Council meets its
legislative responsibilities and ensuring
the needs of the wider community are
reflected through Council’s domestic
2nimal management policies,
procedures and practices.

Highlights delivered from the plan in

2020-21 include:

+ partnering with RSPCA (Vic) to
provide low cost desexing

« attending pop-up events to
consult with the community about

Report of operations

animal issues in their area and
to identify areas for improvement

« proactively patrolling off-leash dog
parks to encourage responsible use
of the parks

« proactively patrolling parks and
streets to ensure compliance with
off-leash laws and to ensure pets
are registered

« continuation of the cat trapping
program to address instances of
wandering cats and removing feral
cats from the community including
looking at problem areas and door-
knocking residents to promote
our services and to assist with
nuisance complaints

« officer training and seminars to
ensure skills are kept up to date

« ongoing cross-referencing of
microchip registries and proactive
patrols to ensure Council's
registration database is up to
date, and to ensure breeders
within the area are complying with
registration requirements

« cross-referencing adoption records
with registration database to ensure
Council’s registration database is
up to date with recent adoptions.

FREEDOM OF
INFORMATION

The Freedom of Information Act 1982
(Vi) (FOI Act) embodies the following
principles:

Statutory information

« members of the public have a
legally enforceable right of access
to certain government information

« government departments
and agencies are required to
publish information detailing
the documents and the types
of documents they hold

« peaple may ask for inaccurate,
incomplete, out-of-date or
misleading information contained
in their personal records to be
changed

« people may appeal against a
decision by a government body to
deny access to information or to
not amend personal records.

In accordance with the FOI Act,
anyone wanting to make a Freedom
of Information request must

do so in writing, must provide
sufficient information to enable

the requested documents to be
identified, and must be accompanied
by payment of an application fee
(which can be waived by Council

on hardship grounds). Further
information on how to make an FOI
request is available on Council's
website.

Freedom of Information
applications by year

The following table summarises the
Freedom of Information applications
received by Council over the past
four years:

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 2017-18  |2018-19 (201920  [2020-21

Total number of requests

Access granted in full 1 4 2 5

Access granted in part 8 14 21 21

Other: such as withdrawn or lapsed 1 10 8 3

Access denied in full 1 0 0 3
Number of internal reviews sought Nil Nil Nil Nil
Number of external reviews sought Nil Nil 3 Nil
Number of appeals lodged with the Victorian Civil and Nil Nil Nil Nil
Administrative Appeals Tribunal

Total fees and charges collected $2,262.42  $1,891.00  $1,440.06  $1,672.40
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PUBLIC INTEREST
DISCLOSURE
PROCEDURES ACT

Council is committed to the aims
and objectives of the Public Interest
Disclosure Act 2012 and does not
tolerate improper conduct by its
employees, officers or members,

or reprisals against those who
come forward to disclose such
conduct.

Council recognises the value of
transparency and accountability in
our administrative and management
practices and supports the making
of disclosures that reveal improper
conduct.

Improper conduct means corrupt
conduct or conduct that constitutes:

2) acriminal offence;

b) serious professional misconduct;

<) dishonest performance of public
functions;

d) intentional or reckless breach of
public trust;

e] intentional or reckless misuse of
information;

f) substantial mismanagement of
public resources;

g) substantial risk to health or safety
of a person;

h) substantial risk to the environment;

i) conduct of any person that
adversely affects the honest
performance by a public officer of
their functions; and

j) conduct of any person that is
intended to adversely affect the
effective performance by a public
officer of their functions for the
benefit of the other person.

Council will take ll reasonable steps
to protect people who make such
disclosures from any detrimental
reprisal action for making the
disclosure and will afford natural
justice to the person who is the
subject of the disclosure.

Report of operations

The Public Interest Disclosure

Act 2012 outlines the process for
reporting disclosures of improper
conduct and the protection provided
to persons who make disclosures
(refer to Appendix 1). To make a
disclosure or report detrimental
action, call Council's Protected
Disclosure Coordinator on 9217 2207
or email pid@whittlesea.vic.gov.au.
Council's procedures for making or
handling z disclosure are available
on Council’s website.

During 2020-21, one disclosure
was notified to Council Officers
2ppointed to receive disclosures.
The disclosure was referred to the
Independent Broad-based Anti-
corruption Commission (IBAC) for
determination.

IBAC determined that the information
provided was a ‘public interest
complaint’ under the Public Interest
Disclosures Act. After consideration
of the information provided, IBAC
decided to refer the disclosure to the
Victoria Ombudsman.

The Victoria Ombudsman investigated
the complaint and found that it
related brozdly to the management
of recruitment processes at Council
2nd the administration of a response
to an alleged conflict of interest
complaint.

In communications between the
Victoria Ombudsman and Council it
was determined that no further action
was required from Council.

ROAD MANAGEMENT
ACT MINISTERIAL
DIRECTION

In accordance with Section 22 of the
Road Management Act 2004, Council
must publish & copy or summery of
any ministerial direction in its annual
report.

No ministerial directions were
received by Council for the 2020-21
financial year.
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OTHER NON-STATUTORY
INCLUSIONS

Information privacy

Council continues to be committed
to the responsible collection and
handling of personal information in
accordance with the Privacy and Data
Protection Act 2014 and the Health
Records Act 2001.

Council's Privacy and Data Protection
Policy clearly expresses Council's
approach to the management and
protection of personal and health
information.

Council takes all reasonable
precautions to ensure that the
personal information collected, used
and disclosed is accurate, complete
2nd up-to-date and tahat personal
information is protected from misuse
or loss and from unauthorised access,
modification or disclosure.

Council’s policy and other documents
relating to information privacy are
available on Council's website.
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INFRASTRUCTURE AND DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS

Under sections 46GZI and 46QD of the  to the Minister for Planning on

Planning and Environment Act 1987 the receipt and expenditure of
(the Act] introduced in 2016, Council,  infrastructure levies under the

as the development or infrastructure Infrastructure Contributions Plan
contributions collecting agency (or (ICP) and Development Contributions
development agency), must report Plan (DCP) systems.

Table 1 - Total DCP levies received in 2020/21

DCP name and year approved Levies received in 2020/21 financial year
DCPO1 - Epping North Strategic Plan DCP (2002) $0.00

DCPO2 — Harvest Home Local Structure Plan DCP (2002) $0.00

DCPO 3 - Drainage Levy (2006) $61,144.00
DCPO 4 — Cooper Street Employment Area DCP (2007) $0.00

DCPOS-9 — Mernda Strategy Plan DCP (2004) $1,736,234.48
DCPO10 — Epping North East Local Structure Plan DCP (2008) $202,167.34
DCPO11 - Lockerbie DCP (2012 $869,972.82
DCPO12 ~ Lockerbie North DCP (2012) $0.00

DCPO14 — Epping Central DCP (2015) $76,652.30
DCPO13 ~ Quarry Hills DCP (2016) $0.00

DCPO1S — English Street DCP (2016) $233,734.70
DCPO16 — Wollert DCP (2017) $7,870,404.12
TOTAL $11,050,309.76

Table 2 - DCP land, works, services or facilities accepted as works-in-kind (2020/21)

DCP name and year approved  Project ID Project descr Item purpose
Works:
DCPO 2 - Harvest Home LSP RO17 Roundabout at intersection Road project $421,344.05
of Harvest Home Road and
Hayston Boulevard
DCPO 4 — Cooper Street RO06 Signalised intersection at Intersection project  $826,037.00
Employment Area DCP (2007) Edgars Road between Cooper
Street and O'Herns Road
DCPO 4 — Cooper Street ROO1-C  Edgars Road (Cooper Streetto  Road project $1,476,111.00
Employment Area DCP (2007) O'Herns Road) construction
DCPO8-9 — Mernds Strategy pCo4 Construction of pedestrian/ ~ Off-road project $79,045.83
Plen DCP (2004) cycle trails in Precinct 4 (partially delivered)
(part of)
DCPO6-9 — Mernda Strategy PCOL Construction of pedestrian/ ~ Off-road project $12,574.64
Plen DCP (2004 cycle trails in Precinct 2A (partially delivered)
(part of)
DCPO10 - Epping North East  RO12 Intersection 3 - Type C Intersection project  $394,750.00

Local Structure Plan DCP (2008)
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DCP name and year approved

Report of operations

ies accepted as work

Project ID  Project description

Infrastructure and developer contributions

in-kind (2020/21) (cont.)

Item purpose

Project value

DCPO13 ~ Quarry Hills DCP RD-01  Lehmenn's Road, Bindts Road  Road project $1,681,162.00
to west edge
DCPO15 — English Street DCP~ RDOLc  Construction of English Rozd project $145,210.00
(2016) (PartC)  Street (two-lane carriageway)
between Donnybrook Road to
intersection IN-02
DCPO1S —English Street DCP~ IN-02b  Intersection English Street /  Intersection project  $2,111,218.00
(2016) (partof)  Norman Road
DCPO15 — English Street DCP IN-03 ¢ Intersection English Street mid-  Intersection project  $206,471.00
(2016) (partof)  block connector — part (3 legs)
Land:
DCPO 2 — Harvest Home LSP RO0S Harvest Home Road-Epping ~ Road project $89,862.70
Rozad to £6 (acquisition of
an additional 14m of road
reservation)
DCPO 2 - Harvest Home LSP 05-01 Land for local park Open space $245,714.48
DCPO 4 — Cooper Street RO01-C  Construction of Edgars Road  Road project $1,166,277.00
Employment Area DCP (2007) (Cooper Street to O'Herns Road)
DCPO 4 — Cooper Street 05-01  Land for passive openspace  Open space $395,000.00
Employment Area DCP (2007)
DCPO 4 — Cooper Street PT-01 Public transport corridor Transport project $291,510.00
Employment Area DCP (2007)  (Part) reservation
Aurora DCP RO06 Widening of Scanlon Drive/ Road project $843,656.00
Koukoure Drive north of
Craigieburn Road East from
240 metres north of O'Herns
Rozd to Craigieburn Road
DCPO 11 - Lockerbie DCP RD-02b  Land (8200sqm) for Road project $865,206.80
(part of)  construction of one
carriageway in each direction
from Donnybrook Road
DCPO1S - English Street DCP IN-02 Intersection English Street/  Intersection project  $153,419.65
(2018) (partof)  Norman Road

Table 3 - Total DCP contributions received and expended to date (for DCPs approved after 1 June 2016)

DCP name and year approved

DCPO13 — Quarry Hills DCP (2016)

DCPO16 — Wollert DCP (2017)

Total levies Total levies Total works Total DCP
received expended kind accepted contributions received
S0 $0.00 $1,681,162.00 $1,681,162
$23,844,466.77 $747,099.00 $19,833,738.88 $43,678,205.65
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Table 4 - Land, works, services or facilities delivered in 2020/21 from DCP levies collected

Project description Project ID  DCP name and year approved

Works

Roundzbout at intersection of Harvest Home Road and RO17 DCPO 2 - Harvest Home LSP

Hayston Boulevard

Signalised intersection at Edgars Road between Cooper RO0S DCPO 4 — Cooper Street Employment Area

Street and O'Herns Road DCP (2007)

Edgers Road (Cooper Street to O'Herns Road) construction  RO01-C  DCPO 4 — Cooper Street Employment Area
DCP (2007)

Construction of pedestrian/cycle trails in Precinct 4 (part of) PC04 DCPO8-9 — Mernda Strategy Plan DCP (2004)

Construction of pedestrian/cycle trails in Precinct 2A (Part of)  PCOL DCPOG-9 — Mernda Strategy Plan DCP (2004)

Intersection 3 - Type C RO12 DCPO10 — Epping North East Local Structure
Plan DCP (2008)

Community Activity Centre (CAC) to the west of Epping coo1 DCPO10 — Epping North East Local Structure

Road Plan DCP (2008)

Lehmann's Road, Bindts Road to west edge RD-01 DCPO13 — Quarry Hills DCP

Widening of Scanlon Drive/Koukoura Drive north of RDO1c DCPO15 — English Street DCP (2016)

Craigieburn Road East from 240 metres north of O'Herns (Part C)

Road to Craigieburn Road
Land (8200sqm) for construction of one carriageway in each IN-02b  DCPO1S5 — English Street DCP (2016)

direction from Donnybrook Road (part of)
Intersection English Street / Norman Road IN-03¢  DCPO1S - English Street DCP (2016)
(part of)
Land
Harvest Home Road-Epping Road to E6 (acquisition of an ~ ROOS DCPO 2 - Harvest Home LSP
additional 14m of road reservation)
Land for local park 05-01 DCPO 2 - Harvest Home LSP
Land for construction of Edgars Road (Cooper Street to ROO1-C  DCPO 4~ Cooper Street Employment Area
O'Herns Road) DCP (2007)
Land for passive open space 05 -01 DCPO 4 - Cooper Street Employment Area
DCP (2007)
Public transport corridor reservation PT-01 DCPO 4 - Cooper Street Employment Area
(Part) DCP (2007)
Bridge Inn Road Duplication — construction of four-lane RO-03 DCPO 6 — Mernda Strategy Plan DCP (2004)
divided road between western Strategy Plan boundary and
Yan Yean Road
Widening of Scanlon Drive/Koukoura Drive north of RO0E Aurora DCP

Craigieburn Road East from 240 metres north of O'Herns
Road to Craigieburn Road

Land (8200sqm) for construction of one carriageway in each RD-02b  DCPO 11— Lockerbie DCP

direction from Donnybrook Road (part of)
Intersection English Street / Norman Road IN-02 DCPO1S — English Street DCP (2016)
(part of)
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DCP fund Works Council's Other Total project Percentage of

expended accepted contribution contributions expenditure item delivered

$0.00 $421,344.05 $0.00 $0.00 $421,344.05 100.00%
$0.00 $826,037.00 $0.00 $0.00 $826,037.00 100.00%
$0.00 $1,476,111.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,476,111.00 20.81%
$0.00 $79,045.83 $0.00 $0.00 $79,045.83 16.67%
$0.00 $12,574.64 $0.00 $0.00 $12,574.64 4.00%
$0.00 $394,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $394,750.00 100.00%
$4,032,731.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,032,731.00 57.60%
$0.00 $1,681,162.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,681,162.00 100.00%
$0.00 $843,656.00 $0.00 $0.00 $145,210.00 21.26%
$0.00 $865,206.80 $0.00 $0.00 $2,111,21800  93.85%
$0.00 $153,419.65 $0.00 $0.00 $206,471.00 15.22%
$0.00 $89,862.70 $0.00 $0.00 $89,862.70 9.37%
$0.00 $245,714.48 $0.00 $0.00 $245,714.48 21.37%
$0.00 $1,166,277.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,166,277.00 100.00%
$0.00 $395,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $395,000.00 13.27%
$0.00 $291,510.00 $0.00 $0.00 $291,510.00 25.63%
$0.00 $149,760.09 $0.00 $0.00 $149,760.09 1.27%
$0.00 $843,656.00 $0.00 $0.00 $843,656.00 100.00%
$0.00 $865,206.80 $0.00 $0.00 $865,206.80 55.35%
$0.00 $153,419.65 $0.00 $0.00 $153,419.65 9.33%
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MINISTERIAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR INFRASTRUCTURE
CONTRIBUTIONS PLANS

Requirements apply to the preparation of & report by  collecting agency or development agency under section 46GZI
of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 (the Act).

Table 1 - Total ICP monetary component received in 2020/21

Name of collecting agency Name of ICP Monetary componentin  Value of works, Total monetary
levies received in 2020/21 services or facilities contribution
financial year ($) accepted in satisfaction received

of the monetary in 2020/21
component in 2020/21 financial year
financial year ($) ©)
City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/ $3,485,008 50 $3,485,008
Woodstock ICP

TOTAL $3,485,008 $0 $3,485,008

Table 2~ Inner public purpose land received in 2020/21

Name of collecting agency Name of ICP Land (or project ID) Land (or project
description)
City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/Woodstock ICP LP-48 Local park

Provision of land

City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/Woodstock ICP LP-11 Local park
Provision of land

City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/Woodstock ICP LP-02 Local park
Provision of land

City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/Woodstock ICP LP-20 Local park
Provision of land

Table 3 - Total land equalisation amount (LEA) received and land credit amount (LCA) paid in 2020/21

Name of collecting agency  Name of ICP Total of any LEAs received in Total of any LCAs paid in
2020/21 financial year (§)  2020/21 financial year ($)
City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/Woodstock ICP $1,067,841 $845,997

Table 4 - ICP works, services or facilities accepted under section 46GX of the Act in 2020/21
Name of collecting agency Name of ICP Project ID Project description Item purpose Project value ($)

City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/Woodstock ICP_none none n/a $0

As the development agency
Table 5 - Total ICP monetary contributions expended by development agency in 2020/21

Name of collecting agency Name of ICP Project  Project ICP money  Percentage of
) description  expended ($) project delivered
City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/Woodstock ICP_none none $0 0%
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Table 6 - Use and development of inner public purpose land or outer public purpose land which has vested in,
been acquired by, or been transferred to, the development agency in 2020/21

Name of collecting agency ~ Name of ICP ProjectID  Project description  Use and
development of land
City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/Woodstock ICP  LP-49 Local park Local park
Provision of land
City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/Woodstock ICP LP-11 Local park Local park
Provision of land
City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/Woodstock ICP  LP-02 Local park Local park
Provision of land
City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/Woodstock ICP LP-20 Local park Local park

Provision of land

Table 7 — Use of works, services or facilities accepted under section 46GX of the Act in 2020/21

Name of collecting agency ~ Name of ICP Project D Project description  Use of land

City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/Woodstock ICP__none none

Table 8 — Expenditure of ICP land equalisation amounts in 2020/21

Name of collecting agency Name of ICP Project ID  Project description  Land equalisation
amounts expended ($)
City of Whittlesea Donnybrook/Woodstock ICP none Land Acquisition $845,997

B = I
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Financial Report

Performance Statement

For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

Description of municipality

The City of Whittlesea is located in
Melbourne's northern suburbs, about
20 kilometres from the city centre.
Itis one of Melbourne’s largest
municipalities, covering a land area of
approximately 490 square kilometres.

The majority of the City of Whittlesea
population live in urban areas. This
is split across the major established
suburbs of Bundoora, Epping, Lalor,
Mill Park and Thomastown, the
current growth area precincts of
Mernda, Doreen, South Morang,
Epping North and Wollert, and

the rural areas of Donnybrook and
Whittlesea Township and surrounds.
Significant future growth is projected
for Wollert and Donnybrook. The
rural areas of the municipality are
characterised by farming, forested
areas and historic township
communities including Whittlesea
Township.

The Wurundjeri Willum people
were the original inhabitants of the
area and are the traditional owners

of this land. Compared with other
municipalities, the City of Whittlesea
has the fourth largest population of
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders
(ATSI) by person count in Metropolitan
Melbourne, with 1,633 ATS| residents,
whose median age is 21 years.

Response to COVID-19 Pandemic

On 16 March 2020 a state of
emergency was declared in Victoria
due to the global pandemic COVID-19
virus, known as coronavirus. A state of
disaster was subsequently declared on
2 August 2020. While the impacts of
the pandemic have abated somewhat
through the 2020-21 year, Council has
noted the following significant impacts
on its financial operations:

* In response to government
directives erising from the
COVID-19 outbreak, Council
leisure centres, community
activity centres, sports facilities
and recreation facilities were
closed. These closures resulted in
a decrease in the income of $2.91
million.

* In response to community needs,
Council's direct response including
financial support to community
organisations added additional
expense of $1.57 million.

« Council is committed to
providing support to those
within community who are
experiencing financial hardship
due the COVID-18 pandemic and
has implemented its COVID-19
Financial Hardship Policy. Council
provided $0.76 million direct relief
to ratepayers by electing to not
charge interest on overdue rates.

The impact of COVID-19 has not
materially affected Council's
operations and has not led to any
asset impairment changes for the year
ended 30 June 2021.
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Indicator | measure

Results

2019

2020

Financial Report

Comment

Population

a

Expenses per head of municipal
population

[Total expenses / Municipal
population]

[}

Infrastructure per head of
municipal population
[Value of infrastructure /
Municipal population]

=]

Population density per length of
road

[Municipal population /
Kilometres of local roads]

Own-source revenue

c4

Own-source revenue per head of
municipal population
[Own-source revenue / Municipal
population]

Recurrent grants

[«3

Recurrent grants per head of
municipal population

[Recurrent grants / Municipal
population]

Disadvantage

c6

Relative socio-economic
disadvantage

[Index of Relative Socio-economic
Disadvantage by decile]
Workforce turnover

7

Percentage of staff turnover
[Number of permanent staff
resignations and terminations /
Average number of permanent
staff for the financial year] x100

$894.41

$9,598.07 $10,127.95 $10,104.77 $10,382.47

176.26

$828.33

$181.85

5.00

16.0%

$917.57

174.84

$843.38

$139.98

5.00

18.8%

$945.22

168.30

$837.60

$139.98

5.00

8.0%

$1,130.01 This indicator has increased,

171.53

$846.66

$128.48

5.00

16.67%

which is in line with Council's
budgeted expenditure to
ensure approprizte delivery of
services.

Council's investment in
infrastructure has slightly
increased in proportion to the
population growth,

As the City of Whittlesea is one
of Victoria's fastest growing
municipalities and more land
becomes subdivided and infill
housing, this indicator will
continue to fluctuate with
population numbers and length
of roads constructed.

Council continues to maintain
its own-source revenue at a
comparable level to previous
years.

This indicator has increased
due to an increase in recurrent
grant funding in line with
growth in service delivery.

This indicator remains stable

This indicator has increased
due to service changes
impacting staff turnover as new
service models and structures
are being completed and
implemented.
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Definitions
"adjusted underlying revenue” means
total income other than:

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund
capital expenditure; and

(b) non-monetary asset contributions;
and

(c) contributions to fund capital

"population” means the resident
population estimated by council
"own-source revenue" means
2djusted underlying revenue other
than revenue that is not under
the control of council {including
government grants)

"SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic
Indexes for Areas published from time
to time by the Australian Bureau of
Statistics on its Internet website
"unrestricted cash" means all cash and
cash equivalents other than restricted
cash.

"relative socio-economic
disadvantage", in relation to a
municipality, means the relative socio-
economic disadvantage, expressed as
2 decile for the relevant financial year,
of the area in which the municipality
is located according to the Index of
Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage
(Catalogue Number 2033.0.55.001)
of SEIFA

expenditure from sources other
than those referred to above

“infrastructure” means non-current
property, plant and equipment
excluding land

"local road" means 2 sealed or
unsealed road for which the council is
the responsible road authority under
the Road Management Act 2004

Service Performance Indicators Fror the year ended 30 June 2021

Service / Indicator /[ Results Comment
2018 2019 2020 2021
Aquatic facilities
Utilisation
AF6 4.18 2.74 1.82 0.77  The most significant barrier to attendance

has been the 21 weeks of centre closures,
coupled with five weeks of capacity limits
due to the State Government COVID-19
lockdowns during 20/21. The booking
system put in place to control attendance
due to capacity limits was also a barrier
for many Thomastown Recreation and
Aquatic Centre (TRAC) users who are
older and from CALD backgrounds and
found the technology a challenge. This
population also are more vulnerable

with respect to the virus which added

to the loss of confidence to return to
TRAC when it was open. There has been

a large drop in attendance when TRAC
was open compared to pre COVID-19,
which is in line with most other Victorian
local governments. Of council’s three
facilities, TRAC was opened (when not in
lockdown) for the year, Whittlesea Swim
Centre (WSC) was opened for the summer
season (5 months); and MPLC was not fully
operational until the final five days of the
year.

Utilisation of aquatic facilities
[Number of visits to aquatic
facilities / Municipal population]
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Service Performance Indicators (cont)

Service / Indicator [/ m Results Comment

2018 2019 2020 2021

Animal management

Health and safety

AM7 Newin Newin 100.00% 100.00% City of Whittlesea undertook eight animal
Animal management 2020 2020 prosecutions, all of which were successful.
prosecutions

[Number of successful animal
management prosecutions /
Number of animal management
prosecutions] x 100

Food safety

Health and safety
Fs4

Critical and major non-
compliance outcome
notifications

[Number of critical non-
compliance outcome
notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about
2 food premises followed

up / Number of critical
non-compliance outcome
notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about
2 food premises] x100

100.00% 99.51%

In 2020-21 100% of Food Act inspections/
assessments that were determined to

be a critical or major non-compliance
were followed up by City of Whittlesea's
Environmental Health Team.

Governance

Satisfaction

GSs

Satisfaction with council
decisions

[Community satisfaction rating
out of 100 with how council
has performed in making
decisions in the interest of the
community]

The satisfaction rate has improved 3
points

Libraries

Participation

L84

Active library borrowers in
municipality

[Number of active library
borrowers in the last three years
/ The sum of the population for
the last three years] x100

The active borrower figure has continued to
be impacted due to significant closures due
to lockdowns and the closure of Mill Park
Library due to building works in the past three
financial years. Please note that this figure
does not include those borrowers who use
our eCollections where SIP2 is not an available
authentication method by the vendor.
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Service Performance Indicators (cont)

Service / Indicator [/ m Results Comment
2018 2019 2020 2021

Maternal and child health

Participation

Mca 76.96% 75.75% 73.14% 73.35% City of Whittlesea has observed a decline

Participation in the MCH service over the last 4 years in the participation of

[Number of children who children attending the service for their 3.5

attend the MCH service at least year Key Age and Stage assessment. From

once (in the year) / Number of January 2020, the MCH service was required

children enrolled in the MCH to prioritise younger children as an outcome

service] x100 of COVID-18 restrictions. An action plan has
been developed to respond to this decline.

McS 71.63% 60.16% 84.26% 88.41% City of Whittlesea MCH continues to focus

Participation in the MCH service on providing services to Aboriginal and

by Aboriginal children Torres Strait Islander families through the

[Number of Aboriginal children Deadly Boorais Deadly Families Outreach

who attend the MCH service at Program. Participation at Whittlesea

least once (in the year) / Number continues to remain high.

of Aboriginal children enrolled in

the MCH service] x100

Roads

Satisfaction

RS 6200 6400 6100  60.00 The community has experienced extensive

Satisfaction with sealed local road works throughout the municipality in

roads the 2020-21 year.

[Community satisfaction rating These have included major works by

out of 100 with how council has State Government that heavily impact

performed on the condition of our community, such as the Plenty Road

sealed local roads] upgrade and O’Herns Road Interchange to
the Hume Highway. City of Whittlesea have
also undertaken an increased amount of
road renewals this year. City of Whittlesea
annual expenditure on local road renewal
increased from $10.2M in 2020-21 and
will increase to $14.9M in 2021-22 and will
continue to increase in future years.

Statutory Planning

Decision making

P4 55.00% 43.75% 52.38% 45.83% This result is relatively consistent with

Council planning decisions
upheld at VCAT

[Number of VCAT decisions
that did not set aside council’s
decision in relation to a
planning zpplication / Number
of VCAT decisions in relation to
planning applications] x100

previous years given the low number of
matters going before VCAT. There were a
large number of extensions of time request
refusals (S or 20% of all VCAT matters) that
were set aside by VCAT where COVID-19
was cited s 2 reason for allowing the
extension. The overall result would have
been 55% If these were removed.
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Service / Indicator [/ m Results Comment
2018 2019 2020 2021
Waste Collection
Waste diversion
wes 3051% 36.94% 42.94% 46.05% Expansion of the opt-in food organics/

Kerbside collection waste
diverted from landfill

[Weight of recyclables and
green organics collected from
kerbside bins / Weight of
garbage, recyclables and green
organics collected from kerbside
bins] x100

garden organics service has seen approx.
18,000 tonnes diverted from landfill

Definitions

"Aboriginal child" means a child who is
2n Aboriginal person

"Aboriginal person” has the same
meaning & in the Aboriginal Heritage
Act 2006

"active library borrower" means
2 member of a library who has
borrowed  book from the library

"annual report" means an annual
report prepared by a council under
section 98 of the Act

“class 1 food premises” means food
premises, within the meaning of
the Food Act 1984, that have been
declared as class 1 food premises
under section 19C of that Act

“class 2 food premises” means food
premises, within the meaning of
the Food Act 1984, that have been
declared as class 2 food premises
under section 18C of that Act

“eritical non-compliance outcome
notification” means a notification
received by council under section
19N(3) or (4] of the Food Act 1984

, or advice given to council by an
authorized officer under that Act, of
2 deficiency that poses an immediate
serious threat to public health

"food premises" has the same
meaning as in the Food Act 1984

"local road" means a sealed or
unsealed road for which the council is
the responsible road authority under
the Road Management Act 2004

"major non-compliance outcome
notification" means a notification
received by 2 council under section
19N(3) or (4] of the Food Act 1984, or

advice given to council by an authorized

officer under that Act, of & deficiency
that does not pose an immediate

serious threat to public health but may

do so if no remedial action is taken

"MCH" means the Maternal and
Child Health Service provided by a
council to support the health and
development of children within the
municipality from birth until school
age

"population” means the resident
population estimated by council
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Financial Performance Indicators for the year ended 30 June 2021

Dimension / Forecasts
Indicator | Variations

measure

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Efficiency
Expenditure level
E2 $2,304.57 $2,355.33 $2,391.49 $2,848.47 $2,371.54 $2,284.93 $2,272.63 $2,280.90 Council's level
Expenses of expenditure
per property per property
assessment assessment
[Total expenses has increased
/ Number as a result of
of property anincrease
assessments] in overall

expenditure,
mainly driven
by employee
costs (resulting
from Working
For Victoria
which was fully
grant funded),
doubtful debts
expense and

the write
off of some
infrastructure
assets.
Revenue level
E4 Newin — Newin $1,673.82 $1,707.29 $1,728.08 $1,757.16 $1,799.04 $1,83334 Council's
Average rate 2020 2020 average rate
per property per property
assessment assessment
[General rates has increased
and Municipal in line with the
charges / 2020/21 rate
Number of cap.
property
assessments]
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Dimension /
Indicator |
measure

2019

2020 2021

2022

Financial Report

Forecasts
Variations

2023 2024

Working capital

1 36432% 362.46% 35129% 305.84% 484.40% 501.71% 520.65% 524.16% The decrease
Current assets in the indicator
compared is largely due
to current to the increase
liabilities in current
[Current assets liabilities. This
J Current was largely the
liabilities] x100 result of the
recognition
of unearned
income relating
to capital
grant income
received but
not expended.
Unrestricted cash
L2 103.30% 83.73% 103.36% 89.60% 156.72% 183.72% 210.17% 223.67% This indicator
Unrestricted decreased
cash compared largely due to
to current the increase
liabilities in current
[Unrestricted liabilities as a
cash / Current result of the
liabilities] x100 recognition
of unearned
income.
Obligations
Loans and borrowings
02 11.32% 9.39% 5.61% 1.50% 12.32%  10.36% 8.44% 1457%  This indicator
Loans and has declined
borrowings as Council's
compared to borrowings
rates balance has
[Interest and reduced asa
principle result of loan
repayments repayments
on Interest during the year.
bearing
loans and

borrowings /
Rate revenue]
x100
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Financial Performance Indicators (cont)

Dimension /
Indicator |

measure

2018 2019 2020

Loans and borrowings
03 9.36%
Loans and

borrowings

repayments

compared to

rates

[Interest and

principal

repayments

on interest

bearing

loans and

borrowings /

Rate revenue]

x100

205%  3.57%  3.98%

Indebtedness

o4 9.44%
Non-current

liabilities

compared to

own source

revenue

[Non-current

liabilicies /

Own source

revenue] x100

6.28%  5.59%  2.07%

Asset renewal and upgrade

05 New in
2020

New in 88.66%  82.21%

Asset renewal 2020
and upgrade

compared to

depreciation

[Asset renewal

and upgrade

expense

/ Asset

depreciation]

x100
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0.53%

12.85%

129.79%

Forecasts

2023

1.73%

12.07%

105.05%

2024

1.64%

11.58%

£9.44%

1.11%

16.81%

77.19%

Variations

This indicator
has increased
due to the loan
repayments
during the year.

This indicator
has decreased
as Council's
borrowings
balance has
reduced as a
result of loan
repayments
during the year.

This indicator
has decreased
duetoa
reduction in
Council's capital
expenditure
compared to
the prior year.
This was the
result of delays
toa number of
projects during
the year caused
by COVID-18
imposed
restrictions
which impacted
supply chain
and labour
availability.
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Dimension /
Indicator |

measure

2018 2019 2020

Operating position

Financial Report

Forecasts
Variations

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Adjusted underlying result

oP1 1222%  826%  547%  -12.96%  4.08%  866%  1041%  10.99% This indicator

Adjusted has decreased

underlying a5 a result of

surplus (or a reduction

deficit) in council's

[Adjusted operating

underlying surplusin

surplus comparison to

(deficit)/ the prior year,

Adjusted primarily due

underlying to the loss on

revenue] x100 disposal of
infrastructure
and land assets
that occurred
during the
year as well as
doubtful debts
expense.

Stability

Rates concentration

s1 65.22%  67.73%  7042%  7177%  74.46%  7471%  75.28%  75.82% Thisindicator

Rates remains

compared consistent with

t0 adjusted the historical

underlying upward trend,

revenue

[Rate revenue

/ Adjusted

underlying

revenue] x100

Rates effort

s2 034%  027%  028%  028%  027%  027%  027%  027% Council rates

Rates have moved

compared in a consistent

to property proportion to

values property values.

[Rate revenue

/ Capital

improved value

of rateable

properties

inthe

municipality]

x100
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Financial Performance Indicators (cont)

Former measures

Service / Indicator / mea

Animal Management

Health and safety

AMA4. Animal management prosecutions 7 5 Retiredin  Retired in
[Number of successful animal management prosecutions] 2020 2020
Efficiency

Revenue level

E1. Average residential rate per residential property assessment ~ $1,488.14  $1,529.46  Retired in Retired in
[Residential rate revenue / Number of residential property 2020 2020
assessments]

Obligations

Asset renewal

01. Asset renewal compared to depreciation 36.49% 60.70%  Retiredin  Retiredin
[Asset renewal expense / Asset depreciation] x100 2020 2020

Definitions

"adjusted underlying revenue" means

total income other than

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund
capital expenditure; and

(b) non-monetary asset contributions;
and

(¢) contributions to fund capital

expenditure from sources other
than those referred to above

"adjusted underlying surplus (or
deficit)" means adjusted underlying
revenue less total expenditure

"asset renewal expenditure” means
expenditure on an existing asset or on
replacing an existing asset that returns
the service capability of the asset to
its original capability

“current assets” has the same
meaning as in the AAS

110

"current lizbilities" has the same
meaning as in the AAS

“non-current assets” means all assets
other than current assets

"non-current liabilities" means all
liabilities other than current liabilities

“non-recurrent grant” means a grant
obtained on the condition that it

be expended in a specified manner
and is not expected to be received
2gain during the period covered by 2
council's Strategic Resource Plan

"own-source revenue" means
adjusted underlying revenue other
than revenue that is not under
the control of council (including
government grants

"population "means the resident
population estimated by council
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“rate revenue” means revenue from
general rates, municipal charges,
service rates and service charges

"recurrent grant "means a grant other
than a non-recurrent grant

"residential rates" means revenue
from general rates, municipal charges,
service rates and service charges
levied on residential properties

"restricted cash" means cash and
cash equivalents, within the meaning
of the AAS, that are not available

for use other than for & purpose for
which it s restricted, and includes
cash to be used to fund capitel
works expenditure from the previous
financial year

"unrestricted cash" means all cash and
cash equivalents other than restricted
cash
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Other Information ror the year ended 30 June 2021

1. Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and
include a performance statement
within its annual report. The
performance statement includes the
results of the prescribed sustainable
capacity, service performance and
financial performance indicators and
measures together with a description
of the municipal district and an
explanation of material variations in
the results. This statement has been
prepared to meet the requirements
of the Local Government Act 1989
and Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2014 (as per
the transitional provisions of the Local
Government Act 2020).

Where applicable the results in
the performance statement have
been prepared on accounting bases

consistent with those reported in
the Financial Statements. The other
results are based on information
drawn from council information
systems or from third parties (e.g.
Australian Bureau of Statistics).

The performance statement presents
the actual results for the current

year and for the prescribed financial
performance indicators and measures,
the results forecast by the council’s
Annual Budget. The Local Government
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations
2014 requires explanation of any
material variations in the results
contained in the performance
statement. Council has adopted
materiality thresholds relevant to
each indicator and measure and
explanations have not been provided

Financial Report

for variations below the materiality
thresholds unless the variance is
considered to be material because of
its nature.

The forecast figures included in the
performance statement are those
adopted by council in its Annual
Budget on 1 June 2021 and which
forms part of the council plan. The
Annual Budget includes estimates
based on key assumptions about the
future that were relevant at the time
of adoption and aimed at achieving
sustainability over the long term.
Detailed information on the actual
financial results is contained in the
General Purpose Financial Statements.
The Annual Budget can be obtained by
contacting council.

City of Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21 111




image113.png
Financial Report

SAm City of

>’ Whittlesea

Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014
(as per the transitional provisions of the Local Government Act 2020).

S5

Mark Montague
Principal Accounting Officer

Dated: 6 September 2021

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the (council name) for the year ended 30
June 2021 presents fairly the results of council’s performance in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 (as per
the transitional provisions of the Local Government Act 2020).

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results in
relation to service performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the
performance statement to be misleading or inacourate.

We have been authorised by the council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 to certfy this performance statement in its final form.

IR

Lydia Wilson Chris Eddy Craig Lloyd

Administrator Adi rator Chief Executive Officer

Dated: 6 September 2021 Dated: 6 September 2021 Dated: 6 September 2021
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VAGO

Independent Auditor’s Report Vi B Y TS

To the Councillors of the City of Whittlesea

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Councillors'
responsibilities for the
performance
statement

Auditor’s
responsibilities for the
audit of the
performance
statement

I have audited the accompanying performance statement of the City of
Whittlesea (the council) which comprises the:

e description of the municipality for the year ended 30 June 2021

e sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2021
e service performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2021
« financial performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2021
e other information and

e the certification of the performance statement.

In my opinion, the performance statement presents fairly, in all material
respects, the performance of the council for the year ended 30 June 2021 in
accordance with the performance reporting requirements of Part 6 of the
Local Government Act 1989.

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which
incorporates the Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements. | further
describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the performance statement section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. 1 and my staff
are independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of
the performance statement in Victoria and have also fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

I believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my opinion.

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the performance statement in accordance with the performance reporting
requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and for such internal control
as the Councillors determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of the statement of performance that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion
on the performance statement based on the audit. My objectives for the audit
are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance
statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Level 31 / 35 Collins Stree, Melbourne Vic 3000
T 038601 7000 enquiries@audit vic.gov.ou wwwauditvic.gov.ou
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MELBOURNE
17 September 2021

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of this performance
statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. | also;

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of performance
statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the council’s internal control

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
performance statement, including the disclosures, and whether
performance statement represents the underlying events and results in
amanner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

«
Santhu Chummar
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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City of Whittlesea
2020-2021 Financial Report

Certification of the Financial Statements

In my opinion, the accompanying financialstatemens have been prepared in accordance with the Local Goverment Act 1989 , the Local Government (Planning
and Reporting) Regulations 2014  the Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements

S5

Mark Montague GA
Principal Accounting Officer

Date: 6 September 2021

South Morang

In our opiion the accompanying financial stetements present aily the financial ransactions of the Gity of Whittesea for the year ended 30 June 2021 and the
financial positon of the Councilas althat date.

Atthe dale of sgning, we are nol aware of any Gircamstances that would render any parlculars i the financial statements o be misleading or naccurate

We have been authorised by the Gounci and by the Local Govemment (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 to cerify the fnancialstatemenls n thirfina
form.

Lyl Wileor—

Lydia Wilson
Administrator
Date : 6 September 2021
South Morang

. Lo
= 2

Chris Eddy

Administrator

Date : 6 September 2021
South Morang

< %
Craig Lioyd
Chief Executive Officer

Date: 6 September 2021
South Morang

116  City of Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21




image118.png
Financial Report

VAGO

Independent Auditor’s Report Wi Mo G G
To the Councillors of the City of Whittlesea
Opinion I have audited the financial report of the City of Whittlesea (the council) which comprises.
the;
. balance sheet as at 30 June 2021
o comprehensive income statement for the year then ended
o statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
. statement of cash flows for the year then ended
o statement of capital works for the year then ended
. notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies
. certification of the financial statements.

Inmy opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the council as at 30 June 2021 and their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 6 of
the Local Government Act 1989 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.

Basis for I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the
Australian Auditing Standards. | further describe my responsibilities under that Act and
those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and | are
independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional

Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My
staff and | have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

I believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Councillors'  The Councillors of the council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
responsibilities  the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local
for the Government Act 1989, and for such internal control as the Councillors determine is
financial necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free
report. from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the council’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so.

Level 31 /35 Collins Street, Melbourne Vic 3000
T 038601 7000 enquiries@auditvic.gov.ou www.auditvic.gov.ou
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Auditor’s
responsibilities
for the audit of
the financial
report

MELBOURNE

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

«  identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council's internal control

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Councillors

«  conclude on the appropriateness of the Councillors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the council's ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
council to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

¢
Santhu Chummar

17 September 2021 as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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Comprehensive Income Statement for the year ended 30 June 2021

Financial Report

Note 2021 2020
000 $'000
Income
Rates and charges 31 170,062 162,356
Statutory fees and fines 3.2 19,861 16,262
User fees 33 4,307 6,043
Grants - operating 3.4(a) 33,520 34,636
Grants - capital 3.4 (b) 11,377 3,492
Contributions - monetary 35 19,332 18,579
Contributions - non monetary 35 140,369 79,547
Net gein (or loss] on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 3.6 () 731 (2,348)
Share of net profits (or loss) of associates and joint ventures 6.2 300 251
Other income 37 5,008 7,935
Total income 404,867 326,753
Expenses
Employee costs 41 99,825 91,479
Materials and services 4.2 79,582 72,119
Depreciation 43 38,079 36,313
Amortisation - intangible assets 44 120 125
Amortisation - right of use assets 45 314 452
Bad and doubtful debts 46 10,733 737
Borrowing costs 47 220 660
Finance costs - leases 48 16 22
Net loss on write-off of property, Infrastructure, plant and equipment 3.6 (b) 23,031 -
Other expenses 49 15,372 13,371
Total expenses 267,292 215,278
Surplus for the year 137,575 111,475
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 6.1 119,414 (50,327)
Total comprehensive result 256,989 61,148

The above comprehensive income statement should be rezd in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance Sheet for the year ended 30 June 2021

Note 2021 2020
000 $'000
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1(a) 136,818 74,289
Other financial assets 5.1(b) 80,000 130,000
Trade and other receivables 5.1(c) 30,175 31,607
Inventories 5.2 (a) 327 342
Other assets 5.2 (b) 1,238 1,185
Total current assets 248,558 237,423
Non-current assets
Other financial assets 5.2(c) 22 2
Intangible assets 5.2(d) 770 890
Right-of-use assets 5.8 830 1,083
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.1 4,034,260 3,781,282
Investments in associates, joint arrangements and subsidiaries 6.2 2,911 2,611
Total non-current assets 4,038,793 3,785,888
Total assets 4,287,351 4,023,311
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5.3(a) 20,392 19,083
Trust funds and deposits 5.3(b) 16,005 16,104
Unearned income 53(c) 22,315 9,980
Provisions 5.5 (a) 21,622 20,162
Interest-bearing lizbilities 5.4 788 1,920
Lease liabilities 58 148 268
Total current liabilities 81,270 67,587
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 5.5 (a) 1,715 2,868
Interest-bearing liabilities 5.4 1,753 7,097
Lease liabilities 5.8 687 822
Total non-current liabilities 4,155 10,787
Total liabilities 85,425 78,374
Net assets 4,201,926 3,944,937
Equity
Accumulated surplus 2,721,657 2,616,282
Reserves 9.1 1,480,269 1,328,655
Total Equity 4,201,926 3,944,937

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

120 City of Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21




image122.png
Financial Report

Statement of Changes in Equity ror the year ended 30 June 2021

Accumulated Asset Asset Asset

Surplus  Revaluation Replacement Development

Reserve Reserve Reserve

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Balance at beginning of the 3,944,937 2,616,282 1,174,758 45,263 108,634
financial year

Adjusted Opening balance 3,944,937 2616282 1,174,758 45,263 108,634

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 137,575 137,575 - - -

Net asset revaluation increment/ 6.1 119,414 - 119,414 - -
(decrement)

Transfers from other reserves 9.1(b) - 54,324 - (41,436) (12,888

Transfers to other reserves 9.1(b) - (86,524) - 54,346 32,178

Balance at end of the financial year 4,201,926 2,721,657 1,294,172 58,173 127,924

Accumulated Asset Asset Asset

Surplus  Revaluation Replacement Development

Reserve Reserve Reserve

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Balance at beginning of the 3,883,796 2,491,836 1,225,085 70,388 96,487
financial year

Impact of change in accounting ™ ) - - -

policy - AASB 16 Leases

Adjusted Opening balance 3,883,789 2,491,829 1,225,085 70,388 96,487

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 111,475 111,475 - - -

Net asset revaluation increment/ 6.1 (50,327) - (50,327) - -
(decrement)

Transfers from other reserves 9.1(b) - 72,907 - (62,485) (10,512)

Transfers to other reserves 9.1(b) - (60,019) - 37,360 22,659

Balance at end of the financial year 3,944,937 2,616,282 1,174,758 45,263 108,634

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

City of Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21 121




image123.png
Financial Report

Statement of Cash Flows ror the year ended 30 June 2021

2021 2020
Inflows/ Inflows/

(Outflows)  (Outflows)
$'000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities

Rates and charges 165,630 158,837
Statutory fees and fines 15,554 14,326
User fees 1,145 13,939
Grants - operating 33,520 34,636
Grants - capital 11,377 3,492
Contributions - monetary 19,332 18,579
Interest received 1,150 3,451
Trust funds and deposits taken 7,455 6,296
Other receipts 5,403 4,534
Net GST refund/(payment) 811 (1,434)
Employee costs (99,518) (89,914)
Materials and services (65,113) (89,914)
Short-term, low value and variable lease payments (679) (490)
Trust funds and deposits repaid (7,554) (6,438)
Other payments (15,372) (13,191)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 9.2 73,141 80,553

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.1 (54,334) (65,838)
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 759 2,295
Payments for investments 50,000 -
Payments of loans and advances - 12,500
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (3,575) (51,043)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs (220) (660)
Repayment of borrowings (6,546) (5,120)
Interest paid - lease liability (16) (22)
Repayment of lease lizbilities (255) (451)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (7,037) (6,253)
Net increase (decrease] in cash and cash equivalents 62,529 23,257
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 74,289 51,032
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 136,818 74,289

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Capital Works For the year ended 30 June 2021

2021 2020
000 $'000

Property
Buildings 6,655 4,802
Building improvements 6,561 5,933
Total buildings 13,216 10,735
Total property 13,216 10,735
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 719 1,833
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 780 495
Computers and telecommunications 331 807
Artworks - 164
Total plant and equipment 1,830 3,299
Infrastructure
Roads 17,489 23,570
Bridges 50 104
Footpaths and cycleways 2,114 2,379
Drainage 448 428
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 6,086 15,366
Parks, open space and streetscapes 11,108 7,749
Off street car parks 27 232
Other infrastructure 1,966 1976
Total infrastructure 39,288 51,804
Total capital works expenditure 54,334 65,838
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 22,877 33,588
Asset renewal expenditure 19,827 16,795
Asset expansion expenditure 152 56
Asset upgrade expenditure 11,478 15,399
Total capital works expenditure 54,334 65,838

* The Statement of Capital Works comparative information has been reclassified between assets classes where a

different class is considered a better representation of asset type.

The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Report For the year ended 30 June 2021

OVERVIEW

Introduction

The City of Whittlesea was established
by an Order of the Governor in
Council on 15 December 1994 and

is a body corporate. The Council's
main office is located at 25 Ferres
Boulevard, South Morang, Victoria.

The purpose of the Council is to:

+ provide for the peace, order and
good government of its municipal
district;

* to promote the social, economic
and environmental viability and
sustainability of the municipal
district;

* toensure that resources are
used efficiently and effectively
and services are provided in
accordance with the best value

+ principles to best meet the needs
of the local community;

« toimprove the overall quality
of life of people in the local
community;

 to promote appropriate business
and employment opportunities;

* toensure that services and
facilities provided by the Council
are accessible and equitable;

* toensure the equitable imposition
of rates and charges; and

* toensure transparency and
accountability in Council decision
making.

The City of Whittlesea has the
following key business relationships
External Auditor - Auditor-General of
Victoria

Internal Auditor - Crowe Horwath
Bankers - Westpac Banking
Corporation

Website address -
wwwwhittlesea.vic.gov.au

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are a
general purpose financial report that
consists of a Comprehensive Income
Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement
of Changes in Equity, Statement of
Cash Flows, Statement of Capital
Works and Notes accompanying these
financial statements. The general
purpose financial report complies
with the Australian Accounting
Standards (AAS), other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board, the Local
Government Act 1989, and the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014

Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of accounting

The accrual basis of accounting has
been used in the preparation of
these financial statements, whereby
assets, liabilities, equity, income

and expenses are recognised in the
reporting period to which they relate,
regardless of when cash is received or
paid.

Judgements, estimates and
assumptions are required to be made
about the carrying values of assets
nd liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated judgements
are based on professional judgement
derived from historical experience
and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which
the estimate is revised and also in
future periods that are affected

by the revision. Judgements and
assumptions made by management
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in the application of AAS's that have
significant effects on the financial
statements and estimates relate to:

* the fair value of land, buildings,
infrastructure, plant and
equipment (refer to Note 6.1)

«  the determination of depreciation
for buildings, infrastructure, plant
and equipment {refer to Note 6.1)

«  the determination of employee
provisions (refer to Note 5.5)

« the determination of landfill
provisions (refer to Note 5.5)

« the determination of whether
performance obligations
are sufficiently specific so
as to determine whether an
arrangement is within the scope of
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers or AASB 1058
Income of Not-for-Profit Entities
(refer to Note 3)

« the determination, in accordance
with AASB 16 Leases, of the
lease term, the estimation of the
discount rate when not implicit
in the lease and whether an
arrangement is in substance short-
term or low value (refer to Note
5.8)

« whether or not AASB 1059 Service
Concession Arrangements:
Grantors is applicable (refer to
Note 8.2)

« other areas requiring judgements

Unless otherwise stated, all
accounting policies are consistent with
those applied in the prior year. Where
appropriate, comparative figures have
been amended to accord with current
presentation, and disclosure has been
made of any material changes to
comparatives,
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(b) Impact of COVID-19

0On 16 March 2020 a state of
emergency was declared in Victoria
due to the global pandemic COVID-19
virus, known as coronavirus. A state of
disaster was subsequently declared on
2 August 2020. While the impacts of
the pandemic have abated somewhat
through the 2020-21 year, Council has
noted the following significant impacts
on its financial operations:

« In response to government
directives arising from the
COVID-19 outbreak, Council
leisure centres, community
activity centres, sports facilities

and recreation facilities were
closed. These closures resulted in
a decrease in the income of $2.91
million.

In response to community needs,
Council's direct response including
financial support to community
organisations added additional
expense of $1.57 million.

Council has received grant funding
from State Government of Victoria
under the Working for Victoria
($5.46 million) and Outdoor Eating
and Entertainment Program ($0.50
million) to support communities
and businesses in response to
covip-18.

Financial Report

« Council is committed to
providing support to those
within community who are
experiencing financial hardship
due the COVID-18 pandemic and
has implemented its COVID-19
Financial Hardship Policy. Council
provided $0.76 million direct relief
to ratepayers by electing to not
charge interest on overdue rates.

The impact of COVID-19 has not
materially affected Council's
operations and has not led to any
asset impairment changes for the year
ended 30 June 2021.
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Note 1 Performance against budget

This performance against budget note
compares the City of Whittlesea’s
financial plan, expressed through its
annual budget, with actual performance.
The Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires
explanation of any material variances,
Council has adopted a materiality
threshold with explanations provided
if the variance is greater than 10%

or is greater than $1m. Explanations
have not been provided for variations

1.1 Income and expenditure

below the materiality threshold unless
the variance is considered to be
material because of its nature

The budget figures detailed below
are those adopted by Council on 19
June 2020. The Budget was based on
assumptions that were relevant at
the time of adoption of the Budget.
Council sets guidelines and parameters
for revenue and expense targets in
this budget in order to meet Council's

planning and financial performance
targets for both the short and long-
term. The budget did not reflect any
changes to equity resulting from asset
revaluations, as their impacts were
not considered predictable

These notes are prepared to meet
the requirements of the Local
Government Act 1989 and the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014.

Variance Variance Ref

2021 2021

$'000 %
Income
Rates and charges 170,108 170,062 (a6) 0%
Statutory fees and fines 17,538 19,861 2,323 13% 1
User fees 6,841 4,307 (2,534) 87% 2
Grants - operating 27,806 33,520 5,714 21% 3
Grants - capital 3,865 11,377 7,512 194% 4
Contributions - monetary 11,987 19,332 7,345 61% 5
Contributions - non monetary 102,039 140,369 38,330 38% 6
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, 102 731 629 617% 7
infrastructure, plant and equipment
Share of net profits/(losses) of associates and joint - 300 300 0%
Other income 6,300 5,008 (1,292) -21% 8
Total income 346,586 404,867 58,281 17%
Expenses
Employee costs 94,521 99,825 (5,304) 6% 9
Materials and services 71,281 79,582 (8,301) -12% 10
Depreciation 31,087 38,079 (6,992) -22% 11
Amortisation - Intangible assets 113 120 Y] -6%
Amortisation - Right of use assets 121 314 (193) -160% 12
8ad and doubtful debts 403 10,733 (10,330) -2563% 13
Borrowing costs 2,604 220 2,384 92% 14
Finance costs - Leases 37 16 21 57% 15
Net loss on write-off of property, Infrastructure, - 23,031 (23,031) 0% 16
plant and equipment
Other expenses 14,642 15372 (730) 5%
Total expenses 214,809 267,292 (52,483) -24%
Surplus for the year 131,777 137,575 5,798 4%
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Note 1 Performance against budget

1.1 Income and expenditure

(i) Explanation of material variations

Variance Ref Item Explanation

1 Statutory fees and fines The favourable variance to budget is mainly due to infringement
income and higher than budgeted Construction Supervision fees as the
growth that flowed on from the previous financial year was higher than
anticipated.

2 User fees The unfavourable variance to budget is largely due to the impact of
State Government imposed lock down restrictions throughout the year
in response to the COVID-18 pandemic. This forced the closure of all
non-essential services, including all aquatic and leisure centres and
community centres which impacted Council's revenue received from
these facilities,

3 Grants - operating The favourable variance to budget is largely due to unbudgeted
Working for Victoria grant income that was received during the year.
This unbudgeted income offsets the unfavourable variance in employee
benefits expense.

4 Grants - capital The favourable variance to budget is due to @ number of successful
applications for capital grant funding that were received throughout the
year and were unbudgeted,

5 Contributions - monetary The favourable variance to budget is due to higher than anticipated
developer contributions being received during the year as a result of
continued growth throughout the municipality.

6 Contributions - non monetary  The favourable variance to budget is due to the amount of non-cash
assets transferred to Council from developers being higher than
anticipated as a result of continued growth throughout the municipality.

7 Net gein/(loss) on disposal  The favourable variance to budget is primarily due to the gain on disposal

of property, infrastructure,  of plant and equipment assets that occurred during the period.
plant and equipment

8 Other Income The unfavourable variance to budget is primarily due to interest on
investments being below budget following significant interest rate
reductions throughout the year that were greater than anticipated

9 Employee costs The unfavourable variance to budget is mainly attributable to Working
for Victoria positions across the organisation, which are fully funded
by operating grant income from the State Government in 2019/20 and
2020/21.

10 Materials and services The unfavourable variance to budget is primarily due to unbudgeted
expenditure relating to reimbursements paid in connection with the over
provision of works in kind for a Developer Contribution Plan. The variance
represents a timing difference that will be offset against future developer
contribution collected by Council.

11 Depreciation The unfavourable variance to budget is due to the budget having a
conservative estimate based on the previous financial year. Depreciation
has increased from $36.31 million in 2019/20 to $38.1 million in 2020/21
Depreciation expense can vary due to new works and revaluations on
existing assets.
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Note 1 Performance against budget

1.1 Income and expenditure

(i) Explanation of material variations (cont)

item Explanation
12 Amortisation - Right of use  The unfavourable variance to budget s due to higher than anticipated
assets operating leases as a result of the change in accounting treatment for

Council's operating leases.

13 8ad and doubtful debts The unfavourable variance to budget is due to provisions raised against a
number of Council's debtor balances during the year where there it has
been assessed that there is doubt that payment wil be received.

14 Borrowing costs The favourable variance to budget in interest expense was the result of
anticipated and budgeted new borrowings not being taken out during the
year.

15 Finance costs - Leases The favourable variance to budget is due to lower than anticipated
operating leases &s a result of a lease expiring earlier than anticipated

16 Net loss on write-off of The unfavourable variance to budget is due to write-off of infrastructure

property, Infrastructure, and land assets that occurred during the year.

plant and equipment
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Note 1 Performance against budget

1.2 Capital works

Variance Variance Ref
2021 2021
$'000 %
Property
Land 7,332 - 7,332 100% 1
Total land 7,332 - 7,332 100%
Buildings 7,938 6,655 1,283 16% 2
Building improvements 7,310 6,561 748 10%
Total buildings 15,248 13,216 2,032 13%
Total property 22,580 13,216 9,364 1%

Plant and equipment

Plant, machinery and equipment 1,217 719 498 41% 4
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 151 780 (629) -417%
Computers and telecommunications 432 331 101 23% 6
Total plant and equipment 1,800 1,830 (30) 2%
Infrastructure

Roads 33,977 17,489 16,488 4% 7
Bridges 100 50 50 50%
Footpaths and cycleways 2,864 2,114 750 26% 9
Drainage 355 448 (93) 26% 10
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 7,826 6,086 1,740 2% 11
Parks, open space and streetscapes 11,952 11,108 844 7%

Off street car parks 70 27 43 61% 12
Other infrastructure 2,695 1,966 729 27% 13
Total infrastructure 59,839 39,288 20,551 34%
Total capital works expenditure 84,219 54,334 29,885 35%

Represented by:

New asset expenditure 49,124 22,877 26,247 53%
Asset renewal expenditure 22,933 19,827 3,106 14%
Asset expansion expenditure 150 152 (2) 2%
Asset upgrade expenditure 12,012 11,478 534 4%
Total capital works expenditure 84,219 54,334 29,885 35%

* The adopted budget amount of 20/21 financial year includes $9.7 million of carry forwards approved by Council
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Note 1 Performance against budget

1.2 Capital works

(i) Explanation of material variations

Variance Ref Item Explanation

1 Land The favourable variance to budget is due to land acquisition projects
removed from the capital works program as their timing is unknown when
negotiations with developers are finalised for the acquisition of land.

2 Buildings The favourable variance to budget predominately due to project savings
and delays to delivery of the projects due to COVID-19.

3 Building improvements The favourable variance to budget s resulting from 2 delayed
kindergarten upgrade projects (The Stables, Mill Park and Laurel Street,
Whittlesea) awaiting the outcome of 3 year old determination by Council.

4 Plant, machinery and The favourable variance to budget due to slow down in the plant

equipment. replacement program as a result of service review.

5 Fixtures, fittings and furniture  The unfavourable variance to budget mainly due to the decision to
purchase new gym equipment for Mill Park leisure fit out rather then
leasing.

5 Computers and The favourable variance to budget primarily due to less than anticipated

telecommunications demands for IT equipment replacement due to staff working from home

during COVID-18 lockdown.

7 Roads The favourable variance to budget due to the removal of five road
construction projects from the capital works program ($13.3m) resulting
from delays in negotiations with developers which has delayed the delivery
of the projects. Rebudgeted in future years when a Section 173 is in-place
to progress the works as Works in Kind / delivery by the developer.

H Bridges The variance to budget due to planned re-decking of some bridges has
been delayed due to the lack of availability of specified timber due to the
impact of COVID-19.

9 Footpaths and cycleways The favourable variance in budget primarily due to two projects that are
funded across multiple years with surplus funds in 20/21 contributing
towards the construction of the projects in 21/22 financial year. Further,
one project construction is being delayed awaiting approval of CHMP
(Cultural Heritage Management Plan).

10 Drainage The unfavourable variance to budget primarily due to overspend of
drainage project at Laurimar Recreation Reserve in 20/21 that is funded
across two years which balances the project budget across the 2 years of
the project.

1 Recreational, leisure and The favourable variance is predominantly due to a project (HR Uren

community facilities Sportsfield) that was delayed pending the outcome of a grant application
which required that the award of a contract and commencement could
not start before the funding.

12 Off street car parks The favourable variance is due to the Car Park Rehabilitation project
being delivered in conjunction with another project across 2 financial
years to enable better pricing and less disruption to the site.

13 Other infrastructure The favourable variance is primarily due to the Street Light Replacement
Program that was underspent due to limited contractor availability during
the COVID lockdown.
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Note 2 Analysis of Council results by program

Council delivers its functions and
activities through the following programs.

2 (a) Office of the CEO

The Chief Executive Officer division
supports the provision of a range of
professional services to internal and
external customers, with an emphasis
on Governance related issues. It is
also responsible for establishing

and maintaining an appropriate
organisational structure for the council,
ensuring that council decisions are
implemented promptly, overseeing the
daily management of council operations
following the council plan, developing
2 code of conduct for council staff and
providing timely advice to the council.
The CEO is also the main person to
which council delegates powers.

Community Wellbeing
The Community Services division works

closely with the community and external
service providers and interest groups to

provide and support a variety of services,
programs, events and facilities. The aim
of these services is to build resilient
communities that can maximise their
potential, and assist these communities
to be healthy, resilient and independent.

Planning and Development

The Planning and Development division
is central to achieving Council's vision
of creating vibrant self-sustaining
communities together. The Directorate
aims to improve the social and economic
welling being the Whittlesea community
and foster strong, resilient and connected
local communities. The Directorate
also provides important services to the
community and organisation, including
governance and council business,
marketing and communications,
advocacy, community and social
planning, heritage coordination,
research and engagement, economic
development, Local Laws enforcement,
community grants and customer service.

Financial Report

Infrastructure and Environment

The Infrastructure and Environment
division seeks to shape  city that is well
connected and accessible, has active
and safe public spaces and community
facilities, and is environmentally
sustainable. It does so through the
delivery of new infrastructure, the
provision of services that ensure the
maintenance and management of

the city’s streets, public spaces and
buildings, and through advocacy to
the State Government.

Corporate Services

The Corporate Services division
provides strategic advice and support
across the organisation on financiel,
technology, property, procurement,
safety and wellbeing and humen
resource matters. It reviews its
resources and processes to achieve
efficiencies for its internal and
external customers and to enable the
delivery of Council's long-term vision.

2 (b) Summary of revenues, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program

Expenses

$'000

Grants  Total assets
included in
income

$'000

Surplus/
(Deficit)

$'000 $'000

Office of the CEO 848 13,932 (13,084) 228 68
Community Wellbeing 14,593 45,031 (30,438) 12,599 312,179
Planning and Development 13,839 35,015 (21,176) 2,415 46,498
Infrastructure and Environment 26,995 77,708 (50,713) 13,754 3,637,210
Corporate Services 348,592 95,606 252,986 15,901 291,396
404,867 267,292 137,575 44,897 4,287,351
Expenses Surplus/ Grants  Total assets

(Deficit)  included in

income
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Office of the CEO 230 8,636 (8,406) B 65
Community Wellbeing 13,491 39,538 (26,047) 10,199 170,335
Planning and Development 12,695 23,462 (10,767) 1,120 12,357
Infrastructure and Environment 15,176 104,673 (89,497) 4,260 3,479,772
Corporate Services 285,161 38,969 246,192 22,540 360,782
326,753 215,278 111,475 38,128 4,023,311
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services
3.1 Rates and charges

2021
$'000

2020
$'000

The City of Whittlesea uses Net Annual Value (NAV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal

district. The NAV of a property is its imputed rental value.

The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2020-21 year was $3,083 million (2019-20 $2,924 million).

General rates 157,584 148,298
Waste management charge 9,466 9,017
Special rates (marketing schemes) 248 242
Supplementary rates and rate adjustments 2,623 4,019
Interest on rates and charges 141 780
Total rates and charges 170,062 162,356

The date of the latest general revaluation of property for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January

2021, and the valuation will be first applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2021

Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices. Supplementary rates are

recognised when a valuation and reassessment is completed and a supplementary rates nofice is issued.

3.2 Statutory fees and fines

2021 2020

$'000 $'000
Infringements and costs 5,800 3,346
Court recoveries™ 221 126
Permit fees 7,340 6,764
Certificates and regulatory service fees Total statutory fees and fines 6,500 6,026
Total rates and charges 19,861 16,262

*Court recoveries income has been reclassified from Other Income to Statutory fees and fines in the comparative period

Statutory fees and fines {including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been

provided, the payment is received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs.

3.3 User fees

2021 2020

$'000 $'000
Registrations 1,494 1,734
Leisure centre fees 317 389
Property leases and rentals 1,305 1818
Tip fees 1,101 1,125
Other fees and charges - 977
Total user fees 4,307 6,043

User fees are recognised as revenue at 2 point in time, or over time, when (or as) the performance obligation s satisfied.

Recognition is based on the underlying contractual terms.
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services

3.4 Funding from other levels of government

Grants were received in respect of the following:

Summary of grants

Financial Report

Commonwealth funded grants 22,666 21,557
State funded grants 20,600 16,506
Other 1,631 65
Total grants received 44,897 38,128
(a) Operating Grants

Recurrent - Commonwealth Government

Financial Assistance Grants 15,276 15,026
Home & Community Care 4,801 4,854
Community Wellbeing 19 32
Recurrent - State Government

Early Years 390 222
Family Day Care 850 777
Home and Community Care 871 1,271
Community Development 76 o7
Community Wellbeing 440 269
Maternal and Child health 3,723 2,914
Resilience and Emergency Management &0 60
Youth Services 12 12
Sustainability Planning 10 15
Recurrent - Other

Pedestrian Crossings 731 661
VicRoads Maintenance Contract - Additional Works 892 640
Total recurrent operating grants 28,151 26,850
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services

3.4 Funding from other levels of government (cont)

Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government

Smart Cities IT Project 71 288
Non-recurrent - State Government

Maternal & Child Health 104 38
Early Years o1 43
Community Wellbeing 83 2
Youth services o5 -
Infrastructure - 3
Leisure & Community Inclusion 64 8
Community Cultural Development 36 24
Economic Development 500 20
Sustainability Planning 287 25
Victorian Planning Authority design guidelines open space 64 33
Victorian Planning Authority Liveability matrix - 75
Working for Victoria 3,966 7,131
Recycling rebate - 31
Non-recurrent - Other

Living Rivers - 38
Community Wellbeing 8 13
Other - 14
Total non-recurrent operating grants 5,369 7,786
Total operating grants 33,520 34,636
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services

3.4 Funding from other levels of government (cont)

(b) Capital Grants

Recurrent - Commonwealth Government

Financial

Report

Roads to recovery 1,700 1,357
Recurrent - State Government

Buildings - 360
Parks and Gardens 100 20
Roads 450 82
Total recurrent capital grants 2,250 1,819
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government

Rozds 378 -
Buildings 200 -
Parks & Gardens 221 -
Non-recurrent - State Government

Buildings 3,810 1,074
Parks and Gardens 1,071 285
Rozds 3,447 (328)
Non-recurrent - Others

Roads - 642
Total non-recurrent capital grants 9,127 1,673
Total capital grants 11,377 3,492
(c) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner

Operating

Balance at start of year 10,703 8,116
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 6,165 9,545
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (10,703)

Balance at year end 6,165 10,703
Capital

Balance at start of year 7,522 11,426
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 16,150 7,522
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (7,522) (11,426)
Balance at year end 16,150 7,522

Grant income is recognised at the point in time when the council satisfies its performance obligations as specified in the

underlying agreement.
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services

3.5 Contributions

2021 2020
$'000 $'000
Monetary 19,332 18,579
Non-monetary* 140,369 79,547
Total contributions 159,701 98,126

*Council received higher non-monetary contributions in comparison to the comparative period due to continued growth
in the Wollert and Donnybrook areas where a number of estates have commenced development in recent years.

Contributions of non monetary assets were received in relation to the following asset classes.

Land 27,332 25
Roads 68,881 53,438
Other infrastructure 44,156 26,084
Total non-monetary contributions 140,369 79,547

Monetary and non monetary contributions are recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over the contributed
asset.

Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services

3.6 Net gain/(loss) on property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

2021 2020
$'000 $'000
(a) Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Proceeds of sale 759 861
Written down value of assets disposed (28) (3,209)
Total net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 731 (2,348)

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.

(b) Net loss on write-off of property, Infrastructure, plant and equipment

Written down value of assets written-off* (23,031) -

Total net loss on write-off of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (23,031) -

*Council written-off a number of infrastructure ssets during the year.
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services

3.7 Other income

2021 2020

$'000 $'000
Sales 889 604
Interest 1,181 3,452
Reimbursements 2,938 3,861
Other - 18
Total other income 5,008 7,935

Interest is recognised as it is earned,

Reimbursements mainly consist of WorkCover and insurance recovered, and reimbursements of capital works
undertaken. Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised
when Council gains control over the right to receive the income.

Note 4 The cost of delivering services

4.1 (a) Employee costs

2021 2020
$'000 $'000

Wages and salaries 89,793 81,978

WorkCover 1,413 1,413

Superannuation 8,497 7,435

Fringe benefits tax 122 175

Other - (©)

Total employee costs 99,825 91,479

(b) Superannuation

Council made contributions to the following funds:

Defined benefit fund

Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 166 183

166 183

Employer contributions payable at reporting date. 7 6

Accumulation funds

Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 8,331 7,252
8,331 7,252

Employer contributions payable at reporting date. 352 194

Refer to note 8.3 for further information relating to Council's superannuation obligations
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Note 4 The cost of delivering services

4.2 Materials and services

External Works (Contractors)

Maintenance and Operations Contractors 17,778 16,869
Sustainable Environment Contractors 17,575 15,132
Assets and Facilities Contractors 4,157 5,555
Information Services Contractors 2,206 1,202
Support Services 8,739 8,870
Design Work 6 3
Facilities Management 1,564 1,764
Supplies and Services 8,847 7,619
Plant and Fleet Operations 2,411 1,860
Computer Services 2,590 2,033
Communications 1,210 1,221
Catering Supplies 430 301
Construction Materials 720 830
Travel and Accommodation 57 154
Total materials and services 79,582 72,119

Note 4 The cost of delivering services

4.3 Depreciation

2021 2020
$'000 $'000
Property 6,550 6,159
Plant and equipment 2,501 2,238
Infrastructure 29,028 27,916
Total depreciation 38,079 36,313

Refer to note 6.1 for 2 more detailed breakdown of depreciation and amortisation charges and accounting policy.

Note 4 The cost of delivering services

4.4 Amortisation - Intangible assets

2021 2020
$'000 $'000
Intangible assets 120 125
Total Amortisation - Intangible assets 120 125
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Note 4 The cost of delivering services

4.5 Amortisation - Right of use assets

2021 2020

$'000 $'000

Property 265 452

Plant and equipment 49 -

Total Amortisation - Right of use assets 314 452
Note 4 The cost of delivering services

4.6 Bad and doubtful debts

2021 2020

$'000 $'000

Infringements debtors 8,944 737

Other debtors 1,789 -

Total bad and doubtful debts 10,733 737

*Provision for doubtful debts has been increased in accordance with the requirements accounting standards after a
review of long outstanding debt and an assessment of the probability of collection.

Movement in provisions for doubtful debts

Balance at the beginning of the year (1,298) (1,121)
New provisions recognised during the year (10,626) (483)
Amounts already provided for and written off as uncollectible 1 308
Balance at end of year (11,923) (1,298)

Provision for doubtful debt is recognised based on an expected credit loss model. This model considers both historic and
forward looking information in determining the level of impairment.

Note 4 The cost of delivering services

4.7 Borrowing costs

2021 2020

$'000 $'000
Interest - Borrowings 220 660
Total borrowing costs 220 660

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the periad in which they are incurred, except where they are capitalised
as part of a qualifying asset constructed by Council.

City of Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21 139




image141.png
Financial Report

Note 4 The cost of delivering services

4.8 Finance Costs - Leases

2021 2020
$'000 $'000
Interest - Lease Liabilities 16 22
Total finance costs 16 22
Note 4 The cost of delivering services
4.8 Other expenses
2021 2020
$'000 $'000
Auditors' remuneration - VAGO - audit of the financial statements, performance 69 67
statement and grant acquittals
Auditors' remuneration - Internal 113 114
Contributions
- Grants to community 2,437 1,687
- Yarra Plenty Regional Library Contributions 5172 4,896
Councillors’ allowances - 334
Insurance premiums 1,762 1,187
Utilities 3,276 4,014
Others 2,543 1,062
Total other expenses 15,372 13,371
Note 5 Our financial position
5.1 Financial assets
2021 2020
$'000 $'000
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 10 1
Cash at bank 3,003 9,278
Term deposits 133,805 65,000
Total cash and cash equivalents " 1ses1s 74289
(b) Other financial assets
Term deposits - current 75,000 130,000
Term deposits - non-current 5,000 -
Total other financial assets 80,000 130,000
Total financial assets 216,818 204,289
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Note 5 Our financial position

5.1 Financial assets (cont)

Councils cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit amounts available for discretionary use.
These include:

Trust funds and deposits (Note 5.3 (b)) 16,005 16,104
Asset development reserves (note 9.1(b)) 127,924 108,634
Total restricted funds 143,929 124,738
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 72,889 79,551

Intended allocations
Although not externally restricted the following amounts have been allocated for specific future purposes by Council

Cash held to fund Carried forward capital works 14,541 9,695
Unexpended grants and subsidies 22,315 18,225
Asset replacement reserves 58,173 45,263
Total funds subject to intended allocations 95,029 73,183

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and ther highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposits are measured at original cost.
Any unrealised gains and losses on holdings at balance date are recognised as either a revenue or expense.

(¢) Trade and other receivables

Current

Statutory receivables
Rates debtors 19,765 15,333
Infringement debtors 11,683 9,273
Provision for doubtful debts - infringements (10,134) (1,208)
Net GST receivable 2,324 3,135

Non statutory receivables

Other debtors 8,326 5,164
Provision for doubtful debts - Other debtors* (1,789) -
Total current trade and other receivables 30,175 31,607

*Provision for doubtful debts has been increased in accordance with the requirements accounting standards after a
review of long outstanding debt and an assessment of the probability of collection.

Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. A provision for doubtful debs is recognised when there is
objective evidence that an impairment has occurred. Long term receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.
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Note 5 Our financial position

5.1 Financial assets (cont)

(d) Ageing of Receivables

The ageing of the Council's trade and other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) that are not impaired was:

Current (not yet due) 4,627 2,106
Past due by up to 30 days 406 350
Past due between 31 and 180 days 295 2,708
Past due between 181 and 365 days 1,333 -
Past due by more than 1 year 1,665 -
Total trade and other receivables 8,326 5,164

(e) Ageing of individually impaired Receivables

At balance date, other and infringement debtors representing financial assets with a nominal value of $11.9m
(2020: $1.3m] were impaired. The amount of the provision raised against these debtors was $10.6m (2020: $0.5m).
They individually have been impaired as a result of their doubtful collection.

The ageing of receivables that have been individually determined as impaired at reporting date was:

Past due between 31 and 180 days 226 -
Past due between 181 2nd 365 days 950 -
Past due by more than 1 year 10,747 1,298
Total trade & other receivables 11,923 1,298

Note 5 Our financial position

5.2 Non-financial assets

(a) Inventories

Fuels 33 36
Depot workshop items and signs 294 275
Stationery and other consumables* - 31
Total inventories 327 342

*Stationery and other consumable inventories have been recognised as an expense as incurred due to a change in
accounting policy during the period.

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss of service potential. Al
other inventories, including land held for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Where
inventories are acquired for no cost or nominal consideration, they are measured at current replacement cost at the
date of acquisition.
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5.2 Non-financial assets (cont)

Financial Report

2021 2020
$'000 $'000
(b) Other assets
Accrued interest 567 536
Prepayments 456 587
Other 215 62
Total other assets 1,238 1,185
(c) Other financial assets
Shares in MAPS Group Ltd 22 22
Total other financial assets 22 22
(d) Intangible assets
Software 770 820
Total intangible assets 770 890
Software Total
$'000 $'000
Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2020 1,199 1,199
Additions from internal developments - -
Other additions - -
Balance at 1July 2021 1,199 1,199
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at 1 July 2020 309 309
Amortisation expense 120 120
Balance at 1July 2021 429 429
Net book value at 30 June 2020 890 890
Net book value at 30 June 2021 770 770

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised as an expense on a systematic basis over the asset's useful life.
Amortisation is generally calculated on 2 straight line basis, at a rate that allocates the asset value, less any estimated
residual value over its estimated useful life. Estimates of the remaining useful lives and amortisation method are

reviewed at least annually, and adjustments made where appropriate.
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Note 5 Our financial position

5.3 Payables

(a) Trade and other payables

Trade payables 12,816 12,752
Accrued expenses 6,983 5,400
Other 493 931
Total trade and other payables 20,392 19,083

(b) Trust funds and deposits

Refundable deposits 11,623 13,797
Fire services property levy 2,917 2,076
Retention amounts 63 41
Other refundable deposits 1,402 190
Total trust funds and deposits 16,005 16,104

(c) Unearned income

Grants received in advance - operating 6,165 2,458
Grants received in advance - capital 16,150 7,522
Total unearned income 22,315 9,980

Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they are
returned, transferred in accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited, resulting
in council gaining control of the funds, are to be recognised as revenue at the time of forfeit.

Purpose and nature of items

Fire Service Levy - Council is the collection agent for fire services levy on behalf of the State Government. Council remits
amounts received on a quarterly basis. Amounts disclosed here will be remitted to the state government in line with that
process.

Retention Amounts - Council has a contractual right to retain certain amounts until a contractor has met certain
requirements or a related warrant or defect period has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the
contractual obligations, or the elapsing of time, these amounts will be paid to the relevant contractor in line with
Council's contractual obligations.
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5.4 Interest-bearing liabilities

Financial Report

Current
Borrowings - secured 788 1,950
788 1,990

Non-current

Borrowings - secured 1,753 7,097
1,753 7,097

Total 2,541 9,087

(a) The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is:

Not later than one year 788 1,950

Later than one year and not later than five years 1,753 7,097
2,541 9,087

Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, being the cost of the interest bearing lizbilities, net of transaction costs
The measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether the Council has categorised its interest-
bearing liabilities as either financial liabilities designated at fair value through the profit and loss, or financial liabilities at
amortised cost. Any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value is recognised in net result

over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the interest bearing liabilities. The Council determines the

classification of its interest bearing liabilities at initial recognition.

Note 5 Our financial position
5.5 Provisions

Annual leave

Long service

leave
$'000 $'000

Balance at beginning of the financial year 7,283 15,089 658 23,030
Additional provisions 4,947 (301) 1,640 6,196
Amounts used (4,843) (632) (18) (5,493)
Chenge in the discounted amount arising because of time - (345) (51) (396)
nd the effect of any change in the discount rate

Balance at the end of the financial year 7,387 13,721 2,229 23,337

Annual leave

Long service

leave
$'000 $'000

Balance at beginning of the financial year 6,264 14,454 747 21,465
Additional provisions 1,033 2,439 52 3,524
Amounts used (14) (1,540) (141) (1,695)
Change in the discounted amount arising because of time - (264) - (264)
and the effect of any change in the discount rate
Balance at the end of the financial year 7,283 15,089 658 23,030
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Note 5 Our financial position
5.5 Provisions (cont)

2021 2020
$'000

(a) Employee provisions

Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months

Annual leave 5,407 5,331
Long service leave 1,372 1,712
Other 223 658

7,002 7,701

Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months

Annual leave 1,980 1,952
Long service leave 10,791 10,509
Other 1,849 -

14,620 12,461
Total current employee provisions 21,622 20,162

Non-current

Long service leave 1,558 2,868
Other 157 -
Total non-current employee provisions 1,715 2,868

Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:

Current 21,622 20,162
Non-current 1,715 2,868
Total aggregate carrying amount of employee 23,337 23,030

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting
date.

Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulated sick leave expected
to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits in
respect of employee services up to the reporting date, classified as current liabilities and measured at their nominal
values

Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the
provision for employee benefits as current liabilities, measured at the present value of the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled sing the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Long service leave

Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. LSL is measured at present
value. Unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current liability. Conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an employee is
yet to reach a qualifying term of employment, is disclosed as a non - current liability.

Key assumptions: -

Weighted average discount rates 1.14% 0.87%
Weighted average increase in employee costs 2.00% 4.25%
Weighted average settlement period (months) 13 13
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Note 5 Our financial position
5.6 Financing arrangements

2021 2020
$'000

The Council has the following funding arrangements in place as at 30 June 2021.

Bank overdraft 200 200
Credit card facilities 383 488
Total facilities 583 688
Used fecilities (41) (s)
Unused facilities 542 683

Note 5 Our financial position

5.7 Commitments

The Council has entered into the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet.
Commitments are disclosed at their nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST payable.

Not later Laterthan1  Laterthan Laterthan5

than1year yearandnot 2 yearsand years
later than 2 not later
years than 5 years
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Operating

Consultancy 444 150 - - 594
Building maintenance 2,800 2,800 3,506 - 9,106
Health 1,760 364 - - 2,124
Information technology and systems 6,517 2,373 524 - 9,414
Waste and recycling 11,771 9,629 19,202 17,710 58,312
Transport & local laws 6,974 6,361 7,723 3,122 24,180
Infrastructure 41 - - - 41
Parks Maintenance 15,355 14,001 24,518 28 53,902
Leisure 774 - - - 774
Renewable power 3,156 3,156 6,311 17,378 30,001
Other 3,136 137 - - 3,273
Total 52,728 38,971 61,784 38,238 191,721
Capital

Building works 9,068 8 - - 9,152
Transport & local laws 29,393 19,838 - - 49,231
Infrastructure 612 11 - - 623
Parks works 3,754 105 - - 3,859
Leisure 142 132 263 109 646
Total 42,969 20,170 263 109 63,511
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Note 5 Our financial position

5.7 Commitments (cont)

Not later  Later than 1 Later than  Later than 5
than 1year yearandnot 2 yearsand years
later than 2 not later
years than5 years
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Operating
Building maintenance 1,711 1,425 1,358 - 4,494
Health 872 232 677 - 1,781
Information technology and systems 11,164 5,309 2,721 - 19,194
Waste and recycling 5,754 5,754 27,332 - 38,840
Transport & local laws 5,332 1,712 7,582 - 14,626
Infrastructure 40 - - - 40
Parks Maintenance 9,792 9,792 49,125 - 68,709
Leisure 1332 57 - - 1,389
Other 6,343 1,669 134 - 8,146
Total 42,340 25,950 88,929 - 157,219
Capital
Consultancy 64 - - - 64
Building works 784 3 - - 787
Information technology and systems 424 92 8 - 524
Transport & local laws 16,973 16,662 36,350 4,824 74,809
Infrastructure 12,344 6 - - 12,350
Parks works 9 - - - 9
Leisure 5,477 13 - - 5,490
Other 7 3 - - 10
Total 36,082 16,779 36,358 4,824 94,043

*The commitments for the comparative period have been changed to include schedule of rate contracts awarded which
were excluded from the last year.
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Note 5 Our financial position

5.8 Leases

At inception, all contracts are reviewed to determine whether they contain leasing arrangements. A contract is, or

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange

for consideration. To identify whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, it is necessary

to assess whether:

« The contract involves the use of an identified asset;

« The customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of use; and

* The customer has the right to direct the use of the asset.

This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 July 2018.

As a lessee, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use

asset is initially measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for:

+ any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received; plus

« any initial direct costs incurred; and

« an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the

earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of

right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-

use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certein measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement

tincremental borrowing rate. Generally, Council uses an appropriate incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following;

* Fixed payments

« Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initizlly measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

«  Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

« The exercise price under a purchase option that Council is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional
renewal period if Council is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a
lease unless Council is reasonably certain not to terminate.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Council has elected to 2pply the temporary option available under AASB 16 Leases which allows not-for-profit entities to
not measure right-of-use assets at initial recognition at fair value in respect of leases that have significantly below-market
terms.

Property Plant and

equipment

$'000 $'000

Right-of-Use Assets

Balance at 1 July 2020 1,083 - 1,083
Additions - 61 61
Amortisation charge (265) (49) (314)
Balance at 30 June 2021 818 12 830
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Note 5 Our financial position

5.8 Leases (cont)

Lease Liabilities

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than one year 333 358
One to five years 587 720
More than five years 590 781
Total undiscounted lease liabilities as at 30 June 2021: 1,510 1,859
Lease liabilities included in the Balance Sheet at 30 June 21:

Current 148 268
Non-current 687 822
Total lease liabilities 835 1,090

Short-term and low value leases

Council has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of machinery that have
2 lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets (individual assets worth less than existing capitalisation
thresholds for 2 like asset up to a maximum of

AUD$10,000), including IT equipment. Council recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense
on & straight-line besis over the lease term.

Expenses relating to:

Short-term leases 146 480
Leases of low value assets 10 -
Total 156 490

Variable lease payments (not included in measurement of lease liabilities)

Non-cancellable lease commitments - Short-term and low-value leases

Commitments for minimum lease payments for short-term and low-value leases are
payable as follows:

Payable:
Within one year - 69
Total lease commitments - 69
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Note 6 Assets we manage

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Summary of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

AtFair Value Additions Contributions Revaluation Depreciation Disposal ~ Write-off  Transfers At Fair Value

30 June 2020 30 June 2021

$000 000 $000 $000 $000  $000  Soo0  $o00 000
Property 1,706,403 8282 27,332 119,758  (6,550) - (4,833) 13,035 1,863,427
Plent and equipment 11,951 1,421 - - (2501  (28) - - 10843
Infrastructure 2,002,034 21,144 113,036  (344) (29,028) - (18198) 6,167 2,094,811
Work in progress 60,894 23,487 - - - - - (19,202) 65179
Total 3,781,282 54,334 140,368 119,414 (38,079)  (28) (23,031) - 4,034,260

Summary of Work in Progress

Transfers  Closing WIP

Property 43,369 9,026 - (13,035) 39,360
Plent and equipment 838 253 - - 1,141
Infrastructure 16,637 14,208 - (6,167) 24,678
Total 60,894 23,487 - (19,202) 65,179

City of Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21 151




image153.png
Financial Report

Note 6 Assets we manage

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont)

(a) Property

land- land-non Landunder  Totalland  Heritage Buildings - Total  Workin Total
specialised  specialised roads &land  buildings specialised  Buildings  Progress  Property

Improvements
$1000 $'000 $'000 $1000 $1000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $1000

At fair value

1451011 3,080 687 1,454,778 - 410,625 410,625 43,369 1,908,772
11uly 2020
Accumulated
depreciation at - - - - - (159,000} (159,000) - (159,000)
1July 2020

1,451,011 3,080 687 1,454,778 - 251,625 251,625 43,369 1,749,772
Movements in
fair value
Additions 302 - - 302 - 7980 7,980 9026 17,308
Contributions 27,305 - 27 2733 - - - - 27
Revaluation 100,806 - 15 100821 - 41743 41743 - 142,564
Write-off (4,833) - - (4833) - - - - (4833

123,580 - a2 123,622 - 62,758 62,758 (4,009) 1825371
Movements in
accumulated
depreciation
D i d
eprecianon an - - - - - (6550) (6,550) - (6550)
amortisation
Revaluation
increments/ - - - - - (22,806) (22,806) (22,806)
decrements

- - - - - (29,356) (29,356) - (29,356)

Atfairvalue 30 o7pce1 3080 729 1,578,400 - 473,383 473,383 39,350 2,091,143
June 2021
Accumulated
depreciation at 30 - - - - - (188,356) (188,356) - (188,356)
June 2021

1,574,591 3,080 729 1,578,400 - 285,027 285,027 39,360 1,902,787
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6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont)

(b) Plant and Equipment

Financial Report

Plant machinery  Fixtures fittings Work in Progress Total plant
and equipment  and furniture and equipment
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At fair value 1 July 2020 14,277 13,196 3,278 888 31,640
Accumulated depreciation at
8,899 9,902, - - 18,801
1 July 2020 ( ) [ ) ( !
5,378 3,204 3,279 888 12,839
Movements in fair value
Additions 515 896 10 253 1674
Disposal (434) - - - (434)
81 896 10 253 1,240
Movements in accumulated
depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation (1,488) (1,013) - - (2,501)
Accumulated depreciation of 0 . . i .
disposals
(1,082) (1,013) - - (2,095)
At fair value 30 June 2021 14,358 14,092 3,289 1,141 32,880
Accumulated depreciation at
30 June 2021 (9.981) (10,915) - - (20,896)
4,377 3,177 3,289 1,141 11,984
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Note 6 Assets we manage

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont)

(c) Infrastructure

Bridges  Telecom- Drainage Public Parksopen  Workin Total Infra
munication lighting ~ spacesand  Progress  structure
$000  Conduits $000 streetscapes 1000
$000 $1000 $1000 $1000
At fair value 1 July 2020 1719244 21,216 26531 580,368 29,470 199,198 16,637 2,592,664
Accumulated depreciation at

(352,860) (7,211)  (6,098) (118,772) (16,029) (73,023) (573,993)

1 July 2020

1,366,384 14,005 20,433 461,596 13,441 126,175 16,637 2,018,671

Movements in fair value

Additions 14,550 - - 443 1,092 5059 14208 35352
Contributions 68,881 - - 30357 8 13,709 - 113,036
Reveluation (94,533) 40 (37) 558 (669) 86,978 - (7,663
Write-off (19,284) - - (2,264 - (108) - (21,654)
Transfers 1874 - - 317 6 3970 (6167) -

(28,512) 40 (37) 29,411 518 109,610 8,041 119,071

Movements in accumulated
depreciation

Depreciation and amortisation (13,191) (226) (527) (5,953) (1,434) (7,697) - (29,028
Accumulated depreciation of S0ms i e . ) C s
write-off
R luati It
evaluation increments/ 34,027 (13 (157)  (508) 477 (26,509) - 7319
decrements

23,869 (239) (684)  (6,057) (957) (34,185) - (18,253)
At fair value 30 June 2021 1,690,732 21,256 26,494 609,779 29,988 308,808 24,678 2,711,735
A lated d ti it
ceumulated ceprecisnion & (328,991)  (7,450)  (6,782) (124,829) (16,986) (107,208) - (592,246)

30 June 2021

1,361,741 13,806 19,712 484,950 13,002 201,600 24,678 2,119,489

Acquisition
The purchase method of accounting is used for &l acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as
consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the acquisition. Fair value is the

price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer  liability) in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing costs
incurred during construction, and an appropriate share of directly attributable variable and fixed overheads.

In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an applicable asset
class and unless otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year.
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Note 6 Assets we manage
6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont)

Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation periods

Depreciation Threshold

Period Limit
$'000

Land & land improvements

land - 10
land improvements 100 years 5
Buildings
buildings 30- 150 years 10
building and leasehold improvements 50 years 5

Plant and Equipment

Fixtures fittings and furniture 5-10years 1
plant, machinery and equipment 3-10 years 1
computers and telecommunications 3years 1
leased plant and equipment 3 years 1
Infrastructure
roads - pavements 50 - 120 years 5
roads - surface 15 - 25 years 5
parks, open spaces and streetscapes 10 - 100 years 1
off street car parks 50 - 120 years 5
bridges - deck 25 - 100 years 1
footpaths and cycleways 20 - 100 years 1
drainage 100 years 1
light pole and lanterns 20 years 1
conduits and pits 50 years 1
Intangible assets 10 years -
Land under roads

Council recognises land under roads it controls at fair value.

Depreciation and amortisation

Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and other assets having limited useful lives are
systematically depreciated over their useful lives to the Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service
potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of remaining useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis
with major asset classes reassessed annually. Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually.

Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are
assigned distinct useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component.
Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited useful life. Straight line
depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year. Depreciation periods used are listed
above and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated

Repairs and maintenance

Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation
threshold the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset is expensed
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Note 6 Assets we manage

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont)

Valuation of land and buildings
Veluation of land was undertaken by the Valuer General of Victori. Valuation of buildings was undertaken by Mr Gino
Mitrione, Fellow of Australian Property Institute as at 30 June 2021. The valuation of land and buildings is at fair value,
being market value based on highest and best use permitted by relevant land planning provisions. Where land use is
restricted through existing planning provisions the valuation is reduced to reflect this limitation. This adjustment is an
unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.
Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped and/or unserviced)
characteristics, access rights and private interests of other parties and entitlements of infrastructure assets and services.
This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income
statement.

Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land and land under roads will have 2 significant impact on the
fair value of these assets.

Details of the Council's land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2021 are as
follows

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Date of

$'000 $'000 $'000 Valuation

Non-specialised land - 3,080 - Jun-21

Specialised land and land under roads - - 1575320 Jun-21

Specialised buildings - - 285,027 Jun-21
Total - 3,080 1,860,347

Valuation of infrastructure

In accordance with Council policy, an assessment of the fair value of all infrastructure assets was undertaken at the
reporting date. For infrastructure, fair value is replacement cost less accumulated depreciation at the date of valuation.
The date of the current valuation is detailed in the following table.

Valuation of infrastructure assets has been determined in accordance with a valuation undertaken by Council’s Team
Leader Asset Management, Mr. Michael Butler, Bachelor of Engineering (Civil.

The valuation is at fair value based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of valuation.

Details of the Council’s infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2021 are as follows:

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Date of

$'000 $'000 $'000 Valuation

Roads - - 1,361,741 Jun-21

Bridges - - 13,806 Jun-21

Drainage - - 484,950 Jun-21

Public lighting - - 13,002 Jun-21

Telecommunication Conduits - - 19,712 Jun-21

Parks, open space and streetscapes - - 201,600 Jun-21
Total - - 2,004,811
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Note 6 Assets we manage

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont)

Specialised land and land under roads is valued using @ market based direct comparison technique. Significant
Unobservable inputs include the extent and impact of restriction of use and the market cost of land per square metre.
The extent and impact of restrictions on use varies and results in a reduction to surrounding land values between 5%
and 95%. The market value of land varies significantly depending on the location of the land and the current market
conditions. Currently land values range between $1 and $4,722 per square metre

Specialised buildings are valued using a depreciated replacement cast technique. Significant unobservable inputs
include the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of buildings. Current replacement costs are calculated
on a square metre basis and ranges from $310 to $8,466 per square metre. The remaining useful lives of buildings are
determined on the basis of the current condition of buildings and vary from S years to 94 years. Replacement cost is
sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful
lives of buildings are sensitive to changes in expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful
lives of buildings.

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost. Significant unobservable inputs include the
current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. The remaining useful lives of infrastructure assets
are determined on the basis of the current condition of the asset and vary from 1 years to 120 years. Replacement cost
is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation
Useful lives of infrastructure are sensitive to changes in use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or
extend the useful lives of infrastructure assets

2021 2020

000 $'000

Land under roads 729 687
Specialised land 1574591 1,451,012
Total specialised land 1,575,320 1,451,699
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Note 6 Assets we manage

6.2 Investments in associates, joint arrangements and subsidiaries

Investments in associates
Investments in associates accounted for by the equity method are:

Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service (Incorporated) 2,911 2,611

Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service (Incorporated) - Background

Represents the City of Whittlesea's share in the net assets of the Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service which became an
incorporated body on 12 January 1996. The Council's 37.81% (2019-20 37.7%) share of the net assets from their draft
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 has been treated as an investment in the Balance Sheet, with

an increase in the investment for the reporting period of $0.3 million (increase of $0.25million for 2019-20], which is
accounted for using the equity method and shown in the Comprehensive Income Statement.

Fair value of Council's investment il

Yarra Plenty Regional Library 2,911 2,611

Council's share of accumulated surplus/(deficit)

Council's share of accumulated surplus(deficit) at start of year 1,994 1,350
Reported surplus(deficit) for year 674 544
Council's share of accumulated surplus(deficit) at end of year 2,668 1,994

Movement in carrying value of specific investment

Carrying value of investment at start of year 2,611 2,360
Share of surplus(deficit) for year 300 251
Carrying value of investment at end of year 2,911 2,611

Council's share of expenditure commitments

Operating commitments 2,022 2,042

Council's share of expenditure commitments 764 770

Council's share of contingent liabilities and contingent assets
The Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service does not have any contingent liabilities as at the end of the reporting period.
Associates are all entities over which Council has significant influence but not control or joint control. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.
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Note 7 People and relationships

7.1 Council and key management remuneration

(a) Related Parties

Parent entity

City of Whittlesea is the parent entity.

Subsidiaries and Associates

Interests in subsidiaries and associates are detailed in Note 6.2.

(b) Key Management Personnel
Details of persons holding the position of Councillor or other members of key management personnel at any time during
the year are:

Administrators Ms Lydia Wilson - Chair
Ms Peita Duncan
Mr Bruce Billson (1 July 2020 - 3 March 2021)
Mr Chris Eddy (12 May 2021 - 30 June 2021)

CEO and executive Vr Joe Carbone - Acting Chief Executive Officer (1 July 2020 - 11 October 2020)

leadership team  \/ Craig Lioyd - Chief Executive Officer (12 October 2020 - 30 June 2021)
Ms Amy Montalti - Director Corporate Services
Ms Belgin Besim - Director Community Wellbeing (1 July 2020 - 8 November 2020
Ms Kate McCaughey - Director Community Wellbeing (9 November 2020 - 30 June 2021)
Mr Ben Harries - Director Infrastructure and Environment (1 July 2020 - 8 November 2020}
Ms Debbie Wood - Director Infrastructure and Environment (9 November 2020 - 30 June 2021)
Mr Julian Edwards - Director Planning and Development (1 July 2020 - 8 November 2020)
Mr Justin O'Meara - Director Planning and Development (9 November 2020 - 30 June 2021)
Mr Michael Tonta - Executive Manager Governance (1 July 2020 - 17 November 2020)
Mr Frank Joyce - Executive Manager Governance (18 November 2020 - 30 June 2021)
Ms Kristi High - Executive Manager Corporate Affairs

2021 2020

No. No.

Total Number of Councillors - 11

Total Number of Administrators 4 3

Total of Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel 12 11

Total Number of Key Management Personnel 16 25

(c) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Total remuneration of key manzgement personnel was as follows:

2021 2020

$'000 $'000

Short-term benefits 2,609 1,681

Long-term benefits 210 124

Post employment benefits - 12

Termination benefits 35 820

Total 2,854 2,637
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Note 7 People and relationships

7.1 Council and key management remuneration (cont)

The numbers of key management persannel whose total remuneration from Council and any related entities, fall within
the following bands:

2021 2020
No, N

$0-$9,999 R 5
$10,000 - $19,999 1 .
$30,000 - $39,999 B
$40,000 - $49,999 .
$60,000 - $69,999 B
$70,000 - $79,999 R
$80,000 - $89,999 B
$90,000 - $99,999 3
$100,000 - $109,999
$110,000 - $119,999
$130,000 - $139,999
$150,000 - $159,999
$160,000 - $169,999
$180,000 - $189,999
$230,000 - $239,999
$250,000 - $259,999
$300,000 - $309,999
$910,000 - $919,999

W N e e N e o

SN T T
-

-

16 25
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Note 7 People and relationships

7.1 Council and key management remuneration (cont)

(d) Senior Officer Remuneration

A Senior Officer is an officer of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, who:
2) has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive; or

b) whose total annual remuneration exceeds $151,000

The number of Senior Officers are shown below in their relevant income bands:

2021 2020
Income Range: No. No.
<$151,000 10 8
$151,000 - $159,999 5 4
$160,000 - $169,999 10 11
$170,000 - $179,999 3 7
$180,000 - $189,999 3 1
$190,000 - $199,999 3 1
$200,000 - $209,999 1 1
$210,000 - $219,999 1 -
$220,000 - $229,999 2 -
$230,000 - $239,999 2 -
$240,000 - $249,999 1 -
$250,000 - $259,999 1 -
$320,000 - $329,999 1 1
a3 34

2021 2020

$'000 $'000

Total Remuneration for the reporting year for Senior Officers included above, amounted to: 7,460 5,360
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Note 7 People and relationships

7.2 Related party disclosure

(a) Transactions with related parties

During the period Council entered into the following transactions with related parties.

Expenditure

Council library contributions paid to the Yarra Plenty Regional Library 5,172 4,896
Total related party expenditure 5,172 4,896
Income

Rent for premises received from the Yarra Plenty Regional Library - 18
Fuel and motor vehicles repairs 16 15
Total related party income 16 33

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties

Nil

(c) Loans to/from related parties

The aggregate amount of loans in existence at balance date that have been made, guaranteed or secured by the council
to a related party as follows:

Nil

(d) Commitments to/from related parties
The aggregate amount of commitments in existence at balance date that have been made, guaranteed or secured by the
council to a related party are as follows

Nil
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties

8.1 Contingent assets and liabilities

(a) Contingent assets

Operating lease receivables

The Council has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property, consisting of surplus freehold office
complexes.

These properties held under operating leases have remaining non-cancellable lease terms of between 1 and 10 years. Al
leases include a CPI based revision of the rental charge annually.

Future undiscounted minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later

Later than five years

(b) Contingent liabilities

Contingent assets and contingent lizbilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed and if quantifiable,
are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and lizbilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable,
respectively.

Superannuation

Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make additional
contributions to the scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are outlined below. As a result of the volatility
in financial markets the likelihood of making such contributions in future periods exists.

Future superannuation contributions

In addition to the disclosed contributions, the City of Whittlesea has not paid unfunded liability payments to Vision Super
over the past two years. The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the
year ending 30 June 2022 are $274,624.

Legal matters

There are no legal matters that could have a material impact on future operations.

Liability Mutual Insurance

Council is (was) a participant of the MAV Liability Mutual Insurance (LMI) Scheme. The LMI scheme provides public
liability and professional indemnity insurance cover. The LMI scheme states that each participant will remain liable to
make further contributions to the scheme in respect of any insurance year in which it was 2 participant to the extent of
its participant’s share of any shortfall in the provision set aside in respect of that insurance year, and such liability will
continue whether or not the participant remains a participant in future insurance years.

(c) Guarantees for loans to other entities

Council has provided no current guarantees for loans to other entities.

Financial guarantee contracts are not recognised as a liability in the balance sheet unless the lender has exercised their
right to call on the guarantee or Council has other reasons to believe that it is probable that the right will be exercised.
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties

8.2 Change in accounting standards

Certain new Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 30
June 2021 reporting period. Council assesses the impact of these new standards. As at 30 June 2021 there were no new
accounting standards or interpretations issued by the AASB which are applicable for the year ending 30 June 2022 that
are expected to impact Council

Note 8 Managing uncertainties

8.3 Financial instruments

(a) Objectives and policies

The City of Whittlesea's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, receivables (excluding
statutory receivables), payables (excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Details of the significant accounting
policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument
is disclosed in the Notes of the financial statements. Risk management is carried out by senior management under
policies approved by the Council. These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure to Council and
appropriate procedures, controls and risk minimisation.

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of council financial instruments will fluctuate because

of changes in market prices. The Council's exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only
insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument
will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Council's interest rate liability risk arises primarily from long

term loans and borrowings at fixed rates which exposes council to fair value interest rate risk / Council does not hold
any interest bearing financial instruments that are measured at fair value, and therefore has no exposure to fair value
interest rate risk. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Council has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risk through its cash
and deposits that are at floating rates

Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 2020 . Council
manages interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures:

« diversification of investment product;

« monitoring of return on investment; and

« benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.

There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing
interest rate risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's year
end result.,
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties

8.3 Financial instruments (cont)

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk s the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause
Council to make & financial loss. Council have exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in the balance
sheet. Particularly significant areas of credit risk exist in relation to outstanding fees and fines as well as loans and
receivables from sporting clubs and assaciations. To help manage this risk:

« council have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities council deal with;

« council may require collateral where appropriate; and

« council only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in council's
investment policy.

Receivables consist of @ large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and government sectors.
Credit risk associated with the Council's financial assets is minimal. Rates debtors are secured by a charge over the
rateable property. Council has assessed that 87% of parking infringement debts owing to Council are unlikely to be
collected and has raised a provision for doubtful debts over those debts based on an assessment of collectability. The
collection of long overdue parking infringement debts is managed by Fines Victoria

There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired
Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when
council provide a guarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 8.1(b).

The maximum exposure to credit risk 2t the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of
2ny provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements.
Council does not hold any collateral.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk includes the risk that, 2 a result of council's operational liquidity requirements it will not have sufficient
funds to settle 2 transaction when required or will be forced to sell 2 financial asset at below value or may be unable to
settle or recover a financial asset.

To help reduce these risks Council:
« have a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained;
« have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;

« have a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid
instruments;

« monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and

« setlimits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal
repayments to rate revenue.

The Council's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed on the face of
the balance sheet and the amounts related to financial guarantees disclosed in Note 8.1(c), and is deemed insignificant
based on prior periods' data and current assessment of risk.

There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, o its objectives, policies and processes for managing
liquidity risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expected to be settled within normal terms of trade. Details
of the maturity profile for borrowings are disclosed at Note 5.4.

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value.
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties

8.3 Financial instruments (cont)

(e) Sensitivity disclosure analy:
Teking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and
experience of the financial markets, Council believes the following movements are reasonably possible’ over the next 12
months:

- A parallel shift of +0.25% and 0% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 0.10%.

These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities, nor will
they have a material impact on the results of Council's operations.

Note 8 Managing uncertainties

8.4 Fair value measurement

Fair value hierarchy

Council's financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy , Council's financial
assets and labilities are measured at amortised cost.

Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting
Standards. AASB 13 Fair value measurement, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a
definition of fair value and  single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
Australizn Accounting Standards.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
252 whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties

8.4 Fair value measurement

Revaluation

Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are
measured at their fair value, being the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer  liability) in

2n orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. At balance date, the Council reviewed
the carrying value of the individual classes of assets measured at fair value to ensure that each asset materially
approximated its fair value. Where the carrying value materially differed from the fair value at balance date, the class of
asset was revalued

Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy will
only oceur if an external change in the restrictions or limitations of use of an asset result in changes to the permissible
or practical highest and best use of the asset. In addition, Council undertakes 2 formal revaluation of land, buildings,
and infrastructure assets on a regular basis ranging from 1 to 3 years. The valuation is performed either by experienced
council officers or independent experts

Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except
to the extent that an increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an
expense in which case the increment is recognised as revenue up to the amount of the expense. Revaluation decrements
are recognised as an expense except where prior increments are included in the asset revaluation reserve for that class
of asset in which case the decrement is taken to the reserve to the extent of the remaining increments. Within the same
class of assets, revaluation increments and decrements within the year are offset.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have been impaired. If such zn indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher
of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of
the assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the comprehensive income statement, unless the
asset is carried at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised directly against the revaluation
surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the
revaluation surplus for that same class of asset.

Note 8 Managing uncertainties

8.5 Events occurring after balance date

No matters have occurred after balance date that require disclosure in the financial report.
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Note 9 Other matters

9.1 Reserves

Summary

The Council at the end of the reporting period held the following reserve balances:

2021 2020

'000 $'000

Asset revaluation reserves 1204172 1,174,758
Asset replacement reserve 58,173 45,263
Asset development reserve 127,924 108,634

1,480,269 1,328,655

(a) Asset revaluation reserves

Balance at Increment Balance at end
beginningof  (decrement) of reporting
reporting period period
$'000 $'000 $'000
Property
Land and land improvements 871,283 100,821 972,104
Buildings 72,194 18,937 91,131
943,477 119,758 1,063,235
Plant and equipment
Artworks 1,726 - 1,726
1,726 - 1,726
Infrastructure
Roads 207,638 (60,506) 147,132
Bridges (4,954) 27 (4,927)
Drainage 46,942 52 46,994
Telecommunication Conduits - (194) (194)
Public Lighting - (192) (192)
Parks, open space and streetscapes (20,071) 60,469 40,398
229,555 (344) 229,211
Total asset revaluation reserves 1,174,758 119,414 1,294,172
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9.1 Reserves

(a) Asset revaluation reserves (cont)

Financial Report

Long service

leave
$'000
Property
Land and lend improvements 878,891 (7,608) 871,283
Buildings 69,104 3,090 72,194
947,995 (4,518) 943,477
Plant and equipment
Artworks 1,726 - 1,726
1,726 - 1,726
Infrastructure
Roads 275,364 (67,726) 207,638
Bridges - (4,954) (4,954)
Drainage - 46,942 46,942
Parks, open space and streetscapes - (20,071) (20,071)
275,364 (a5,809) 229,555
Total asset revaluation reserves 1,225,085 (50,327) 1,174,758

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) vlue of Council's assets over time.

(b) Other reserves*

Balance at
beginning of

reporting period
$'000

Transfer to
accumulated
surplus
$'000

Transfer from
accumulated
surplus

$'000

Balance at end
of reporting
period

$'000

Asset replacement reserve 45,263 54,346 (41,436) 58,173
Asset development reserve 108,634 32,178 (12,888) 127,924
Total Other reserves 153,897 86,524 (54,324) 186,097

Balance at
beginning of
reporting period
$'000

Transfer to
accumulated
surplus
$'000

Transfer from
accumulated
surplus

$'000

Balance at end
of reporting
period

$'000

Asset replacement reserve 70,388 37,360 (62,485) 45,263
Asset development reserve 96,487 22,659 (10,512) 108,634
Total Other reserves 166,875 60,019 (72,997) 153,897

*see over page for breakdown of other reserves
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Note 9 Other matters

9.1 Reserves (cont)

Asset replacement reserve

2021 2020
'000 $'000

Plent replacement** - 1,703
Tip replacement** - 4,806
Strategic properties reserve 4,878 4,792
Non standard street lighting contribution 3,528 3,490
Synthetic turf replacement reserve 1,880 1,880
Environmental reserve** - 4,864
Traffic lights construction 783 823
Purchase of Lutheran Church and Cemetery 380 380
Unspent budgeted capital works** - (8,717)
Technology improvement fund reserve 5,678 4,864
LASF defined benefit plan liability 3,739 3,739
Infrastructure reserve 32,414 21,272
Transport infrastructure reserve 28 -
Waste reserve 4,865 -
Other** - 1,367
58,173 45,263

Asset development reserve
Parklands contribution 7,486 5,394
Community facilities 105,375 96,429
Car parking** - 28
Planning permit drainage levy 10,024 1,731
Net gein compensation 3,273 3,251
Plenty road duplication 67 67
Other 1,699 1,734
127,924 108,634

**These reserves were closed during the year.
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9.1 Reserves (cont)

Purpose of Reserves
Asset replacement reserve
Plant replacement

Tip replacement

Strategic properties reserve

Non standard street lighting contribution
Synthetic turf replacement reserve
Environmental reserve

Traffic lights construction

Purchase of Lutheran Church and Cemetery
Energy efficiency

Unspent budgeted capital works
Technology improvement fund reserve
LASF defined benefit plan liability

Infrastructure reserve
Transport infrastructure reserve

Waste reserve

Asset development reserve

Parklands contribution
Developer contribution plan (DCP) reserves

Car parking

Planning permit drainage levy
Net gain compensation

Plenty road duplication

Financial Report

Enable replacement of fleet and heavy plant
Support tip restoration requirements as per EPA licences

Accumulate funds for land purchases and asset development as
determined by Council

Maintain non-standard lights for agreed period
Enable replacement of Synthetic Turf Pitches at designated locations
Enable funding of environmental projects

Maintain traffic signals for agreed period

Enable funding to purchase the church site

Enable initiatives in improving energy efficiency

Recognise outstanding commitment for incomplete capital works projects
Enable replacement of technology hardware and software

Protection against future calls on employees defined benefits
superannuation fund

Enable funding of future infrastructure projects
Enable funding of future transport infrastructure projects

Enable funding from waste operation to ensure legislative compliance

Funding from developers for the provision of open space and associated
infrastructure

Developer contributions received for future community facilities and
assets

Provision of car parking spaces

Funding from developers to expand drainage infrastructure to absorb
extra inflow due to multiunit developments

Funds contributed by developers for the maintenance cost of trees/
bushland areas for a 10-year period

Funding from developers for Plenty Road duplication works
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Note 9 Other matters

9.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus/(deficit)

2021 2020

'000 $'000

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 137,575 111,475
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (731) 2,348
Share of net profits of associate (300) (251)
Loss on Write-off of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 23,031 -
Depreciation and amortisation 38,513 36,890
Contributions - Non-monetary assets (140,369) (79,547)
Finance costs 220 660
Finance costs - leases 16 22

Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/decrease i trade and other receivables (448) 1,867
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments 131 -
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 13,644 5,821
(Decrease]/increase in other lizbilities - (141)
Increase/(decrease) in trust funds (99) -
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 15 (81)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 307 1,565
(Increase)/decrease in other assets 1,636 (75)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 73,141 80,553

Note 9 Other matters

9.3 Superannuation

The City of Whittlesea makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to
the Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and
defined benefit, each of which is funded differently.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation categories, Vision MySuper/Vision Super Saver, receives both employer and employee
contributions on a progressive basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee
earnings (for the year ended 30 June 2021, this was 9.5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee (SG) legislation).
Defined Benefit

Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit
category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan.

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between the participating employers as
the defined benefit obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers and the only time that the
aggregate obligation is allocated to specific employers is when a call is made. As a result, the level of participation of
the City of Whittlesea in the Fund cannot be measured as 2 percentage compared with other participating employers.

Therefore, the Fund Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers for the purposes
of AASB 119.
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Note 9 Other matters

9.3 Superannuation (cont)

Funding arrangements
Council makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustee on
the advice of the Fund Actuary.
Atriennial actuarial review for the Defined Benefit category as at 30 June 2020 was conducted and completed by the
due date of 31 December 2020. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a
contributing employer was 104.6%. The financial assumptions used to calculate the VB! were:

Net investment returns 5.6% pa

Salary information 2.5% pa for two years and 2.75% pa thereafter

Price inflation (CPI) 2.0% pa.

As at 30 June 2021, an interim actuarial investigation is underway as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the Defined
Benefit category.

Vision Super has advised that the estimated VBl at 30 June 2021 was 109.7%.
The VB is used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2020 actuarial

investigation determined the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial position and that no change was
necessary to the Defined Benefit category's funding arrangements from prior years

Employer contributions

Regular contributions

On the basis of the results of the 2020 triennial actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, Council makes
employer contributions to the Fund’s Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the Fund's Trustee. For the year
ended 30 June 2021, this rate was 9.5% of members' salaries (9.5% in 2019/2020). This rate is expected to increase in
line with any increases in the G contribution rate and was reviewed as part of the 30 June 2020 triennial valuation.
In addition, Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of retrenchment
above the funded resignation or retirement benefit.

Funding calls

If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsatisfactory financial position at an actuarial investigation or the Defined
Benefit category’s VB is below its shortfall limit at any time other than the date of the actuarial investigation, the
Defined Benefit category has a shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required to put a plan in place so
that the shortfall is fully funded within three years of the shortfall occurring. The Fund monitors its V81 on a quarterly
basis and the Fund has set its shortfall limit at 7%

In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shortfall based on the above requirement, the Fund’s
participating employers (including Council) are required to make an employer contribution to cover the shortfall.
Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between the participating employers based on
the pre-1July 1993 and post-30 June 1993 service liabilities of the Fund’s Defined Benefit category, together with the
employer’s payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the date the shortfall has been calculated.

Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and that the Fund
includes lifetime pensioners and their reversionary beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up.

If there is 2 surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be returned to the participating employers.

In the event that a participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be
transferred to that employer’s successor.
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Note 9 Other matters

9.3 Superannuation (cont)

The 2020 triennial actuarial investigation surplus amounts

An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing
employer. Generzlly, a full actuarial investigation is conducted every three years and interim actuarial investigations are
conducted for each intervening year. A full investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2020.

The Fund’s actuarial investigation identified the following for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is 2

contributing employer:

2020 2019

(Triennial)  (Interim)

$m $m

- AVBI Surplus 100.0 1513
- A total service liability surplus 200.0 233.4
- A discounted accrued benefits surplus 217.8 256.7

The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund’s assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the
vested benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitled to if they had all exited on 30 June 2020.
The total service liability surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit category plus
expected future contributions exceeds the value of expected future benefits and expenses as at 30 June 2020.

The discounted accrued benefit surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefit
category exceeds the value of benefits payable in the future but accrued in respect of service to 30 June 2020.

Council was notified of the 30 June 2020 VBI during August 2020 (2019: August 2019).

The 2021 interim actuarial investigation

An interim actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund’s position as at 30 June 2021 as the Fund provides
Iifetime pensions in the Defined Benefit category. It is anticipated that this actuarial investigation will be completed by
October 2021

Superannuation contributions

Contributions by Council (excluding any unfunded liability payments) to the above superannuation plans for the financial
year ended 30 June 2021 are detailed below:

Scheme Type of Scheme Rate
Vision super Defined benefit 9.50% - -
Vision super Accumulation fund 9.50% - -

There were $6,899 in contributions outstanding to the above schemes as at 30 June 2021.
The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2022
is $274,624.
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Note 10 Change in accounting policy

AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors (AASB 1059) (applies 2020/21 for LG Sector)

Council has adopted AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors , from 1July 2020. This has resulted no
changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

AASB 2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Definition of Material (applies 2020/21 for LG Sector)
Council has adopted AASB 20187 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Definition of Material, from 1 July
2020

AASB 2019-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - References to the Conceptual Framework (applies
2020/21 for LG Sector)

Council has adopted AASB 2019-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - References to the Conceptual
Framework from 1 July 2020,

Itis not expected that these standards will have any significant impact on council.
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Free telephone interpreter service:

If you speak a language other than

English, please call 131 450

Email us
info@whittlesea.vic.gov.au

UBE D Free telephone interpreter service

S8 131450

whittlesea.vic.govau

Postal address
You can contact the Administrators City of Whittlesea
on 9217 2500 or email Locked Bag 1
panel@whittlesea.vic.gov.au Bundoora MDC VIC 3083




image178.png
Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation

(Planning and Environment Act 1987 only)

In this instrument "officer" means ANGELA MONTEBELLO

By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Whittiesea City Council -

1 under s 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officer to be an
authorised officer for the purposes of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the
regulations made under that Act; and

2 under s 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officer either generally or in a

particular case to institute proceedings for offences against the Acts and regulations
described in this instrument.

It is declared that this instrument -

- comes into force immediately upon its execution;

- remains in force until varied or revoked

This instrument is signed by the Chair of Administrators and the Chief Executive Officer of Whittlesea
City Council in the exercise of the authority conferred by the resolution of Council made on
that authorised this instrument under the Planning and Environment Act 1987.

Chair of Administrators

Chief Executive Officer

Dated
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'WHITTLESEA PLANNING SCHEME

SIGNS

Policy Application
‘This policy applies to applications for the development of land for signs, except for land within
Epping Central Precincts 4, 6, and 7 as defined in the Epping Central Framework Plan, Plan 1
to the Schedule of the Activity Centre Zone.

Objectives
To encourage signs that are designed, positioned and maintained in a manner that responds to
the size and scale of development on the land.

To encourage signs which are integrated into, and do not dominate the development.

To ensure that signs in, or generally viewable from, residential areas do not adversely impact
the amenity of the arca.

Discourage signs on shop fronts which obscure active street frontages, passive surveillance and
visual links to inside the premises.

Strategies

General

Encourage the siting of signs that:
Minimise protrusion beyond the edges of the host building.
Avoid obscuring major view lines
Avoid dominating the landscape.
Utilise the space allocated within the building design.
Consolidate signs in one location for development with multiple tenancies.

RIS

Encourage the design of signs that:
o Complement the appearance and functionality of the development in which they are
displayed.
®  Use the colours and materials derived from the surrounding area or land.
e Encourage signs that identify the business conducted on the property, rather than other
promotions, to avoid visual clutter.

Ensure that where a sign is written in another language, an English translation is provided.

Avoid the use of bunting signs, banners, trailers, balloons, or streamers as permanent signage,
unless they are associated with motor vehicle sales premises.

Ensure signs in association with community-based sporting clubs are located and designed to
minimise the visual impact on open space.

Ensure portable signs (including A-frame, poster stand, free standing banner, teardrop signs) are
located within the boundaries of the land where the advertised service is provided, and are:

o Secured or weighted at all times.

* Minimal in size and limited in numbers to avoid visual clutter

Encourage signs on temporary construction hoardings and scaffolding mesh screen (or similar)
that are designed to complement the locality, surrounding architecture, and the works being
undertaken on the site.
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Business Identification Signs
Encourage signs that are permanent, and that are integrated into the fagade of the building or
development where the business is conducted.

Encourage businesses that share a frontage to consolidate their signs, in a consistent and
proportionate approach.

Avoid visual saturation of display village home centres and land sales office signs within an
estate.

Limit business signs that present towards the sky for aerial viewing, to the minimum size
required to assist way finding

Promotion and Major Promotion Signs

Encourage Promotion signs that-aze should be visually distinct from business identification
signs.

Suppest Discourage promotion signs in Council reserves unless in association with community-
based sporting clubs. enly-whes where the size, height, and design are compatible with the
natural and built environment of the reserve and surrounding area

Precinct and Estate Signs

Encourage a precinct-based approach for the siting and design of signs in residential,
commercial and industrial estates.

Encourage signs in purpose-built locations on buildings or structures.

Support signs at key entry points to display home centres that create a sense of place.

Fixed pole signs with banner flags are supported in display home centres.

Ensure major promotion signs that advertise real estate:
e Avoid a proliferation of competing signs.
o Have regard to the existing landscape and character of the arca

Residential Areas

Encourage signs that are:
*  Modest in scale.
* Sensitive to the residential character and amenity of the area.
o Located within a landscaped setting inside the property.

Discourage signs that are reflective or illuminated.

Shop Fronts
Encourage signs mounted on a shop front or within windows that:
¢ Do not dominate the shop front nor compete with business identification signs.
o Achieve active frontages by comprising no more than 20% of the shop front inclusive of
window glazing.

Policy Guideline
Consider as relevant
«  Existing signs on a building or site when assessing new proposals.
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AMENDMENT C226WSEA

Built environment and heritage

Urban and building design

The City of Whittlesea contains many diverse urban and environmental features that have been
identified for preservation and enhancement in order to retain the character of the municipality in
the face of rapid urban development.

All forms of development and elements of the rural landscape contribute to the character of the
municipality. Well-designed urban environments build connection to place and the community
and contribute to the City’s image. amenity and community wellbeing.

Council aims to:
. Upgrade the image and appearance of Whittlesea including its:
- Activity centres.

Major gateways and transport corridors.

Industrial areas.

Employment centres particularly in established areas.

. Facilitate the integration of local features or focal points including River Red Gums into the
design of new communities.

+ Retain local environmental features and landscape qualities.

. Encourage the provision of attractive and walkable neighibourhoods that use spaces to encourage
recreation and social interaction.

Neighbourhood character

Council faces the challenge of accommodating a variety of housing to match future demographic
changes. Character is an important element in all urban areas to allow new development to blend
with existing streetscapes. At the same time, in housing change areas nominated for more intensive
infill development it may be necessary to create a preferred character in order to achieve increased
development densities that also enhances the amenity of the area.

Council aims to manage change in urban areas by

. Supporting development that respects its context and adds to the character of existing uban
areas.

. Encouraging housing forms and styles of subdivision to be influenced by, rather than being
imposed on, the natural environment.

. Encouraging developing urban areas to incorporate elements of the natural environment.

. Creating a preferred urban character in housing change areas identified for more intensive infill
development, such as in activity centres and along public transport routes.

Environmentally sustainable design

Council is committed to creating an environmentally sustainable city.

Environmentally sustainable design should be incorporated during the planning of a development
to achieve outcomes that may otherwise be compromised if these matters are only considered as
part of building approval. It also may reduce difficulties or extra costs associated with retro-fitting
development.

Council aims to:

. Encourage development to incorporate environmentally sustainable design principles.
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Heritage

Whittlesea’s cultural heritage contributes greatly to the identity of the City. It is essential that
significant heritage places are protected, retained and integrated as the City develops. As an
identified growth area the municipality faces a number of challenges in protecting and managing
heritage places in unique contexts including established, rural and greenfield areas.

Council aims to address this by:
. Protecting and maintaining the integrity and historic character of Whittlesea’s heritage places.

. Using the interpretation of heritage places to promote heritage in the municipality.
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AMENDMENT C226WSEA

Signs adjacent to the Metropolitan Ring Road and Freeways

Policy application

This policy applies to all applications for signs that are directly visible from the Metropolitan Ring
Road

i

Objectives
To enhance the visual amenity of the road corridor and in adjacent residential areas.

Strategies

Policy document

Consider as relevant:

« Landscape Analysis - Signage Strategy Background Report Northern Ring Road (City of
Whittlesea, 1099)
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6.2 LIVEABLE NEIGHBOURHOODS

ITEM 6.2.1 FOR DECISION - PLANNING APPLICATION 718577 - SUBDIVIDE LAND (35
LOTS) IN THE GENERAL RESIDENTIAL ZONE AND REMOVAL OF NATIVE
VEGETATION IN A VEGETATION PROTECTION OVERLAY AND
(INCLUDING DEAD VEGETATION) UNDER CLAUSE 52.17 AT 17 - 19
JOHNSONS ROAD, MERNDA

Attachments: 1 Locality Map
2 Subdivision Layout Plan

Responsible Officer: Director Planning & Development

Author: Principal Planner

APPLICANT: Whittlesea City Council c/o Urbis Pty Ltd
COUNCIL POLICY: River Redgum Protection Policy

ZONING: General Residential Zone Schedule 1 (GRZ1)
OVERLAY: Development Plan Overlay Schedule 34 (DPO34)

Vegetation Protection Overlay Schedule 1 (VPO1)

REFERRAL: AusNet
Melbourne Water
Yarra Valley Water
APT & O & M Services
CFA

OBJECTIONS: Four

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY

That Council resolve to approve Planning Application No. 718577 and issue a Notice of
Decision to Grant a Planning Permit for subdivision of the land into 35 lots and removal of
native vegetation at 17-19 Johnsons Road, Mernda, as the proposal represents an
appropriate development consistent with Planning Scheme requirements.

BRIEF OVERVIEW

Council purchased the subject site (former Mernda Primary School) in 2014 from the State
Government, with the intention of developing the site to help fund future community
infrastructure.

It is a requirement that Council assess and determine the application (despite also being the
owner) and transparency has been provided through Council engaging an independent
consultant on behalf of Council and the application process was as thorough as any
application would typically be.

The initial application proposed 38 lots, however officers raised a number of questions in
relation vegetation assessment, drainage, bushfire planning and subdivision/road layout.

This resulted in a modified plan that increased reserve areas to retain additional trees and
avoid Tree Protection Zones being located within lots. An additional reserve was required at
the southern end to match an approved reserve and tree retention on land to the west, which
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are shown in the current plan (Revision G) which now creates 35 lots and is the plan that
was publicly advertised.

Advertising of the application has attracted four objections which identified concerns relating
to traffic, urbanisation and health impacts. A response to these concerns is provided within
the discussion section of this report.

The proposed subdivision is considered satisfactory and consistent with the concept plan in
the schedule to the Development Plan Overlay and subject to conditions, is an appropriate
outcome for the site

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The proposed subdivision is consistent with the residential zoning of the land and
Development Plan Overlay that applies to this area. It meets the requirements set out in the
detailed concept plan, is respectful of the intended layout pattern and density, whilst has
retained important native vegetation where possible.

IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The subdivision will increase residential land supply and housing opportunities within Mernda
consistent with the strategic outcomes sought for the site and whilst appropriate, will result in
a change for the area as the site is presently undeveloped.

The objections relates to the urbanisation of the site and consequences of that change.
However, urbanisation is anticipated by the planning controls and the retention of as many
trees as practical, creation of reserves in the site and conditions for management of
construction seek to minimise adverse impacts.

WHAT MEASURES WILL BE PUT IN PLACE TO MANAGE IMPACTS

There have been alterations made to the proposed subdivision during the application
process to improve its response to planning provisions and conditions imposed will ensure
that any negative impacts will be minimised and maintained resulting in an appropriate
residential development for the area
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REPORT

BACKGROUND

The site is located on the southern side of Johnsons Road some 140m to the east of
Schotters Road. The site was previously used for the Mernda Primary School, with the
school relocating to a larger site in 2011 to accommodate the forecasted population growth

The land is owned by Council. Council formally resolved to purchase the property at its
meeting held on 28 October 2014. The purchase was conditional on the Department of
Education and Early Childhood Development removing all improvements and any soil
contamination from the property, including buildings and underground tanks.

The land was valued and purchased by Council on the basis of the land being rezoned and
developed for residential purposes to assist in funding community infrastructure at the new
Regional Mernda Recreation Reserve. The land was zoned as ‘Public Use’ at the time, and
was intended to be rezoned (by Whittlesea Planning Scheme Amendment C175) for future
residential sub-division purposes in accordance with the proposed Mernda Township
Strategy Plan. Amendment C175 was gazetted and came into operation on 4 May 2017
rezoning this site and the area to the south and west, most of which is on the eastern side of
Plenty Road to General Residential Zone and introduced Development Pan Overlay
Schedule 34,

The profits from this enterprise were intended to be placed into a fund for the future
development of the Regional Mernda Recreational Reserve.

SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA

The land is rectangular in shape with a frontage of 120.3m to Johnsons Road and measures
approximately 2.02 hectares and is largely flat. The site does not contain any buildings and
features significant numbers of mature trees, particularly along the boundaries, and in the
southern quarter of the site, with others located in the centre of the site. The site, including
the frontage to Johnsons Road, is currently fenced with no formal functional vehicle
crossover.

It is rectangular in shape with a frontage of 120.3m to Johnsons Road and measures
approximately 2.02 hectares and is largely flat. The site does not contain any buildings and
features significant numbers of mature trees, particularly along the boundaries, and in the
southern quarter of the site, with others located in the centre of the site. The site, including
the frontage to Johnsons Road, is currently fenced with no formal functional vehicle
crossover.

When the site was functioning as a school there were formalised vehicle access and drop-off
areas in the north-west corner, as well as vehicle access points in the north-eastern corner.

Interfaces to surrounding properties include the following

e To the east is 31-35 Johnsons Road, which contains a dwelling as well as significant
vegetation. There are a number of mature trees on the site including some close to
the common boundary.

« To the north on the opposite side of Johnsons Road are dwellings typically single
storey and setback from the road frontage about 10m with garages or car ports
generally at the side or rear.

e To the south 22-30 Hayes Road contains a single dwelling, as well as two large
ancillary sheds. The sheds are close to its northern boundary.
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* On the western side the site abuts the rear of five separate properties, including No.
104-106, 108-110, 112- 114, 116-118 and 120 Schotters Road.

o

o

o

At 120 Schotters Road there is a row of 17 (townhouse style) dwellings (most
attached) fronting Johnsons Road, with a small setback from that frontage. At
the western end is a small medical centre (for up to two practitioners) fronting
Schotters Road. Each dwelling is two-storey in height with private open space
located at the centre of each lot and a garage on the southern end. There is a
common property accessway adjacent to the common boundary with the
subject site.

The other abutting properties also have rear abuttal to the subject site and
include scattered mature trees and dwellings sited towards the Schotters
Road frontage. There is a permit for 24 dwellings at 116-118 Schotters Road,
with a more recent permit (May 2021) issued for a medical centre (for up to
three practitioners). Similarly, there is a permit for 25 dwellings at 112-114
Schotters Road. No works have been commenced under these permits yet.

A permit was approved by Council (at its meeting October 2020) for the two
lots comprising 104 and 108-110 Schotters Road. This approved a 29 lot
subdivision and 12 dwellings (on the lots less then 300sqm), and also featured
a road running into the southern end of the western boundary of the subject
site (intended to run into the subject site) and a reserve on the northern side
of that road also adjacent to the common boundary with the subject site.
Similarly, works have not yet commenced on that subdivision.

The site is located close to the following infrastructure and community facilities (approximate
distances shown):

e Public Transport:

o

o

o

Mernda Train Station (approximately 800m to the south-east)

Bus Route 382 - Whittlesea to Northland Shopping Centre (350m to the north-
west)

Bus Route 385 - Mernda Station/Whittlesea to Greensborough (350m to the
northwest)

o Public Open Space:

o

o

o

o

o

o

Wombat Corner (100m to the north-east)

Mernda Streamside Reserve (300m to the east)

Schotters Road Park (350m to the north-west)

Mernda Adventure Park (450m to the south-west)

Mernda Recreation Reserve (700m to the south of the site)
Plenty Gorge Parklands (1 .25km to the south of the site)

e Schools:

o

Mernda Primary School (1 .2km to the south-west)
Mernda Central College (2.1km to the south-west)
St Paul the Apostle Catholic Primary School (1km to the south-east)

* Medical:

o

APS Medical Clinic (700m to the south)
Mernda Village Medical (1 .30km to the south-east)
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¢ Retail/Service
o Mernda Activity Centre (1km to the south-east)

RESTRICTIONS AND EASEMENTS

The certificate of title contains no covenants or agreements.

PROPOSAL

The application is proposing a residential subdivision creating a total of 35 residential lots of
varying sizes. The key components of the application are:

o 35 residential lots of varying sizes and orientations, including 21 lots with an area of
299sgm or smaller and 14 lots of between 300sqm and 500sqm

* Provision of three tree reserves totalling 0.2ha in area. These include:

o A reserve on the western side 10m wide extending to about mid-site where it
increases to the mid connecting east-west part of the road. This retains the
trees in this part of the site.

o A linear reserve alongside the eastern boundary so as to retain the trees
along and close to that boundary.

o A reserve at the southern end of the western boundary on the north side of
the road that will connect to the western boundary so to provide for the
preservation of a Tree Protection Zone (TPZ) relating to a tree required to be
retained on the adjoining property, and to match and complement a reserve to
be provided around that tree on the adjoining property.

o Internal access roads with connections provided into adjoining properties - located at
the southern end of the western boundary and the eastern end of the southern
boundary (to provide for through roads at those points).

The initial application sought approval for the subdivision into 38 residential lots with
less/smaller reserves (on the west side) and less tree retention (as compared to the current
plan)

Initial concerns were worked through with the planning consultants and amended plans were
submitted for consideration, with the latest plan submitted now showing lots excluding
impacts from TPZs by the enlargement of the reserve on the western side and the
incorporation of the reserve at the southern part of the western side which protects the TPZ
on the tree on adjoining land and matches the reserve on that land.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

The application was publicly advertised, and four objections have been received from
residents on the northern side of Johnsons Road opposite the site. In summary, the main
grounds of objection raised are as follows:

1. Diminishment of quietness of the location, Johnsons Road being a no-through road
and the reason for purchasing in the location

2. Loss of the present natural views and wildlife and its benefits for wellbeing and
mental health.

3. The increase in traffic in accessing the development opposite existing dwellings on
the northern side of Johnsons Road with increased noise, disturbance, headlights into
existing dwellings together with loss of privacy and loss of safety (especially to
children in the area).
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4. The prospect of the site being a ‘building site’ for many years with significant
disturbance from trucks, machinery, trades and similar, both on-site and by utilising
Johnsons Road for access. This includes being detrimental to sleep when engaged
in shift work.

GENERAL RESIDENTIAL ZONE (GRZ1)

Under Clause 32.08 a planning permit is required to subdivide land. An application to
subdivide land (into 16 to 59 lots) must meet all of the objectives and should meet the
standards of all the requirements of Clause 56 except Clauses 56.03-1 to 56.03-3(Standards
C2 to C4), 56.03-5 (Standard C8), 56.06-1 (Standard C14) and 56.06-3 (Standard C16)

Schedule 1 to the Zone specifies no additional requirements.

OVERLAYS

Clause 42.02 Vegetation Protection Overlay Schedule 1 (VPO1)

This Overlay (Clause 42.02) provides that a permit is required to lop, remove or destroy
native vegetation

The vegetation on the site includes a range of exotic, native and indigenous trees. Amongst
the indigenous trees are a number of River Red Gums, which have been identified within
VPO1 as being of value.

Considering the recommendations for retention and removal provided by the arborist's report
included to inform this proposal, the trees being removed and retained as part of this
proposal are considered to have been appropriately selected. Two tree reserves and an
area set aside for the Plenty River Environs are proposed which will serve to protect a large
proportion of the trees identified to be of high to moderate retention value.

The tree reserves are located to ensure each reserve has significant pre-existing vegetation
and are of sufficient size, and are appropriately located, to establish and preserve the natural
character of the area. They preserve a range of valued species, including River Red Gums
and Yellow Box, and so preserve a valuable level of biodiversity.

The River Red Gums to be removed are limited to a total of seven (numbered in the Arborist
Report as 44, 45, 47, 52, 53, 187, and 189) Each of these are assessed as ‘low retention
value’ with one rated (No. 53) ‘no retention value’ and each of these trees has a DBH of less
than 50cm.

Clause 43.04 Development Plan Overlay Schedule 34 (DPO34)

The Development Plan Overlay contains a general provision that a permit for subdivision,
use or development should be in accordance with an approve d Development Plan unless
the applicable schedule specifically states that a permit may be granted before a
development plan has been prepared.

In this instance, Schedule 34 provides that a permit may be granted prior to the approval of a
Development Plan where the Responsible Authority is satisfied that the proposed
subdivision, use or development will not prejudice the orderly use and development of land,
as outlined by the Concept Plan and development plan requirements included in this
Schedule.

The site, being the former Mernda Primary School site, forms part of the Mernda Township
Development Plan which is given effect through Schedule 34 to the Development Plan
Overlay.
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Under this Schedule, a planning permit may be granted prior to the approval of a
Development Plan where the Responsible Authority is satisfied that the proposed
subdivision, use or development will not prejudice the orderly use and development of land,
as outlined by the Concept Plan and development plan requirements included in this
schedule

It is considered that the proposed subdivision will not prejudice the orderly use and
development of the land noting that it is consistent with the detailed Concept Plan and as
such a Development Plan is not required to be prepared in advance of a permit being issued.
In that respect a Development Plan would not provide any greater guidance to a permit for
subdivision, and it is also noted that:

« The proposed subdivision is generally consistent with Merda Township Concept
Plan

o The site is within walking distance of public open space and the train station and is in
proximity to the Mernda Town Centre.

e The initial plan of subdivision was altered to to show the western access road
continuing south to boundary of the adjacent property (to allow ultimate road
connection to the south).

The detailed Concept Plan is included at Clause 6.0 of the Schedule. As part of the concept
Plan, the subject land has been identified for a mix of medium and standard density residential
development. Medium density development is shown along the northern part of the site
(adjacent to Johnsons Road), while the remaining land to the south is shown to be developed
at standard residential density, with lots ranging from 260sqm to 454sqm.

The subdivision layout shows lots between 192sqm to 274sqm (with frontages of 6m to 8.7m)
fronting Johnsons Road which is generally consistent with the Concept Plan where the
provision of medium density housing is encouraged. The lot sizes proposed for the remainder
of the site are varied in size and range between 244sqm to 454sqm.

CLAUSE 56 (Subdivision)

The following table provides details on whether the proposal complies with the applicable
requirements of Clause 56 of the Whittlesea Planning Scheme. Under these provisions a
subdivision:

e Must meet all of the objectives
o Should meet all of the standards

If Council is satisfied that an application for an alternative design solution meets the
objective, the alternative design solution may be considered

¥ - Compliance Objectives | Standards Comments
x - Non compliance
The layout and design of the subdivision is
Strategic generally in accordance with wider planning
C1 | pplementation v v policies of the Whittlesea Planning Scheme,
including the Mernda Township Development
Plan's Concept Plan
The subdivision implements the objectives of
the State and Local Planning Policy in
addition to zoning and overlay requirements
€5 | Built environment v v
The precinct creates a  compact
neighbourhood that has a highly permeable
movement network
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v - Compliance
x - Non compliance

Objectives

Standards

Comments

All allotments within the subdivision will have
ess to the Mernda Township Activity
entre, public open space and public
transport

cr

Lot diversity and
distribution

The subdivision has a variety of lot sizes and
will be able to accommodate varied dwelling
typologies

Al lots will be capable of accommodating a
dwelling, with approval by a planning or
building permit

c8

Lot area and building
envelopes

Future dwellings on these lots will be able to
achieve:

«  Appropriate solar access.

« An appropriate area of secluded
private open

« Safe vehicle access and adequate
onsite parking

* Access to a full range of utilities

c9

Solar orientation of lots

The majority of allotments have been
designed to satisfy the solar orientation
standard

The lots are adequate in area to provide
appropriate solar access for future dwellings

c10

Street orientation

A number of features are proposed to enable
the creation of a safe community and to
promote interaction between residents
including

« Al lots have primary frontage to a
road

«  Lots less than 300sqm are proposed
in the northern portion of the site in
close proximity to the open space.

« The public open space will abut a
road frontage

c1

Common area

No common property is created, and roads
created would be transferred to Council as
public roads

c12

Integrated urban
landscape

The primary public areas within the
subdivision that require landscape design will
be the streetscapes, in addition to the small
open space areas

A landscape plan is to be developed in
coordination  with  Council's  landscaping
department. The landscape plan will consider
species appropriate for the Mernda area
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v - Compliance
x - Non compliance

Objectives

Standards

Comments

C13

Public open space
provision

The Concept Plan indicates an area of open
space being developed between the northern
boundary of the proposed subdivision and
Johnsons Road. The proposed subdivision
maintains this open space and also includes
additional areas of open space along the
eastern and western portions of the site,
providing immediate access to open space
for a large portion for dwellings within the
proposed subdivision

C15

Walking and cycling
network

The Concept Plan nominates a shared path
along the western side of the site, and this
area will not be developed, with the open
space in the area facilitating the development
of a shared path at a future date

All_pedestrian and shared paths will be
constructed to accommodate persons of
limited mobility

c17

Neighbourhood street
network

The road dimensions in the subdivision are
sufficient to comfortably accommodate the
key components of the neighbourhood street
network including ~ appropriately  sized
carriageways, sufficient on street parking,
landscaping, drainage, public transport and
pedestrian/cycle paths where required

All carriageways will be constructed to
accommodate ~ emergency vehicles and
service vehicles as appropriate

Cc18

Walking and cycling
network detail

The open space area on the western side of
will facilitate footpaths which can feed into a
network and connect pedestrians and cyclists
to the surrounds, including Mernda Station
and the Mernda Township Activity Centre

Cc19

Public transport
network detail

The subdivision does not include any arterial
road, nor is it located adjacent to one. It is
within the proximity of the Mernda station and
buses which traverse Schotters Road

Cc20

Neighbourhood street
network detail

The road design will provide an accessible
and safe neighbourhood street system

The road reservation widths are generally
wide enough to accommodate appropriately
sized carriageways, traffic caiming devices,
parking, landscaping, ~drainage, public
transport, and pedestrian/cycleway
requirements for the different category roads
as specified in Table C1

Uninterrupted street lengths are kept below
200 metres and the street block widths are
within the ranges specified
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v - Compliance

x - Non compliance | OPiectives

Standards

Comments

The street geomelry fosters the development
of a safe environment for pedestrians.

C21 [ Lotaccess v

The road reservation widths are generally
wide enough to accommodate the pavement
and verge widths for the different category
roads as specified in Table C1

€22 | Drinking water supply v

Al lots will be connected to the local water
supply to the satisfaction of the relevant
water authority

Reused and recycled .
water

c23

Recycled water supply systems will be
developed to the satisfaction of the relevant
water authority.

o4 | Waste water P
management

Waste water systems will be designed,
constructed and managed in accordance with
the requirements of the relevant water
authorities

Reficulated waste water systems will be
provided to the boundary of all lots where
required by the relevant water authority

o5 | Stormwater ,
management

The subdivision design will be designed and
managed in accordance  with  the
requirements and satisfaction of the relevant
drainage authority

C26

Site management %

A Construction Management Plan could be
required by condition of approval to ensure
that environmental impacts are minimised
during the construction phase

C27 | Shared trenching v

Reticulated services will be constructed
within shared trenches where appropriate.

Electricity,
telecommunications v
and gas

Cc28

Electricity services can be made available to

staged development subject to the
developer entering into  the standard
conditions of supply.

The demand on the electricity supply will be
minimised by

Allotments with good solar orientation

Dwellings that achieve a five star energy
efficiency rating

Telecommunication  infrastructure  will be
extended and augmented as necessary to
meet the future development requirements

Broadband services will be provided as a part
of the telecommunications package and will
be made available to a staged development
subject to the developer entering into a
supply agreement
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e )
Comelisnce Objectives | Standards Comments
X - Non compliance

| o hyarants > > Fire hydrants will be installed to satisfy this
standard
Public lighting will be provided within the

©30 | Public lighting v v street network, to contribute towards a safe
movement network

DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS PLAN OVERLAY

The land is not covered by a Development Contributions Overlay. However, Developer
Contributions are required in accordance with the rates set out in the Mernda Local Structure
Plan Part 1 (Developer Contributions). Contributions may be in the form of a cash
contribution and/or works in lieu of payments

A condition is included in the recommendation to require the contribution accordingly.

COMMENTS ON GROUNDS OF OBJECTION

1. Diminished quietness of the location.

While it is understood that the proposal represents a marked change from the previous use
of the site as a primary school and its present vacant status, the land and surrounding land is
General Residential Zone which is an urban residential zone that includes the purpose of
providing for a diversity of housing types and housing growth particularly in locations offering
good access to services and transport.

Further, the DPO34 Schedule includes a detailed concept plan that shows the site to be
designated for medium density housing at the northern part (i.e. to the Johnsons Road
frontage) and standard density further south within the site

These controls anticipate a development consistent with the proposed subdivision.

It is also noted that the development at the Johnsons Road frontage is largely consistent with
the existing townhouse development on the adjoining property at 120 Schotters Road where
the dwellings similarly front Johnsons Road.

2. Loss of the present natural views.

Similar to the above comments, the development of the site is anticipated by the planning
controls. However, there has been a particular effort made to preserve as far as practical
trees that are assessed as suitable for being retained. Reserves shown in the initial
application plan have been increased in area/width and an additional reserve created at the
south end for that reason.

While the development is still a significant change, this will minimise the impact.
3. Additional traffic and access.

The additional traffic (and access to the site) is a necessary correlation to the development of
proposed lots for dwellings.

The frontage to Johnsons Road has two access points and at the southern end of the
proposed subdivision the access roads run to the western boundary (south side) and to the
southern boundary (east side). Both will connect to connecting roads once development
occurs on the adjoining properties, as depicted on the Concept Plan in Schedule 34 to the
DPO.
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The road to the west side of the land has been approved as part of a subdivision approved
by Council in October 2020 for the adjoining land at 104-110 Schotters (Permit 719072),
which includes a connecting road through to Schotters Road. Ultimately, traffic to and from
this estate will be well distributed

4.  The site being a ‘building site’ for many years.

The recommendation for approval includes a requirement for a site management plan which
will manage potential offsite impacts during the course of the construction of the subdivision.

Notably, a further planning permit will be required for dwellings on lots of less than 300sqm in
area (these lots are at or near the Johnsons Road frontage) and typically include some
conditions to prevent or minimise offsite impacts. In any event, the construction of dwellings
are required to comply with a code of conduct also seeking to minimise and manage
potential offsite impacts

DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Under Section 130 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Rule 47 of the Governance Rules
2021, officers providing advice to Council are required to disclose any conflict of interest they
have in a matter and explain the nature of the conflict.

The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with relevant members
of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.

CONCLUSION

The application has been assessed against the Whittlesea Planning Scheme, including
applicable policies, Zoning, Overlays and other provisions.

The proposed subdivision has been amended over the course of the application process and
the proposal now demonstrates a satisfactory level of compliance, subject to appropriate
conditions. The sizes and variation of lots and retention of existing vegetation is acceptable
and is consistent with the detailed concept plan which is in accordance with the outcomes
sought by the Mernda Township Plan.

Accordingly, approval of the application is recommended subject to the conditions as set out
the recommendation below.

RECOMMENDATION

THAT Council resolve to approve Planning Application No. 718577 and issue a Notice
of Decision to Grant a Planning Permit for the subdivision of the land and removal of
native vegetation in accordance with the endorsed plans and subject to the following
conditions:

Amended Subdivision Concept Plan

1. Prior to certification, an amended Subdivision Layout Plan to the satisfaction of
the Responsible Authority must be submitted to and approved by the
Responsible Authority. When approved, the plan will be endorsed and will then
form part of the permit. The plan must be drawn to scale with dimensions and an
electronic copy must be provided. The plan must be generally in accordance
with the Subdivision Layout Plan, Revision G dated 05/03/2021 as prepared by
Urbis, but amended to show:
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a. All vegetation within the site identified in accordance with the Arborist
Report prepared by TreeMap Arboriculture dated May 2018 and nominated
for retention or removal.

b. full concrete laneway (8m wide) with swept paths for garbage collection.
carriageway in accordance with the Council Urban design guidelines or as
otherwise agreed with the Responsible Authority.

d. the laneway connection to Johnsons Road and the footpath without
impacting the trees.

Payments required

2.

Prior to the endorsement of plans, the permit holder must pay to Council a
contribution for infrastructure pursuant to the rates set out in the Mernda Local
Structure Plan Part 1. The contribution will be subject to the Consumer Price
Index (CPI) applicable at the time of payment.

Before a Statement of Compliance is issued under the Subdivision Act 1988, a
public open space contribution as specified in the schedule to clause 52.01 of
the Planning Scheme must be made to the Responsible Authority.

Functional Layout Plan

4.

Before the submission and approval of construction plans (engineering plans)
and the certification of the relevant plan of subdivision for each stage, a
functional layout plan for the subdi on, to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority must be submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority.

When approved, the functional layout plan will be endorsed and will then form
part of the permit. An electronic copy of the functional layout plan must be
drawn at a scale of 1:500 to acceptable drafting standards.

The functional layout plan must be generally in accordance with the Subdivision
Layout Plan endorsed under Condition 1, but amended to show:

a. a fully dimensioned subdivision layout, including approximate lot areas, lot
numbers, open space areas, widths of street reservations, stage boundaries
and the relationship between the site/stage and the surrounding land;

b. topography and existing features, including contours for the subject land
and any affected adjacent land;

c. identification by survey of all trees (or group of trees) existing on the site,
including dead trees and those that overhang the site from adj; ng land.
All trees proposed for removal shall be designated with a cross;

d. details of tree protection zones (TPZs), for all trees to be retained on site and
overhanging from adjoining sites in accordance with the City of Whittlesea
TPZ standard;

e. typical cross-sections for each street type, dimensioning individual
elements, services offsets and any other spatial requirements;

a table of offsets for all utility services and street trees;

g. location and alignment of kerbs, indented parking spaces, footpaths on the
subject land and between the subject land and the nearest other subdivision,
shared paths on the subject land and between the subject land and the
nearest other existing subdivision, bus stop locations marked with a cross;

h. the location of any traffic management devices required to service the
subdivision (signals, roundabouts, splitter islands, etc);

i. provision of notional on-street parking for all lots at a rate of one space per
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lot;

j. swept path diagrams demonstrating that the road network (including
laneways) have been designed for a 12.5m design service vehicle in
accordance with Austroads Design Vehicle and Turning Path templates;

k. any spatial requirements for drainage as identified in the submitted Drainage
Strategy and the proposed overland flow paths;

I preliminary location of reserves for electrical kiosks; and

m. works external to the subdivision, including both interim and ultimate
intersection design requirements and layouts.

Amended Bushfire Management Plan

5.

Before the development starts, an amended and updated Bushfire Management
Plan to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority must be submitted to and
approved by the Responsible Authority. When approved, the Bushfire
Management Plan will be endorsed and will then form part of this permit. The
Bushfire Management Plan must be generally in accordance with the Bushfire
Management Plan prepared by Bushfire Planning Report entitled “Bushfire
Planning Assessment 17-19 Johnsons Road Mernda dated 22 May 2020 Version
1.0, but modified to show:

a. Assessment based on the final subdivision concept plan.
b. Dwellings on each lot constructed to a BAL-12.5 standard.
c.

Defendable space established and maintained in accordance with the
recommendation of that Report.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS
Telecommunications services agreement

6.

The owner of the land must enter into an agreement with:

a. A telecommunications network or service provider for the provision of
telecommun on services to each lot shown on the endorsed plan in
accordance with the provider’s requirements and relevant legislation at the
time; and

b. A suitably qualified person for the provision of fibre ready
telecommunication facilities to each lot shown on the endorsed plan in
accordance with any industry specifications or any standards set by the
Australian Communications and Media Authority, unless the applicant can
demonstrate that the land is in an area where the National Broadband
Network will not be provided by optical fibre.

Engineering Plans

7.

Pursuant to sections 15 and 17(1) (b) of the Subdivision Act 1988, the applicant
must submit engineering plans including specifications for works required under
this permit to the Responsible Authority for approval. The engineering plans
submitted for approval must be to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority
and must incorporate details of all public works within and outside the
subdivision as required by this permit. If the subdivision is to be staged,
engineering plans for each stage must be generally in accordance with the
approved functional layout plans for each stage.
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7.1 Civil Works Plans

Works must be provided, in accordance with civil works plans and specifications
as approved by the Responsible Authority, prior to the issue of Statement of
Compliance. Before any works associated with the subdivision commence,
detailed civil works plans for the relevant stage of works to the satisfaction of
the Responsible Authority must be submitted to and approved by the
Responsible Authority. The civil works plans will not be considered until the
functional layout plan(s) for the relevant stage has been approved by the
responsible authority and landscape works plans submitted, the plan of
subdivision has been lodged for certification with the Responsible Authority and
the locations of other authorities’ services have been provided to the satisfaction
of the Responsible Authority. When approved, the civil works plans will be
endorsed and will then form part of the permit. The civil works plans must be
drawn to scale with dimensions and three copies must be provided. The civil
works plans must include:

a. All necessary computations and supporting documentation, including a
Certificate of Compliance (design) for any structure, traffic data, road safety
audit and geotechnical investigation report.

b. All details of works consistent with the approved functional layout plan,
submitted landscape plan and lodged plan of subdivision.

c. Design for full construction of streets and underground drainage, including
measures to control / capture pollutants and silt.

d. Provision for all services and conduits (underground), including alignments
and offsets, on a separate services layout plan.

e. Provision of public lighting and underground electricity supply within all
streets.

f. Traffic control measures.

g. Provision of street name plates to the Council standard design including a
schedule of individual signs and associated street numbers.

h. Provision of footpaths in all streets and reserves and between the subject
land and the nearest other existing subdivision in accordance with the
approved functional layout plan.

i. Any shared paths in accordance with the Development Plan Overlay
Schedule 34 within streets and reserves.

j. Provision of underground easement drains of sufficient capacity to serve all
lots being created to a legal point of discharge and the provision of an inlet
on each such lot.

k. The location and provision of vehicle exclusion mechanisms abutting
reserves.

I.  Details of the proposed treatment and provision for lot boundary fencing
adjoining all reserves other than road reserves.

m. Appropriate mechanisms for protecting environmental and heritage assets
during the construction phase of the subdivision.

n. Provision for the utilisation of any surplus top soil from this stage.
0. Permanent survey marks.
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Unless an alternative empty conduit network is being installed that is
suitable for fibre optic infrastructure and the applicant has evidence of an
access agreement between the carrier putting in the conduit and the National
Broadband Network Company, the provision of conduits, including pits and
ancillary works for optical fibre telecommunications services or any
equivalent alternative approved by the Responsible Authority and the
conduit shall be designed in accordance with Clause 22.13
Telecommunications Conduit Policy of the Whittlesea Planning Scheme and
Planning Guidelines for Conduits for Optic Fibre Services, 2001.

Survey details of the canopy trunk location and size of trees to be retained
and associated tree protection zones.

Details in relation to all filling on the site which must be compacted to
specifications approved by the Responsible Authority.

The relocation underground of all existing aerial services, including
electricity and telecommunications assets, within streets abutting the
subdivision.

The location of any earthworks (cut or fill) or service provision in a location
outside the designated tree protection zone which does not adversely impact
on the health and integrity of any trees to be retained.

A separate signage and line marking plan identifying the road layout,
proposed signs, line marking, RRPMs and a sign schedule.

7.2 Landscape Works

Plans Prior to the approval of civil works plans for each stage, a draft landscape
works plan for that stage must be submitted to the Responsible Authority for
comparison against the civil works plans. Once approved to the satisfaction of
the Responsible Authority, the landscape works plan will be endorsed and will
then form part of the permit. The landscape works plan must be drawn to scale
with dimensions and three copies of the final plan must be provided. The
landscape works plan must show:

a.

The removal of all existing disused structures, foundations, pipelines or
stockpiles and the eradication of weeds.

All proposed street-tree planting using semi - advanced trees; with maximum
container size of 45 litres or equivalent (larger sizes will incur additional
establishment and extended maintenance obligations).

Earth shaping including the supply and spread of sufficient topsoil and sub
soil if required on the proposed areas of open space to provide a stable, free
draining surface and hydro-seeding of proposed grass areas (including
within the drainage reserve if applicable).

Mechanisms for the exclusion of vehicles.

All proposed open space and streetscape embellishments such as
installation of pathways, park lighting, garden beds, seating, shelters, picnic
facilities, boardwalks, tree planting, signage, drinking fountains, irrigation
systems, playgrounds, artwork, retaining walls, protective fencing
(temporary and permanent), wetlands and ornamental water bodies
(including within the drainage reserve if applicable).

Hazard reduction pruning of trees to be retained, to the satisfaction of the
responsible authority.
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g.

Where sufficient detail is shown on the endorsed landscape masterplan, to
the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority, stage landscape plans may not
be required.

8.  Unless the Council agrees under section 21(1) (b)(ii) of the Subdivision Act 1988 ,
all works shown on the endorsed construction plans must be constructed or
carried out in accordance with the plans before the issue of a Statement of
Compliance for the relevant stage under the Subdivision Act 1988 all to the
satisfaction of the responsible authority.

Statement of compliance with deferment of engineering works

9.  Prior to the issue of a Statement of Compliance for any stage or by such later
date as is approved by the responsible authority in writing, the applicant may
seek, to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority, the issue of the Statement
of Compliance but with deferment of completion of specified civil construction
works shown on the endorsed construction plans and all or part of landscape
construction works shown on the endorsed plans, provided the following
requirements have been met:

9.1 Civil Works

a.

All relevant referral authorities have consented to the issue of a Statement of
Compliance.

Civil construction works have been completed except for the wearing course
asphalt works, the landscaping component of the works and any other minor
works as agreed with the responsible authority.

An amount equivalent to 150 the agreed estimated cost of outstanding civil
construction works will be required by the responsible authority as security
deposit.

A works program is provided setting out the proposed timing of all
outstanding construction works.

A site safety plan that ensures continuous public safety measures are
maintained until completion of the deferred works.

Upon completion of the deferred civil construction works the applicant must
notify the responsible authority to enable its inspection. If the works have been
completed to its satisfaction, the Responsible Authority must refund fully the
security deposit.

9.2 Landscape Works

a.

An amount equivalent to 150 of the agreed estimated cost of outstanding
streetscape / landscape construction plus an agreed amount for the
maintenance works will be required by the Responsible Authority as security
deposit.

A works program is provided setting out the proposed timing of all
outstanding landscape construction works. Works must commence within 3
months of issue of Statement of Compliance for the given stage of the
subdivision and must be completed prior to occupancy of any new dwelling
within the given stage.

Upon completion of the deferred landscaping construction works, the applicant
must notify the Responsible Authority to enable its inspection. Subject to
satisfactory completion of the deferred landscaping, a Certificate of Practical
Completion for landscaping will be issued, triggering the commencement of the
maintenance period. If the works have been completed to its satisfaction, the
Responsible Authority must refund fully the security deposit.
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Tree Protection Zones

10.

1.

Prior to the certification of a plan of subdivision under the Subdivision Act 1988,
a Tree Protection Zone plan for the subdivision or stage of subdivision to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority must be submitted to and approved by
the Responsible Authority. When approved, the Tree Protection Zone plan will be
endorsed and will then form part of the permit. The Tree Protection Zone plan
must be drawn to scale with dimensions and three copies must be provided. The
Tree Protection Zone plan must show:

a. A Tree Protection Zone on a lot covering each tree marked for retention on
the approved tree protection envelope plan; and

b. A Tree Protection Zone within open space and road reserves for each tree or
cluster of trees marked for retention on the approved tree management plan.

The Tree Protection Zone is a shape defined by a circle, whose centre point is
the centre point of the tree trunk at ground level, and whose radius is equal to
half the height of the tree (or half the crown width (whichever is the greater)) plus
the tree canopy plus one metre.

Tree Protection Zone Fencing

Prior to commencement of subdivision works (including any demolition,
excavations, tree removal, delivery of construction materials and/or temporary
buildings) on a lot, open space and/or road reservation, each Tree Protection
Zone on that lot, open space and/or road reservation must:

a. Be fenced with temporary fencing in accordance with the attached
specifications, to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority; and

b. Include a notice on the fence to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority
advising on the purpose of the Tree Protection Zone, the need to retain and
maintain the temporary fencing and that fines will be imposed for removal or
damage of the fencing and trees.

The Tree Protection Zone temporary fencing must be maintained until works are
completed; including the construction of a dwelling if the land is a lot, to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority or until such earlier date as is
approved by the Responsible Authority in writing.

A copy of the tree protection zone(s) are to be included in any contract for the
construction of the estate or for any other works which may impact upon the
trees.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO ISSUE OF A STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
Connection to Telecommunication Services

12.

Before the issue of a Statement of Compliance for any stage of the subdivision
under the Subdi ion Act 1988, the owner of the land must provide written
confirmation from:

a. A telecommunications network or service provider that all lots are connected
to or are ready for connection to telecommunications services in accordance
with the provider’s requirements and relevant legislation at the time; and

b. A suitably qualified person that fibre ready telecommunication facilities have
been provided in accordance with any industry specifications or any
standards set by the Australian Communications and Media Authority,
unless the applicant can demonstrate that the land is in an area where the
National Broadband Network will not be provided by optical fibre.
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Building Envelope Plans

13. Prior to the issue of a Statement of Compliance, the permit holder must enter
into an agreement pursuant to Section 173 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987 or any alternative restriction deemed satisfactory by the Responsible
Authority for all lots between 300m2 and 500m2 which requires the preparation
of building envelope plans. These building envelope plans must:

a. Be in accordance with Standard C8 and any other relevant Standard under
Clause 56 of the Whittlesea Planning Scheme.

b. Incorporate plans and a written statement to address each of the relevant
objectives and performance measures of Clause 54 of the Whittlesea
Planning Scheme to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

c. Require the construction of all dwellings and associated development be
contained within the nominated building envelope for each of the lots hereby
approved except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority.

d. Include design guidelines to ensure a consistent building form and design
outcomes for groups of contiguous allotments affected by a building
envelope pursuant to this Condition.

The costs for preparation and execution of the Agreement shall be borne by the
permit holder.

Servicing strategy

14. A servicing strategy must be provided detailing whether existing infrastructure
will be used or new infrastructure will be provided to service the proposed
development. The strategy must also identify location of any trunk services and
space requirements, and the proposed staging of infrastructure delivery as
relevant.

Access to lots

15. Access to each lot created must be provided by a vehicle cross over constructed
to the responsible authority standards from a fully constructed carriageway to
the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

Services to lots

16. Before a Statement of Compliance is issued for each stage, domestic standard
services for reticulated water, and provision for reticulated recycled water,
drainage, sewerage and underground electricity reticulation must be available to
each lot.

Site Management Plan
17. Before any works, including works required by other authorities, commence:

a. Four copies of a site management plan for the relevant stage must be
submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority. When approved,
the Site Management Plan will be endorsed and will then form part of the
permit. The Site Management Plan must:

(i) Include separate parts describing relevant matters of occupational
health and safety, traffic management, environmental controls and
cultural protection measures.

(ii) Be submitted to the Responsible Authority a minimum of seven days
before a required pre-commencement meeting (attended by authorised
representatives of the construction contractor and project
superintendent as appointed by the developer) on the site of the works.
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(i) Include the proposed route for construction vehicle access to the site
including a program for the upgrade and maintenance works required
along this route while any works are in progress.

(iv) (iv) Include means by which foreign material will be restricted from
being deposited on public roads by vehicles associated with building
and works on the land to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

(v) Include measures to reduce the impact of noise, dust and other
emissions created during the construction process.

b. All environmental and cultural protection measures identified shall be
described on a drawing(s) drawn to scale and prepared in accordance with
Melbourne Water standards for such drawings.

The developer must keep the responsible authority informed in writing of any
changes to the Site Management Plan. If in the opinion of the Responsible
Authority the changes represent a significant departure from the approved Site
Management Plan then an amended Site Management Plan must be submitted to
and approved by the Responsible Authority. The approved measures must be
carried out continually and completed to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority.

Stormwater Drainage

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Any stormwater drain, temporary drainage out falls and ancillary works, required
as a condition of a Melbourne Water Drainage Scheme, or that are designated to
become the responsibility of the Council for maintenance, must be designed and
constructed to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

Before the approval of construction plans for roadworks and drainage, the
designs for such works and the details of maintenance requirements (asset
management and maintenance schedule) must be submitted to and approved by
the Responsible Authority.

Access to each lot created must be provided by a vehicle cross over constructed
to the responsible authority standards from a fully constructed carriageway to
the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

Before a Statement of Compliance is issued for each stage, domestic standard
services for reticulated water, and provision for reticulated recycled water,
drainage, sewerage and underground electricity reticulation must be available to
each lot.

Each reserve shown on the endorsed plan(s) must be provided with services and
facilities to a domestic service standard to the satisfaction of and at no cost to
the responsible authority including power and water for neighbourhood parks.

Tree Removal Conditions

23.

24,

No native vegetation, other than that shown on the endorsed plan, shall be
destroyed, felled, lopped, ring barked or uprooted, without the consent of the
Responsible Authority.

In order to offset the removal of native vegetation (patch, scattered trees or re-
vegetation) approved as part of this permit, the applicant must provide a native
vegetation offset that is in accordance with the Guidelines for the removal,
destruction or lopping of native vegetation (DELWP 2017) and the native
vegetation gain scoring manual Version 2 (DELWP 2017). The offset, unless
otherwise agreed to in writing by the Responsible Authority, must:

n. Contribute a gain of 0.001 General Habitat Units (GHUs);
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25.

26.
27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

o. Be located within the boundary of the Whittlesea municipality or the Port
Phillip and Westernport Catchment Management Authority area; and

p. Have a strategic biodiversity score of at least 0.112 of the native vegetation
approved for removal.

Before any native vegetation is removed, evidence that an offset has been
secured must be provided to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

The removal of any other planted Eucalyptus or Corymbia spp. must be
undertaken outside of the critically endangered Swift Parrot migratory period;
winter.

A targeted survey for the nationally threatened Golden Sun Moth during the
breeding period (Oct-Jan) to determine whether they are present within the study
area must be carried out as recommended in the Biodiversity Assessment
submitted with the application. To ensure the applicant meets their obligations
under the EPBC Act, a targeted survey and self-assessment under the Act must
be undertaken.

The permit holder is to ensure that tree removal is carried out in a safe manner.

The permit holder is to locate all services either above or below ground prior to
the commencement of any works.

Stumps and any surface roots are to be ground down below ground level.
Ground and chipped material to a depth of 50mm is to be removed from site at
the direction of the project manager. The permit holder must supply and replace
suitable topsoil and seed the area making certain that the reinstated ground
surface is level, even and safe.

All stumps not removed immediately after removal of the tree are to be paint
marked with a suitable bright yellow reflective marking paint.

All stumps must be removed within 14 days of removal of the tree.

All timber greater than 300mm in diameter that cannot be reused as habitat,

furniture or another use determined as appropriate by the responsible authority
shall be hammer milled and shredded for reuse as mulch within the subject site.

All timber less than 300mm in diameter and branch/leaf material shall be
shredded for reuse as mulch within the subject site.

At the completion of the works, the applicant is to arrange for an appropriate
Council officer to inspect the site to ensure compliance with the planning permit.

Top Soil

34.

No top soil is to be removed from land covered by the subdivision without the
written consent of the Responsible Authority.

Time Limit

35.

This permit will expire if:
a. The plan of subdivision for the first stage is not certified within 2 years of the
date of this permit; or

b. The plan of subdivision for any subsequent stage of the subdivision is not
certified in 2 years of the date of the certification of the previous stage of
the subdi n.

c. The registration of any stage of the subdivision is not completed within 5
years of the date of certification of the plans of subdivision.
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The Responsible Authority may extend the time if a request is made in writing
before the permit expires or within six months afterwards.

REFERRAL AUTHORITY CONDITIONS
Ausnet Electricity Services Conditions (Condition 35)

36. The Plan of Subdivision submitted for certification must be referred to AUSNET
ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY LTD in accordance with Section 8 of the

Subdi

jon Act 1988. The applicant must

Enter in an agreement with AUSNET ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY LTD for
supply of electricity to each lot on the endorsed plan.

Enter into an agreement with AUSNET ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY LTD
for the rearrangement of the existing electricity supply system.

Enter into an agreement with AUSNET ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY LTD
for rearrangement of the points of supply to any existing installations
affected by any private electric power line which would cross a boundary
created by the subdivision, or by such means as may be agreed by
AUSNET ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY LTD.

Provide easements satisfactory to AUSNET ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY
LTD for the purpose of “Power Line in the favour of “AUSNET
ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY LTD pursuant to Section 88 of the Elec!
Industry Act 2000, where easements have not been otherwise provided, for
all existing AUSNET ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY LTD electric power lines
and for any new power lines required to service the lots on the endorsed
plan and/or abutting land.

Obtain for the use of AUSNET ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY LTD any other
easement required to service the lots.

Adjust the position of any existing AUSNET ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY
LTD easement to accord with the position of the electricity line(s) as
determined by survey.

Set aside on the plan of subdivision Reserves for the use of AUSNET
ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY LTD for electric substations.

Provide survey plans for any electric substations required by AUSNET
ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY LTD and for associated power lines and
cables and executes leases for a period of 30 years, at a nominal rental with
a right to extend the lease for a further 30 years. AUSNET ELECTRICITY
SERVICES PTY LTD requires that such leases are to be noted on the title by
way of a caveat or a notification under Section 88 (2) of the Transfer of
Land Act prior to the registration of the plan of subdivision.

Provide to AUSNET ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY LTD a copy of the plan of
subdivision submitted for certification that shows any amendments that
have been required.

Agree to provide alternative electricity supply to lot owners and/or each lot
until such time as permanent supply is available to the development by
AUSNET ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY LTD. Individual generators must be
provided at each supply point. The generator for temporary supply must be
installed in such a manner as to comply with the Electricity Safety Act 1998.
Ensure that all necessary auditing is completed to the satisfaction of
AUSNET ELECTRICITY SERVICES PTY LTD to allow the new network
assets to be safely connected to the distribution network.

ty

Melbourne Water Conditions (Conditions 36 to 48)

Item 6.2.1

Page 130




image212.png
Scheduled Council Meeting Minutes Monday 2 August 2021

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42,

43.

44,

45,

46.

47.

48.

49.

Prior to the issue of a Statement of Compliance, the Owner shall enter into and
comply with an agreement with Melbourne Water Corporation for the acceptance
of surface and storm water from the subject land directly or indirectly into
Melbourne Water’s drainage systems and waterways, the provision of drainage
works and other matters in accordance with the statutory powers of Melbourne
Water Corporation.

No polluted and / or sediment laden runoff is to be discharged directly or
indirectly into Melbourne Water s drains or watercourses.

Prior to Certification, the Plan of Subdivision must be referred to Melbourne
Water, in accordance with Section 8 of the Subdivision Act 1988.

Prior to the issue of a Statement of Compliance for the subdivision, engineering
plans of the subdivision (in electronic format) must be submitted to Melbourne
Water for our records. These plans must show road and drainage details and
any overland flow paths for the 100 year ARI storm event.

Alignment of roads and reserves with any adjoining estates must ensure
continuity and provide uninterrupted conveyance of overland flows.

Prior to Certification of any Plan of Subdi on associated with the application, a
stormwater management strategy including associated modelling must be
submitted and accepted by Melbourne Water and Whittlesea Council. The
strategy must demonstrate the following:

o The proposed alignment for any 1 in 5 year drainage infrastructure and any
associated overland flow paths directions for the 1 in 100 year ARI flood
event;

e The details of the proposed outfalls for the development, including
interactions and/or license agreement with downstream land owners.

« Proposed lot fill levels relative to the 1 AEP flood level, including the
provision of required freeboard.

Prior to the issue of a Statement of Compliance for the subdivision, a Site
Management Plan detailing pollution and sediment control measures must be
submitted to Melbourne Water.

The subdivision is to make provision for overland flows from the upstream
catchment utilising roads and/or reserves.

Any road or access way intended to act as a stormwater overland flow path must
be designed and constructed to comply with the floodway safety criteria outlined
within Melbourne Water’s Land Development Manual.

Easements or reserves shall be created over e
Water assets on the Plan of Subdi

g and proposed Melbourne
ision to the satisfaction of Melbourne Water.

The developer is to negotiate with any downstream landowners to obtain a free
draining outfall through their property. Approval is to be forwarded to
Melbourne Water for our records prior to construction commencing.

Any temporary outfall is to be arranged to the satisfaction of Melbourne Water,
Council and the affected downstream property owner(s).

Prior to the issue of a Statement of Compliance for the subdivision, a separate
application direct to Melbourne Water must be made for any new or modified
storm water connection to Melbourne Water s drains or watercourses.

Yarra Valley Water Conditions (Conditions 49 to 50)

Water
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50.

51.

The owner of the subject land must enter into an agreement with Yarra Valley
Water for the provision of water services.

Sewerage

The owner of the land must enter into an agreement with Yarra Valley Water for
the provision of sewerage services.

APT O&M Services Conditions (Conditions 51 to 52)

52.

53.

Easements in favor of “Australian Gas Networks (VIC) Pty Ltd must be created
on the plan to the satisfaction of APT.

The plan of subdivision submitted for certification must be referred to APT O&M
Services Pty Ltd, in accordance with Section 8 of the Subdivision Act 1988.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

M

THAT Council resolve to adopt the Recommendation.

CARRIED
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This Action Plan was endorsed by Council on 6 April 2021 with a commitment to provide an update on the actions every six months.

Ms Lydia Wilson, Ms Peita Duncan and Mr Chris Eddy have been appointed by the Minister for Local Government to the role of
Administrators to undertake the duties of Council until the October 2024 Council elections. Ms Wilson has been appointed Chair of
Administrators.

The Administrators have worked cohesively to support our Executive and staff to deliver a range of service and governance improvements,
support our community through COVID-19 and embark on a significant consultation process to develop a new Community Plan.

The Council is fully committed to our work and the roadmap we have set for the future of the City of Whittlesea, including an ambitious
outcome-focused program for the remainder of our term.

The Council is committed to embedding good governance at the City of Whittlesea in accordance with the State Government-appointed
Municipal Monitor’s report tabled in Parliament on 17 March 2020 which recommended: “Administrators develop, implement and publicly
report on an action plan to embed good governance at the Council taking into account the reform opportunities in the Local Government
Bill 2019.”

This Action Plan outlines the strategies and actions that have been identified to ensure good governance at the City of Whittlesea through
to October 2024. The actions are outlined under the 5 Priority areas of Council as outlined in the Council Plan and Community and Council
Vision: Whittlesea2040: A place for all and additional priorities of Effective Implementation of the Local Government Act 2020 and Covid
Response and Recovery:

1. Good Governance/Effective implementation of the Local Government Act 2020
COVID19 Response and Recovery

Connected Communities

Liveable Neighbourhoods

Strong Local Economy

Sustainable Environment.

High performing organisation

Nowv,swN
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Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Governance rules

Endorsed 1 June 2021 following significant public consultation
and changes to increase civic participation at Council meetings

Next review June 2022

Review of conduct of Scheduled
Council Meetings

Confirmation of Council meeting schedule for 2022 at 2 August
2021 Council meeting including quarterly Council meetings in
community centres preceded by community forums

Next Community Council meeting scheduled 6
December 2021

Public Transparency policy

Endorsed 1

tember 2020

Administrator/Councillor Code of
Conduct

Endorsed 2

ruary 2021

Audit and Risk Committee

Meetings held May 2021, August 2021 with comprehensive a
financial and policy agendas

Continue quarterly meetings and six-monthly report

to Council by Independent Chair

Community Engagen

t Policy

Endorsed 1 March 2021

Ongoing multi-pronged engagement activities in
ine with the policy

Administrator/Councillor Gift and
Benefits Policy

Endorsed 1 March 2021

Council Budget 2021/22

Endorsed 1 June 2021

Annual development and adoption

Revenue and Rating Plan

Endorsed 1 June 2021

Progressive implementation
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Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Council Plan 2021-25 (Community
Plan)

Active community consultation and engagement including 12

“pop ups” in community settings, online survey, 370 individual
responses and 3172 pieces of feedback received. Engagement
has also included budgeting workshops for COVID19 $2million
recovery fund

Council workshops to develop the Plan

0On 2 August 2021, the draft Community Plan was endorsed for
Consultation from 20 August to 20 September 2021

Scheduled for endorsement 25 Octobe|
Act requir

2021. LG
endorsement by 31 October 2021

Community Vision —~ Whittlesea

2040

Current - refreshed as part of community consultation

Continue to align all work to this vision

Ten year Financial Plan

Consultation on proposed plan from 20 Aug
2021

ust to 20 Septembet

Scheduled for endorsement 25 Octobe!

2021. LG
Act requires endorsement by 31 October 2021

Annual Report 2020/21

Annual R

ort 2020/21 prepared

LG Act requires endorsement by 31 October 2021

CEO Employment and Remuneration
Policy

CEO Employment Matters Advisory Committee Terms of
Reference in place and further review commenced in
consideration of Policy requirements. Independent Member
appointed July 2020

To be completed and endorsed by 31 December
2021 in accordance with LG Act requirements

Gender Equality Action Plan

Workshops on Gender equality a
August 2021 and 20 September
Administrator involvement

action plan held on 16 and 30
vith Council including

The Commission for Gender Equality has extended
the deadline for submission of Gender Equality
Action Plans (GEAP) from 1 December 2021 to 31

March 2022
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Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Workforce plan

Plan drafted for Executive consideration in November 2021

To be completed and endorsed by the Executive
Leadership Team by 31 December 2021 in
accordance with LG Act r1

quirements.

Complaints Policy

Complaints policy and guidelines prepared for consultation

To be completed and endorsed by Council by 31
December 2021 in acco h LG Act

nce w
requirements,

Procurement Policy

Policy endorsed 4 May 2021 for implementation from 1 July 2021

This policy was developed with 6 other councils who form the
Northern Councils Alliance, for ¢
consistent approac

vious joint benefits including a
> procurement across the northern region,

ensuring that public funds are used in a

per manner and that
best value is achieved, and ma

misation of savings.

Policy will be reviewed by July 2025

Annual revie

of Attachment 1 of the Procurement
Policy (City of Whittlesea specific) completed by
June 2022

Asset Plan

Initial drafting commenced

To be completed and endorsed by 30 June 2022 in
accordance with LG Act requirements.
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Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Preparing for 2024 Council elections

Initial discussions held in February 2021 with VLGA and MAV in
relation to engaging and supporting community leadership and
capability building

Multicultural civic participation and leadership program
commenced

Comprehensive community leadership program developed with
nput from Administrators in August 2021

Future sessions and information with the
community and relevant agencies to increase
awareness of Council and Councillor roles and to
build capability.

Formal civic leadership program to commence late
2021. A 4-year program has been developed and
ncludes community and civic leadership focus, and
ncludes targeted (e.g. CALD, young people etc) as
well as universal cohorts. This is also a proposed
Community Plan 2021-2025 action

Development and progressive
implementation of adopted Council
Advocacy Program

A number of Advocacy Briefings hel
months to inform a strategic approach with tiered priorities and
relevant partners

with Council over past 6

Meetings and forums held with local Members of Parliament

Delivery of adopted Advocacy Plan

Continued meetings and partnerships work

Partnership approach

Key partnerships and active involvement with Interface Councils,
Northern Councils Alliance, Northlink, NAGA, MAY, VLGA,
Advisory Committees, Yarra Plenty Regional Library

Draft DAMP with Moreland and Darebin

Joint procurement with six councils who along with Whittlesea
form the Northern Council’s Alliance.

iew of developer contribution plans with
Interface Group of Councils

Active participation by CEO, Executive and
Administrators in joint planning and advocacy and
other relevant forum
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Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Financial investment into
supporting recovery and
response

New Financial Hardship Policy en amental

chan

orsed 5 July 2021. Fun:
e in policy and best practice approach including decision to
recruit a dedicated Hardship Support Officer to improve outcomes
for the community.

Reporting on Council on long outstan

ng debt

Supporting business an
employment

Acquittal process of the Business Assistance Grants is nea
completion

Roll out of outdoor dining activities continued including events and
scoping of intensive marketing campaign. These activities are funded
by $570,000 State Government grant funding received to support
food and hospitality businesses with outdoor eating and
entertainment

294 people were employed t
Victoria Program with 147 working in community and partner
organisations and 147 directly with Counci

Council

hrough the Working for

Grant received for Job Advocates program and project has
commenced

Development a “Support Local” initiative to be
developed and implemented in Q3 of the 2021/22
financial year

Outdoor dining intensive marketing campaign to go
live in Q2 of the 2021/22 financial yea

Internal evaluation plan of the Working for Victoria
Program due for completion by the end of
September

Key focus on facilitating the development of social

enterprises

$2mil codesigned recovery

Pandemic Recovery fund endorsed 5 July 2021 following active
involvement of 32 community members and 3 workshops

Pandemic recovery priorities included in draft Community Plan

Community prioritisation for expenditure of the
recovery fund completed and being implemented
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Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Council services adapt
COVID19 restrictions

Business Continuity plans activated

Regular changes to Council services to respond to State Government
essential services were

restrictions, ensuring CovidSafe a
maintained

QR code installed in all Council premises and COVID safe plans
prepared

Continue to adapt services and implement business
continuity plan as required

Partnerships in relief and

recovery.

Ongoing meetings and communication with Emergency Services

Victoria, local agencies, Local Government Victoria and community

leaders to plan and respond to the pandemic

Funds provided by Council to community service organisations to
assist with emergency relief include

o $476,600.18: April 2019- 30 Jun 2021

e $19,795: 1July 2021- current (1 Sept'21)

Council conducted a Whittlesea Community Futures (WCF)
2021. The Survey was

Partnership Lockdown Survey in Jun
undertaken during the circuit-breaker lockdown in June 2021 and
e on the

adds to our growing local knowledge and evidence-ba
impact of COVID on our community. It captures a snapshot of the
situation observed by our partner community service organisations
including emerging issues, successful initiatives and any gaps in
service delivery. Important insights have been gained on the impacts
of the lockdown that informs our Pandemic Recovery Plan response

Continue working relationships and
communications with all key stakeholders,
community leaders and agencies to ensure
effective response and relief to our local
communities.
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Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Disability access and inclusion

Attendance at monthly meeting of the Whittlesea Disability Network
Included consultation on the draft City of Whittlesea Community Plan
2021-25,

Continued involvement and active participation

Supporting Young People

Youth Advisory Committee participation including discussion on the
draft City of Whittlesea Community Plan 2021-25

Youth Advisory Committee attended Council briefing on 5 July 2021

Further engagement with Youth Advisory
Committee to inform Council decisions and support
civic leadership development

Emergency Management
preparing for forthcoming fire
season

Municipal Fire Management Planning Committee meetings.

Pre fire danger period communication has commenced to encourage
landowners to ensure their property is fire-ready.

Ongoing meetings and planning,

Fire prevention inspections over summer 2021/22

Future service models

3-year-old kindergarten reform Council report on 4 May 2021

Briefings held on key strategic projects and opportunities including
Youth Services Advisory Committee, Aged Care Reform, Early Years
and 3-year-old kindergarten. Following endorsement and joint
signing of the KISP between Council and the Department of
Education, Council has commenced preparation of a 3 Year Old
Kindergarten Reform Options Paper; informing delivery options for
Council in the roll-out of this major reform. In the interim, Council
has commenced planning for projects to address forecast demand in
the next 2 years. In August 2021, the Victorian Government
announced Kinder on School Sites which included 2 partnership
projects with Council
West Primary School.

the Lalor Primary School and the new Wollert

Continue work on strategic modelling.

The 3-Year-Old Kindergarten Reform Options Paper
is due to Council in December 2021

Aged Care Reform Project Report is scheduled to go
to Council Briefing in October 2021
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eae i) o
Connected Communities — socially cohesive community, healthy and = Whittlesea

Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Advisory groups

Community Awards Committee terms of reference endorsed 4 May
2021

Confirmation of Administrator participation on advisory committees
confirmed 1 June 2021 with their full and active representation
across all key committees

Business Advisory Panel endorsed 1 June 2021.
Attendance at relevant advisory group meetings and monthly

reporting back to Council. Details have been outlined in the
attachments to the Administrator Action Plan report.

Continue advisory committee participation

Business Advisory Panel membership to be
endorsed with first meeting to take place in
October
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Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Supporting reconciliation

Stretch Reconciliation Action Plan in place

Whittlesea Reconciliation Group (WRG) meets bi-monthly with
Administrator involvement. The WRG celebrated its 20" anniversary

in June 2021, making it one of Australia’s oldest. The WRG:

e Isworking with Council to im
(recording/cap

e Has requested a briefing from the Victorian Government

rding the treaty process and will seek a joint briefing
with Administrators and the WRG

e Was consulted on the proposed Community Plan 2021-25 at

ment a story telling

roject

uring stories)

ts August meeting

Gathering Place recommen
the establishment of a purpose-built Aboriginal Gathering P!
in financial plan

tions endorsed 5 July 2021 - “Support
at

Quarry Hills Park” with budget allocate

strong relationship with key aboriginal agencies within Whittlesea
including Bubup Wilam

A review of the current Stretch Reconciliation
Action Plan will commence by end of 2021

Council endorsed a Gathering Place project to

proceed at the Quarry Hills Regional Park and has
established an

visory group with community
members to ensure a co-design approach. This
project is an

dvocacy priority of Counci

Community Awards

Community Awal

committee established 5 July 2021 with
Administrator involvement. Inaugural meeting held 19 July 2021

Award nominations opened 9 August 2021.

Community Awards event to occur late 2021
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Connected Communities — socially cohesive community, healthy and ‘ = Whittlesea

safe community, a participating community

Action/Focus area Status as at September 2021 Future Actions

Celebrating Cultural Diversity Supporting and attending events that celebrate Cultural Diversity Continue supporting events that celebrate cultural
including: diversity
e Sorry Day, Reconciliation and NAIDOC week events Support Welcoming Cities accreditation

o Cultural Diversity Week events including Harmony Day

Regular citizenship ceremonies to continue
o Refugee Week events

Citizenship ceremonies — two held 12 July 2021 and around 20 online
ceremonies held over August and September 2021 — approximately
450 conferees in total.
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safe community, a participating co

Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Community Engagement

Playspace Replacement Program

«  Community engagement is currently underway for the Granite
Hills Playground, which will help shape the future design of the
major regional playground

Laurimar 1C engagement with residents on street trees completed

Greening Whittlesea Strategy Community and stakeholder
consultation completed online

Rethinking Waste Plan — Council engaged with over 1200 individuals
, a focus group, face to face displays, social media

via online surv
and a school competition

Significant Community Plan engagement involving over 1300 people

ning engagement initiatives

Participating Community
building community leadership
capacity

Delivered the

webinars: ‘Engaging your community’ in April, ‘Project
and event management’ and ‘Evaluating community projects’ in May,
‘Communicating your message effectively in June 2021

Comprehensive community leadership program developed with

Administrator input in August 2021

Implementation of Community Leadership program
over 2021- 2025,

A d-year program has been developed and includes
community and civic leadership focus, and includes

targeted (e.g. CALD, young people etc) as well as

universal cohorts. This is also a proposed
Community Plan 2021-2025 action.

Over 700 people are anticipated to participate over
the period
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well designed neighbourhoods and

Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Urban Design Framework

Thomastown and
Challenges Report was presented to ELT on 26 May and Council
Briefing on 21 June

alor Urban Design Framework Opportunities and

Community consultation undertaken in July 2021 and
consultation report currently being prepared. Draft
Thomastown and Lalor Urban Design Framework is
currently with external agencies and internal
stakeholders for comment

Discussions with key landholders in Epping continuing

ping Urban Design Framework

to inform the

Affordable Housing initiatives

Advocating for investment in social and affordable housing through
the Victorian Government Big Housing Build — seven successfully
funded projects will result in more than 285 new social and
affordable homes to be delivered across various locations in the
City. This outcome has strong endorsement from Administrators.

Continued work with State Government and

developers for future affordable housing options

Investigate opportunities for use of surplus Council

and for Social and Affordable Housing

Continued work in partnership with Hope Street
Family Services to advocate for a youth refuge in
South Morang.

Major integrated residential,
commercial, health/hospital hubs

Consistent w

 the Mernda Strategy Plan 2008 (incorporated
structure plan), the Mernda Civic Precinct implementation is
currently in planning

Mernda Sports and Leisure Centre planning is also in process

Review scope and funding model in line with Council’s
ong term financial plan and determine an operational
model for Mernda Town Centre Hub, seek grants and
allocate appropriate funding.

Determine Mernda Sports and Leisure centre
masterplan. A report is scheduled for Council on this
tem in October 2021
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well designed neighbourhoods and

Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Planning for the future

Patterson Drive Community Centre business case endorsed 1 June

2021

Whittlesea Township strategy adopted by Council 1 June 2021

Preparation of Green Wedge Management Plan
Review Epping Central Structure Plan

Consider Vearings Road Employment Precinct
Development Plan

Capital program and new works

program delivery

Delivery of major new works including:

e Mernda Social Support Facility (design completed and
tender for works approved in 2020/21 FY).

e Gambu Gulinj (Edgars Creek) Community Centre
completed as part of a devel
Lease.

nent agreement with Lend

e Wollert East Community Centre

ign and about 75% of
construction as part of development agreement with the
VSBA.

o Signalisation of Findon Road / Ferres Boulevard completed

e Spring Street (Thomastown Primary School) Kindergarten
opened for 2021 school year
« Al Abilities Playspace ~ completed

Forecast expenditure programs for individual projects have been
prepared for 2021/22 New Work Projects. This takes into
consideration COVID-19 impact to date.

Continue to implement new works delivery.

Continued a
nfrastructs

vocacy for additional government
re funding
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well designed neighbourhoods and

Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Planning forum or committee

Effective models that take into account broader engagement and
decision-making delegations to be presented to Council as a holistic
package in Q2 2021/22

Consideration of options of a planning forum or
committee as part of broader engagement and
delegations package

Consideration of recommendations from IBAC
Operation Sandon and DELWP's Planning Reform
program may form future considerations depending
on timing

Cemeteries and heritage sites

preservation and showcasing

Ongoing assessment of heritage places and dry-stone walls - use of

councils municipal dry stone wall heritage study successful VCAT
decision Feb 2021

Scoping for aboriginal heritage study

Investigating future management models for our historic cemeteries
and increased community engagement with cemetery heritage

Working
maijor road projects

with Major Road Projects Victoria on heritage impacts of 3

Preferred approach to historic cemetery management
to be confirmed

Aboriginal heritage study to commence 21/22

ocation of historic Wo

church part of 6 2021

Investigate appropriate statutory mechanisms for dry
stone wall protection
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377 Citj( of
=/ Whittlesea

Liveable Neighbourhoods — smart connected transport network,

well designed neighbourhoods and vibrant town centres, housing for diverse needs

Action/Focus area Status as at September 2021 Future Actions

Addressing traffic congestion and | Road Management plan adopted 1 June 2021 Continued advocacy via regular meetings at all levels
supporting transport corridors. Maijor works in Findon Road extension to pursue upgrade of state roads to address
congestion
« The road works are nearing completion ) ,
Continue working with MRPV to influence the state
« The design of the Williamson & Findon Road intersection is projects to get best outcomes for Council and its

currently being reviewed to consider right hand turn movements | community

Major Road Project Victoria Continued advocacy to local Members of Parliament

+  O’Herns Road interchange —will be open to the public by end of | t© Progress priority projects

August 2021

* Plenty Road Stage 2 on tract, intersection of Plenty Road/Bridge
Inn Road to be completed soon

« Childs Road duplication works complete

Epping Road, Yan Yean Road and Bridge Inn Road at planning/design
stages
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opportunities for all, successful in

Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

COVID Business Grants (Roun:
and Round 2)

Acquittal process near completion

Further allocation of $120,000 grants

Local employment

Investment attraction plan was completed and endorsed at the
Council meeting on 5 July. This Plan will guide Council to support
attracting new and retaining current investment, which will aim to

create employment growth and diversity

Economic Development Strategy review has commenced noting the
actions completed. Satisfaction levels of the Strategy will
measured in parallel with the Strong Local Economy Strategy
consultation process

e

The development of Councils first Strong Local Economy Strategy has
commenced

Continued support of the viability of existing business through
programs highlighted in the proposed Community Plan to ensure
employment retainment and encourage job growth and promote

self-employment opportunities

Continued support and engagement with existing businesses with

resources and information to ensure COVID-safe operations

New Strong Local Economy Strategy to be endorsed
by February 2022

Supporting effective resourcing in
economic development.

Resource review currently underway and near completion

Review of realignment to be endorsed by ELT
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opportunities for all, successful in

Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Economic Development/Business
Advisory Committee

Business Advisory Panel Terms of Reference have been endorsed
Expressions of Interest have been received and reviewed

Finalise and endorse the Panel membership and hold

the first meeting in October 2021

Social enterprise stimulation

Social enterprise benchmarking exercise completed with
recommendations provided. This benchmarking activity has

highlighted new possible partnerships, whilst continuing to support

promote existing social enterprise initiatives

Initiatives to be integrated into the Strong Local
Economy Strategy

Investment Attraction Strategy

Investment Attraction Plan and 2021/22 Action Plan workshops
conducted with Administrators with subsequent endorsement by
Council on 5 July 2021

Implementation of Investment Attraction Plan
actions

No
inclu
Freight Terminal (BIFT) and
Melbourne Food and Innovation
Hub

h and West City Dea
ing Beveridge Intermodal

Advocacy and partnership work has commenced with Northern
Councils Alliance and, in particular, Mitchell Shire Counci

Ongoing advocacy by Council
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opportunities for all, successful innovative local businesses.

=\ City of
Strong Local Economy — increased local employment, education = Whittlesea

Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Whittlesea Community Farm and
Food Collective project (with
Whittlesea Community
Connections, Melbourne
Polytechnic, Yarra Valley Water
and Council)

Continued participation on Steering committee by CEO

Farm operational plan, site design and conservation management
plan finalised

Cultural heritage management plan and drystone wall management
plan underway

Review of budget and finalisation of costings for
proposed buildings/activities

Planning permit to be submitted to council for
assessment

Partnership - Yarra Plenty Valley
Regional Libraries Service (YPRL)

Ongoing membership of YPRL Steering Committee with Chair of
Administrators as current Chair of YPRL

Ongoing chairing membership of YPRL Board and
active participation in strategic planning and
oversight.
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Sustainab

biodiversity, climate ready, leader

Action/Focus area Status as at September 2021 Future Actions
Climate change Greening Whittlesea Strategy endorsed — 6 April 2021 - Strategy Lead | Greening Whittlesea Strategy lead to coordinate /
employed to manage / coordinate implantation plan carry out actions in Implementation Plan
Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan
«  The Municipal Context Package drafted and currently under ¢ Revise and finalise the Municipal Context
peer review. The package includes 9 reports: Community Package
Emissions Profile, Science-based Reduction Target, Survey Data | ®  Run the second institutional workshop
Audit, Business Sustainability Program Review, Climate Change | *  Document institutional stakeholder
Projections and Scenarios, Municipal Variables, Current
Narratives, Summary of Community Engagement, Climate e Confirm the draft Vision Statement and
Change Vulnerability Assessment Outcom

«  Community consultation undertaken so far: Phase 1 as partof | *  Select potential action options against
Council Plan consultation (i.e. inclusion in Council Plan Survey, proposed outcomes
Community Popups, Focus Group, and Youth Forum), Phase 2 +  Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan
outside the Council Plan consultation including Business + Municipal Context Package drafted
Breakfast (15 people attended representing 14 organisations) «  Business breakfast complete
and online engagement on Hive (climate mapping and Post-it « Institutional workshop 1 complete

notes). More than 800 contributions were received through the | ,  vision Statement and Outcomes drafted

engagement

« Institutional stakeholder consultation is currently ongoing. The
first institutional workshop took place on 29 July (53 internal
and external participants attended) and the second one
scheduled for 14 September

«  Adraft Vision Statement and Outcomes developed

«  Action mapping underw
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3=\ City of
. . it ) )
Sustainable Environment — valued natural landscapes and LS whittlesea

biodiversity, climate ready, leaders in clean, sustainable living.

Action/Focus area Status as at September 2021 Future Actions

Water Management Integrated Water Management (IWM) Strategy endorsed— Mapping & feasibility of future alternative water
implementation of Year 1 Actions including establishment of IWM harvesting opportunities.
Hub

Continued partnership work with Community, Yarra
Valley Water, Melbourne Water, Developers,
Management Committees and other Agencies

Active involvement in Yarra Integrated Water
Management Forum including sign off on
Catchment Scale Plan and targets
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3= City of
. . y A A
Sustainable Environment — valued natural landscapes and = Whittlesea

biodiversity, climate ready, leaders in clean, sustainable living.

Action/Focus area Status as at September 2021 Future Actions

Energy 611 kW of solar PV installed on 16 sites and 260 kWh of batteries Proposal for an additional at least 200 kW of solar
installed on 10 sites in the 2020-21 FY, taking total capacity of solar | PV and 200 kWh of battery systems in the 2021-
PV systems installed to 1.7 MW on 66 sites and 290 kWh of batteries 2022 FY

on13sites Bulk change over of decorative street lights to

Council participating in the VECO ( Victorian Energy Collaboration, energy efficient LEDs
formerly LG Power Purchase Agreement) as of 1 July 2021, providing

: " ‘ Energy audits of smaller buildings to identify
100% renewable electricity for all council street lights and facilities

further energy efficiency measures to be
undertaken, for example lighting upgrades, double
glazing, etc

Studies being commissioned into:
- Getting off gas in Council buildings
TRAC energy efficiency audit and systems

optimisation / economic viability of co-
generation unit
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Sustainable Environment — valued natural landscapes and

biodiversity, climate ready, leaders in clean, sustainable living.

37 Citj( of
=/ Whittlesea

Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Waste

Rethinking Waste Plan adopted by Council on 1 June 2021
Extension of the bundled branches contracts was finalised and

services under the new contract extension commenced in June 2021

Recycling Processing is occurring under a schedule of rates with
Cleanaway. Officers are still negotiating details within the contract
with Cleanaway

Progressing the development of a program to roll
out the four-bin collection system required under
the Recycling Victoria Policy with an immediate
focus on Glass

Implementation of the actions of the Rethinking
Waste Plan including:

- Rate rebates (action 1.3)

- Waste education with the community
(action 1.4)

- Organisational wide low waste policy
(action 1.7)
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Buildlhg a high perfo

Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Recruitment and performance
monitoring of CEO by
Administrators and CEO
Employment matters advisory
committee (CEMAC)

CEMAC meeting held 13 May 2021 with 6 month performance review

Workshop held to define Values and Behaviours with CEO and

Administrators 30 August 2021 facilitated by independent member

Ongoing CEMAC meetings on regular basis in
accordance with terms of reference.

Next meeting scheduled 19 October 2021

Build strong relationships with
CEO and Executive

Weekly briefings held on strategic and policy matters wit
communication as required

daily

Joint attendance at events including key forums and advisory
committees, meetings with local Members of Parliament, Staff Q & A
and other civic events.

Continued weekly briefings and joint event

attes

ce

Information Technology

Votar engaged to prepare Council’s u

ated Digital Strategy.
Estimated completion date October 2021

Digital Strategy provided to council in November

for noting.
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Buildlhg a high perfo

Action/Focus area

Status as at September 2021

Future Actions

Policy and Strategy Framework
Review

At 1 March 20221 Council meeting endorsed new integrated
Strategic Framework to develop key strategies to align to the
Whittlesea 2040 vision a Connected
Community, Liveable Neighbourhoods, Strong Local Economy,

d Council Plan goals of

Sustainable Environment and High Performing Organisation

Strong Local Economy strategy development commenced

Development of the five core strategies by June
2022

Consultation with Community on the strategies and
action plans

Financial Management

Fees and Charges Review about to commen:
be engaged

External consultant to

2022/23 Budget preparations and revi
consultation

for to community

Ongoing budget and financial r Council

rting

Consultation to prepare 2022/23 budget has
commenced.
Council to be engaged as part of the fees and

charges review.

Reporting and Governance

This Action Plan is the responsibility of Council

Progress of the Action Plan will be reported on 6 monthly via Council meetings
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Activities of the Administrators

(For the period of 19 March 2021 to 17 September 2021)

REPRESENTATION ON VARIOUS ORGANISATIONS AND COMMITTEES

Committee Meeting Meeting Date Administrator in
Attendance
N . Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Committee Meeting 27/05/2021 Chris Eddy
Audt and ik Commieee |0 Commitee | T1/08/2071_|_ i Wlson (Chr)
Committee Meeting 19/08/2021 Chrs £dy
Sub Committee 10/09/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Lydia Wilson (Chair)
izsi::plg::;:;i’"m Committee Meeting 13/05/2021 Peita Duncan
i Chris Eddy
City of Whittlesea Community | . 0ioo Meeting 22/07/2021 Peita Duncan
Awards Committee
: Group Meeting 02/06/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Interface Councils Group Group Meeting 01/09/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Metro Local Government . :
e Forum Meeting 10/06/2021 Chris Eddy
Municipal Association of Iztzt:aizu'\rﬂ\::/ 21/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Victoria Regional Meeting 30/07/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Northern Alliance for
Greenhouse Action (NAGA) Committee Meeting 02/08/2021 Chris Eddy
Executive
Northern Councils Alliance Group Meeting 24/06/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Board Meeting 19/04/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Whittlesea € it Board Meeting 17/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Commections Y Board Meeting 21/06/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Sub Committee 05/08/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Board Meeting 16/08/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Whittlesea Community
Futures Partnership
*As at 1 June 2021, an Meeting/Forum 31/05/2021 Peita Duncan
Administrator was not
appointed on this Committee
. Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Group Meet 29/04/2021 .
Whittlesea Reconciliation R /04/ Peita Duncan
Group Group Meeting 17/06/2021 Peita Duncan
Group Meeting 19/08/2021 Peita Duncan
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REPRESENTATION ON VARIOUS ORGANISATIONS AND COMMITTEES

Committee Meeting Meeting Date Administrator in
Attendance
Strategy Board Briefing | 25/03/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Board Meeting 22/04/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
St'axi'ri:m"‘"g 05/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Yarra Plenty Regional Library Confidenu‘al Board 25/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Meeting
Board Meeting 24/06/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Sub Committee 11/06/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Board Meeting 26/08/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)

MEETING WITH COMMUNITY MEMBERS / COMMUNITY GROUPS / OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

Details Meeting Date | Administrator in Attendance
COVID Briefing by The Hon Shaun Leane MP (Minister
for Local Government, Minister for Suburban 30/03/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)

Development, Minister for Veteran Affairs)

Meeting with representatives of Whittlesea Lydia Wilson (Chair)

Agricultural Society and Whittlesea Showgrounds 01/04/2021 peita Duncan
Committees

Meeting with representatives of QIC 06/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Meeting with Executives of the Victorian Local " .
Government Grants Commission 07/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Meeting with The Hon Lily D’Ambrosio MP (Member 07/05/2021

for Mill Park, Minister for Energy, Environment and Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Climate Change and Minister for Solar Homes)

Meeting with The Hon Jacinta Allan MP (Minister for 11/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)

Transport Infrastructure)

Meeting with resident regarding a planning matter 27/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)

Meeting with the Hon Colin Brooks MP (State
Member for Bundoora), Danielle Green MP (State

Member for Yan Yean) and Bronwyn Halfpenny MP 04/06/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
(State Member for Thomastown)

Meeting with Tania Maxwell MP (State Member for o v
Northern victoria) 18/06/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Meeting with Cindy McLeish MP (State Member for

Eildon, Shadow Minister for Tourism, Major Events 29/06/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
and Sport)

\r;z:)euet:ng with CEO and Chairperson of Hope Street 30/06/2021 Lydia Wison (Chain)
Tour of Whittlesea and Nillumbik Councils organised

by Danielle Green MP (State Member for Yan Yean) o1/o07/2021 Lydia Wison (Chain)

and included Cr Frances Eyre (Nillumbik), Carl Cowie
(CEO- Nillumbik) and Craig Lloyd (CEO — Whittlesea)

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Aboriginal Yarn Meeting with Administrators and CEO | 01/07/2021 Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy
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MEETING WITH COMMUNITY MEMBERS / COMMUNITY GROUPS / OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

Details

Meeting Date

Administrator in Attendance

Quarterly Meeting with Bronwyn Halfpenny MP (tate

Member for Thomastown) 06/07/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Quarterly Meeting with Lily D’Ambrosio MP (Member
for Mill Park, Minister for Energy, Environment and 06/07/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Climate Change and Minister for Solar Homes)
Meeting with Mayor and CEO of Murrindindi Shire 13/07/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Council
Meeting with Rob Mitchell MP (Federal Member for
McEwen) and Andrew Giles MP (Federal Member for 13/07/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
scullin)
Business Site Visits:
*  Melbourne Market Lydia Wilson (Chair)
* Investment Attraction Plan Business Breakfast 15/07/2021 Peita Duncan
* Repurpose IT Chris Eddy
 Eco Dynamics
Meeting with Chair of Administrators from City of 15/07/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Casey and Shire of South Gippsland
Quarterly Meeting with the Hon Colin Brooks MP N
(State Member for Thomastown) 16/07/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
§ ) Lydia Wilson (Chair)
ety beprentl s e rO P | surs | e
& - - Chris Eddy
Meeting with The Hon Shaun Leane MP (Minister for Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Local Government, Minister for Suburban 25/08/2021 Peita Duncan
Development, Minister for Veteran Affairs) Chris Eddy
Meeting to discuss the decriminalisation of sex work .
in Victoria (Hosted by Department of Justice) 25/08/2021 Chris Eddy
Meeting with representative of Whittlesea U3A 26/08/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Quarterly Meeting with Rob Mitchell MP (Federal "
Member for McEwen) 07/09/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Quarterly Meeting with Bronwyn Halfpenny MP (State i .
Member for Thomastown) 07/09/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Quarterly Meeting with Andrew Giles MP (Federal o .
Member for Scullin) 09/09/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Meeting with representative of Procurement Australia 09/09/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Quarterly Meeting with The Hon Lily D’Ambrosio MP
(Member for Mill Park, Minister for Energy, - X
Environment and Climate Change and Minister for 10/09/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Solar Homes)
Meeting with Chair of Administrators from City of . .
Casey and Shire of South Gippsland 16/09/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
o R N Lydia Wilson (Chair)
;w;j;:iwuh representative of Sports and Leisure 16/09/2021 Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy
Meeting with The Hon Lily D’Ambrosio MP (Member
for Mill Park, Minister for Energy, Environment and
Climate Change and Minister for Solar Homes) and 17/09/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)

Bronwyn Halfpenny MP (State Member for
Thomastown)
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COMMUNITY CONSULTATION / ENGAGEMENT

Details Meeting Date | Administrator in Attendance

Council Plan Engagement Program — Community Pop

Up Session — south Morang 20/03/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)

Community Recovery Budgeting Workshop 31/03/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)

COVID-19 Community Recovery Fund: Check-in with

Commanity Budgeting 16/06/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
09/09/2021 Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Webinar - Proposed Community Plan 2021-25 and
Long-term Financial Plan 2021-2031

MEDIA COMMITMENTS

Details Meeting Date | Administrator in Attendance

Photoshoot: Yale Drive, Epping regarding the use of Lydia Wilson (Chair)

97% recycled materials 06/04/2021 Peita Duncan
Filming: International Day Against Homophobia, )

Transphobia and Biphobia (IDAHOBIT) Day 13/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Filming: Green Wedge Management Plan Consultation | 24/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Interview: Plenty Valley FM 28/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Interview: VLGA 18/06/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Interview: Plenty Valley FM 07/07/2021 Peita Duncan
Interview: Business Advisory Panel and Investment 08/07/2021 chris Eddy
Attraction Strategy

Eg::gims:zﬁe to the Community regarding latest 21/07/2001 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Interview: Plenty Valley FM — Drive Program 05/08/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Interview: Plenty Valley FM — Drive Program 12/08/2021 Chris Eddy
Interview: Plenty Valley FM — Drive Program 02/09/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Filming: RU OK? 06/09/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Filming: Online Bringing Up Kids Expo — Welcome. 06/09/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Interview: Plenty Valley FM 08/09/2021 Peita Duncan
Interview: Plenty Valley FM — Drive Program 16/09/2021 Chris Eddy

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL EVENTS

Details Event Date Administrator in Attendance

Internal: South Morang Farmers and Makers Market 20/03/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Intel:na\: Redevelopment of the Mill Park Basketball 25/03/2021 Lydia Wllson (Chair)
Stadium — Sod Turn Peita Duncan
Exte I: lvanhoe Libi d Cultural Hub — Lz h i .

xternal: lvanhoe Library and Cultural Hub — Launc 25/03/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Ceremony
External: Implementation Matters — Quarterly 26/03/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Webinar Peita Duncan

" . Lydia Wil: Chail

External: Riverlee New Epping — Sod Turn 31/03/2021 vdia Wilson (Chair)

Peita Duncan
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INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL EVENTS

Details Event Date Administrator in Attendance
, ) Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Internal: Support for Commercial Tenants 06/04/2021 Peita Duncan
:Vnulre"mah Mernda Social Support Services Centre — Sod 22/04/2021 Peita Duncan
Internal: Site Visit to Cooper Street West Resource . - .
Recovery Hub — 480 Cooper Street, Epping 26/04/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Internal: Citizenship Ceremony 26/04/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Internal: Welcome to Country and Aborginal Smoking | 100 \yia Wilson (Chain)
Ceremony
internal: All Staff Forum (Staff - Civic Centre) 11/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Internal: All Staff Forum (Staff — Westfield) 11/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Internal: All Staff Forum (Staff — Whittlesea Depot) 12/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Internal: Carrington Children’s Centre Upgrade — Sod 13/05/2021 peita Duncan
Turn
Internal: Swearing in of Administrator Chris Eddy 13/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy
Internal: All Staff Forum (Staff - Epping Depot) 13/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Internal: Online Q&A with Staff to Introduce Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Administrator Chris Edd 24/05/2021 Peita Duncan
v Chris Eddy
External: National Simultaneous Storytime ~Mil Park | oo+ \ydia Wilson (Chain)
Library
X . ) Peita Duncan
Internal: Community Grants Celebration 24/06/2021 Chris Eddy
External: Mernda Town Centre — Sod Turn 29/06/2021 Chris Eddy
External: Whittlesea Community Connections — e .
Launch of Financial Wellbeing Booklet 02/07/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
e ; Lydia Wilson (Chair)
:.;:Ir::e Business Breakfast with Local Members of 08/07/2021 it e
Chris Eddy
‘ ) A : Lydia Wilson (Chair)
T Rl I
P pening; Chris Eddy
Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Internal: Citizenship Ceremony — Session 1 (3:00pm) 12/07/2021 Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy
T e Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Internal: Citizenship Ceremony - Session 2 (5:00pm) | 12/07/2021 it e
S ) Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Internal: Online Q&A with Staff 05/08/2021 Chris Eddy
External: Business NBN Fibre Zones — Future Proofing Lydia Wilson (Chair)
. 17/08/2021 Peita Duncan
Success in the North :
Chris Eddy
Internal: Online Citizenship Ceremony x 6 Sessions 23/08/2021 Lydia Wilson {Chair)

Peita Duncan
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INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL EVENTS

Details Event Date Administrator in Attendance
External: Mental Health Roundtable (Hosted by The Lydia Wilson (Char)
Hon Lily D’Ambrosio MP, (Member for Mill Park, .
o . . 25/08/2021 Peita Duncan
Minister for Energy, Environment and Climate Change Chris Eddy
and Minister for Solar Homes)
External: Northern Business Achievement Awards 02/09/2021 Chris Eddy
Internal: Online Citizenship Ceremony - Session 1 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
(3:00pm) Chris Eddy
Internal: Online Citizenship Ceremony — Session 2 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
(3:20pm) Chris Eddy
:gtz;r’\)a"\]:)onllne Citizenship Ceremony — Session 3 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Internal: Online Citizenship Ceremony — Session 4 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
(4:10pm) 14/09/2021 Peita Duncan
Internal: Online Citizenship Ceremony — Session 5 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
(4:45pm) Peita Duncan
Internal: Online Citizenship Ceremony - Session 6 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
(5:10pm) Peita Duncan
Internal: Online Citizenship Ceremony — Session 7 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
(5:30pm) Peita Duncan
ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Details Meeting Date | Administrator in Attendance
Public Submissions Meeting — 182 Greenhills Road, 22032001 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Thomastown Peita Duncan
Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Council Budget 2021-22 Advisory Committee 17/05/2021 Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

COUNCIL BRIEFINGS

Details Meeting Date | Administrator in Attendance
Council Briefing 22/03/2021 Lvd:e}‘lt\/ailsDzr:‘g:air)
Council Briefing 06/04/20201 Lvd;fex\/aills]ourr\] g:airi
Council Briefing 12/04/2021 Lvd::e}‘ll\/aﬂ;zr:‘ g:a‘wr)
Council Briefing 20/04/2021 Lvd:fe:c/ailsDourr\‘g:airi
Council Briefing 26/04/2021 Lw;w;ﬁ\ g:a‘wri
Council Briefing 04/05/2021 Lvd:)ae}‘lt\/ailsDzr;S:airi
Council Briefing 10/05/2021 Lydia Wilson (Chair)
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COUNCIL BRIEFINGS

Details

Meeting Date

Administrator in Attendance

Council Briefing

17/05/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

24/05/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

01/06/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

07/06/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

21/06/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

28/06/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

05/07/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

12/07/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

19/07/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

26/07/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

02/08/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

16/08/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

23/08/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

30/08/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

06/09/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Council Briefing

13/09/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy





image249.png
SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETINGS

Details

Meeting Date

Administrator in Attendance

Scheduled Council Meeting

06/04/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan

Scheduled Council Meeting

04/05/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan

Scheduled Council Meeting

01/06/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Scheduled Council Meeting

05/07/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Scheduled Council Meeting

02/08/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy

Scheduled Council Meeting

06/09/2021

Lydia Wilson (Chair)
Peita Duncan
Chris Eddy
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AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE CHARTER

Last Amended by 6 April 2021
Council:

Last Approved by 7 July 2020
Council:

Reviewed by Audit & Risk 28 May 2020
Committee

Directorate responsible Governance

1. Purpose

Council has established an independent Audit & Risk Committee (Committee)
pursuant to section 53 of the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act), which supports
Council in discharging its oversight responsibilities related to financial reporting, risk
management, maintenance of sound systems of internal control, assurance activities
including internal and external audit and Council's performance with regard to
legislative and regulatory compliance and its Codes of Conduct. It acts in this capacity
by monitoring, reviewing and advising on issues within its scope of responsibility.

The Committee has no executive authority and no delegated financial responsibilities
and is therefore independent of management.

2. Authority

The Committee is directly responsible to Council for discharging its responsibilities as
set out in this Charter. The Committee has no delegated authority from Council unless
specifically provided by Council from time to time and any such authority shall be
temporary and may only relate to specific matters as directed by Council.

The Committee is empowered to:

* Resolve any disagreements between management and the external auditor on
financial reporting issues;

o Retain independent counsel of relevant independent experts where it considers
that is necessary in order to execute its duties, subject to prior agreement with
the Chief Executive Officer;

o Seek any information it requires from Councillors, Council staff (including senior
management, all of whom are directed to co-operate with the Committee’s
requests) and external parties;

* Meet with Council staff, internal and external auditors, or outside counsel, as
necessary.

The Committee will, through the Chief Executive Officer, have access to appropriate
management support to enable it to discharge its responsibilities effectively.
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3. Membership and Tenure

| The Committee will consist of five-six members appointed by Council, thres-four of
whom must be independent members. Details of membership and tenure are set out
below:

| a) A quorum shall comprise one Councillor member and twe-three independent
members;

b) The Chair of the Committee must be an independent member;
c) Council will appoint the Chair of the Committee;
d) Councillor members will be appointed by Council annually;

e) The Mayor or Deputy Mayor of the day can act as an alternate Councillor
member should an appointed Councillor member not be able to attend a
Committee meeting;

f) Expiry of independent member terms shall be staggered so that not more than
two members’ terms conclude concurrently, ensuring as far as possible that
knowledge of Council's operations is not lost when there is a change of
membership;

g) Independent members may be appointed for terms of up to a-three-yearthree
years;

@h) -Independent members will be eligible for extension or re-appointment
following a formal review of their performance and independence. The review
process is to be determined by the Chief Executive Officer (or delegate). term

approvalindependent members may serve a maximum of three—two
consecutive-termssix years on the Committee;

h)i) Collectively, independent members of the Committee must have expertise in
financial management, risk and experience in public sector management.
Membership of the committee will be reviewed periodically by Council with the
aim of ensuring an appropriate balance between continuity of membership, the
contribution of fresh perspectives and a suitable mix of qualifications.
knowledge, skills and experience;

Bi)_Council staff are prohibited from being members of the Committee; and

k) Remuneration will be paid to each independent member and is set by Council

annually. (Payable—from-October)- This fee will be based on a per annum

amount, paid quarterly and is subject to periodic review.

4. Meetings

a) The Committee will meet as it determines in order to discharge its
responsibilities as set out in this Charter, but generally it is expected that the
Committee will meet atleast fourfive times per annum;

b) A schedule of meetings will be developed annually and agreed by members;

c) All Committee members are expected to attend each meeting_in person.
Virtual attendance is—acceptablemay be considered in exceptional
circumstances (i.e. pandemic restrictions) at the discretion of the Chief
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Executlve Officer—{through-virt a' ting software app d by the Chief

d) The Committee will invite members of the management team, the internal and
external auditors and others as appropriate to attend meetings. The Chief
Executive Officer_and other senior officers who need to interact with the

Commmee by virtue of the Commmee s responslbllmes éxeeutwe—Manage;

Gemphanee—@ihcemsswanee—cee:dumwﬂl attend all meetlngs except for
confidential matters. The Manager Finance & AssetsExecutive Manager
Governance & Strategy or a designated officer will attend in the role of
Secretariat;

e) The Committee may meet with the internal and/or external auditors in the
absence of management from time to time;

f) Meeting agendas and appropriate briefing materials will be provided to
members at least one week before each meeting; and

g) Minutes will be prepared for all meetings.

5. Responsibilities
The Committee will carry out the following responsibilities:
5.1 Financial and Performance Reporting

a) At least annually review significant accounting and external reporting issues,
including complex or unusual transactions, transactions and balances in areas
where judgement is required, changes to accounting policies, recent
accounting, professional and regulatory pronouncements and legislative
changes, and understand their effect on the annual financial report and the
audit thereof;

b) Review the annual financial report and performance statement and consider
whether they are complete, consistent with information known to Committee
members, reflect appropriate accounting treatments and adequately disclose
Council's position;

c) Review with management and the external auditors the results of the audit of
the annual financial report and performance statement, including any
difficulties encountered by the external auditors;

d) Recommend the adoption of the annual financial report and performance
statement to Council;

e) Review the appropriateness of the format and content of periodic management
financial reports to Council as required; and

f) Periodically monitor the status and content of the Performance Statement.
5.2 Systems of Internal control

a) Review the adequacy and effectiveness of systems and controls for providing
a sound internal control framework;
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Determine whether systems and controls are reviewed regularly and updated
where required;

Ensure that a programme is in place to test, at least annually, compliance with
systems and controls; and

Review policies and procedures in place for the setting and implementation of
delegations of authority.

5.3 Risk management

a)
b)
<)

d)
e)

Review annually Council’s risk management framework;
Review management's assessment of Council’s risk profile;

Review Council's programme of assessment of business risks and treatment
plans;

Review the insurance programme annually prior to renewal; and

Review the approach to business continuity planning arrangements, including

whether business continuity and disaster recovery plans have been regularly
updated and tested.

5.4 Fraud Prevention and Awareness

h)

i)

Review Council's Fraud Prevention policies and procedures (Fraud Control
Policy & Plan), including fraud awareness programmes; and

Receive reports from management about actual or suspected instances of
fraud or corruption within Council.

5.5 Internal audit

a)

b)

<)

9)

h)

Establish and review periodically an Internal Audit Charter that provides an
appropriate functional and organisational framework within which Council's
internal audit function operates;

Review and approve the rolling three-year strategic internal audit plan
annually, the annual internal audit plan and any significant changes to them;

Review and approve proposed scopes for each review in the annual intemal
audit plan;
Review reports on internal audit reviews;

Monitor action by management on internal audit findings and
recommendations;

Meet with the leader of the team delivering the internal audit plan at least
annually in the absence of management;

Review the effectiveness of the internal audit function and ensure that it has
appropriate authority with Council and has no unjustified limitations on its work;

Ensure that the Committee is aware of any proposed changes to the
appointment of the internal audit service provider, and is appropriately briefed
on the need for change, including any proposed changes in the specification
of the internal audit function; and
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i) Recommend to Council, if necessary, the termination of the internal audit
contractor.

5.6 External audit

a) Annually review the external audit scope and plan proposed by the external
auditor;

b) Discuss with the external auditor any audit issues encountered in the normal
course of audit work, including any restriction on scope or access to
information;

c) Ensure that significant findings and recommendations made by the external
auditor, and management's responses to them, are appropriate and are acted
upon in a timely manner;

d) Review the effectiveness of the external audit function and ensure that the
Victorian Auditor General’s Office (VAGO) is aware of the Committee’s views;

e) Consider the findings and recommendations of any relevant performance
audits undertaken by VAGO and monitor implementation of the
recommendations by Council; and

f) Meetwith the external auditor at least annually in the absence of management.
5.7 Compliance Management
a) Monitor the compliance of Council policies and procedures relating to:

*  Council's overarching governance principles; and
o the Local Government Act 2020 and associated regulations and any
relevant Ministerial directions;

b) Review the systems and processes implemented by Council for monitoring
compliance with legislation and regulations and the results of management's
follow up of any instances of non-compliance;

c) Review the processes for communicating the Councillor Code of Conduct to
Council and the Staff Code of Conduct to all Council employees and
contractors and for monitoring compliance with the Codes;

d) Obtain regular briefings on any significant compliance matters; and

e) Receive reports from management on the findings of any examinations by
regulatory or integrity agencies (whether related to investigations at Council or
other agencies), such as the Local Government Inspectorate, the
Ombudsman, IBAC, etc. and monitor Council’s responses.

5.8 Reporting to Council

a) Minutes of Committee meetings will be provided to Council at the first available
Council meeting following each Committee meeting;

b) The Committee will prepare a biannual report on Committee activities for
Council, including any relevant findings and recommendations. A copy of this
report is to be provided to the Chief Executive Officer for tabling at the next
Ordinary-Scheduled Council meeting following its completion. The Chair of the
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Audit and Risk Committee will be invited to present the report to Council at the

Council meeting; and

c) ln—addition,Tthe Committee will prepare an annual summary of the
Committee’s activities for inclusion in Council’s Annual Report setting out how
the Committee has discharged its responsibilities as outlined in its Charter.

6. Annual Work Plan

On an annual basis the Committee will develop and adopt a Work Plan (Program) that
outlines how it intends to fulfil its requirements under this Charter.

7. Performance Evaluation

The Committee shall undertake a process to evaluate its performance annually. A copy
of the results of this assessment are to be provided to the Chief Executive Officer for
tabling at the next Ordinary Council meeting following the completion of the
assessment.

8. Misuse of Position and Confidential Information

Section 123 — Misuse of Position and Section 125 — Confidential Information of the Act
apply to independent members of the Committee, as they would apply to Councillor
members of the Committee.

9. Personal Interest Returns'

In the interests of transparency and good governance, Independent Committee
members will voluntarily complete Personal Interest Returns. Any declarations made
in these Returns will not be made public, however, will be circulated amongst
Committee members, the CEO and the Executive Manager Governance. Personal
Interest Returns will be completed in March and September each year.

10. Conflicts of Interest

In accordance with Division 2 of Part 6 of the Act, all members of the Committee are
required to comply with Conflict of Interest requirements.

11. Review of Charter

The Committee shall review and assess the adequacy of the Charter every two years
or earlier if necessary and submit requests for revisions and improvements to Council
for approval.
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Aboriginal Gathering Place 2040 @&

A place for all

The vision for the Whittlesea Aboriginal Gathering Place is to create a welcoming, inclusive and
culturally safe space where the local Aboriginal community can access a comprehensive range of
community supported programs and activities that are responsive to their needs.

The new Aboriginal Gathering Place is to be located on an elevated plateau within the Quarry Hills Regional Parkland, neighbouring - with strong
connections to ~ the Granite Hills Major Community Park (currently being designed).

The Aboriginal Gathering Place will include a new facility containing:
. An educational entrance space to celebrate and teach aboriginal culture/art

. Meeting/gathering rooms for reconciliation and community activities

. Consultation rooms for health, well-being, youth and employment support
. Communal kitchen and dining facilities

«  Media, art and youth activity spaces

«  Staff administration as well as office/working spaces for community use

«  Amenities and other support spaces

The Gathering Place will also consist of a number of external activity spaces, utilising the surrounding natural environment/views and connecting to
the new facility. These include:

+ Covered outdoor communal eating and gathering spaces

« Fire pitareas for cultural ceremonies, community education and external gatherings
+ Bush food/edible gardens

+ External active play and discovery areas

Total Project Cost:  $ 8,000,000
GSF Application: $ 4,000,000
Delivery Timeframe: Construction 2022-23
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Patterson Drive Community Activity mii‘. @
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Project Scope

* Design and construction of 4 x consult suites housing MCH and other services, separate
program/waiting rooms, community hall, 3 room kindergarten, multi-purpose program
spaces for services such as youth and social support.

¢  Fit out of the community centre including MCH, kindergarten rooms, multi-purpose program
space, office, staff room, meeting rooms, hall, kitchen and common areas.

¢ Sealed car park on Council land with (roughly 2800sqm, with associated lighting and signage)
retention of land for future use.

¢  Provision of licensed playground space located on council land for the modular kindergarten
provided on the Hayes Hill Primary School site.

e Provision of spaces that promote co-working and additional community facilities such as a
nook for library services.

Exceptional sustainability outcomes- in line with the Olivine Estate.

Total Project Cost: $11,500,000
GSF Application: $ 2,000,000
Delivery Timeframe: Construction 2023-24





image260.png
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Road, South Morang it Whittlesea

The Gorge Road shopping precinct in South Morang has been identified in Councils Town Centre Improvement Plan as a high priority for
renewal due to strong transport connectivity and opportunity to drive economic benefit to the local area. The revitalisation to the 90m
long shopping strip aligns with Victoria's 20 Minutes Neighbourhood objectives and principles and encourages ‘living locally’.

Project Scope

+ Revitalisation and consolidation of pavement
treatments and trading areas

+ New social gathering spaces including seating and
public furniture

+ Way finding signage and precinct map based
signage
. Water sensitive urban design integration into

street drainage

Total Project Cost: $950,000

GSF Application: $425,000

Design: September 2021
Delivery Timeframe:  Construction 2022-23
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Community Energy Efficiency Program 2040 ﬁgﬁﬁﬁsea

A place for all

The Community Energy Efficiency Program has been developed to ensure community
facilities continue to minimise energy consumption, reduce Council’s corporate greenhouse
gas emissions and Council’s impact on the environment.

Project Scope

. de-gassing kinders/sporting facilities and installing replacement electric appliances and supplementing
existing solar PV systems to cope with the extra electricity demand

*  Solar Photovoltaic Systems - Provide renewable energy, reducing reliance on grid-sourced electricity,
reducing the cost of electricity for community site users and reducing corporate GHG emissions.

*  Solar Battery Installations - Provide renewable energy and storage for night time use at community
centres, reducing reliance on grid-sourced electricity, reducing the cost of electricity for site users and
reducing corporate GHG emissions.

Proposed Sites for Installation
Epping Football/Cricket Recreation Reserve
- Epping Soccer Stadium
- Harvest Home Road Multipurpose Community Pavilion

- Hillsview Recreation Reserve !'. ‘!
- HRUren Recreation Reserve "
- Main Street Multipurpose Community Pavilion <&,

- Mosaic Multipurpose Community Pavilion
- Partridge Street Reserve

Total Project Cost: $500,000
GSF Application: $250,000
Delivery Timeframe: 2022-2023
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Pedestrian access into Huskisson Reserve from Edgars Road is restricted due to the Edgars Creek being a physical barrier — this has an
impact on the usability, accessibility and connectivity of Huskisson Reserve for the Lalor community. The Council endorsed Huskisson
Reserve Master Plan recommends the construction of a pedestrian bridge over Edgars Creek and upgrade to the park on Edgars Road

Project Scope

+ Design and construct a 60m long steel frame
pedestrian and cycling bridge over the Edgars
Creek

+ Designand construct 80m of cycle and pedestrian
connecting shared path.

+  Design and construct landscape improvements to
Edgard Road neighbourhood park and Edgars
Creek escarpments

Total Project Cost: $650,000
$325,000

Delivery Timeframe: Construction 2022-23

GSF Applicati
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The December 2019 bushfire at Plenty Gorge Parklands and Worchester Parks in Bundoora destroyed the park and playground to the south
side of Linacre Drive and to the conservation and retarding basin areas to the north side of the Linacre Drive. The park and playground
were quickly renewed using capital and insurance money however the north side still remains destroyed. Residential community are
vocal in having the conservation area regenerated to bring back the local flora and fauna to the area

Project Scope

1.2ha conservation parkland back to

Renev
its original design and landscape character including

he ap

. 320 trees
. 10,000+ plants

. 72 hardwood bollards

+ Weed control measures

+  Gabion rock wall structures
. Habitat rebuilding

. 500Im of timber edging

. 10,000m2 mulch
Total Project Cost: $550,000
GSF Application: $275,000

Delivery Timeframe: Construction 2022-23
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The ageing building services infrastructure in the Plenty Ranges Arts and Convention Centre the building
has now reached the end of its life expectancy and as a result the building services are not meeting
current service standards. Therefore, service infrastructure upgrades are required to be undertaken.

The project will -

Improve productivity by improving indoor comfort levels at PRACC

Improve the customer experience and increase hire rates of Woodstock theatre by reducing sound
transmission from Yan Yean theatre

Prevent costly shutdowns of PRACC by replacing the building services infrastructure at the end of its
life expectancy.

Project Scope

.

.

.

Upgrade / replace lifts as required
Install noise attenuators in ductwork between Woodstock/Yan Yean theatres to reduce sound transmission.
Install suspended ceiling in Woodstock Theatre to assist in noise attenuation.

Investigate and action improvements to accessibility of Yan Yean theatre stage

Replacement of AC chiller at PRACC

Review and replacement of HVAC controls and interface

Total Project Cost: ~ $ 1,000,000
GSF Application: $ 225,000
Delivery Timeframe: Construction 2022-23
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Summary

Project

Aboriginal Gathering Place

Patterson Drive Community Activity Centre

Streetscape Improvements on Gorge Road, South Morang

Community Energy Efficiency Program

Huskisson Reserve Pedestrian and Cycling Access

Worchester Park Bushfire Regeneration

Plenty Ranges Arts and Convention Centre Infrastructure Improvements

TOTAL

Total Cost

s 8,000,000.00
s 11,500,000.00
S 950,000.00
S 500,000.00
S 650,000.00
8 550,000.00
8 1,000,000.00

WHITTLESEA

2040 @

A place for all

GSF Application Amount
$ 4,000,000.00
S 2,000,000.00
S 425,000.00
S 250,000.00
S 325,000.00
$ 275,000.00
$ 225,000.00

$ 7,500,000.00
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Welcome

Welcome to the City of Whittlesea’s Annual Report 2020-21. Council is committed to transparent
reporting and accountability to the community and our stakeholders.

This report provides an overview of Council's performance in the 2020-21 financial year against
the five goals set out in our Council Plan 2017-21 and Annual Budget 2020-21.

The report highlights achievements and challenges faced and includes statutory reporting and
legislative information as required under the Local Government Act 2020 and other legislation.

Acknowledgement o
Traditional Owners

The City of Whittlesea recognises
the rich Aboriginal heritage of this
country and acknowledges the
Wurundjeri Willum Clan as the
Traditional Owners of this place.

Council offices
Q 25 Ferres Boulevard South Morang VIC 3752

Q Shop MM, Westfield, Plenty Valley Shopping Centre,
415 McDonalds Road, Mill Park VIC 3076, 9404 8800

@ Opening hours: Monday-Friday, 8.30am-5pm
. Telephone: 03 9217 2170

National Relay Service: 133 677 (ask for 9217 2170)
=X Postal: Locked Bag 1, Bundoora MDC VIC 3083
X Email: info@whittlesea.vic.gov.au
[ Web: whittlesea.vic.gov.au
@ Facebook: facebook.com/cityofwhittlesea

Free telephone interpreter service

@ Twitter: @citywhittlesea
(©) Instagram: CityWhittlesea -‘a : 13 1 450
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About the City of Whittlesea

' City of Whittlesea

R A

Melbourne, Victoria .

N

The City of Whittlesea is located in
Melbourne's northern suburbs, about
20 kilometres from the city centre.
Itis one of Melbourne’s largest
municipalities, covering a land area of
approximately 490 square kilometres.

The majority of the City of Whittlesea
population lives in urban areas. This
is split across the major established
suburbs of Bundoors, Epping,

Lalor, Mill Park and Thomastown;
the current growth area precincts

of Mernda, Doreen, South Morang,
Epping North and Wollert; and

the rural areas of Donnybrook and
Whittlesea Township and surrounds.
Significant future growth is projected
for Wollert and Donnybrook.

City of Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21

‘gl

-~

The rural areas of the municipality
are characterised by farming,
forested areas and historic township
communities including Whittlesea.

The Wurundjeri Willum people were
the original inhabitants of the area
and are the Traditional Owners of

this land. Compared with other
municipalities, the City of Whittlesea
has the second largest population of
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders
(ATSI) by person count in metropolitan
Melbourne, with 1,635 ATS residents,
and @ median age of 21 years
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iy of wihitiese st glance
242,027

34 years

is the median age of residents

27.7% 16.2%

of population of population aged

0-19 years over 60 years

42.3% 21.6% 35.5%

% 8
3 s
of residents live in of househlolds of hm:seho_l;:'s ir‘e % 4@&
detached houses are couples couples without S, o
with children children ts por®

Number of babies

ﬁ ﬁ ﬁ No of residential properties — 87,237
born in the City

Suburb with the Suburb with the of Whittles:
largest population — smallest population —

each week

Mill Park (30,107) Whittlesea Township (5,630)

*Compiled from City of Whittlesea research and Profile.id community profile data.
City of Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21 5
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Our Vision

Whittlesea 2040:
A place for all

Our vision is underpinned by
five goals:

Our City opens its arms to every
resident and is a place where all walks
of life are celebrated and supported.

Liveable neighbourhoods

Our City is well planned and beautiful,
2nd our neighbourhoods and town
centres are convenient and vibrant
places to live, work and play.

Our City is the smart choice for
innovation, business growth and
industry investment.

Sustainable environment

Our City’s superb landscapes and natural environment are an enduring source of pride.

High-performing organisation
Council delivers a range of internal functions and activities enabling the delivery of efficient and effective services and
initiatives. Council's goal is to be a high-performing organisation which delivers best value to the community.

Our Values

At the City of Whittlesea, we live our values to deliver the best outcomes for our community. We believe that the way
each of us behaves at work determines how effective we are as an organisation.

Our values are:

Excellence - be diligent, innovative and accountable
Respect - be considerate

Open Communication - listen, be frank, fearless and honest
Valuing Diversity - appreciate everyone's strengths

Wellbeing — care for ourselves, others and our environment
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Our Services

Council is responsible for delivering 26 services to the community, aligned to our five goals:

Connected community

« Aboriginal reconciliation

« Ageing well

« Animal management

* Arts, heritage and festivals

« Community fecilities

« Community strengthening

« Customer service, communications
and civic participation

« Family and children’s services

« Leisure and recreation

« Public health and safety

* Youth services

Liveable neighbourhoods
« Parks and open space
= Planning and building

« Roads, public transport and
footpaths

« Traffic management

Strong local economy
* Investment attraction
* Libraries

« Local business support

Sustainable environment
« Biodiversity and land management
« Climate change action

+ Waste and recycling

* Water management

High-performing organisation
« Our finance and assets

« Our governance

« Ourpeople

« Our systems and knowledge
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Message from Lydia Wilson

Chair of the Panel of Administrators

| am pleased to present the City of
Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21.

This is the first Annual Report Council
has delivered with a full 12 months
under the leadership of Administrators.

Together with my fellow
Administrators Peita Duncan, The

Hon Bruce Billson (until March 2021)
2nd Chris Eddy (from May 2021) we
have developed the Administrator's
Action Plan 2020-2024 which sets out
our roadmap for delivering Council's
priorities until the end of our term in
2024. We will be publicly reporting on
this Action Plan on a six-monthly basis.

We have set an ambitious program of
work focused on good governance,
genuine community engagement,
excellent customer service, long-term
planning, financial sustainability, capital
works delivery and pandemic recovery.

In September 2020 we were delighted
to appoint the highly-skilled and
experienced Craig Lloyd as CEO to lead
the organisation. We were impressed
by Craig’s extensive qualifications and
drawn to his shared vision to deliver at
2 very high level for our community.

0On behalf of our community we
are developing important strategic
partnerships and we are committed
to strong advocacy at all levels of
government about the issues that matter
to our community including funding for
community and sporting infrastructure,
roads to reduce traffic congestion,

job creation, Wollert Rail, mental health
and family violence support services

Council has partnered with the Victorian
Government, Riverlee, Ramsay

Health and Haven Home Safe on the
52 billion New Epping development.
This project will include social housing,
healthcare, commercial and hospitality,
providing significant employment
opportunities, economic and social
benefits to the City of Whittlesea.

Over the lzst 12 months we have
completed a number of large
infrastructure projects and we

were thrilled to hand back a fully
refurbished first-class Mill Park Leisure
to the community in April this year.
The $25 million redevelopment
included a new gym, upgraded pools
and a focus on accessibility.

We have upgraded streetscapes

in Lalor and Thomastown, local
playgrounds across the municipality
and delivered the hugely popular Mill
Park All Abilities Play Space.

Work has begun on many new projects
including a new community centre at
Wollert East to support the booming
population in the city’s north and we
have partnered with the Victorian
Government to build a $2.7 million
Mernda Village Social Support Centre
to provide much-needed day respite
for older residents with care needs.

These terrific projects are just part of
the story. We have also focused on
our programs and policies including
the rollout of a food and organic waste
recycling service, and our Whittlesea
Water For All Strategy which outlines
2 10-year framework for the City of
Whittlesea to become a leader in the
planning, use and management of water.

Our Greening Whittlesea — City Forest
Strategy sets out plans for the protection,
growth and management of the City’s
trees and green cover including planting

8 City of Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21

500,000 trees in the next five years, and
our Rethinking Waste Plan 2021-2030
will reduce the amount of waste sent to
landfill by 68,000 tonnes each year.

We want to engage with our community
more effectively, more often and in
more ways. We have built 2 dedicated
online engagement portal so you can
easily have your say on what matters
most to you and we will continue to
look for opportunities for in-person
consultation when restrictions allow.

We have kept the focus on customer
service, strengthening our commitment
to make it easier for community

to interact with Council through a
comprehensive Customer First project.

The pandemic continues to challenge
us all and Council has taken 2 proactive
focus on response to outbreaks and
recovery. While we have found new
and creative ways to engage, connect
and support each other, we recognise
the significant economic impact and
our COVID-19 Hardship Policy adopted
in April 2020 has provided rates,
charges and fee relief.

I'd like to thank all of our community
representatives who have helped shape
Council's $2 million COVID-19 recovery
initiatives to help residents, businesses
and groups thrive. This includes
$400,000 to community organisations
for emergency relief and $400,000 for
a support local campaign and incentive
program to support local business.

As | reflect on the past year, | am
struck by the incredible resilience of
the community, service providers,
local businesses and our organisation
to continue to respond, adapt and
deliver in these uncertain times.

| am incredibly proud of what we as a
Council have been able to achieve and
alongside my fellow Administrators |
look forward to continuing to serve
this vibrant community.
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Report of operations  CEO message

Welcome to the City of Whittlesea
Annual Report 2020-21, which
outlines our organisation’s key
achievements and financial
performance over the last 12 months.

I was delighted to join the City of
Whittlesea on 12 October 2020, taking
over from Acting CEO Joe Carbone
2nd on 9 November we welcomed
four new directors to the Executive
Leadership Team.

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a
significant impact on us all over the
last 12 months. Whether the doors
were open or closed on our buildings
nd facilities during this time, we have
continued to adapt to deliver the
large range of essential services our
community relies upon.

We have provided much-needed support
tolocal business to operate in a COVIDSafe
manner, delivered a comprehensive
COVID-19 grants program and waived
registration fees for 1180 local
businesses impacted by restrictions.

Through a $500,000 grant from the
State Government, we were also able
to install new outdoor tables and
chairs across various retail precincts to
encourage more outdoor dining.

We have been pleased to support the
public health response by partnering
with the State Government and Northern
Health to host a mass vaccination hub at
the Plenty Ranges Arts and Convention
Centre. We have also partnered with DPV

Health to host testing sites across the
municipality including pop-up testing
in response to outbreaks.

Despite the challenges of COVID-19, we
continued to deliver on our $54 million
capital works budget, including more
than 133 projects to build and upgrade
community centres, sporting fields,
playgrounds, roads, bike paths and
footpaths across our municipality.

We've completed a significant number
of major infrastructure projects
including the Spring Street Kindergarten
in Thomastown, and we're well
underway on many others such as the
Findon Road extension to Plenty Road to
help ease traffic congestion in the area.

We have successfully advocated for
the establishment of the Orange Door
Access point, 2 key family violence
support service, and established &
headspace satellite service for youth
mental health at our Baseline for Youth
facility, providing much-needed support
for young people in our municipality.

This year we signed on to the largest
ever emissions reduction project
undertaken by local government, as part
of 2 joint commitment from 46 Victorian
councils to purchase renewable energy
over the next 10 years. | am proud to be
2 part of this collaborative sustainability
initiative which is another important
step forward in our ‘Sustainable
Environment’ Whittlesea 2040goal.

In close consultation with staff we
commenced an organisational structure
realignment to improve efficiency and
identify new opportunities, ideas and
innovation to better serve our community.
This has led to savings in a number of
areas and the creation of a number of
exciting new positions. The final stages
of the organisational rezlignment will
be completed in late 2021.

As we go to print our draft Community
Plan 2021-25 is out for community

feedback. This plan incorporates the
Council Plan, Public Health and Wellbeing
Plan, Disability Action Plan and Pandemic
Recovery Actions and will be the
cornerstone of our deliverables for the
community over the coming four years. Id
like to thank everyone who helped shape
this plan. We received more than 5000
pieces of feedback. The plan s scheduled
to be formally adopted in October 2021.

Itis always great to see hard work
recognised and in 2020 Council won a
number of awards: Victorian Landscape
Architecture Awards — Best Landscape
Planning (Quarry Hills) and Play Space
(Norris Bank Reserve); Smart City
Achievermnent of the Year at the 2020
MAV Technology Awards for Excellence;
and Strategic Planning Award at Parks
and Leisure Australis Awards for our
Netball and Basketball Strategy.

‘We will report a $7.7 million operating
cash deficit for the 2020-21 financial year.
This is largely due to the financial impacts
of the COVID-18 pandemic on Council
operations, with reduced income received
from Council facilities due to closures
required under public health orders,
coupled with additional expenditure
incurred in supporting our community.

Through ongoing strong and responsible
financial management, the organisation
is well positioned to continue to
respond to the challenges of the
pandemic and deliver services and
infrastructure projects to accommodate
our rapidly growing diverse community.
| would like to thank our hard-
working staff for their resilience and
commitment to delivering our services
safely and without interruption.

We really do have the best staff in
local government, fully committed

to delivering high quality services

| look forward to the year ahead and
the many great projects and programs
we are set to deliver.
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The year in review

Council

is proud of the
many achievements of
the last year. In what was
a year dominated by the
COVID-19 pandemic, the
y of Whittlesea was
able to quickly adapt to

emerging community

needs in a rapidly changing
environment, while also
continuing to provide valued
services and delivering
much-needed infrastructure
to our community.

Report of operations

The COVID-19 pandemic had a
significant impact on the City of
Whittlesea in 2020-21, our local
businesses, community connections
and mental and physical health

It has also, however, seen some
positive impacts, such as a greater
connection to local neighbourhoods
and enthusiasm to explore lacal

open spaces.

As we move through the response and
recovery phases, Council is committed
to helping our community through
new initiatives and grants that will
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directly impact on improving the
lives of those who live and work in
the City of Whittlesea

Council endorsed the Municipal
Pandemic Readiness and Recovery
Plan on 2 February 2021, which
will guide community recovery
from, and transition through, the
COVID-18 pandemic. The plan
contains 51 actions — 90 per cent
have been achieved with the
remainder in progress or delayed
due to more recent COVID-19
lockdowns.





image12.png
In 2020-21, Council delivered on the following actions to support our community

A $500,000 Emergency Relief Fund for local service
providers to support immediate emergency relief needs
for impacted residents.

A COVID-19 Hardship Policy that provides residents,
businesses, groups and clubs with relief from Council
rates, fees and charges.

A $500,000 Business Assistance and Resilience
Program to support local businesses that included
educational webinars, & business development program
and shop local initiatives.

Secured more than $500,000 through the State
Government's Outdoor Eating and Entertainment
Package. This program encourages outdoor dining with
additional table and cheir instellations across several
retail precincts,

Delivered more than 400 COVIDSafe bags and more
than 210 infrared thermometers to support businesses
operate in a COVIDSafe manner.

Abusiness support and compliance program to
monitor and advise businesses on COVIDSafe operating
requirements.

A COVID-19 Rapid Response Fund for Creative
Communities, providing small grants of up to $2,000
for projects that directly respond to the impact of
covip-19.

Support for vulnerable people including data SIM
cards for enhanced maternal and child health clients to
access online appointments; distraction packs for our
local Aboriginal community focussing on mindfulness,
mental health, family games and gardening; and an
outreach program for isolated groups and individuals in
partnership with local support agencies

Supporting Department of Health and local partners

in establishing COVID-19 testing sites and mass
vaccination venues at Council facilities.
Communications across various channels, including
website, social media, local radio and newspapers and
fiyers to households on COVID-19 messaging in multiple
languages and formats.

Establishing an International Student Wellbeing Hub
to provide non-medical health and social connection
opportunities to students studying at RMIT and La Trobe
university campuses.

Employment of over 200 staff via the Working for
Victoria Program, many of whom were placed into roles
that supported COVID-18-related programs.

Fee subsidies for groups who use the community
activity centres and Council sports facilities

Waiving of registration fees for the 2021 calendar year
for 1,180 local businesses that have been significantly
impacted by the State Government COVID-19 restrictions,
with over $500,000 waived in registration fees.
Restructure of Council’'s community grant programs to
include four new COVID-19 Response Grant Programs
for & minimum period of 12 months
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Connected community

Report of operations

Our City opens its arms to every resident and is a place where all walks of life are celebrated and

supported

« Completed the $25 million Mill
Park Leisure redevelopment
with the gym and program spaces
opened to the community in May
2021, and the aquatic area opened
inJune 2021. The redevelopment
includes a range of state-of-the-art
and accessible facilities that aim
to increase community health and
wellbeing.

« Successfully advocated for the
establishment of the Orange Door
Access point, a key family violence
support service.

« Established a headspace satellite
service for youth mental health
at Council's youth facility at
Westfield Shopping Centre.

« Delivered a community facility
and playground in Dennybrook
to support sociel connection and
the provision of support services
for the local residents through
an innovative partnership with
developer Mirvac.

« Provided 35,036 face-to-face
maternal and child health
appointments and 576
group sessions for the over
3,000 new babies born in the
municipality.

« Continued to deliver the Maternal
and Child Health Deadly Boorais
and Deadly Families Outreach
program for Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander families,
achieving a 40 per cent increase
in engagement in this program in
2020-21.

Provided immunisation services,
vaccinating 4,266 people at
community sessions and 3,557
students at school sessions.

Completed the Spring Street
Kindergarten in Thomastown,
providing a two-room kindergarten
and a multipurpose room to
support three and four-year-old
sessional kindergarten.
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Supported older residents to
remain active and independent
through the provision of Ageing
Well services and programs such
as delivered meals and online

and community-based programs.

Established the inaugural
Whittlesea Youth Advisory
Committee which, during its term,
evaluated and redesigned the
Youth Advisory Committee model.
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Report of operations

The year in review

Our City is well-planned and beautiful, and our neighbourhoods and town centres are convenient and

vibrant places to live, work and play.

« Completed the All Abilities Play .
Space in Mill Park, providing
a fully fenced and accessible
playground catering to all ages
and abilities.

« Completed six shared pathsand ~ «
eight missing link footpaths,
improving connectivity and safety
for pedestrians and bike users.

+ Formally opened the new Gambu
Gulinj Community Centre in
March 2021. The centre includes
a three-room kindergarten as well
as a two-room maternal and child
health hub, a community hall
and community meeting spaces.
The building was designed to
meet five-star building standards
and includes solar PV panels on
the roof, a battery storage system
and water tanks.

* Constructed and upgraded
key intersection and roads,
improving traffic flow and safety
and providing connectivity to
local services and facilities.

These include:

The construction of the Yan
Yean Road and Hazel Glen Drive
traffic signals

Improvements at the Lyndarum
Drive/Manor House Drive
roundabout.

* The installation of 2 temporary
roundabout at the intersection
of Manor House Drive and
0O'Herns Road.

The construction of pedestrian-
operated traffic signals on High
Street and Morang Drive.

Constructed the Edgars Road
link, providing a vital connection
for residents of Epping North and
helping to relieve congestion on
High Street and Miller Street

Commenced Rochdale Square
Shopping Centre streetscape
upgrade, a Council pilot project
for community driven town centre
redevelopment, with the aim of
increasing tenancy of shops and
pedestrian foot traffic.

Approved a key strategic mixed-
use site in the Epping Central
precinct. The site will contain a
mix of commercial, health, retail
and residential uses including the
provision of 151 affordable houses
in the first stage of development.
Adopted the Whittlesea Township
Plan. The plan provides  strategic
vision and action plan to guide the
future direction and growth of the
Whittlesea Township with a major

focus on the protection of the
township’s existing character.

Finalised the Regional Affordable
Housing Action Plan 2021-22,

in partnership with the Hume

City and Mitchell Shire councils,
to identify and advocate for
opportunities to increase the
supply of affordable housing in
the outer northern region.
Approved 140 hectare
employment precinct on Vearings
Road, which will ultimately provide
4,000 local jobs.

Introduced a licence plate
recognition system to provide

2 safe and effective means of
monitoring parked vehicles for
parking officers.
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« Introduced the Business
Concierge Service to streamline
the permit approvals for small
businesses.

« Developed the City of Whittlesea’s
first Investment Attraction Plan
to attract new businesses, support
existing businesses to grow and
create more local jobs

« Supported the establishment of
the Melbourne Polytechnic Food
Incubator to support our growing
food sector.

« Launched the Whittlesea Localised
online platform to encourage
business-to-business engagement
and transactions between local
suppliers of goods and services.

« Delivered an online and face-to-
face business events program to
support local businesses.

« Launched the Explore Whittlesea
website and Facebook page to
promote the City of Whittlesea as
a tourist destination, highlighting
the City’s attractions, events and
hospitality.

* Launched the Vacant to Vibrant
program which provides
opportunities for businesses,
artists, social enterprises and start-
ups to operate a pop-up business
or show room in a vacant reteil
premises.

« Council awarded more then
$450,000 to over 100 businesses
through its Business Assistance
Grants program. These grants
provided financial assistance to
local business for projects linked
to business adaptation, revitalising
spaces and business continuity
to support continued business
operations

Report of operations

Council successfully received funding
through the State Government’s
Jobs Victoria Advocates program.
Working with Whittlesea Community
Connections, four Job Advocates
are connecting with the local
community to share their knowledge
and resources with residents
looking to find employment.
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Supported local businesses with a
series of social media campaigns
and competitions encouraging
residents to shop local, including
Still Here 4 You and Shop Local for
Christmas.
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Sustainable environment

Report of operations

Our City’s superb landscapes and natural environment are an enduring source of pride.

Introduced a municipal-wide,
opt-in food and garden waste
recycling service, allowing
residents to dispose of food waste
into the garden waste bin. The
service has seen a 16 per cent
increase in the diversion of food
and garden waste from landfil
Developed the Whittlesea
Water for All strategy and
action plan, which outlines

a 10-year framework for the

City of Whittlesea to become a
leader in the planning, use and
management of water.
Developed the Rethinking Waste
Plan 2021-2030, which will guide
the City of Whittlesea’s waste
management and resource
recovery services over the next
10 years.

Undertook community
consultation to inform a new
10-year plan on how our Green
Wedge will be managed

Introduced an online animal
registration platform, simplifying
the process for pet registrations.
Undertook community
consultation to inform the
development of 2 new Domestic
Animal Management Plan.

Developed the Greening
Whittlesea - City Forest

Strategy, which sets out a plan

for the protection, growth and
management of the City’s trees
and green cover.

Planted 3816 street trees through
our annual Street Tree Renewal
Program, filling gaps and replacing
aged trees, contributing to canopy
cover and cooling across the city.

The year in review

Cityof
Whittlesea
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High-performing organisation

Council delivers a range of internal functions and activities enabling the delivery of efficient and effective
services and initiatives. Council’s goal is to be a high-performing organisation which delivers best value to

the community.

* Received the MAV 2020
Technology Award for Excellence
for a collaborative pilot project
with Nillumbik Shire, Mitchell
Shire, Banyule City and Moreland
City councils to create one of the
largest 10T (Internet of Things)
network in Australia. The project
involved the installztion of sensors
to monitor usage of Council assets
and facilities to help inform service
delivery.

16 Citpof

Implemented Salesforce Online
Planning Portal, enabling
customers to register, apply,
request, pay or view planning-
related services and track and
manage these tasks 24 hours a day,
7 days @ week.

Developed a new Procurement
Policy in collzboration with the
Northern Councils Alliance to
provide a simpler and more
consistent approach for businesses
dealing with northern region
councils and improve opportunities
for Council to collaborate

Adapted internal training online
to ensure staff continued to grow
and develop in a remote working
environment.

Implemented a new finance
system, Dynamics, an inclusive,
intuitive and easy-to-navigate
Microsoft interface that allows
integration with other project
management systems and
simplifies the purchase ordering
process.

Extensive community consultation
to inform the development

of Council’s Community Plan
2021-2025.

Implemented actions from the
Local Government Act 2020
including the development of an
Engagement Policy, Transparency
Policy and Governance Rules.
Development of a new
engagement platform, Engage
Whittlesea, to provide the
community with a greater
opportunity to have their say and
stay informed on Council projects
and consultations,

Mobilised all but essential workers
to work remotely and continue to
serve our community.
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Report of operations

Highlights of Events

The COVID-19 pandemic and
lockdowns meant that many of
our much-loved events could
not go ahead as planned in
2019-20. However, we were
able to continue to hold events -
some new, some re-imagined, to
keep our community engaged,
connected and entertained.

Listening to Land

The Listening to Land installation
invited our community to reflect

on the role of nature in our human
experience. The exhibition brought
the outside indoors with a gallery

of artworks, film screenings and
workshops all occurring beside
Solace Stream, an amazing hand-built,
running stream.

Summer Series

Summer Series brought live
entertainment to all corners of the
City of Whittlesea. Areas like the
Whittlesea Showgrounds came to life
throughout January with local music,
circus performers, food stalls and
feature film on an outdoor cinema
screen. Summer Series was a great
opportunity for our community to
reconnect after lockdown.

Bringing up kids expo
Held online for the first time, the
‘Bringing up kids expo’ was a seven-
day series of events to inform and
educate parents, guardians, carers
and grandparents in the City of
Whittlesea. Council worked zlongside
2 number of family support agencies
to host dozens of online activities and
seminars to hundreds of participants.

18 City of Whittlesea Annual Report 2020-21

Welcome Expo

The City of Whittlesea welcomes
approximately 8000 new residents
each year. This year's annual
‘Welcome Expo’ was delivered

online so in spite of lockdown new
residents could still find out about the
services available in the community
2nd connect with Council, service
providers and other residents.

Carols by Candlelight

In & City of Whittlesea first, our annual
Carols by Candlelight celebration was
delivered to the community via live-
stream and has since been watched
over 2000 times across YouTube

and Facebook. As always, Carols by
Candlelight brought together our
community though performances
from local artists, comedians and our
very own community choir.
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Highlights

Walking Thomastown

Thomastown was transformed as the
community came together to discover
the historic Thomastown area in 2 new
light. Walking Thomastown was  night-
time walking event that spanned over
2.5km. It featured our very own Sharpie
flash mob, a variety of lights, projections,
sculptures and illuminations accompanied
by audio commentary from Wurundjeri
elders and local school children.

Winter Weekends

To celebrate brand new outdoor dining
spaces throughout the City of Whittlesea,
we launched Winter Weekends, an
intimate festival which occurred
throughout May and June across our
municipality. Live music, children's
actvities and street performers brought
people out of winter hibernation to
discover new dining hotspots and to
support local businesses.

Seniors Ready to Rock

As a part of the 2020 Victorian Seniors
Festival, we launched Seniors Ready to
Rock. Run completely online, Seniors
Ready to Rock was a fun-filled weekly
interactive social connection program
for seniors which included a mix of
live entertainment, wellbeing and
learning

Super Kids Festival

To celebrate Children's Week, we
developed a city-wide treasure hunt.
Treasure hunt sheets were available
to download, by post, at local
shopping centres or from schools,
and encouraged parents or carers
and their children to explore any
local park and complete the quest.
Prize packs were given to 10 lucky
treasure hunters

Youth Week

Youth Week 2020 was reimagined
into 2 month-long festival of events
and projects for young people

aged 10 to 25. Workshops included
FreeZA, for those who want to enter
the music industry, photography,
mental wellbeing and life skills and
budgeting.

NAIDOC week

The theme for NAIDOC Week 2020
was ‘Always was, Always will be'.
Held from 8-15 Novermber, City of
Whittlesea residents were invited to
2 yarning circle where the NAIDOC
Week theme was at the forefront of
discussions.
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Major Capital Works Highlights

In the 2020-21 financi
year, the City of Whittlesea
spent $54 million as part

of our new works program.
This included more than 133
projects to build and upgrade
community centres, sporting
fields, playgrounds, roads, bike
paths and footpaths across

our municipality, providing our
community with facilities and
infrastructure to enjoy now and
into the future.

McLeans Road
Kindergarten

The redevelopment will include
two new kindergarten rooms, an
upgraded outdoor play area and a
multipurpose room. The centre will
open in January 2022

This $4.5 million project includes

51 million from the Department of
Training and $500,000 from the Victorian
Government’s Growing Suburbs Fund.

i

Installation of solar

panels

The City of Whittlesea installed 16
solar PV systems and battery storage
at 10 community facilities as part of
our Zero Net Emission Plan. The 16
systems are projected to produce
more than 750MWh of electricity per
year and save more than $170,000 in
electricity costs per year.

Mill Park Leisure
redevelopment

The newly-redeveloped Mill Park
Leisure reopened to the community
in April 2021. The centre now boasts
2 state-of-the-art gym, four pools,

2 spa and sauna, accessible change
facilities and a new café.

The City of Whittlesea invested

$20 million and received $2 million in
funding from the Victorian Government’s
Growing Suburbs Fund and $3

million from the Community Sport
Infrastructure Fund.

Mill Park Library
upgrade

An upgrade to the outdoor facilities
at Mill Park Library is continuing and
will provide the community with a
multipurpose outdoor learning area
and meeting space, with sensory play
elements and 3 community garden.

The City of Whittlesea is investing
$1.15 million and has received
$1.125 million from the Australian
Government and $450,000 from the
Victorian Government.
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A community centre in
Wollert East

A new community centre in Wollert
East is currently under construction
Once complete, it will provide a
modern three-room kindergarten,
two fully-equipped maternal and child
health consulting suites, a spacious
community hall, meeting spaces and a
landscaped outdoor area.

The City of Whittlesea is investing
57 million and has received $2.75
million in funding from the Victorian
Government Building Blocks grant.
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Major capital works

Findon Road extension

The construction of the Findon Road
extension from Williamsons Road

to Danaher Drive will create an
important east-west link connection
from Findon Road to Plenty Road to
help ease congestion. A walking and
cycling underpass of Findon Road,
aligned to the existing Yan Yean Pipe
Track, will also be built.

This $13.6 million project is expected
to be complete in late 2021.

Whittlesea Swim
Centre

Stage two of the Whittlesea Swim
Centre upgrade included an Il abilties
accessible play zone with water
features, an all abilities accessible pool
pod with ramp and mobile hoist, turf
and picnic areas and shade sails.

This $1.163 million project includes
$562,000 from the Victorian
Government.

Laurimar Cricket Nets

Three new cricket nets were
constructed at Laurimar Recreation
Reserve in Doreen, providing
Laurimar Cricket Club and the
community with new facilities to
practice in

The $190,000 project included a

$180,000 contribution from the
Victorian Government.

Spring Street

Kindergarten

Opened in January 2021, Spring
Street Kindergarten in Thomastown
has two engaging kindergarten
rooms and a multipurpose consulting
room. The centre now operates both
three- and four-year-old sessional
kindergarten programs.

The City of Whittlesea contributed
$4.45 million and was supported by a
Victorian Government Department of
Education and Training grant of $650,000.

All Abilities Play Space

This major new play space in Mill Park
was opened in February 2021. The
fully fenced and accessible playground
caters to different age groups and
abilities and includes water play,

2 multi-level climbing tower, 2 full-
sized basketball court and a quiet and
sensory play area.

The City of Whittlesea invested

3.5 million and received $1 million
in funding from the Victorian
Government’s Growing Suburbs Fund.

Streetscape
improvements

Streetscape upgrades in Lalor and
Thomastown continued, and have
included new social spaces with
seating and paving. At Lalor Shopping
Centre, work also included a new
public toilet, car park improvements
and an upgraded roundabout.

The streetscape upgrades are delivered
by the City of Whittlesea with the
support of the Victorian Government.
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ow our Rates Revenue was Spent in 20

For every $100 of rates and charges received, the City of Whittlesea delivered the following services:

| New facilities Waste, recyeling &
and infrastructure environment

$15

Roads and Leisure, recreation and Supporting local Family, children, youth
footpaths community facilities businesses and and seniors

S
$10 $9

Arts and culture

& &
$2
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Financial Summary

Highlights

+ $381.84 million revenue

- $244.26 million expenditure
« $137.58 million surplus

* $4.21 billion net assets, comprising community facilities
and infrastructure

* $216.82 million holdings of cash and other financial assets.

Operating position

The operating result s a key figure to assess Council’s
financial performance. Although Council is a not-for-profit
organisation, it should still generate a surplus to ensure
future financial sustainability.

For the year ended 30 June 2021, Council achieved an operating
surplus of $137.58 million, which was 2 $26.1 million increase
from the 2019-20 result. This surplus is reported based on
the Australian Accounting Standards and includes all revenue
received recognised in the financial period, including

gifted subdivisional assets (non-monetary), developer
contributions and grants towards capital works projects.

A better measure of Council's operating performance is the
adjusted underlying result. The adjusted underlying operating
result removes developer contributions and non-recurrent
capital grants and resulted in 2 deficit of $30.67 million.

Council's Annual Budget was adopted in June 2021 and
shows that surpluses will continue to be achieved in all
years over the four-year budget period 2021-22 to 2024-25
while maintaining existing service delivery. These surpluses
are critical s they are the primary source of funding for
the renewal, replacement and upgrade of community
infrastructure through Council’s capital works program,
which will average $73.36 million a year over the four years
t0 30 June 2025.
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Liquidity

Council’s cash position has increased by $12.53 million
from the prior year, mainly due to a decrease in payments
for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment. The
working capital ratio, which assesses Council’s ability to
meet current commitments, is calculated by measuring
current assets as a percentage of current liabilities. The
City of Whittlesea’s working capital ratio for 2020-21 was
306 per cent, indicating a satisfactory financial position.
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Obligations

Council aims to maintain its infrastructure assets at
the expected levels, while continuing to deliver the
infrastructure and services needed by the community.

Atthe end of the 2020-21 financial year Council's debt
ratio, which is measured by comparing interest bearing
loans and borrowings to rate revenue, was 1.5 per cent.

Council's asset renewal ratio, which is measured by
comparing the total of asset renewal and asset upgrade
expenditure to depreciation, was 82.2 per cent. As part
of Council’s asset management strategy, a more proactive
approach to renewal works has been adopted, resulting
in an increased spend on asset renewal works and an
additional allocation of funding to bridge the asset
renewal gap.
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Stability and efficiency

Council receives revenue through rates, user fees, fines,
grants and contributions. Council’s rates concentration, which
compares rate revenue to adjusted underlying revenue, was
71.99 per cent for the 2020-21 financial year, which is toward
the top end of the expected target band of 40-80 per cent.

Council has focused on broadening its revenue base and
for the 2020-21 year kept its rate increase to the rate cap
of 2 per cent. This resulted in an average rate per property
assessment of $1,707, which compares favourably to
similar councils in the outer metropolitan area.
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Economic factors

The global COVID-19 pandemic has continued to have a
significant impact on the national, and more specifically,
local economy and can be expected to impact the local

community well into the 2021-22 financial year.

Ongoing lockdowns and tight restrictions as a result of the
pandemic have created financial stress and hardship for
many residents of our community. This has created added
pressure on Council to provide additional support, while
continuing to provide essential infrastructure and services
for the entire community.

Challenges and future outlook

The City of Whittlesea faced 2 number of challenges during
the year, which included:

« the ongoing response to the COVID-18 pandemic and
support for our community

« the ability to deliver key infrastructure projects while
managing the impact of the pandemic on supply chain
and availability of labour

« continued adaptability to an environment of working
remotely to support our community

« appointment of a permanent CEO and new Executive
Leadership Team, and progression of wider organisation
structural realignment work.

As we look ahead to the 2021-22 financial year, the City of
Whittlesea will:

+ continue to monitor the impact of COVID-18 on
our community and provide support, resources and
assistance to help our community recover

« provide services in a COVIDSafe way to our community

« complete new infrastructure projects, including road
upgrades and community facilities for our growing
population

« advocate to Federal and State governments for new
infrastructure that supports our growing municipality
and creates local jobs and services that protect and
support the mental health and wellbeing of our
community

« finalise the organisation’s structure realignment to
better reflect our Whittlesea 2040 vision.
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Community Satisfaction Survey

Each year, Local Government Victoria
coordinates a state-wide local
government community satisfaction
survey. The survey measures the
community's perceptions of their local
council's performance in key areas
including:

* overall council direction
* customer service

+ waste management

+ community consultation

* service areas.

During February and March 2021, a
total of 800 residents from across the
municipality provided their feedback
Vi  telephone survey. Each rating
given is a score out of 100.

Our community identified Waste
Management to be the most
important service delivered by Council
2nd rated our service performance

2t 72 (three points higher than the
state-wide average). It improved by six
points in 2021 to become the highest
rating service area
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Other performance areas that rated
highly include Emergency and Disaster
Management (71), Art Centres and
Libraries (68), Recreational Facilities
(67) and Elderly Support Services (66).

Overall Council Direction also increased

significantly from a performance score
of 48n 2020t 52 in 2021

Council's rating for Customer Service
dropped by one point to a score 71
but is still higher than both state-wide
and Interface Council averages

(70 and 68 respectively).
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City of Whittlesea’s results from the 2021 Community Satisfaction Survey
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Our Council

On 19 June 2020, the Acting Minister for Local Government
appointed a panel of three Administrators for the City of
Whittlesea. The panel will undertake the duties of the
Council of the City of Whittlesea until the October 2024 Local
Government Election.
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Chair of the Panel
of Administrators,
Ms Lydia Wilson

Administrator,
M:s Peita Duncan

Ms Peita Duncan is an experienced
professional with skills in commercial
2nd general management.

She has worked for a number of law
firms in business development and
management roles and has extensive
experience in human resources, business
development, business operations and
recruitment support.

Ms Duncan wes formerly a
Non-Executive Director of the
Metropolitan Fire Brigade, and formerly
a Non-Executive Director of the
Emergency Services Telecommunications
Authority. She is currently the

Chair of Greyhound Racing Victoria.

Lydia Wilson began as Interim
Administrator on Saturday 21 March
2020. She was appointed Chair of the
Panel of Administrators on Friday 19
June 2020.

Ms Wilson brings a depth of corporate
governance experience to the
Administrator role.

She has served on multiple not-
for-profit, public and private sector
boards and dvisory committees over
the past 25 years.

Her governance roles have included
appointments on Ministerial Advisory
committees in relation to waterways,
waste and resource recovery.

Administrator,
Mr Chris Eddy

Mr Chris Eddy was appointed by the
Minister for Local Government on
12 May 2021.

Mr Eddy brings with him a broad
range of local government and media
experience including his most recent
appointment as Interim CEO at LGPro
(VIC) from July 2020-March 2021

For 13 years, Mr Eddy served at
Hobsons Bay City Council, including
almost six years as CEO (2012-2018)

He works as a consultant to local
government and not-for-profit
organisations, is 2n independent
member of the Alpine Coordinating
Council and council Audit and Risk

Management committees and presents

2 series of local government related
podcasts and interview programs.

Report of operations  Our Council

Other board governance appointments
have been in the areas of procurement,
aged care, childcare and health services.

She is a Graduate of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors, a
Fellow of the Australian Institute of
Management and a past Fellow of
Local Government Professionals.

As a former chief executive of
three Victorian municipalities —
Manningham and Yarra city councils
2nd Macedon Ranges Shire Council

— Lydia has a detailed understanding
of the local government sector and
brings valuable experience to support
her Administrator function.

Administrator,
The Hon Bruce Billson

The Hon Bruce Billson resigned from
his position as Administrator on
3 March 2021

Mr Billson is the director of &
consultancy business providing
strategic policy and communications.
advice and served for 20 years as the
federal member for Dunkley. He has
held several senior executive positions
in local government, including Acting
CEO of the Shire of Hastings.
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The Executive Leadership Team as at 30 June 2021

The Executive

Leadership Team is led
by the Chief Executive

Officer and consists
of four Directors,
who each manage
a directorate of

departments, and two

Executive Managers.

Chief Executive Officer

Craig Lloyd

Craig Lloyd was appointed
to the role of CEO at the
City of Whittlesea on 12
October 2020, taking over
from the Acting CEO Joe
Carbone (2 March 2019-
11 October 2020).

Mr Lloyd spent two and

& half years at neighbouring
Murrindindi Shire Council
as CEO and holds 2 holds
& Masters of Business
Administration, a Post
Graduate Certificate in
Community Development
(Emergency Management)
and a Master of Project
Management.

He has also completed

the Australian Institute of
Company Directors Course
and undertaken the Local
Government Professionals
Executive Leadership Program.

Mr Lloyd has a deep
commitment to grass-roots
community engagement
and is skilled in many facets
of local government such
as community engagement,
environment, economic
development, emergency
management and IT.
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Director Community
Wellbeing

Kate McCaughey

Our Community Wellbeing
Directorate oversees many
service areas that impact
the day-to-day living

and wellbeing of City of
Whittlesea residents.

The Directorate works
collaboratively with

the State and Federal
governments to provide
many of these services and
operates in partnership
with 2 variety of community
service organisations

to meet the needs of

our diverse and vibrant
community.

Departments include:
Aboriginal and Cultural
Diversity, Active and
Creative Participation,
Ageing Well, Equity and
Inclusion, Children and
Families and Strategic
Projects.

Director Corporate
Services

Amy Montalti

Our Corporate Services
Directorate ensures that
Council has the funds
available to provide safe,
useful and sustainable
assets and services to our
community.

This directorate monitors,
manages, researches,
reports and provides
advice to Council on all
financial and organisational
matters and ensures good
governance.

It directs and assists the
organisation to achieve

its goals by providing
accurate data and
introducing efficiencies and
enhancements that best
utilise Council's resources.

Departments include:
Finance, Projects and
Property, Information
Services and People and
Culture.
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Director Infrastructure
and Environment

Debbie Wood

Our Infrastructure and
Environment Directorate
provides a diverse range of
infrastructure services to
the community.

With the high level

of growth within the
municipality and an
increasing number of
residents, there is a
need to be responsive to
community needs.

Some of the Directorate’s
key functions include
managing parks and open
spaces, roads, road-related
and footpath construction
and maintenance,

building maintenance,
engineering services, traffic
management, road safety
and sustainability planning

Departments include:
Assets and Facilities, Capital
Delivery, Maintenance and
Operations, Sustainable
Environment and Urban
Design and Transport.

Director Planning and
Development

Justin O’Meara

The Planning and
Development Directorate
provides strategic land use
planning, town planning,
building compliance and
economic development
services to support the
progress and prosperity

of the City’s growing
community of residents
and businesses

The Directorate also helps
ensure the safety and
wellbeing of the community
through its compliznce,
environmental health,
emergency management
and regulatory services

Departments include:
Building and Planning,
Compliance and
Environmental Health,
Economic Development,
Emergency Management
and Regulatory Programs
and Strategic Futures.

Executive Manager
Public Affairs

Kristi High

The Public Affairs Department
looks after the City of
Whittlesea's communication

with its community and
other stakeholders.

This department is made
up of four teams, including
Advocacy, Communications,
Customer Service and
Community Engagement.

Together the teams ensure
the community has access
to the information it needs
when it needs it and the
opportunity to share their
ideas and opinions about
Council’s services and
projects.

The department is also
responsible for internal
communications, graphic
design and branding,
working with other
government organisations,
media and industry to
promote the City and
attract support for its
priorities.

Executive Manager
Governance

Frank Joyce

The Governance
Department ensures

that Council has effective
strategy and governance
practices in place to provide
transparency, performance
monitoring and to ensure
accordance with the Local
Government Act and other
relevant legislation. Its
focus is to enable better
community outcomes
through informed and
evidence-based decision-
making by Council

This Department includes
Corporate Planning,
Research, Insights and
Analytics, Risk, Assurance
and Governance teams
providing effective data
analysis, risk management
and strategy. It provides
reporting to Council

and the community on
Council's performance and
supports good governance
through supporting
Council meetings, policies,
strategies and processes.
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Organisational Structure

CEO
Craig Lloyd

Community
Wellbeing

Children &

Infrastructure &
Environment

Planning &
Development

Corporate
Services
Amy Montalti

Information

Governance
Frank Joyce

Public Affairs
Kristi High

A Strategic Futures " Corporate
Failies Services Advocacy
P Merv Moniz George Saisanas e Planning
Urban Design Building &
b 9
Arashdeep Singh Julian Edwards
Equity & Inclusion Capital Delivery il IR Risk, Assurance Community
Joanne Krykilis Nick Mazzarella (AT QLY and Governance Engagement
Sarah Rowe CFO-
Mark Montague
Aboriginal & Maintenance & ‘Compliance &
Cultural Diversity Operations Environmental Customer Service
Vacant Caroline Lintott Health
Debbie Blandford
Active & Creative Sustainable
Participation Environment Emergency
Ben Waterhouse Vacant Management
& Regulatory
Programs.
Strategic Projects Vacant
Vacant
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Council staff

A summary of the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) Council staff by organisational structure, employment type and
gender is set out below.

EMPLOYMENT TYPE/GENDER | INFRASTRUCTURE | COMMUNITY | CORPORATE | EXECUTIVE | PLANNING & | TOT/
& ENVIRONMENT | WELLBEING [SERVICES | SERVICES | DEVELOPMENT

Female 445 77.47 57.55 22.66 4879 250.97
Full-time

Male 175 29 31.84 11 52 298.84

Female 1036 148.96 26.62 8.05 3231 226.3
Part-time Male 1.84 11.37 0.84 0 21.09 37.37

X 0 0 0.84 [ 0 0.84
TOTAL 231.7 266.8 119.29 42.34 154.19 814.32

Please note, the above table does not include casuals.
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Employment classification and gender

CLASSIFICATION | FEMALE MALE TOTA

Band 1 19.83 17.5 37.33
Band 2 43 o 43
Band 3 56.12 84.68 140.8
Band 4 101.59 31.35 132,94
Band 5 67.55 35.51 103.06
Band 6 119.05 73.61 192.66
Band 7 67.24 56.56 123.80
Band 8 24.07 37.79 61.86
Other* 79.53 26.44 105.97
TOTAL 539.28 363.44 902.72

CLASSIFICATION | FEMALE MALE TOTAL

Band 1 19.96
Band 2 4.1
Band 3 60.61
Band 4 104.4
Band 5 74.01
Band 6 111.77

183 38.26
o 21

83.79 144.4
23.53 127.93
42.1 116.11
69.06 180.83

*Includes students, maternal child health nurses, immunisation nurses, senior officers and

senior executive officers

Working for Victoria
initiative

The City of Whittlesea participated
in the Working for Victoria

(WFV) Program — a $500 million
Victorian Government initiative
helping connect employers and
Victorian jobseskers whose
employment has been impacted
by the pandemic.

Under the program, which ended
on 31 May 2021, Council employed
294 people. Many of these roles
were placed directly with community
service and partner organisations to
help support the delivery of services
during their six-month employment.
The WFV workforce brought many
new skills and perspectives to the
organisation, benefitting both the

community through increased
service delivery and the introduction
of new services to meet demand
during the pandemic, as well as
offering economic benefits through
employment outcomes.

Equal Employment
Opportunity

Council is committed to providing
2 workplace free from all forms
of discrimination, harassment
and bullying, and continues to
promote equality of opportunity
for all employees through merit-
based recruitment and selection,
employment conditions, benefits,
training and promotion.

All new employees receive 2 suite of
compliance training and information
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on discrimination, harassment and
bullying as part of the induction
process while all current staff receives
ongoing training on the topics.

All relevant policies are accessible

via our intranet.

The organisation also provides a
range of options for staff requiring
support for personal or workplace
issues. The Peer Support Program
has 15 volunteer employees who
provide informal and confidential
support to employees experiencing
difficulties at work or at home and
may need assistance navigating
additional and more formal
pathways for support. A confidential
Employee Assistance Program is
2lso available to all staff and their
immediate families to discuss

and provide support with a range of
workplace and personal issues.
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Organisational
changes
During 2020-21, the City of Whittlesea

und
ealignment to ensure that our
organisation can continue to best
meet the needs of our community and

rwent an organisational structure

deliver on the Whittlesea 2040 vision

als.

The realignment is being carried
out in three phases, providing an
opportunity to remove duplication
in work functions and identifying
areas for new opportunities, ideas

d innovation. Under Phase 1

directorates and the departments
that sit within each directorate were
reviewed. In Phase 2, the Executive
Leadership Team reviewed the

functions within each

artment,

while in Phase 3, the E
Leadership Tezm and Managers are
working together to ensure that each
team structure supports our staff

uti

to achieve outstanding service for
the City of Whittlesea. This phase
is currently ongoing. Throughout
h phase, staff were consulted
and feedback considered

Organisational focus

The focus of our support and
ervice provision continues to
include assisting our community
th
through to the recovery phase, the
organisational focus shifts to ensure
our employees and teams can assist
with the recovery effort. These
include:

ugh the pandemic. As we move

+ redeploying additional staff during
s of lockdown to regularly

perio

check on our most vulnerable
community members and support
the delivery of care packages

« continuing to adapt the way we

connect with ommunit

ar

developing a balance of online and

face-to-face programs

+ staying connected to
families through essenti
such as maternal child he
and immunisation, ensuring they

h the

ervices
th

are delivered safely for bof
community and

« continuing working with our
businesses on progra
support recovery.

We support the safety and wellbeing
of our staff through caring for their
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physical and mental wellbeing.
This includes personal protective

uipment and safe systems of work
d providing support for mental

wellbeing through
Ways to Wellbeing program

During the pandemic both our
physical and wellbeing strat
have been extended with a greater
the as:

wellbeing and kee

ur Whittlesea

challenges

ping
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Our performance

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Description of
operations

The City of Whittlesea is responsible for
more than 140 services across 26 service
groups, from family and children’s
services, traffic regulation, open space,
youth programs, waste management
and community building; to matters
concerning business development,
planning for appropriate development
and ensuring accountability for Council’s
Budget. This broad range of community
services and infrastructure for residents
supports the wellbeing and prosperity
of our community.

Council’s vision, goals and strategies to
further improve services and facilities
are described in our Council Plan
2017-21 and the associated Budget

Time horizon

Medium-term Em——

2020-21 and are reported on in this
document. Further information on our
services are availeble in this section.

The delivery of services, facilities,
support and advocacy to achieve
goals is measured by a set of service
performance indicators and measures
Council also has responsibility for
administering a wide range of State
and Federal legislation.

Planning and
Accountability
Framework

The Planning and Accountability
Framework is found in part 6 of the Local
Government Act 1989 (the Act). The Act
requires councils to prepare the following

Planning

Strategic and

community
engagement

Strategic resource plan

* Financial
* Statemen

statemer
nts of non

e outcome indicato

ajor in
Financial

Short-term

itia

planning and reporting documents;

* Acouncil plan within the six
months after each general election
or by 30 June, whichever is later

«  Astrategic resource plan for a
period of at least four years and
include this in the council plan

« Abudget for each financial year

= Anannual report in respect of each
financial year.

The following diagram shows the
relationships between the key planning
and reporting documents that make
up the planning and accountability
framework for local government. It
2lso shows that there are opportunities
for community and stakeholder input
and feedback at each stage of the
planning and reporting cycle.

Reporting Timing

Jan-Jun

Feb-Jun

Annual report

* Financial

« Performance statement

The Local Government Act 2020 (Vic) introduces significant changes to the planning and accountability framework which
Council is implementing in accordance with the legislated transition timelines.
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Council Plan

The Council Plan 2017-21 includes strategic objectives, strategies for achieving these for the four-year period, strategic
indicators for monitoring achievement of the strategic objectives and a strategic resource plan. The following are the five
goals as detailed in the Council Plan.

o Connected community

community Our City opens its arms to every resident and is a place
where all walks of life are celebrated and supported.

Liveable neighbourhoods

Liveable
neighbourhoods Our City is well-planned and beautiful, and our
neighbourhoods and town centres are convenient and
== =] vibrant places to live, work and play.

Sy

Strong Strong local economy

Tuzn) eeonOty Our City is the smart choice for innovation, business growth
and industry investment.

e Sustainable environment
Sustainable

environment Our City's superb landscapes and natural environment are
an enduring source of pride.

High High-performing organisation
performing

aduL Council delivers & range of internal functions and activities
organisatiol

enabling the delivery of efficient and effective services

m and initiatives. Council’s goal is to be a high-performing
). organisation which delivers best value to the community.
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Performance

Council’s performance for the 2020-21 financial year has been reported against each goal to demonstrate how
Council is performing in achieving the Council Plan 2017-21. Performance has been measured as follows:

* Results achieved in relation to the strategic indicators in the Council Plan

* Progress in relation to the major initiatives identified in the Budget

« Services funded in the Budget and the persons or sections of the community who are provided those services

* Results against the prescribed service performance indicators and measures.

Annual Rey
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Connected Goal
community

: Connected community

Our City opens its arms to every resident and is 2 place where all walks of life are celebrated and
¥ supported.

Strategic indicators

The following statement reviews the performance of Council against the Council Plan including results achieved in relation
to the strategic indicators included in the Council Plan

Social cohesion Level of social connection in the community 6.35/10

Physical activity Per cent of residents who do moderate to vigorous exercise for at least 2.5 hours ~ 43.3%
2 week

Safety in public areas  Per cent of residents who feel safe in their local neighbourhood 71.7%

Civic participation Per cent of residents who got involved in activities to influence decision-makers ~ 28.5%

Major initiatives
The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the 2020-21 Budget for
the year.

Key direction 1.1 A socially cohesive community

Aboriginal truth and Completion of the Aboriginal Truth ~ The Truth and Reconciliation Project is an art
reconciliation project — and Reconciliation project by narrative project that developed a resource to
Working alongside and being led 30 June 2021 @ capture and share the diverse stories, histories
by our local Aboriginal community and cultures of our local Aboriginal community to:
to capture, consolidate and share « help increase unity and historical
their diverse stories, histories and understanding between Aboriginal and
cultures non-Aboriginal Australians
« provide an ongoing education tool for
local schools and institutions and the
community more broadly
« increased the sense of belonging and pride
for Aboriginal community members and
ensure Aboriginal histories, cultures and
rights are a valued and recognised part of
our shared local identity.
Welcoming cities - Working City of Whittlesea receives Council audited its cultural diversity and
towards socially and culturally Welcoming Cities Accreditation @ inclusion practices and will use the results
inclusive communities to benchmark performance against a set of

standards developed by Welcoming Cities.

The accreditation application will be submitted
to Welcoming Cities in July 2021.
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Maijor initiatives

MecLeans Road Kindergarten —
Redeveloping the facility

to accommodate an extra
kindergarten room

Report of operations

Completion of year 1 of the
redevelopment of the McLeans
Road Kindergarten @

Annual measure Progress

Construction of the facility is progressing with
external lighting, internal services and power
metering now complete. While significant
weather, COVID-19 restrictions and lockdown
have presented some challenges, the works
are proceeding to plan and the facility is
expected to be completed in December 2021
with 2 planned opening in January 2022.

Early activation — Donnybrook —
Partnering with the developer to
ensure initial infrastructure and
services are provided timely to the
growing local community

Completion of documentation
(infograph report and video) for
phase 1 of early activation by 30
June 2021 @

The City of Whittlesea and developer Mirvac
are working together to create a sense

of belonging and social connection in the
growing Olivine community. As part of the
first phase of the development, a Community
Advisory Group was formed and has started
planning for future service and infrastructure
needs including activities and events that will
bring the community together. Olivine Place
and Gumnut Park are now established local
and regional attractions,

Key direction 1.2 A healthy and safe community

COVID-19 Pandemic Relief and
Recovery Plan — Supporting our
community and local businesses

Implement year 1 actions to
support the community and local
businesses to recover from the
COVID-19 pandemic @

Actions in the Pandemic Relief and Recovery

Plan, now referred to as the Pandemic

Readiness and Recovery Plan, are nearing

completion or have been completed

Highlights include:

« & business support package

« hardship considerations for rates and fines

« reconnecting communities via various
Council programs

« significant progress on COVID-19 mass
vaccination and testing programs

« acommunications campaign with up-
to-date multilingual information to the
community

« an Emergency Relief fund which has
supported local non-government agencies
in their work with vulnerable residents.

Mill Park Leisure relaunch —
Maximising opportunities for
residents to utilise the fully
redeveloped facility

The facility will be complete, open
and maintained to the highest
possible safety, compliance and
amenity standards @

Mill Park Leisure was opened to the
community in April 2021. Learn to swim
membership increased from 1555 enrolments
in 2017 to 1754 enrolments within the first
two weeks of the aquatic area opening.

Mernda Sports Hub — Developing
asite master plan and finalising
the business case for the Hub

Site master plan is developed and
business plan for the site stadium
is completed @

The site draft master plan and business
case for the site stadium are well underway.
The project scope will be presented to Council
for endorsement in the second half of the
2021-22 financial year.
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Maijor initiatives

Connected communities in parks
~ Increasing the informal use of
parks and perceptions of safety
by changing the way Council
approaches upgrades, activities
and events in parks and reserves

Program and metrics developed
for incressing use of parks and
addressing perceptions of safety in
public spaces @

Report of operations  Our performance

Annual measure Progress

The Connected communities in parks plan
identifies ways to increase informal use of
parks which is @ major contributor in the
community feeling safe in parks. This includes
creating welcoming places and opportunities
for different types of activities, including local
events, developing different types of parks
and improving lighting. These initiatives will
be tested with the local community, and in
particular vulnerable groups, to ensure the
programs are reflective of community needs.

Community resilience and
emergency management —
Ensuring communities are safer,
better prepared and more resilient

when experiencing emergencies

Review the existing Municipal
Emergency Management Plan

to ensure compliance with new
legislation and guidance provided
by state and regional emergency
management plans by June 2021

The Municipal Emergency Management
Plan was audited by the SES in October 2020
and is currently being reviewed to ensure

it is compliant with new legislation. A new
Emergency Management Committee was
formed and key local emergency service
agencies were actively engaged.

Key direction 1.3 A participating community

Developing the new plan for
2021-25 to improve outcomes for
people with a disability and their
carers

Develop and complete a Disability
Action Plan by June 2021 @

At the March Council meeting, Council agreed
to integrate the Disability Action Plan into

the Community Plan. A draft Community

Plan (integrating the Disability Action Plan)
has been finalised and will be presented to
Council in October 2021 for endorsement.

Multicultural civic participation
and leadership project - Building
leadership and participation
among multicultural communities
through targeted programs and
seminars

Deliver Multicultural Leadership
Program to multicultural
community members @

The City of Whittlesea partnered with the
Centre for Multicultural Women's Health
to deliver the PACE (Participate, Advocate,
Communicate and Engage] leadership
program to 17 women from migrant and
refugee backgrounds.

Develop the Community Plan
2021-25 - Developing the
medium-term plan towards
achieving Whittlesea 2040:

A place for all

Community consultation on draft
Council Plan 2021-2025 completed

L]

The Council Plan 2021-2025 is part of the
Community Plan 2021-2025. The draft
Community Plan has now been developed
with community consultation planned for
August and September 2021, Adoption

of the Community Plan 2021-2025 is
scheduled for the Special Council meeting
on 25 October 2021

@ completed € not completed

@ progressing/ongoing
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Services
The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the 2020-21 Budget and the persons or

sections of the community who are provided the service

Description Net cost
Actual

Budget
Variance

$000

This service strives to build better relationships between the wider Australian community 832
reconciliation  and Aboriginal people for the benefit of all Australians. It operates to acknowledge 945
the wrongs of the past and embrace Aboriginal history and culture. By partnering 113
with Aboriginal communities across maternal and child health, early years, youth

development, employment and aged care we aim to increase the civic participation

and health and wellbeing for Aboriginal communities across the City of Whittlesea.

Arts, heritage  Council's arts, heritage and events service seeks to build identity, belonging and social 1,775
and events cohesion - all of which are central to the achievement of the vision Whittlesea 2040: 2,154
A place for all. Council's strategic approach: 379

« enables a creative sector that is vibrant and vieble

« delivers events that showcase and celebrate our strengths and cultural diversity

« preserves and promotes our history and our living traditions and the co-creation of
cultures

« ensures that Aboriginal, historic, cultural and natural heritage places, assets
and features are retained, conserved and integrated into the urban design and
neighbourhood character of our City.

Community Planning, construction, management and maintenance of Council-owned and 11,874
facilities operated facilities to support Council services, conferences, events, leisure activities 13,330
and community-run ectivities and groups. Specific Council services supported include 1,456

maternal and child health, early childhood and social support activities. External
services supported include other allied health and community services.

Leisure and The service includes the strategic planning and management of leisure and recreation 4,149
recreation activities within the City of Whittlesea. Council manages and supports community 2,251
groups and organisations using Council spaces. Council liaises with sports clubs to (1,898)

support their development, community participation and effective use of sports
grounds, pavilions and other facilities.

Furthermare, the service plays 2 key role in planning for, delivering and managing
Council’s leisure facilities.

Ageing well Council supports older residents to age well by providing services, programs and 4,363
activities such as delivered meals, domestic assistance, personal care, seniors’ 4,797
clubs support, positive ageing programs and sacial support. Council also facilitates. 434

partnerships and advocates for social and physical infrastructure.
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Description Net cost
Actual
Budget
Variance
$000
Animal Animal management features a range of services and programs delivered to ensure that 1,713
management people and their pets can live together harmoniously and safely in our community. 1,880
The service includes reuniting lost pets with their owners, pet adoptions, operating 167
the Epping Animal Welfare Facility, animal investigations, esteblishing and monitoring
measures put in place to mitigate the risks posed by dangerous and restricted breed
dogs, attending to wandering livestock and auditing animal-related businesses to
ensure welfare standards are upheld.
Council keeps 2 register of cats and dogs that live in the City of Whittlesea and
promotes responsible pet ownership through a series of communication campaigns and
events each year.
Family and Family and children's services aims to improve hezlth, safety, social and educational 5,046
children’s outcomes for children and families within the City of Whittlesea. This is achieved by 5,540
services providing high quelity, evidence-based services, programs and activities to strengthen 294

individual and community wellbeing, capacity and connection. Key services include
maternal and child health, and early years management and support.

The service also supports the planning and delivery of relevant physical infrastructure.

Public health and
safety

Public health and safety provides a range of services and programs delivered to protect 2,533
and enhance community health, safety and wellbeing. This is achieved by educating 4,047
the community about their responsibilities to contribute to public health and safety, 1,514

the enforcement of state and local laws, working with emergency service agencies to
plan and respond to emergencies and by using an evidence base to develop plans for
addressing major health and wellbeing issues faced by the community.

Youth services

Baseline for Young People is Councils dedicated youth service. Baseline provides a 1,358
range of programs, activities and events for young people aged 10-25 years and their 1973
families. Baseline also facilitates networks and advocates for inclusive social and 615

physical infrastructure that supports all young people and works closely with a range of
external organisations.

Community The community strengthening service aims to enhance our community wellbeing through 3,333
strengthening  building social capital and planning of local place-based programs and services. This is achieved 5,567

by actively engaging local residents, community organisations and other stakeholders 2,234
Customer service, The service manages key interactions between residents and Council via the service 6,904
communications  counter, the customer contact centre, online service requests and complaints, Council's 6,718
and eivie websites and other communication channels, civic functions, Council meetings and (186)

participation

information requests.
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Service performance indicators

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and measures including

explanation of material variations

Maternal and Child Health (VCH)

Service standard 100%  100% 97.39% 100.43% The figure for this indicator is greater than
Infant enrolments in the MCH 100 per cent as a result of families who have
service moved into the municipality and enrolled
[Number of infants enrolled inthe M(;H semc:, but the b\rTh has been
in the MCH service (from registered in another municipality.

birth notifications received) /

Number of birth notifications

received] x100

Service cost $70.57 $86.96 $68.26 $70.82 The cost has been impacted by an 87 per
Cost of the MCH service cent increase in telephone consultations and
[Cost of the MCH service / a3 per cednt increase in service hours when
Hours worked by MCH nurses] compared to previous years.

Participation 76.96% 75.75% 73.14% 73.35% Council has observed 2 decline over the last

Participation in the MCH service
[Number of children who
attend the MCH service at least
once (in the year] / Number of
children enrolled in the MCH
service] x100

four years in the participation of children
attending the service for their 3.5 year Key
Age and Stage assessment. From January
2020, the MCH service was required to
prioritise younger children as an outcome of
COVID-19 restrictions. An action plan has been
developed to respond to this decline.

Participation in the MCH
service by Aboriginal children
[Number of Aboriginal children
who attend the MCH service
at least once (in the year) /
Number of Aboriginal children
enrolled in the MCH service]

71.63% 60.16%

84.26% 88.41%

Council's MCH continues to focus on providing
services to Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander families through the Deadly Boorais
and Deadly Families Outreach Program.
Participation at Whittlesea continues to
remain high,

X100
satisfaction Newin Newin 99.60% 98.08% Attendance remained high at this Key Age
2020 2020 visit, demonstrating a high level of awareness

Participation in 4-week Key Age
and Stage visit

[Number of 4-week Key Age and
Stage visits / Number of birth
notifications received] x100

and engagement with the MCH service.
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Food Safety

Timeliness 1.88 121 1.46 1.01 In 2020 on average Council's Environmental
Time taken to action food Health team took 1.01 days to respond to food
complaints complaints. The decrease is due to improved

[Number of days between business practices and procedures.

receipt and first response
action for all food complaints /
Number of food complaints]

Service standard 99.42% 99.75% 99.63% 92.67% Council completed 100 per cent of

Food safety assessments assessments for class 1 food premises.

63 class 2 food premises were closed due to
State Government COVID-19 restrictions and
could not be assessed in the second half of
2020.

[Number of registered class 1
food premises and class 2 food
premises that receive an annual
food safety assessment in
accordance with the Food Act
1984 / Number of registered
class 1 food premises and class
2 food premises that require an
annual food safety assessment
in accordance with the Food
Act 1984) x100

Service cost $309.07 $324.80 $405.32 $368.19 The decrease in this cost from the previous
Cost of food safety service year is due to the registration of 114
additional food businesses in this financial
year.

[Direct cost of the food safety
service / Number of food
premises registered or notified
in accordance with the Food
Act 1984]

Health and safety 100.00% 99.51% 87.81% 100.00% All Food Act inspections/assessments that
Critical and major non- were determined to be a critical or major

compliance outcome notifications non-compliance were followed up by Council's

[Number of critical Environmental Health team.

non-compliance outcome
notifications and major
non-compliance notifications
about 2 food premises followed
up / Number of criticel
non-compliance outcome
notifications and major
non-compliance notifications
about food premises] x100
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Service/ indic

Aquatic Facilities

T N N

Service standard 2.33

Health inspections of aquatic
facilities

[Number of authorised officer
inspections of Council aquatic
facilities / Number of Council

aquatic facilities]

2.00

2.00

2.00

Six health inspections were conducted,
including pool sampling of Council's three
aquatic centres. Mill Park Leisure was closed
for renovations through most 2020-21 and
reopened in late June, with health inspection
and testing conducted.

Utilisation 4.18
Utilisation of aquatic facilities

[Number of visits to aquatic

facilities / Municipal

population]

2.74

1.82

0.77

The most significant barrier to attendance has
been the 21 weeks of centre closures, coupled
with five weeks of capacity limits due to the
State Government COVID-19 lockdowns.

The booking system put in place to control
attendance due to capacity limits was also

a barrier for many Thomastown Recreation
and Aquatic Centre (TRAC) users who are
older and from CALD backgrounds and found
the technology a challenge. This population

is also more vulnerable with respect to the
virus which added to the loss of confidence
to return to TRAC when it was open. There
has been a large drop in attendance at TRAC
when it was open compared to pre-COVID-19,
which is in line with most other Victorian local
governments. Of Council’s three facilities,
TRAC was opened (when not in lockdown) for
the year, Whittlesea Swim Centre (WSC) was
opened for the summer season (five months)
and Mill Park Leisure (MPL) was not fully
operational until the final five days of the year.

Service cost New in

Cost of aquatic facilities 2020

[Direct cost of aquatic facilities
less income received / Number
of visits to aquatic facilities]

New in

2020

$2.50

$6.16

The operational costs for the centres continue,
with wages being the only notable area of
reduction, during COVID-19 lockdown periods.
During lockdown periods all memberships

are suspended and no income is received.
The lockdowns have resulted in a reduction

in people’s confidence to return and created
barriers with the requirements of bookings,
which has significantly reduced attendance
and income. Prior to COVID-18, the income
was greater than the operational budget of
the combined three centres, which is not the
case for 2020-21. Of Council’s three facilities,
TRAC was opened (when not in lockdown) for
the year; WSC was opened for the summer
season (five months); and MPL was not fully
operational until the final five days of the year.
Additional costs for MPL included equipment
purchases with the establishment of the
facility.
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Animal Management

Timeliness 1.00 1.00

Time taken to action animal
management requests
[Number of days between
receipt and first response
action for all enimal
management requests

/ Number of animal
management requests]

Council responded to 2779 animal-related
requests in 2020-21 (down from 3295

last year, most likely due to COVID-19
restrictions and better monitoring of pets at
home). Of these requests, 98 per cent were
responded to on the same working day, with
the remaining being received after hours
and attended to on the next working day.
The average response time to CRM:s is less
than 24 hours (0.16 day).

Service standard 43.34% 36.48%
Animals reclaimed

[Number of animals reclaimed
/ Number of animals collected]

Of the 2457 animals collected in 2020-21,
26.8 per cent were reclaimed which is up from
23 per cent for the previous year. Overall, 8.4
per cent of cats (up from 6 per cent last year)
and 68 per cent of dogs {up from 60.5 per

x100
cent last year) were reclaimed.
Animals rehomed New in  New in Of the 2457 animals collected in 2020-
[Number of animals rehomed 2020 2020 21, 46 per cent were rehomed to 2 new
/ Number of animals collected] owner. Adoption levels are overwhelmingly
X100 attributable to cats, with 60.4 per cent being
rehomed, compared to 17.1 per cent of dogs
being rehomed.
Service cost $9.55  $12.25 The animal management service features
Cost of animal management a range of programs delivered within the
service per population community to ensure that people and their
[Direct cost of the animal pets can live together harmoniously and
safely in our municipality. The service includes
management service /
reuniting lost pets with their owners, pet
Population]
adoptions, operating the Epping Animal
Welfare Facility, animal-related investigations,
an after-hours emergency service and auditing
animal-related businesses to ensure welfare
standards are upheld.
Health and safety Newin Newin 100.00% 100.00% Council undertook eight animal prosecutions,
Animal management 2020 2020 all of which were successful.
prosecutions

[Number of successful animal
management prosecutions

/ Number of znimal
management prosecutions]
X100
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